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INTRODUCTION

The Financial Statements of Crown Corporations, Boards and Authorities are a reproduction of the
available audited financial statements of various Government organizations as approved by the applicable
boards of these organizations. This report is produced alphabetically in two books; A to M and N to Z.
The fiscal years noted in the table of contents are based on the fiscal year end of the organization. This
report includes board-signed financial statements of crown corporations, boards and authorities for their
most recent fiscal year end up to March 31, 2015. In certain instances, the financial statements for their
prior fiscal year end are included due to timing of obtaining board signatures. Financial statements older
than two previous fiscal year ends are excluded from this report.

Information on the financial position and results of operations of the Province for the 2014-15 fiscal year
may be found in the following financial reports:
Public Accounts Consolidated Summary Financial Statements
This document presents the summary financial statements which consolidate the financial
statements of the Consolidated Revenue Fund with the financial statements of various Crown
Corporations, Boards and Authorities, as approved by Treasury Board, which are controlled by the
Government of Newfoundland and Labrador.

Consolidated Revenue Fund Financial Information

This document presents the financial position of the Consolidated Revenue Fund and the results of
its activities on an accrual basis.

Report on the Program Expenditures and Revenues of the Consolidated Revenue Fund
This report presents the actual budgetary contribution (requirement) of the Consolidated Revenue
Fund along with details on the actual revenues and expenditures, by program, using the modified

cash basis of accounting.

The Financial Statements of Crown Corporations, Boards and Agencies are also available on the
Government’s website at: http://www.fin.gov.nl.ca/fin/public_accounts/index.html



https://gov.nl.ca/fin/public-accounts
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This report includes the most recent fiscal year financial statements (current or one prior year), up to
March 31, 2015, those have been received prior to the publication date. All earlier fiscal year statements
have been excluded from this report. The financial statements of the following agencies were not received

in time for the inclusion in this report:

Consumer Protection Fund for Prepaid Funeral Services (2014 & 2015)
Discovery Health Care Foundation Inc. (2014 & 2015)

Dr. H. Bliss Murphy Cancer Care Foundation (2014 & 2015)

Egg Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador (2013 & 2014)

House of Assembly (2014 & 2015)

Janeway Children’s Hospital Foundation (2014 & 2015)

Labrador School Board Trust Fund (2013 & 2014)
Labrador-Grenfell Regional Health Authority (2014)

Newfoundland and Labrador Education Foundation Inc. (2013)
Newfoundland and Labrador Farm Products (2014 & 2015)
Newfoundland and Labrador Legal Aid Commission (2014)
Newfoundland International Student Education Program Inc. (2014)
Supreme Court of Newfoundland & Labrador (2014)

The Burin Peninsula Health Care Foundation Inc. (2014 & 2015)
Trinity-Conception-Placentia Health Foundation Inc. (2014 & 2015)






Consolidated Financial Statements
Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc.

March 31, 2015



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders of
Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Atlantic
Lottery Corporation Inc., which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
March 31, 2015 and the consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive
income, changes in deficiency and cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
[n our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. as at

March 31, 2015, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

&w«}: ¢ ?4&7 AL
Saint John, Canada,

June 3, 2015 Chartered Professional Accountants
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ATLANTIC LOTTERY CORPORATION INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31

[In thousands of dollars]
2015 2014

Revenue
Gross ticket sales $ 654,165 $ 671,286
Net video lottery receipts 393,342 374,053
Entertainment center revenue 20,290 19,988

1,067,797 1,065,327
Prizes on ticket sales 372,776 384,294
Net revenue 695,021 681,033
Direct expenses
Commissions 124,957 122,534
Ticket printing 11,689 10,804
Other direct cost [note 11] 5,849 5,620

142,495 138,958
Gross profit 552,526 542,075
Expenses
Operating and administrative expenses 110,191 111,294
Depreciation and impairment [note 10 and 11] 29,675 29,884
Interest [note 12,16 and 17] 4,234 4,224
144,100 145,402
Profit before the following 408,426 396,673
Other expenses (income) (2,297) (3,493)
Loss on impairment of investment [note 9] 8,681 -
Taxes [note 23] 29,355 27,296
Payments to the Government of Canada [note 22] 4,471 4,433
40,210 28,236

Net profit $ 368,216 $ 368,437

See accompanying notes



ATLANTIC LOTTERY CORPORATION INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31

[In thousands of dollars]
2015 2014

Net profit 368,216 $ 368,437
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Mark-to-market gains (losses) on derivative instruments designated and
qualifying as cash flow hedges

Change in fair value [note 18] (3,453) 3,495
Change in actuarial assumptions for the employee future benefits

Change in actuarial assumptions [note 19] 4,277) 19,650
Other comprehensive income (loss) (7,730) 23,145
Comprehensive income 360,486 $ 391,582

See accompanying notes



ATLANTIC LOTTERY CORPORATION INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN DEFICIENCY

AS AT MARCH 31
[In thousands of dollars]
2015
Accumulated other Total
Share comprehensive shareholders'
capital income (loss) Deficit deficiency
Balance, beginning of year 1 S 968 $ (34,873) § (33,904)
Net profit - - 368,216 368,216
Other comprehensive loss - (3,453) 4,277) (7,730)
Comprehensive income (loss) - (3,453) 363,939 360,486
Distribution of profit to shareholders [note 15]
New Brunswick Lotteries and Gaming Corporation - - (115,809) (115,809)
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador - - (125,196) (125,196)
Nova Scotia Provincial Lotteries and Casino Corporation - - (108,403) (108,403)
Prince Edward Island Lotteries Commission - - (13,364) (13,364)
Total profit allocated to shareholders - - (362,772) (362,772)
Balance, end of year 1 3 2,485) $ (33,706) $ (36,190)
2014
Accumulated other Total
Share comprehensive shareholders'
capital income (loss) Deficit deficiency
Balance, beginning of year 1 3 2,527) $ (62,645) $ (65,171)
Net profit - - 368,437 368,437
Other comprehensive income - 3,495 19,650 23,145
Comprehensive income - 3,495 388,087 391,582
Distribution of profit to shareholders [note 15]
New Brunswick Lotteries and Gaming Corporation - - (117,571) (117,571)
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador - - (120,592) (120,592)
Nova Scotia Provincial Lotteries and Casino Corporation - - (107,794) (107,794)
Prince Edward Island Lotteries Commission - - (14,208) (14,208)
Total profit allocated to shareholders - - (360,165) (360,165)
Dividends paid - - (150) (150)
Balance, end of year 1 3 968 $ (34,373) $ (33,904)

See accompanying notes



ATLANTIC LOTTERY CORPORATION INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31

[In thousands of dollars]

2015 2014
Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Net profit $ 368,216 $ 368,437
Add (deduct) non-cash items:
Depreciation [note 10 and 11] 32,653 32,217
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 3,209 1,376
Impairment (reversal) of long-lived assets [note 10 and 11] (103) 500
Impairment of investment [note 9] 8,681 -
Increase (decrease) in cash flow hedge - (969)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (7,730) 23,145
404,926 424,706
Net change in non-cash components of working capital [note 25] (18,552) 15,392
Decrease in employee future benefits (11,427) (22,737)
374,947 417,361
Investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment (7,444) (17,776)
Purchase of intangibles (10,223) (14,564)
Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment 1,825 1,148
(15,842) (31,192)
Financing activities
Increase (decrease) in line of credit 9,299 (4,120)
Proceeds of long-term debt 260,224 200,862
Repayment of long-term debt (268,573) (218,966)
Repayment of long-term lease payable 938) (3,038)
Increase (decrease) in other long-term liabilities 3,632 (2,652)
Dividends paid to shareholders - (150)
3,644 (28,064)
Distribution to shareholders [note 15] 362,772) (360,165)
Increase (decrease) in cash 23) (2,060)
Cash, beginning of year 23,408 25,468
Cash, end of year [note 6] $ 23,385 $ 23,408

See accompanying notes



Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015 [thousands of dollars]

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. [“the Corporation”] was incorporated under the Canada Business Corporations
Act on September 3, 1976. The Corporation’s shareholders are the New Brunswick Lotteries and Gaming
Corporation, Province of Newfoundland and Labrador, Nova Scotia Provincial Lotteries and Casino Corporation,
and Prince Edward Island Lotteries Commission. The registered office of the Corporation is located at 922 Main
Street in Moncton, New Brunswick, Canada.

The profit of the Corporation is distributed twice monthly to each of the shareholders. The distribution to each
province consists of the calculated profit in each province as determined by the Amended and Restated Unanimous
Shareholders’ Agreement.

The Corporation has been appointed to undertake, conduct and manage lotteries by and on behalf of the provinces of
New Brunswick, Newfoundland and Labrador and Prince Edward Island. The Corporation has been appointed to
operate lotteries in the province of Nova Scotia by the Nova Scotia Provincial Lotteries and Casino Corporation
[“NSPLCC™”].

The Corporation has entered into a formal operating agent agreement [“Agreement”] with NSPLCC that requires the
Corporation to obtain the prior approval of NSPLCC before making certain changes related to lottery schemes in
Nova Scotia. The Agreement provides that all assets acquired by the Corporation exclusively for the operation of
lotteries in Nova Scotia are held by the Corporation in trust for and on behalf of NSPLCC, and that all liabilities
incurred to acquire those assets are also the liabilities of NSPLCC. In the case of the Agreement being cancelled, the
Corporation has a 24- month period to transfer all assets and liabilities related to the lottery schemes in Nova Scotia
to NSPLCC. However, these assets and liabilities related to the Nova Scotia lottery activities are included on the
Corporation’s consolidated balance sheet, because NSPLCC does not have the intent to cancel the Agreement and
therefore the Corporation’s expectation is that the economic benefit of all the acquired assets will stay with the
Corporation over their entire useful lives.

The Corporation has conduct and manage agent agreements with the provinces of New Brunswick, Newfoundland
and Labrador and Prince Edward Island which include similar provisions. Also, these provinces currently do not
have the intent to cancel the agreements and therefore all assets and liabilities related to the lottery operations in
these provinces are also recorded with the same assumption in the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements.

The Articles of Incorporation restrict the number of shareholders to four and any invitations to the public to
subscribe for securities of the Corporation are prohibited. Because of these restrictions, the Corporation manages
capital through working capital and debt to ensure sufficient liquidity to manage current and future operations. The
acquisition of debt requires the approval of the Corporation’s Board of Directors and NSPLCC.

The Corporation is also restricted under the Gaming Control Acts of each province for the management of prize

funds. The Corporation is required to maintain cash on hand equivalent to the amount of prize liabilities
outstanding.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation for the year ended March 31, 2015 were authorized for
issue by the Board of Directors on June 3, 2015.
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Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015 [thousands of dollars]

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Continued]

Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements were prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost basis,
except for derivative financial instruments that have been measured at fair value.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation and its subsidiaries for the year ended March 31, 2015
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards [“IFRS”] and interpretations
adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board [“TASB”].

Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Corporation’s functional
currency. All dollar values are rounded to the nearest thousandth dollar ($°000), except for per share amounts.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries,
Atlantic Gaming Equipment Limited, and 7865813 Canada Inc. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation, using consistent
accounting policies.

The subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date at which the Corporation obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

All inter-Corporation balances, transactions, income and expenses, and profits and losses, including dividends
resulting from inter-Corporation transactions, are eliminated in full.

Cash and restricted prize cash
Cash and restricted prize cash in the consolidated balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and restricted prize cash consist of cash, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Corporation’s cash
management.

Pursuant to provincial regulations the Corporation maintains restricted cash accounts in an amount equivalent to
current game liabilities. Withdrawals from these accounts are restricted to payment of prizes [note 14].

Funds held for alc.ca wallets represent funds provided to the Corporation through player wallets on alc.ca. These
amounts are deposited into a separate bank account and are internally restricted by the Corporation exclusively for
funding the alc.ca wallet liability.

Inventory

Inventory consists of lottery tickets [Scratch’N Win and Breakopen], and food and beverage consumables. Inventory
is valued at the lower of cost, determined on an average cost basis, and net realizable value. Costs incurred in
bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as purchase costs on an average cost
basis.

11



Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015 [thousands of dollars]

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Continued]

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Subsequent
costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Corporation and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance expenses are charged to the consolidated statement of
operations as incurred. Borrowing costs related to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
are capitalized.

Land and assets not ready for use are not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is charged to the consolidated
statement of operations based on cost, less estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The Corporation is using the following useful lives for the different asset categories:

Asset Useful life
Building 7 to 50 years
Automotive 4 years
Operational and gaming equipment 3 to 24 years
Finance lease Lease term
Leasehold improvements Lease term

If the costs of a certain component of property and equipment are significant in relation to the total cost of the item,
these costs are accounted for and depreciated separately.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed annually, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset [calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset] is included in the consolidated statement of
operations in the year the asset is derecognized.

Pre-opening costs are expensed to the consolidated statement of operations as incurred.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Acquired intangible assets are primarily software, patents and licenses on technologies. Intangible assets acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and/or impairment losses. Amortization is charged to the
consolidated statement of operations on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Useful life
Software licenses 3 to 15 years
Computer software 3 to 15 years
Gaming software 3 to 7 years
Finance lease Lease term

12



Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015 [thousands of dollars]

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Continued]

The Corporation only has intangible assets acquired with a finite useful life. The estimated useful lives and
amortization methods are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimates being accounted for on a prospective basis. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognized in the consolidated statement of operations in the expense category consistent with the function of the
intangible asset. Intangible assets not ready for use are not amortized.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated statement of
operations when the asset is derecognized.

Internally generated intangible assets - research and development expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. Development
costs relating primarily to the development of new gaming or lottery software or internet web sites used for purposes
of selling the Corporation’s services are recognized as an intangible asset when the Corporation can demonstrate
that the following conditions required by International Accounting Standards [“IAS”] 38, Intangible Assets are met:

o the asset is identifiable and will generate expected future economic benefits; and
e the cost can be determined reliably.

The amount initially recognized for internally generated intangible assets is the sum of the acquisition and
manufacturing costs that can be directly attributed to the development process as well as a reasonable portion of the
development-related fixed costs. If the internally generated intangible asset does not meet the conditions of IAS 38,
the development expenditure is recognized in profit or loss in the period during which it was incurred. Subsequent
to initial recognition, internally generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and/or
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when the development is complete and the asset is
available for use. It is amortized over the period of expected future benefit on a straight-line basis. The current
useful lives applied are as follows:

Asset Useful life
Software licenses 3 to 15 years
Computer software 3 to 15 years
Gaming software 3 to 7 years

During the period of development, the intangible asset is tested for impairment annually.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period during which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
inception date: whether fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

13



Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015 [thousands of dollars]

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Continued]

Corporation as a lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Corporation substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of
the leased item, are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the lower of fair value of the leased property or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations.

Leased assets are depreciated on the same basis as owned assets over the useful lives of the assets. However, if
there is no reasonable certainty that the Corporation will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the consolidated statement of operations on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Impairment of financial assets

The Corporation assesses at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, the Corporation estimates the asset’s fair market value. An asset’s fair market value can be
measured via recent market transactions or discounted cash flow model. If the carrying amount is lower than the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset, impairment of that amount exists.

Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Corporation assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, the Corporation estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the fair value of an asset or cash-generating unit [“CGU”] less costs to sell, and its value in use. It is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

For previously impaired assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Corporation estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the
consolidated statement of operations.
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Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015 [thousands of dollars]

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Continued]

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Corporation has a present obligation [legal or constructive] as a result of a past
event, and the costs to settle the obligation are both probable and able to be reliably measured. Where the Corporation
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any
provision is presented in the consolidated statement of operations net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time
value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost. The Corporation has recorded provisions for sick leave and asset decommissioning.

Pensions and other post-employment benefits
The Corporation participates in a multiple-employer defined benefit contributory pension plan. The Corporation also
provides certain post-employment healthcare benefits, life insurance and ad-hoc supplementary pensions.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined separately for each plan using the
projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense in other comprehensive
income immediately in the period when they occur.

The past service costs are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. If the benefits have already vested, immediately following the introduction of, or changes to, a
pension plan, past service costs are recognized immediately.

The defined benefit asset or liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation (using a discount
rate based on high quality corporate bonds, as explained in note 19 less past service costs and (for the pension
obligation) less the fair value of plan assets, out of which the obligations are to be settled. Plan assets are not
available to the creditors of the Corporation, nor can they be paid directly to the Corporation. Fair value is based on
market price information and, in the case of quoted securities, is the published bid price. The value of any defined
benefit asset recognized is restricted to the sum of any past service costs and the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan.

Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

The Corporation at initial recognition designates its financial assets either as (i) financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, (ii) loans and receivables, or as (iii) available for sale. Financial liabilities are classified as (i) fair
value through profit or loss, (ii) financial liabilities at amortized cost, or as (iii) derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus,
in the case of financial assets not recognized at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Corporation’s financial assets include cash, restricted prize cash, accounts receivable, due from shareholders,
and investments.

The Corporation’s financial liabilities include line of credit, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, liabilities for

unclaimed prizes, due to shareholders, long-term debt, long-term lease payable and other long-term liabilities,
including derivative instruments.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015 [thousands of dollars]

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Continued]

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification, as follows:

i. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Corporation that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39, Financial instruments: recognition and measurement, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in other expenses (income) or interest expense in the consolidated statement of
operations.

The Corporation has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss.

ii. Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method [“EIR”], less impairment. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the
consolidated statement of operations in depreciation and impairment expense.
Securities in this category include cash, restricted prize cash, accounts receivable, and due from shareholders.

1il. Available for sale

Securities classified as available for sale are non-derivative financial assets that are initially designated as available
for sale or that are not classified in the fair value through profit or loss or loans and receivables categories.

Gains and losses resulting from changes in fair value, except for impairment losses are recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income under net unrealized gains/(losses) on available for sale securities
until the financial asset is derecognized.

Securities in this category include investments.
Derecognition
A financial asset [or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets] is

derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Corporation has transferred its
rights to receive cash flows from the asset.
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Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015 [thousands of dollars]

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Continued]

Impairment of financial assets

The Corporation assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that have occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset [an incurred “loss event”] and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and, where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Corporation first assesses individually whether objective evidence
of impairment exists, individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Corporation determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows [excluding

future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred].

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:

i. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includes financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Corporation that are not designated as

hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations. The
Corporation has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

il. Financial liabilities at amortized cost
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using

the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015 [thousands of dollars]

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Continued]

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in other expenses (income) in the consolidated
statement of operations.

Financial liabilities classified in this category include line of credit, accounts payable and accrued liabilities,
liabilities for unclaimed prizes, due to shareholder, long-term debt, and long-term lease payable.

iil. Derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge

The Corporation uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps to hedge its risks associated with
interest rate fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and is subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
taken directly to net profit or loss for the year.

The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is determined by reference to market values for similar instruments. At
the inception of a hedge relationship, the Corporation formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to
which it wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the
hedge. The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the
nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting
the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk.

Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial
reporting periods for which they were designated.

Interest rate swaps when hedging exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk
associated with a recognized asset or liability or highly probable forecast transactions are classified as cash flow
hedges. The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized directly in other
comprehensive income, while the ineffective portion is recognized in the consolidated statement of operations in
other expenses (income).

Amounts taken to other comprehensive income are transferred to the consolidated statement of operations when the
hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognized or when a forecast sale or purchase occurs.

If the forecasted transaction or firm commitment is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in equity is transferred to the consolidated statement of operations. If the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is
revoked, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income remains in other
comprehensive income until the forecast transaction or firm commitment affects profit or loss.

The Corporation uses interest rate swaps to hedge the volatility of variable interest payments to a fixed interest rate
over the term of the respective debt.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015 [thousands of dollars]

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Continued]
Financial liabilities classified in this category include other long-term liabilities.

Current versus non-current classification
Derivative instruments that are not designated and effective hedging instruments are classified as current or non-
current or separated into a current and non-current portion based on an assessment of the facts and circumstances
[i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows].

e Where the Corporation will hold a derivative as an economic hedge [and does not apply hedge accounting]
for a period beyond 12 months after the reporting date, the derivative is classified as non-current [or
separated into current and non-current portions] consistent with the classification of the underlying item.

e Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are effective hedging instruments, are classified
consistent with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The derivative instrument is separated into
a current portion and non-current portion only if a reliable allocation can be made.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of operations.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is determined by
reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations [bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions], without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current fair
value of another instrument that is substantially the same; discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Corporation and
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding
discounts, free tickets and pari-mutuel commissions. The Corporation assesses its revenue arrangements against
specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as the principal or agent. The Corporation has concluded that it is
acting as principal in all of its revenue arrangements. In each of the revenue categories, the following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Continued]

Gross ticket sales

Lottery revenue
Lottery revenue and the corresponding direct expenses are recognized on the draw date. Receipts for lottery
tickets sold before March 31 for draws held subsequent to that date are recorded as deferred revenue.

Instant ticket revenue
Revenue from instant ticket games and the corresponding direct expenses are recognized at the time of activation,
which determines the transfer of legal ownership to the retailer.

Interactive revenue
Revenue from interactive games and the corresponding direct expense are recognized at the time of play.

Net video lottery receipts
Revenue from video lottery and the corresponding direct expenses are recognized at the time of play and are
recorded net of credits paid out.

Entertainment centre revenue
Entertainment centre revenue includes receipts from electronic gaming devices, recorded net of credits paid out at
the time of play, table games recorded net of payouts at the time of play, and restaurant sales.

The Corporation operates a loyalty points program at its Entertainment centre, which allows players to accumulate
points at the time of play. The points can then be redeemed for products. Consideration received is allocated
between the Entertainment centre revenue and the points issued, with the consideration allocated to the points equal
to their fair value. The fair value of the points is determined by applying statistical analysis. The fair value of the
points issued is deferred and recognized as revenue when the points are redeemed.

Prize expense

Prize expense for draw-based games is recorded based on the actual prize liability experienced for each online game
at the time of the draw. All obligations for prizes from these drawings are recorded as liabilities for unclaimed prizes
on the consolidated balance sheet.

Instant ticket prizes are recognized as a percentage of ticket sales in line with the theoretical prize payout for that
game.

Video lottery and interactive game prizes are based on the actual prizes won for each individual game, at the point at
which the sale occurs.

In addition to cash prizes, the Corporation also awards free tickets. The value ascribed to these prizes is equal to the
sale price.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income or expense is recorded using the effective
interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or liability. Interest income is included in other income in the consolidated statement of operations.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Continued]

Sales tax

As a prescribed registrant, the Corporation makes GST/HST remittances to the Federal Government pursuant to the
Games of Chance Regulations of the Excise Tax Act. The Corporation’s net tax for a reporting period is calculated
using net tax attributable to both gaming and non-gaming activities. The net tax attributable to gaming activities
results in a tax burden of two times the GST/HST rate on most taxable gaming expenditures incurred by the
Corporation [note 23]. HST is paid in New Brunswick, Newfoundland and Labrador, Nova Scotia, and Prince
Edward Island at their respective HST rates.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables
or payables in the consolidated balance sheet.

Income tax
The Corporation is owned by the four Atlantic Provincial Governments and is exempt from income tax.

Payments to the Government of Canada

Under federal/provincial agreements, the Government of Canada agreed to withdraw from the sale of lottery tickets
and to refrain from re-entering the field of gaming and betting. In consideration, all provinces and territories of
Canada pay $24,000 annually, in 1979 dollars, adjusted by the consumer price index each year [note 22].

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in
future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts recognized in the consolidated
financial statements of the Corporation are discussed below.

Determination of useful lives for tangible and intangible assets

The Corporation has based the determination of the useful lives for its tangible and intangible assets on a detailed
review of all empirical data for the different asset classes and also used the knowledge of the appropriate operations
people to conclude on the useful lives. Furthermore, the Corporation at least annually updates if the current applied
useful lives are still valid for the different asset classes. Any external or internal changes in the Corporation’s
environment may result in an impact on the expectation of the useful lives of certain assets and hence a triggering
event to reconsider the expectation of the useful lives.

Impairment of financial assets

Impairment exists when the enterprise value of an asset exceeds its fair market value. Fair market value can be
measured via recent market transactions or discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash
flow model as well as the expected future cash inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS [Continued]

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities
that the Corporation is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the
discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation
purposes. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the different CGU, including a
sensitivity analysis, are further explained in notes 10 and 11.

Employee future benefits
The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the pension
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions.

These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates, the return on the
investment in the plan assets and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying
assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Further details about the assumptions used are
given in note 19.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalized in accordance with the accounting policy in note 2 “Intangible assets”. Initial
capitalization of costs is based on management’s judgment that technological and economical feasibility is
confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a defined milestone according to an established
project management model. In determining the amounts to be capitalized, management makes assumptions
regarding the expected future cash generation of the project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of
benefits. As at March 31, 2015, the amount of capitalized development costs was $9,596 [2014 - $12,822].

Capitalized development costs are primarily for the customization, implementation and testing of new gaming
software solutions and of web sites offering information about games to the Corporation’s customers, but also to
place an order on the web site resulting in revenue for the Corporation. During the development of these new
gaming software solutions and the revenue orientated web sites, there is some uncertainty, if these tools will be
finally accepted by the market and will generate sufficient revenue. However, based on the Corporation’s market
research and review of other markets where these or similar solutions were already implemented, the Corporation’s
management is confident that the capitalized development costs will result in sufficient future benefits to cover the
capitalized costs.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities [especially derivative financial instruments like
interest rate swaps] recorded on the consolidated balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are
determined using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flows model. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in
establishing fair values. The judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS [Continued]

Revenue recognition — Player Loyalty Program

The Corporation estimates the fair value of points awarded under the Player Loyalty Program by applying statistical
techniques. Inputs to the models include making assumptions about expected redemption rates, the mix of products
that will be available for redemption in the future and customer preferences. Points issued under the program have a
one year expiration period. As at March 31, 2015, the estimated liability for unredeemed points was approximately
$9 [2014 - $6].

4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

IFRIC 21, Levies

IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified
by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, the
interpretation clarifies that no liability should be anticipated before the specified minimum threshold is reached.
Retrospective application is required for [IFRIC 21. The Corporation has applied the recognition principles under
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets consistent with the requirements of IFRIC 21 in
prior years; as such, there is no impact from IFRIC 21.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — Amendments to IAS 32

These amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off’ and the criteria for
non-simultaneous settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualify for offsetting and is applied retrospectively.
These amendments have no impact on the Corporation since none of the entities in the Corporation has any
offsetting arrangements.

5. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Corporation’s consolidated financial
statements are listed below. This listing of standards and interpretations issued are those that the Corporation
reasonably expects to have an impact on disclosures, financial position or performance when applied at a future date.
The Corporation intends to adopt these standards when they become effective.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 will replace IAS 39. IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is measured at
amortized cost or fair value, replacing the multiple rules in IAS 39. The approach in IFRS 9 is based on how an
entity manages its financial instruments in the context of its business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. For hedge accounting, IFRS 9 uses an objectives-based test to determine hedge
effectiveness, amends how the risk component may be designated as the hedged item and changes the accounting for
certain costs that can be excluded from the designation of a financial instrument as a hedging item. The Corporation
is currently evaluating the impact of IFRS 9 on its future financial statements. IFRS 9 was issued by the IASB in
November 2009 with amendments, primarily relating to hedge accounting, issued in November 2013. Due to the
IASB’s continued work on the impairment phase of this standard, there is no mandatory effective date for applying
IFRS 9, although the standard is available for application now. A mandatory effective date for the full standard will
be issued when the impairment phase of the IFRS 9 review is completed. The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9
will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Corporation’s financial assets, but will potentially
have no impact on classification and measurements of financial liabilities. The Corporation will quantify the effect
in conjunction with the other phases, when issued, to present a comprehensive picture.
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5. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE [Continued]

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in
IFRS 15 provide a more structure approach to measuring and recognising revenue. The new revenue standard is
applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full or
modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with early
adoption permitted. The Corporation is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new
standard on the required effective date.

6. CASH

Cash is represented by cash on hand and bank balances, less outstanding cheques.

2015 2014
Cash $ 4573 § 2,660
Restricted prize cash 18,812 20,748
Total cash $ 23,385 $ 23,408

The Corporation has a cash balance of $836 [2014 - $702] to fund player wallets.

7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2015 2014
Lottery retailers $20,596 $ 16,734
Taxes receivable - 688
Other 5,281 3,651

Total accounts receivable $25,877 $§ 21,073

Lottery retailers’ receivables are collected on a weekly basis. The Corporation had bad debt expense of $96 [2014 -
$66] related to lottery retailer receivables.

8. INVENTORY

2015 2014
Ticket stock $4,637 $ 7,037
Food and beverage 128 123
Total inventory $4,765 $ 7,160

During the year, the Corporation recorded inventory write-offs in the amount of $619 [2014 - $327].

24



Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015

[thousands of dollars]

9. INVESTMENT

The Corporation maintains an equity interest in Geonomics Global Games Limited [previously named Roboreus
Limited], a privately-owned UK based internet gaming vendor. The investment is classified as available for sale and
is being carried at cost less impairment as there is no quoted price in an active market and fair value cannot be
reliably measured. An investment of this nature is required to be assessed annually for impairment based on, among
other factors, historical results. The investment represents a start-up online gaming concept with a short history of
poor previous results and therefore any future return is presumed to not be probable of realization for accounting
purposes. As a result, ALC has fully impaired the investment by $8,681 [2014 — $0]. The Corporation believes the

value of the investment in Geonomics Global Games Limited continues to have merit based on the business

relationship in place with its major shareholder.

10. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Operational
and gaming Finance Leasehold Not ready

Land Building Automotive equipment lease improvements for use Total
Cost or valuation:
As at March 31,2013 1,807 22,166 2,658 224,339 5,120 9,416 24,851 290,357
Additions - 21 - 8,542 - 13 9,200 17,776
Transfers - - - 3,686 - - (3,037) 649
Disposals - (126) 617) (73,928) - - - (74,671)
As at March 31,2014 1,807 22,061 2,041 162,639 5,120 9,429 31,014 234111
Additions - 895 445 6,001 - 88 15 7,444
Transfers - 12 - 31,105 - 23 (30,142) 998
Disposals (100) (3,800) 277) (55,183) - (1,164) 11) (60,535)
As at March 31,2015 $1,707 $ 19,168 $ 2,209 $ 144562 $ 5,120 $ 8376 $ 876 $ 182,018
Depreciation and impairment:
As at March 31,2013 $ - $ 8331 § 99 $ 145174 $ 3,641 $ 5731 $ - $ 163,873
Depreciation for the year - 922 457 17,093 1,365 618 - 20,455
Impairment - - - - - - - -
Transfers - - - - - - - -
Disposals - (96) (421) (71,794) - - - (72,311)
As at March 31,2014 - 9,157 1,032 90,473 5,006 6,349 - 112,017
Depreciation for the year - 887 385 18,492 114 465 - 20,343
Impairment - - - - - - - -
Transfers - 2 - 105 - 23 - 130
Disposals - (2,730) (210) (54,404) - (1,152) - (58,496)
As at March 31,2015 $ - 8 7316 $ 1,207 $§ 54,666 $ 5,120 $ 5,685 $ - 8§ 73,994
Net book value:
As at March 31,2015 $1,707 $ 11,852 $ 1,002 $ 89896 $ - 3 2,91 $§ 876 $ 108,024
As at March 31,2014 $187 $ 12904 $ 1,000 $ 72,166 $§ 114 § 3,080 $ 31,014 $ 122,094
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10. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT [Continued]

During the year, the Corporation carried out a review of the recoverable amount of property and equipment, there
was no impairment identified [2014 - $nil]. The recoverable amount was measured by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the CGU. The discount rate utilized
was 2.5% per annum [2014 - 2.5%].

As at March 31, 2015, assets classified as not ready for use had $152 for retail gaming equipment [2014 - $30,758];
$717 was for computer equipment not yet in use [2014 - $256]; and $7 was for borrowing costs on computer

equipment not yet in use [2014 - Nil]

Assets classified as finance lease are comprised of computer hardware long-term lease disclosed in note 17.
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11. INTANGIBLES

Software Computer Gaming Not ready for

licenses software software Finance lease use Total
Cost:
As at March 31,2013 $ 66,433 $ 4353 $ 28,589 § 7,128 § 16,897 § 123,400
Additions 381 31 1,742 - 12,410 14,564
Transfers 33) 1,978 215 - (2,809) (649)
Disposals - (1,252) (1,116) - (69) (2,437)
As at March 31,2014 66,781 5,110 29,430 7,128 26,429 134,878
Additions 3,536 31 512 - 6,144 10,223
Transfers 13,171 698 6,528 - (21,395) 998)
Disposals (12,644) - (14,481) - (1,446) (28,571)
As at March 31,2015 $ 70,844 § 5,839 § 21,989 §$ 7,128 $ 9,732 $ 115,532
Amortization and impairment
As at March 31,2013 $ 43,680 $ 2,864 § 15984 § 3,857 § 750 § 67,135
Amortization 6,863 483 2,500 1,582 - 11,428
Impairment (recovery) - - - - 500 500
Transfers (845) 845 - - - -
Disposals - (1,205) (734) - - (1,939)
As at March 31,2014 49,698 2,987 17,750 5,439 1,250 77,124
Amortization 7,571 960 2,882 897 - 12,310
Impairment (recovery) (103) - - - - (103)
Transfers (388) 258 - - - (130)
Disposals (11,152) - (14,424) - - (25,576)
As at March 31,2015 $ 45,626 $ 4,205 $ 6,208 $ 6,336 $ 1,250 § 63,625
Net book value:
As at March 31,2015 $ 25,218 $ 1,634 $ 15,781 $ 792§ 8,482 $ 51,907
As at March 31, 2014 $ 17,083 § 2,123 § 11,680 $ 1,689 $ 25179 $ 57,754

The above includes internally developed additions of $1,573 [2014 - $986], transfers of nil [2014 - nil], impairments
of ($6) [2014 - nil], and disposals of ($7,069) [2014 - ($269)].

During the year, the Corporation carried out a review of the recoverable amount of intangibles which led to the

recognition of a reversal of impairment of $103 [2014 — impairment of $500].

The recoverable amount was

measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the CGU. The discount rate utilized was 2.5% per annum [2014 - 2.5%].

Assets classified as not ready for use are directly related to software licenses and video lottery software.
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11. INTANGIBLES [Continued]

The Corporation capitalizes internal salary expenditures related to implementation and testing of new gaming
software solutions and internet websites for the sale of new customer products.

During the year, the Corporation recorded capitalized borrowing costs amounting to $58 [2014 - $520] at a rate of
2.50% [2014 - 1.94%].

Amortization includes $2,882 [2014 - $2,500] for video lottery software, included in other direct costs.

Assets classified as finance lease are comprised of software under long-term lease disclosed in note 17.

12. LINE OF CREDIT

The Corporation has available a $125,000 line of credit, which bears interest at prime less 0.50%, and charges a
standby fee on the daily unadvanced portion of the credit facility at a rate of 0.1% per annum.

Included in interest expense is $467 [2014 - $385] relating to line of credit.

13. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2015 2014
Trade payables and accruals $7,893 $24,221
Salaries payable $4,793 $4,554
Taxes payable $3,988 $3,138
Asset decommissioning provision $10 $224
Player payable $655 $581
Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities $17,339 $32,718
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14. LIABILITIES FOR UNCLAIMED PRIZES

2015 2014
Unclaimed prizes
Current prizes $18,810 $ 20,745
Special prize fund 2 3

$18,812 § 20,748

2015 2014
Special prize fund
Balance, beginning of year $ 3 8 -
Unclaimed prizes expired during year 5,659 5,514
Prize payouts (5,660) (5,511)
Balance, end of year $ 2 3 3

Unclaimed prizes from regional lottery games are retained in a prize fund for 12 months from the announced
beginning date of the draw and sports games are retained in a prize fund for 744 days from the date of purchase of
the ticket. Unclaimed prizes remaining after the respective periods are transferred to a special prize fund and are
recorded as a reduction to prize expense and/or used for prizes in subsequent draws. Prizes of national lottery games
are funded by the Interprovincial Lottery Corporation, with the exception of prizes for certain free tickets, which are
paid out of general prize funds as incurred.

Scratch’N Win prizes do not have an expiry period. Based on historical records, the Corporation has determined that
minimal prizes are claimed after 36 months from the date of launch of the game. All unclaimed prizes from
Scratch’N Win lottery games are retained in a prize fund for 36 months from the date of launch of the game.
Unclaimed prizes remaining after the 36 month claiming period are transferred to a special prize fund and are
recorded as a reduction to prize expense and/or used for prizes in subsequent draws. Unclaimed prizes of national
games are administered by the Interprovincial Lottery Corporation.
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15. DUE TO/FROM SHAREHOLDERS

The amount due to (from) shareholders relates to the profit earned for the year, not yet paid (received).

2015
Profit Profit Profit Profit payable
earned Withheld distributed Profitpaid (receivable)
New Brunswick Lotteries and Gaming Corporation $ 119552 $ 3,743 $ 115809 $ 112,804 § 3,005
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador $ 128,886 3,690 125,196 121,333 3,863
Nova Scotia Provincial Lotteries and Casino Corporation $ 113,167 4,764 108,403 104,234 4,169
Prince Edward Island Lotteries Commission $ 15,263 1,899 13,364 13,155 209

$ 376,868 $ 14,096 $ 362,772 $ 351,526 $ 11,246

2014
Profit Profit Profit Profit Profit payable
eamed withheld  distributed paid (receivable)
New Brunswick Lotteries and Gaming Corporation $ 119,755 $ 2,184 § 117571 $ 116,801 $ 770
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador 122,744 2,152 120,592 118,429 2,163
Nova Scotia Provincial Lotteries and Casino Corporation 110,573 2,779 107,794 105,745 2,049
Prince Edward Island Lotteries Commission 15,315 1,107 14,208 14,295 (87)
$ 368387 § 8222 $§ 360,165 $ 355270 $ 4,895

Profit earned is based on lottery operations and does not include the profit or loss of subsidiary companies.

Since 2007, the Corporation has been making supplemental payments to the pension plan to reduce the pension plan
solvency deficit. The supplemental payments were being funded by the Corporation via debt because the
Corporation retains no retained earnings. The Corporation began withholding a portion of monthly profit
distributions to shareholders in 2014 to fund the supplemental payments. The withholdings are scheduled until 2019
when the pension solvency deficit is expected to be eliminated and supplemental payments discontinued. Upon
transition to IFRS a retained earnings deficit was created. The deficit will be eliminated through the withholding of
profit for the purpose of funding the supplemental pension payments.

The withholdings are allocated among the shareholders based on the provincially allocated pension expense during

the period of 2007-2010 to align with the time period in which the deficit arose. During the year ended March 31,
2015, the Corporation withheld profit of $14,096 [2014 - $8,222].
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16. LONG-TERM DEBT

2015 2014

Bank term loan, amortized over 84 months, bearing variable interest rates
based on 30-day Bankers' Acceptances, hedged by fixed interest rate
swaps bearing interest rates at 1.94%, maturing in December 2019. $ 76,034 § 91,065
Bank term loan, amortized over 55 months, bearing variable interest rates
based on 30-day Bankers' Acceptances, hedged by fixed interest rate
swaps bearing interest rates at 2.58%, maturing in October 2015. 10,606 28,561
Bank term loan, amortized over 20 years, bearing variable interest rates
based on 30 day Bankers' Acceptances, hedged by a fixed interest rate
swap bearing interest at 5.13%, maturing in August 2016 and a fixed
interest rate swap bearing interest at 2.88%, beginning August 2016 and
maturing August 2026. 9,687 10,539
Bankers' Acceptance, maturing on June 15, 2015, bearing interest at 1.61%. 65,000 -
Bankers' Acceptance, maturing on June 15, 2015, bearing interest at 1.61%. 8,681 -
Bankers' Acceptance, maturing on June 16, 2014, bearing interest at 1.83%. - 40,000
Bankers' Acceptance, maturing on June 16, 2014, bearing interest at 1.83%. - 8,681
Non-revolving credit facility, maturing on June 30, 2015, bearing interest at
prime plus 1.00% per annum 489 -

170,497 178,846
Current portion of long-term debt 100,989 82,519

$ 69,508 $ 96,327

Long-term debt is reduced by established monthly payments. Payments over the next 12 months are disclosed in the
current portion of long-term debt.

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt for each of the five years subsequent to March 31, 2015 are
approximately as follows: 2016 - $100,989; 2017 - $15,983; 2018 - $16,044; 2019 - $16,397; and 2020 - $12,533.
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16. LONG-TERM DEBT [Continued]
Included in interest expense is $3,722 [2014 - $3,718] relating to long-term debt.

The Corporation has a debt covenant limiting cash payments to shareholders to be less than or equivalent to profit
earned. The Corporation is in compliance with this covenant. No assets have been pledged as security for the above
debt.

17. LONG-TERM LEASE PAYABLE

2015 2014
Lease of computer hardware payable in monthly installments of $6 including
interest at an imputed rate of 3.5% until June 2017. $163
$ 232
Lease of computer hardware payable in monthly installments of $121
including interest at an imputed rate of 3.5% until April 2014.
- 75
Lease of computer software payable in monthly installments of $109
including interest at an imputed rate of 3.5% until July 2014.
- 500
Lease of computer software payable in monthly installments of $27
including interest at an imputed rate of 4.17% until July 2017. 719 1,013
882 1,820
Current portion of long-term lease 378 938
$ 504

The aggregate payment of long-term lease payable for each of the five years subsequent to March 31, 2015 are
approximately as follows: 2016 - $378; 2017 - $393,2018 - $111; 2019 - nil; and 2020 - nil.

Included in interest expense is an amount of $45 [2014 - $120] related to software and hardware under capital lease.

18. CASH FLOW HEDGE

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
The Corporation does not use derivative contracts to manage transaction exposures.

Cash flow hedges

The Corporation holds four bank term loans bearing variable interest rates based on 30-day Bankers' Acceptances,
hedged by fixed interest rate swaps. The interest rate swap has the same terms as the loan agreement to realize an
effective hedge situation and therefore is not expected to impact the consolidated statement of operations. There
were no highly probable transactions for which hedge accounting has been claimed that have not occurred and no
significant element of hedge ineffectiveness requiring recognition in the consolidated statement of operations.
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18. CASH FLOW HEDGE |[Continued]

During the year ended March 31, 2015, the Corporation recorded the fair value of its cash flow hedges as a long-
term liability of $2,484, while the effective portion of the hedging derivative was recognized in other comprehensive
income (loss). During the year ended March 31, 2014, the Corporation recorded the fair value of its cash flow
hedges as a non-current asset of $969.

19. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

Pension benefits

The Corporation participates in a multi-employer defined benefit contributory pension plan. Benefits of the pension
plan are based on employees’ length of service and the average of the 60 consecutive months of highest pensionable
earnings prior to termination or retirement. The Corporation’s share of the multi-employer plan assets and the
related accrued benefit obligation have been actuarially measured for accounting purposes as at March 31, 2015
using the projected benefit method prorated on service and management’s best estimate of expected plan
performance, salary escalation and retirement ages of employees.

The most recent actuarial valuation for funding purposes was performed on December 31, 2013 by Mercer, a firm of
consulting actuaries. This valuation disclosed an unfunded liability of $5,107 for the entire plan [2010 - $10,596 for
all] of which the Corporation is one of the participating employers. Pursuant to the Act, the Corporation will pay its
share of special payments, on average $9,500 annually, into the Plan in addition to the employer contribution for
current service cost. These payments will continue until 2018 or until the benefits under the Act are fully funded as
determined by an actuarial valuation whichever comes first. The additional amount paid during the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2015 was $9,504 [2014 - $7,857].

Other post-employment benefits
The Corporation also sponsors the following post-employment benefits:

1. Extended health and dental benefits.
2. Life insurance and ad-hoc supplementary pensions.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the other post-employment benefits liabilities was conducted on March 31,
2011, and those results were extrapolated to March 31, 2015. Actuarial reports are prepared based on projections of
employees’ compensation levels to the time of retirement and future health care costs based on management’s best
estimate. The long service award was closed to plan members in an exchange for a cash settlement that was paid to
plan members in September 2014.

Sick leave

The Corporation offers its employees accumulation of unused sick leave days that the employees can use in later
annual periods. The Corporation has provided for the cumulated sick leave days for which past empirical data of the
usage of such days and the resulting future cash outflow are probable. Included in the individual costs for a sick
leave day are all annual payroll costs of the respective employee divided by the average number employment days
per annum. A provision totaling $635 [2014 - $656] is recorded and is included as part of other post-employment
benefits.
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19. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS [Continued]

Information about the Corporation’s employee future benefits as at March 31, in aggregate, is as follows:

Defined benefit pension plan - Other post-employment
Corporation's share (funded) benefits (unfunded)
2015 2014 2015 2014

Change in defined benefit obligation
Balance, beginning of year $ 146,062 $ 146,955 $ 13,924 § 13,440
Current service cost [employer portion] 3,833 4,895 712 921
Past service cost (2,899) - - -
(Gain)/loss on settlements - - 290) -
Interest expense 6,449 6,477 523 570
Cash flows

Benefits paid (5,743) (6,029) @3o01) (898)

Settlement payments from plan - - (5,007) -

Employees' contributions 2,209 2,216 - -
Remeasurements

Effect of changes in demographic assumptions 2,312) 8,525 (152) 509

Effect of changes in financial assumptions 19,752 (16,165) 1,777 (941)

Effect of experience adjustments (775) (812) - 323
Balance, end of year $ 166,576 $ 146,062 $ 11,186 $ 13,924
Change in fair value of plan assets
Balance, beginning of year $ 131,738 § 109,405 $ - 8 -
Interest income 6,398 5,062 - -
Return on plan assets [excluding interest income] 14,013 11,089 - -
Cash flows

Employer contributions 12,625 10,415 5,308 898

Employees' contributions 2,209 2,216 - -

Benefits paid (5,743) (6,029) @301) (898)

Settlement payments from plan - - (5,007) -

Administrative expense paid from plan assets (320) (420) - -
Balance, end of year $ 160,920 $ 131,738 $ - $ -
Amounts recognizedin the consolidated balance sheet
Defined benefit obligation ["DBO"] $ 166576 $ 146,062 $ 11,186 $ 13,924
Fair value of plan assets 160,920 131,738 - -
Funded status 5,656 14,324 11,186 13,924
Effect of asset ceiling/onerous liability - - - -
Net liability $ 5,656 $ 14,324 $ 11,186 $ 13,924
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19. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS [Continued]

Defined benefit pension plan - Other pos t-employment
Corporation's share (funded) benefits (unfunded)
2015 2014 2015 2014
Components of defined benefit cost
Service cost
Current service cost $ 3833 $ 4,895 $ 712§ 921
Past service cost (2,899) - - -
(Gain)/loss on settlements - - (290) -
Total service cost 934 4,895 422 921
Net interest cost
Interest expense on DBO 6,449 6,477 523 570
Interest (income) on plan assets (6,398) (5,062) - -
Total net interest cost 51 1,415 523 570
Remeasurement of other long term benefits - - - -
Administrative expenses on taxes 320 420 - -
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Operations
["Stmt. Ops."] 1,305 6,730 945 1,491
Remeasurements
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions 2,312) 8,525 152) 509
Effect of changes in financial assumptions 19,752 (16,165) 1,777 (941)
Effect of experience adjustments (775) (812) - 323
(Return) on plan assets [excluding interest income] (14,013) (11,089) - -
Total remeasurements included in other
comprehensive income ["OCI"] 2,652 (19,541) 1,625 (109)
Total defined benefit cost recognized in Stmt. Ops and
OCIL $ 3,957 $ (12,811) $ 2,570 $ 1,382
Net defined benefit liability (asset) reconciliation
Net defined benefit liability $ 14324 §$ 37,550 $ 13,924 $ 13,440
Defined benefit cost included in Stmt. Ops. 1,305 6,730 945 1,491
Total remeasurements included in OCI 2,652 (19,541) 1,625 (109)
Cash flows
Employer contributions (12,625) (10,415) (301) (898)
Employer direct benefit payments - - (5,007) -
Net defined benefit liability as of end of year $ 5,656 $ 14,324 $ 11,186 $ 13,924
Significant assumptions
Benefit obligation
Discount rate 3.90% 4.70% 3.88% 4.59%
Rate of salary increase 3.25% 3.70% 3.50% 3.70%
Rate of price inflation 2.10% 2.20% - -
Rate of pension increase 2.10% 2.20% 2.10% 2.20%
Defined benefit cost
Discount rate 4.70% 4.50% 4.59% 4.28%
Rate of salary increase 3.70% 4.00% 3.70% 4.00%
Rate of price inflation 2.20% 2.50% - -
Rate of pension increase 2.20% 2.50% 2.20% 2.50%
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19. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS [Continued]

The following table demonstrates the Corporation’s sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the significant
assumptions used to determine the defined benefit obligation:

Weighted average
Change in discount duration of defined
rate benefit obligation 2015
Effect on net defined benefit obligation +0.5% 17 years $ 153,060
Effect on net defined benefit obligation -0.5% 20 years $ 183,973
Change in inflation
rate 2015
Effect on net defined benefit obligation +0.5% $ 178,099
Effect on net defined benefit obligation -0.5% $ 157,779
Change in
mortality 2015
Effect on net defined benefit obligation -1 year setback $ 170,990
Effect on net defined benefit obligation + 1 year setback $ 163,810

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the net
defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2015 as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions.

20. PROVISIONS

Decommissioning

The Corporation records the fair value of a decommissioning provision in the year during which it is incurred and
can be reasonably estimated. This provision is associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets that result
from the acquisition, construction, development and/or normal use of the assets. The Corporation also records a
corresponding asset that is amortized over the life of the asset. Decommissioning provisions are classified as current
if the useful life will expire in the next fiscal year and as a long-term asset if the useful lives extend beyond the next
fiscal year. Provisions have been recorded for gaming equipment in the amount of $695 [2014 - $730]. The
provision is classified as a current payable of $10 [2014 - $224] and a long-term liability of $685 [2014 - $506].

21. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized and issued on incorporation is one common share to each of the provinces or their agencies for cash
consideration of one hundred dollars per share.
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22. PAYMENTS TO THE GOVERNMENT OF CANADA

The Corporation, as the Regional Marketing Organization of the Interprovincial Lottery Corporation, remits its
member provinces’ share of the above payments to the Interprovincial Lottery Corporation. The payment is
included in the consolidated statement of operations as a deduction from profit and was allocated to the
Corporation’s member provinces based upon disposable income of the province, as follows:

2015 2014
New Brunswick Lotteries and Gaming Corporation $1,379 $ 1,386
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador 1,100 1,052
Nova Scotia Provincial Lotteries and Casino Corporation 1,735 1,744
Prince Edward Island Lotteries Commission 257 251

$4,471 $ 4,433

23. TAXES

In lieu of the collection of HST on lottery ticket sales to the consumer, GST/HST paid on goods and services
purchased that relate to gaming activities is not recoverable and is recorded with the cost to which it relates. Said
goods and services are subject to the HST rate being applied a second time for remittance to the Federal
Government, recorded as tax expense.

2015 2014
Harmonized Sales Tax (HST) $ 29,355 §$§ 27,296

24. COMMITMENTS

Operating leases

The Corporation is committed to payments for the lease of equipment and premises occupied by its head office, as
well as operations in Nova Scotia, Newfoundland and Labrador, and Prince Edward Island. These leases have a
duration of between one and 12 years, and the lease contracts end in the period from 2015 to 2027. Some of the
contracts for the head office and operational properties include renewal options. The minimum future annual lease
payments over the next five years are as follows: 2016 - $3,827; 2017 - $3,691; 2018 - $3,191; 2019 - $3,108; and
2020 - $3,096. Future lease payments later than five years total $20,358.

Outsource agreement

On July 18, 2010, the Corporation entered into a 7 year outsourcing agreement with CGI, with the option of three
one year renewable terms. The scope of the agreement is for Infrastructure Services, Application Services, Project
Services and the purchase of most non-gaming IT assets. The minimum future annual payments to CGI over the next
three years are as follows: 2016 - $22,990; 2017 - $22,926; and 2018 - $5,727.
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25. NET CHANGE IN NON-CASH COMPONENTS OF WORKING CAPITAL

2015 2014
Decrease (increase)
Accounts receivable $ (4,804) $5,770
Prepaid expenses and deposits (6,040) (2,752)
Inventory 2,395 453
$ (8,449) $3,471
Increase (decrease)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ (15,379) $10,567
Deferred revenue 861 462
Liabilities for unclaimed prizes (1,936) 407
Due to shareholders 6,351 485
$ (10,103) $11,921
Net change $ (18,552) $15,392

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel [Corporate Executives] receive compensation in the form of short-term employee
benefits and post-retirement benefits. Key management personnel compensation for the year ended March 31, 2015
is $2,299 [2014 - $2,519] which includes pension benefits of $155 [2014 - $181].

Other related party transactions

The Corporation is related to its shareholders: New Brunswick Lotteries and Gaming Corporation, Province of
Newfoundland and Labrador, Nova Scotia Provincial Lotteries and Casino Corporation and Prince Edward Island
Lotteries Commission.

The Corporation holds 100% equity interest in Atlantic Gaming Equipment Limited, 7865813 Canada Inc., and

8157154 Canada Inc. All intra-Corporation balances, transactions, income and expenses, and profits and losses,
including dividends resulting from intra-Corporation transactions, are eliminated in full.

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value versus carrying amounts
The fair value of financial instruments generally corresponds to the consideration for which the instrument could be

exchanged in an arm’s-length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties.

Financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are grouped into Levels 1 to 3
based on the degree to which the fair value is observable:
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [Continued]

e Level | fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices [unadjusted] in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly [i.e. as prices] or indirectly [i.e. derived
from prices]; and

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable market data [unobservable inputs].

The following tables present the breakdown of fair value measurements of financial instruments recognized at fair
value on the consolidated balance sheet.

2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities
Derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge $ - S 2484 § - S 2,484
Total financial liabilities S - 8 2484 § - 8 2,484
2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Available for sale $ - 3 - $ 8,681 $ 8,681
Total financial assets $ - 3 - 3 8,681 §$ 8,681
Financial liabilities
Derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge $ - $ 969) $ -3 (969)
Total financial liabilities $ - 8 (969) $ - 8 (969)

The fair value of cash, restricted prize cash, accounts receivable, due to/from shareholders, line of credit, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities and liabilities for unclaimed prizes approximate their carrying amount largely due to
the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The financial asset in Level 3 relates to a purchase by the Corporation of an investment during the year ended March
31, 2012 that was classified as an available for sale financial asset in 2014. Its fair value is not available on the
market and therefore, was measured at cost. This asset has been impaired for accounting purposes as at March 31,
2015.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [Continued]

The Corporation has entered into a derivative financial instrument with a financial institution with an investment
grade credit rating. Interest rate swaps are the only derivatives valued using a valuation technique with market
observable inputs. The applied valuation technique is a swap valuation model using present value calculations. The
models incorporate various inputs, including the credit quality of counterparties and interest rate curves. Because the
derivatives are valued with their fair value in accordance with IAS 39, the recorded carrying value at the
consolidated balance sheet date equals the fair value of the financial instrument.

29. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Corporation does not retain any earnings. Net profit, after deducting contractual amounts due to the
Government of Canada, is returned to the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador, Province of Prince Edward
Island, Province of Nova Scotia and Province of New Brunswick.

The Corporation’s policy is to maintain a structure which allows it to have sufficient liquidity to meet both
operational demands and payments to the Provinces. The profit of the Corporation is distributed twice monthly to
each of the shareholders.

As a result of fluctuating cash flow requirements and to minimize market risk, the Corporation maintains a high
degree of liquidity and has a line of credit available. Corporate assets are financed through debt borrowings in the
form of bank term loans and a line of credit.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the oversight of management, including its policies related to financial and
risk management issues.

There were no changes in the Corporation’s approach to capital management during the year.

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Corporation has exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, and market risk from its use of financial instruments. This
note presents information about the Corporation’s exposure to each of these risks and its objectives, policies and
procedures for measuring and managing these risks.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Corporation’s risk
management framework. The Board of Directors has established the Audit Committee, which is responsible for
developing and monitoring the Corporation’s risk management policies. The Audit Committee reports regularly to
the Board of Directors on its activities. The Corporation’s risk management policies are established to identify and
analyze the risks faced by the Corporation, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market
conditions and the Corporation’s activities. The Corporation, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [Continued]

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Corporation’s risk management
policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced
by the Corporation. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the Audit Committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Corporation is subject to credit risk due to the nature of its operations where
retail partners collect the Corporation’s revenue.

This risk is managed through frequent collection of revenue and the control to pull funds from retailers’ bank
accounts and through retaining security deposits where the individual risk is assessed as high. The Corporation is
not materially exposed to any one individual retailer or service provider and has applied standard credit practices
which limit the Corporation’s exposure to credit risk. The maximum risk the Corporation would be exposed to is
$20,596 and the average balance for any one retail location outstanding is approximately $5. There are no accounts
receivable balances outstanding greater than 90 days. As a result of the limited and controlled risk there is no
provision established for bad debt.

The Corporation is not subject to credit risk for internet gaming sales because they are through credit card, debit
card, online bill payment purchases or webcash purchases where customers pay in advance of transactions.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due.

To manage cash flow requirements, the Corporation has a line of credit from which it may borrow up to $125,000.
Short-term financing is unsecured and interest is payable at prime less 0.50%, and charges a standby fee on the daily
unadvanced portion of the credit facility at a rate of 0.1% per annum.

The Corporation’s Finance division manages liquidity risk by forecasting and assessing actual cash flow
requirements on an ongoing basis, as well as by planning for short-term liquidity with investment maturities chosen
to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet the Corporation’s financial obligations.

The carrying values of the financial liabilities approximate their fair values due to the relatively short periods to

maturity of these items, or because they are payable on demand. The table below summarizes the maturity profile of
the Corporation’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [Continued]

Less than 12

Maturity Ondemand  months 1to2 years 2 toS years 5 to10 years
Line of credit $ 24239 $ - 8 - 8 - 8 -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - 17,339 - - -
Liabilities for unclaimed prizes - 18,812 - - -
Due to shareholders - 11,246 - - -
Debt - 100,989 - - 69,508
Lease payable - 378 393 111 -
Other long term liabilities - - - 496 189

$ 24239 § 1487764 § 393§ 607 $ 69,697

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will affect the fair value of future cash flows of a financial
instrument. Market risk is comprised of currency risk, interest rate risk and other market price risk.

Currency risk

The Corporation is exposed to currency risk [or foreign exchange risk] by settling certain obligations in foreign
currencies [primarily USD and GBP]. Gains and losses due to foreign exchange rate fluctuations are minimized by
settling foreign obligations as quickly as possible. The transactions in foreign currency are minimal and therefore the
Corporation is not materially impacted by currency risk.

Interest rate risk

The Corporation’s Finance division manages interest rate risk by forecasting and assessing actual cash flow
requirements on an ongoing basis, and securing fixed rate debt (hedges) for financing of long-term projects. On an
ongoing basis, the Corporation is exposed to interest rate risk through its line of credit which is subject to interest
charges at prime less 0.50%, and charges a standby fee on the daily unadvanced portion of the credit facility at a rate
of 0.1%. Fluctuations in the prime rate by plus or minus 1% could impact the Corporation’s annual net profit by an
amount of $242 [2014 - $149] based on the line of credit balance as at March 31, 2015.

Other market price risk
The Corporation offers the Proline brand of lottery products in the marketplace. The Corporation manages risks
associated with these products by:

e setting odds for each event within a short time frame before the actual event;

e establishing sales liability thresholds by events, by combination of events, by retailer, and by player; and

e  posting conditions and prize structure statements on www.alc.ca.

The Corporation has the authority to suppress sales of any game at any time when liability is a concern.
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

Statement of Operations
Year Ended March 31, 2015

Budget 2015
{Note 13)
(Unaudited) 2015 2014
REVENUES
Regulatory assessments $ 2,480,034 $ 2,479,527 $ 2,726,148
interest and other income 10,000 7,462 16,405
Pension fund earmings, net of expenses {Note 7) - - (777)
2,490,034 2,486,989 2,741,776
EXPENDITURES
Amortization $ - $ 24,460 $ 23,475
Consulting fees 243,550 137,338 253,915
Office equipment, supplies, and senices 90,426 72,957 60,473
Rent and insurance 225,100 225,063 225,027
Salaries and associated costs {Note 7) 1,770,066 1,801,252 1,750,665
Telecommunications 35,040 29,066 28,782
Training and membership 72,840 17,017 27,180
Travel 53,012 23,315 35,414
2,490,034 2,330,468 2,404,931
Excess of revenues over expenditures 8 - $ 156,521 $ 336,845
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets
Year Ended March 31, 2015

Budget 2015

(Note 13)
(Unaudited) 20156 2014
Annual surplus $ - § 156,521 $ 336,845
Changes in tangible capital assets

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (22,365) (17,877)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 24,460 23,475
- 2,095 5,798

Change In other non-financial assets
Assessment reductions (Note 14) (499,104) -
Net acquisition of prepaid expenses (2,097) 1,259
(501,201) 1,259
Decrease (increase} in net assets - (342,5885) 343,002
Net financial assets, beginning of year 1,927,097 1,927,097 1,583,195

Net financial assats, end of year $ -

$ 1,584,512 $ 1,827,007

47



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 2014

Operating transactions

Cash receipts from assessments and other revenues $ 2,270,462 $ 2,668,023

Cash paid to suppliers and employees (2,272,527) (2,449,124)

Cash (used in) provided by operating transactons {2,065) 218,899
Hearing and review transaction

Increase in recoverable costs (1,152,519) (75,399)

Cash used in hearing and review transaction (1,152,519) (75,399)
Capital transaction

Purchase of capital assets (22,365) (17,877}

Cash used in capital transaction (22,365) (17677}
Investing transaction

Decrease in designated pension funds - 27,308

Cash provided by investing transaction - 27,308
{Decrease) increase in cash during year (1,176,949) 153,131
Cash position, beginning of year 1,836,354 1,683,223
Cash position, end of year $ 659,405 $ 1,836,354
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2015

1. GENERAL

The Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities (the "Board”) 1s an independent, quasi-judiciat regulatory
tribunal constituted in 1949 by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council pursuant to the Public Utilities Act. The
Board regulates the electric utilities in the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador and is responsible for
ensuring that the rates charged are reasonable and that the service provided is safe and reliable. Other
responsibilities include: (a) the regulation of automobile insurance rates; (b) the regulation of, from June 8.
2004, fuel prices pursuant to the Petroleum Products Act; (¢} limited regulation of the motor carrier industry as
it relates to certain passenger and ambulance operations; and (d) establishing compensation for matters
referred to the Board pursuant to the Expropriation Act. The Board was incorporated on May 12, 2000
pursuant to an amendment to the Public Utilities Act and as a Crown entity of the Province is not subject to
provincial or federal income taxes.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting

The Board is classified as an Other Government Organization as defined by Canadian Public Sector
Accounting Standards (CPSAS). These financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with
CPSAS for provincial reporting entities established by the Canadian Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB).
The Board does not prepare a statement of re-measurement gains and losses as the Board does not enter
into relevant transactions or circumstances that are addressed by that statement.

Financial instruments

The Board's financial instruments recognized in the statement of financial position consists of cash,
receivables, HST receivable, recoverable costs, payables and accruals, government remittance payable and
payrall accruals. The Board generally recognizes a financial instrument when it enters into a contract which
creates a financial asset or financial liability. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
cost, which is the fair vaiue at the time of acquisition.

The Board subsequently measures all its financial assets and financial liabilities at cost or amortized cost.
Transaction costs and any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized immediately in
the statement of revenues and expenditures. Receivables are classified as loans and accounts payable are
classified as other financial liabilities. Both are measured at amortized cost.

The Board's carrying value of cash, receivables, HST receivable, recoverable costs, payables and accruals,
government remittance payable and payroll accruals approximates its fair value due to the immediate or short
term maturity of these instruments

Cash

Cash includes cash in bank.

Recoverable costs

Recoverable costs relating to regulatory hearings and specific enquiries held by the Board are accrued until

the Board orders payment. The costs and subsequent recoveries for these enquiries are not included in the
operating revenues and expenditures of the Board
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)

Tanqible ital

Capital assets are recorded on the Statement of Financial Position at cost net of accumulated amortization
and are amortized as follows:

Furniture and equipment 20% declining balance method
Computer hardware 35% declining balance method
Computer software 50% declining balance method
Leasehold improvements the lesser of five year straight-line

or remaining term of the lease

Capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer contribute to the Board’s ability
to provide goods and services, or when the value of future economic benefits associated with the capital
assets are less than their net book value. The net write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the
statement of operations,

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses include amounts paid in advance for services, insurance, and workers compensation and
are charged to expense over the periods expected to benefit from it.

Funds and reserves

Certain amounts, as approved by the Board, are set aside in accumulated surplus for future operating and
capital purposes. Transfers to/ffrom funds and reserves are an adjustment to the respective fund when
approved.

m futur nefi

(i) Severance pay

Certain employees of the Board are entitled to severance pay. Severance pay is accounted for on the accrual
basis and is based upon years of service and current salary levels. The entitlement to severance pay vests
with employees after nine years of continual service and accordingly no provision has been made in the
accounts for employees with less than nine years of continual service. The amount is payabie when the
employee ceases employment with the Board.

The Board provides accumulating, non-vesting sick leave benefits to its employees. The cost of non-vesting
sick leave benefits are determined using management's best estimate of salary escalation, accumulated sick
days at retirement, long-term inflation rates and discount rates.

(iii) Pension fund
The employees of the Board are subject to the Public Service Pension Act 1991. Employee contributions are
matched by the Board and then remitted to the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador Pooled Pension

Fund from which pensions will be paid io employees when they retire. Contributions of the Board to the plan
are recorded as expenses in the year the contributions are made.
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenues

Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise to the
revenues. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals cannot be determined
with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is impracticable.

Expenditures

Expenditures are reported on an accrual basis. The costs of all goods consumed and services received
during the year are expensed.

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Such estimates are periodically reviewed and any
adjustments necessary are reported in earnings in the period in which they become known. Actual results
could differ from these estimates.

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Board is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments and has a comprehensive risk
management framework to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks. The following analysis provides
information about the organization’s risk exposure and concentration as of March 31, 2015.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The Board is
exposed to credit risk with respect to regulatory assessments. An allowance for doubtful accounts may be
established based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of specific accounts, historical trends and other
information

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a change in
the interest rates. In seeking to minimize the risks from interest rate fluctuations, the Board manages

exposure through its normal operating and financing activities. The Board is exposed to interest rate risk
primanily through its floating interest rate bank credit agreement.
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2015

4. RECEIVABLES

2015 2014
Revenues receivable $ 56,796 $ 339,733
Accrued interest receivable 2,696 1,617
Other receivables 408 672

$ 59,801 $ 342,022

5 HST RECEIVABLE

2015 2014
HST rebate receivable from federal government $ 65,508 $ 89,469
HST payable to federa) government {5,334) (28,839)

$ 60,174 § 60,630

6. RECOVERABLE COSTS

2016 2014
Recowerable costs, beginning of year $ 1,217,812 $ 1,142,413
Add - specific enquiry costs incurred duning the year:
Consulting fees 1,473,841 957,393
Consumer Advocate 505,044 307,410
Legal 249,910 137,480
Advertising and notice 39,087 25,295
Other 51,234 19.617
Transcription and printing 8,174 956
2,327,290 1,448,151
3,545,102 2,590,564
Less - costs recovered during the year (1,174,771) (1,372,752)
Recowerable costs, end of year $ 2,370,331 $ 1,217,812
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2015

7 DESIGNATED PENSION FUNDS AND PENSION ASSET (OBLIGATIONS)

The Board previcusly maintained a pension fund for one former commissioner. During the 2014 year this
pension fund was wound up and all amounts on deposit were transferred to the Board’s cash balance.

2015 2014
Balance on deposit, beginning of year $ - % 27,308
Add (deduct) - earnings net of expenses - (777)
- 26,531
Less - amount withdrawn on wind-up - 26,531
Balance on deposit, end of year $ - 9 -

In addition, other commissioners and employees for whom no designated pension plan has been established
are members of The Public Service Pension Fund Act 1991. Pension contributions deducted from
commissioners' and employees' salaries are matched by the Board and then remitted to the Province of
Newfoundland and Labrador Pooled Pension Fund from which pensions will be paid to commissioners and
employees when they retire. The Board's share of pension expense for the year in the amount of $121,027
(2014 - $112,405) is included in salaries and associated costs
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2015

8. CAPITAL ASSETS

2015
Computer
Furniture and Hardware and Leasehold
Equipment Software Improvements Total
Cost
Opening balance $ 242,404 $ 231,265 $ 190,515 $ 664,184
Additions 3,847 18,518 - 22,365
Disposals - - - -
Clesing balance 246,251 249,783 190,515 686,549
Accumulated amortization
Opening balance 214,976 202,847 190,515 608,338
Amoriization 6,255 18,205 - 24,460
Disposals - - - -
Closing balance 221,231 221,052 190,515 632,798
Net book value $ 25,020 $ 28,731 3 - $ 53,751
2014
Computer
Furniture and Hardware and Leasehold
Equipment Software Improvements Total
Cost
Opening balance 3 236,893 $ 219,099 $ 190,515 $ 646,507
Additions 5,511 12,166 - 17,677
Disposals - - - -
Closing balance 242 404 231,265 190,515 664,184
Accumulated amortization
Opening balance 208,793 185,555 190,515 584,863
Amortization 6,183 17,292 . 23,475
Disposals - - - -
Closing balance 214,976 202,847 190,515 608,338
Net bock value $ 27,428 3 28,418 $ - $ 55,846
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2015

9. BANK CREDIT AGREEMENT

The Board has established a $1,000,000 line-of-credit subject to a general security agreement over all
accounts and book debts, equipment, tangible capital assets and certain other assets. Any outstanding
balance bears interest at the bank prime rate plus 0.5%. As at March 31, 2015, the balance outstanding was
$Nil (2014- $Nil).

10. NON-VESTED SICK LEAVE PAYOUTS

Prior to a change in government policy, several employees were allowed to accumulate unused sick day
credits. As of March 31, 2015, there are four employees who have an accumulated sick-leave payout
balance. Accumulated credits may be used in future years to the extent that the employee's illness or injury
exceeds the current year's allocation of credits. The use of accumulated sick days for sick-leave
compensation ceases on termination of employment. The benefit costs and liabilities related to the plan are
included in the financial statements

11. INTERNALLY RESTRICTED SURPLUS

The Board has adopied a formal policy to accumulate and restrict estimated amounts required to meet
expected future obligations. The amounts restricted as at March 31, 2015 are as follows:

2015 2014
Lease commitments $ 223,300 $ 223,300
Payroll contingency 68,426 67,205
Redundancy pay contingency 797,613 729,541
Working capital 438,461 415,006

$ 1,527,800 $ 1,435,052

12. COMMITMENTS

The Board has a premises lease agreement in the amount of $18,608 per month ($223,296 per annum),
concluding May 31, 2018.

The Board has a contract for telecommunications in the amount of $14,400 per annum, concluding in 2015

13. BUDGET FIGURES

Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes and have been derived from the estimates
approved by the Board
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Independent Auditor’s Report (cont.)

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Business Investment Corporation as at March 31, 2015, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

—Al

TERRY PADDON, CPA, CA
Auditor General

June 26, 2015
St. John’s, Newfoundland and Labrador
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BUSINESS INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2015

1. Nature of operations

The Business Investment Corporation (the Corporation) was established under the authority of the
Business Investment Corporation Act (the Acr). The Corporation is funded by the Province of
Newfoundland and Labrador (the Province) and is responsible for making available and managing
investments in small to medium sized private businesses, co-operatives, community development
corporations and other enterprises for the purpose of creating employment opportunities for the people
of the Province. The Corporation administers three funding programs: the Business Investment
Program, the Business Development Support Program and the Aquaculture Working Capital Fund. The
affairs of the Corporation are managed by a Board of Directors appointed by the Lieutenant-Governor
in Council,

The Act came into force effective April 1, 2002. Under the Act, the Corporation was incorporated and
became the successor to Enterprise Newfoundland and Labrador Corporation, the Fisheries Loan Board
and the Farm Development Loan Board.

The Business Investment Corporation is a Crown entity of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador
and as such is not subject to Provincial or Federal income taxes.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of accounting

The Corporation is classified as an Other Government Organization as defined by Canadian
Public Sector Accounting Standards (CPSAS). These financial statements are prepared by
management in accordance with CPSAS for provincial reporting entities established by the
Canadian Public Sector Accounting Board. The Corporation does not prepare a statement of
change in net financial assets as this information is readily apparent from the other statements. In
addition, the Corporation does not prepare a statement of re-measurement gains and losses as the
Corporation does not enter into relevant transactions or circumstances that are being addressed
by the statement. Outlined below are the significant accounting policies followed.

(b) Financial instruments

The Corporation’s financial instruments recognized in the statement of financial position
consist of cash, due from the Province, bank interest receivable, HST receivable, loans
receivable and equity investments, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The
Corporation generally recognizes a financial instrument when it enters into a contract which
creates a financial asset or financial liability. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at cost, which is the fair value at the time of acquisition.

the Audi >
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BUSINESS INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2015

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Financial instruments (cont.)

The Corporation subsequently measures all of its financial assets and financial liabilities at cost
or amortized cost. Financial assets measured at cost include cash, due from the Province, bank
interest receivable and HST receivable. Loans receivable and equity investments are measured
at amortized cost as disclosed in notes 2(d), 2(e) and 4. Financial liabilities measured at cost
include accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

The carrying values of cash, due from the Province, bank interest receivable, HST receivable,
and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate current fair value due to their nature
and the short-term maturity associated with these instruments. The carrying value of loans
receivable and equity investments are considered to approximate market value,

Interest attributable to financial instruments is reported in the statement of operations.
Cash

Cash includes cash in bank.

Loans receivable

The Corporation records loans receivable at amortized cost. Loans receivable are tested
annually for impairment. A loan is classified as impaired when, in the opinion of management,
there is reasonable doubt as to the ultimate collectability of a portion of principal or interest, or
when payment is contractually past due 90 days. When loans are identified as impaired, the
Corporation records an allowance to reduce their carrying values to their estimated realizable
amounts. Estimated realizable amounts are measured at discounted cash flows when the cash
flows can be estimated with reasonable reliability. Changes in the allowance are recognized in
the statement of operations.

Equity investments

The Corporation records equity investments at amortized cost. The Corporation’s equity
investments for all companies are accounted for on the amortized cost basis with an allowance
being made for any decline in their value considered to be other than temporary. Equity
investments are tested annually for impairment and changes in the allowance for impaired
investments are recognized in the statement of operations.

Office of the Audltor General
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BUSINESS INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2015

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)

®

(8

(h)

Revenues

Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave
rise to the revenues. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals
cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is
impracticable.

Interest income is accounted for on the accrual basis for bank interest and all loans other than
the impaired portion of loans. Recognition of interest in accordance with the terms of the
original loan agreement ceases when a loan becomes impaired. The impaired portion of
loans may revert to accrual status only when principal and interest payments have become
fully current again, at which time any interest will be recognized in that fiscal year.

Government transfers (contributions from the Province) are recognized as revenues when the
transfer is authorized and any eligibility criteria are met, except to the extent that transfer
stipulations give rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a liability. Transfers are
recognized as deferred revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to a liability. Transfer
revenue is recognized in the statement of operations as the stipulation liabilities are settled.

Expenses

Expenses are reported on an accrual basis. The cost of all goods consumed and services
received during the year is recorded as an expense in that year.

The Corporation is administered by the Department of Business, Tourism, Culture and Rural
Development. Expenses related to salaries, accommodations and administration are paid
directly by the Department and are reflected in these financial statements as expenses of the
Corporation and as revenue from the Province.

Transfers (grants under the Business Development Support Program) are recorded as expenses
when the grant is authorized, eligibility criteria have been met by the recipient and a
reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with CPSAS requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reporting amounts of assets and liabilities, and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of the revenues and expenses during the period. Items requiring the use of
significant estimates include collectability of the loans and equity investments.

{Tice of the Auditor General
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BUSINESS INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2015

8. Financial risk management (cont.)

The Corporation is exposed to credit risk related to its loans receivable and equity investments. The
Corporation has policies and procedures for the monitoring and collection of its loans receivable and
equity investments, including security being held, so as to mitigate potential credit losses. The
Corporation classifies its loan receivables and equity investments as impaired in accordance with note
2(d), 2(e) and note 4. Any estimated impairment of loans receivable and equity investments has been
provided for through an allowance for decline in value as disclosed in note 4. Loans receivable and
equity investments which are not impaired or past due are considered collectible by the Corporation.

As disclosed in note 4, the Corporation reported loans receivable totaling $22,067,701 as at March 31,
2015 (2014 - $23,663,157). Principal due and unpaid of $9,773,048 (2014 - $10,307,113) was
overdue by portfolio as follows:

Days Overdue
Loan Portfolio
1-30 31-60 61-90 >90 Total

Aquaculture Working Capital Fund $ - $ - $ - $ 565733 | % 565,733
Business Investment Corporation 12976 | 12976 | 16424 729,447 771,823
Former Enterprise Newfoundland

and Labrador 3,828 3,969 | 27,598 7,342,903 | 7,378,298
Former Farm Loan Board - - - 660,027 660,027
Former Fisheries Loan Board - - - 397,167 397,167
Total Principal Past Due $ 16,804 | $16,945 | $44,022 | $9,695,277 | $9,773,048

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will be unable to meet its contractual obligations and
financial liabilities. The Corporation’s exposure to liquidity risk relates mainly to its accounts payable
and accrued liabilities and its ability to meet its contractual obligations for approved but not yet
disbursed loans, equity investments and grants as outlined in note 7. The Corporation manages
liquidity risk by monitoring its cash flows and ensuring that it has sufficient resources available to
meet its financial liabilities and contractual obligations.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency (foreign
exchange) risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. The Corporation is not exposed to significant
foreign exchange or other price risk. In addition, the Corporation is not exposed to significant interest
rate risk as its loans and equity investments are provided at fixed interest rates.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (cont.)

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Opinion
In my opinion the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of the C.A. Pippy Park Commission as at March 31, 2015, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

TERRY PADDON, CPA, CA
Auditor General

July 24, 2015
St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador
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C.A. PIPPY PARK COMMISSION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2015

Nature of operations

The C.A. Pippy Park Commission (the Commission) was incorporated in 1968 and operates under the
authority of the Pippy Park Commission Act. The purpose of the Commission is to provide a park-like
setting to house the headquarters of the Provincial Government, as well as various government, cultural,
educational facilities and Memorial University of Newfoundland. Its affairs are managed by a Board of
Commissioners, the majority of whom are appointed by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council.

The C.A. Pippy Park Golf Course Limited (the Golf Course) was incorporated on January 6, 2006,
under the Corporations Act. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Commission, incorporated in
accordance with Section 25(b)(i) of the Pippy Park Commission Act. lts purpose is to manage the Pippy
Park Golf Course.

The Commission is a Crown entity of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador and as such is not
subject to Provincial or Federal income taxes.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(a)  Basis of accounting

The Commission is classified as an Other Government Organization as defined by Canadian
Public Sector Accounting Standards (CPSAS). These consolidated financial statements are
prepared by management in accordance with CPSAS for provincial reporting entities established
by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB). The Commission does not prepare a statement
of remeasurement gains and losses as the Commission does not enter into relevant transactions
or circumstances that are addressed by that statement.

The consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities and accumulated surplus of
the C.A. Pippy Park Commission and its subsidiary corporation, C.A. Pippy Park Golf Course
Limited. Inter-entity transactions and balances have been eliminated in these consolidated
financial statements. QOutlined below are the significant accounting policies followed.

(b) Financial instruments

The Commission’s financial instruments recognized in the consolidated statement of financial
position consist of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities,
obligations under capital leases, and the advance from the Province of Newfoundland and
Labrador. The Commission generally recognizes a financial instrument when it enters into a
contract which creates a financial asset or financial liability. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value at the time of acquisition.
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C.A. PIPPY PARK COMMISSION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2015

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)

)

@

Employee future benefits (cont.)

During the year, there were significant changes made to the Public Service Pension Plan.
The changes include: increases in contribution rates of between 2.15% and 3.25% of
pensionable earnings; calculation of pension benefits, for service on or after January 1,
2015, using the average of the best six years of earnings rather than the average of the
best five years of earnings; calculation of pension benefits, for service before January 1,
2015, using the higher of the average of the frozen best 5 years of earnings up to January
1, 2015, or the average of the best 6 years of earnings for all service rather than the
average of the best five years of earnings; and increases in the minimum age and/or
service requirements for early retirement with an unreduced pension benefit. Employees
who are eligible, or become eligible, to retire on or before January 1, 2020, are exempt
from increases in the minimum age and/or service requirements for early retirement with
an unreduced pension benefit.

The matched contributions paid by the Commission are recorded as an expense for the
year.

(ili) The Commission provides accumulating, non-vesting sick leave benefits to its
employees. The Commission has made a provision in the accounts for the payment of
accumulating non-vesting sick leave benefits for employees which is based upon the
Commission’s best estimate of the probability of the employees utilizing the benefits and
current salary levels. The accumulating non-vesting sick leave benefits cease upon
termination of employment with the Commission.

Revenues

Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise
to the revenues. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis except when the accruals cannot
be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is impracticable.

Revenue related to fees or services received in advance of the fee being eammed or the service
being performed is deferred and recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the fee is earned or the
service is performed.

The Commission recognizes government transfers as revenues when the transfer is authorized
and any eligibility criteria are met, except when and to the extent that transfer stipulations give
rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a liability. Transfers are recognized as deferred
revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to a liability. Transfer revenue is recognized in the
consolidated statement of operations as the stipulations related to the liabilities are settled.
Government transfers consist of an operating grant from the Province of Newfoundland and
Labrador.
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C.A. PIPPY PARK GOLF COURSE LIMITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2015
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o GrantThornton

Financial Statements
Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador

December 31, 2014
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Statement of Responsibility

The accompanying financial statements are the responsibility of the

management of the Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador (the "Board")

and have been prepared in compliance with legislation, and in accordance with gencrally
accepted accounting principles established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of The

Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.

In carrying out its responsibilities, management maintains appropriate systems of
internal and administrative controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are executed in accordance with proper authorization, that assets are
propetly accounted for and safeguarded, and that financial information produced is

relevant and teliable.

The Board met with management and its external auditoss to review a draft of the
financial statements and to discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control

matters prior to their approval of the finalized financial statements.

Grant Thornton LLP as the Board's appointed external auditors, have audited the
financial statements. The auditot's report is addressed to the Ditectors of

the Board and appears on the following page. Their opinion is based upon

an examination conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards, performing such tests and other procedures as they consider necessaty to
obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement
and present fairly the financial position and results of the Board in accordance with

Canadian public sector accounting standards. /D
Otk T osevethe M.,
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0 Grant Thornton

Independent Auditors’ Report —

Suite 300

15 Intemational Flace
St. John's, NL

AA L4

T (708) 778-8800
F (709) 722-7802
www.GrantThomton.ca

To the Ditectots of
Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and
Labrador, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2014 and the
statement of operations and changes in accumulated sutplus, changes in net assets and cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosutes
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Board’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in otder to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Board’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of acconnting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Audit - Tax « Advisory
Grant Thomlon LLP. A Canadran Member of Grant Thomion Intemaional Lid
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o GrantThornton

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and Labtador as at December 31, 2014, and its financial

performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

g;..,ﬁz.:x, 7%

St. John’s, Canada

February 13, 2015 Chartered Accountants

Audit + Tax « Advisory
Grant Themton LLP, A Canadian Member of Grant Thormon Intemational Lid
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Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador
Statements of Operations and Changes in Accumulated Surplus

Actual Budget Actual
Year Ended December 31 2014 2014 2013
Revenue
Levies $ 300871 §$ 277500 § 284205
Grant funded projects 10,287 - 4,448
CFC Summer meeting - - 49,622
Interest and miscellaneous 110 100 _ 1771
311,268 277,600 340,046
Other costs
Costs for Grant funded projects 8,499 10,000 12,588
Costs for CFC Summer meeting - - 52,033
— 302769 __267,600 ___ 275425
Expenses (Page 13)
Administration $ 112378 § 100812 § 102,486
Regulatory 131,454 118,434 117,148
Promotion 23,647 25,834 22452
Facilitation 20,995 22,445 20,534
— 288474 ___ 267.525 __ 262,620
Annual surplus $ 14,295 $ 75 $ 12,805
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year $ 112,090 $ 112,090 § 99,285
Annual surphus 4,295 75 12805
Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 126385 $ 112,165 § 112,090

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets

Actual Budget Actual

Year Ended December 31 2014 2024 2013

Annual surplus $ 14,295 §$ 75 % 12,805

Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,283 - 943

Purchase of tangible capital assets (9,794) - (3,196)
Decrease (increase) in prepaids 870 -

Increase in net assets 6,654 75 9,938

Net financial assets, beginning of year 103,609 ___ 103,609 93,671

Net financial assets, end of year $ 110,263 $ 103,684 $ 103,609

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31 2014 2013

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Operating
Annual surplus $ 14,295 $ 12,805
Change in non-cash items
Accrued severance pay 1,501 1,321
Depreciation 1,283 943
Receivables 298 (851)
Prepaids 870 (614)
Payables and accruals — 6429 __ (4148)
Cash provided by operating transactions 24,676 9.456
Investing
Purchase of tangible capital assets (9,794) {3,196)
Reclassification of cash to investments __(13.007) -
Cash used in investing transactions (22,801) (3.196)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,875 6,260
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 95,657 89,397
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 97532 § 95,657

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

1. Nature of operations

The Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador was established in 1981 by the
Newfoundiand and Labrador Chicken Marksting Scheme, 1980, under the Natural Products Marketing Adt,
1973 (Act), to provide for the effective promotion, control and regulation of the production and
marketing of chicken in Newfoundland and Labrador. The Board is responsible for
administeting the regulations as provided for in the Act under the laws of the Province of
Newfoundland and Labrador.

2. Chicken Farmers of Canada

Pursuant to authority given to it under the Farm Products Marketing Act of Canada, the Chicken
Farmers of Canada (CFC) collects levies from provincial commodity boards. The Chicken
Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador collects these levies directly from the processor and
remits them to CFC. There were $95,714 of levies collected in 2014 (2013 - §83,367).

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of presentation

‘The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and reflect the following significant accounting
policies.

Use of estimates

'The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sectot accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilides, at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Items requiring the use of significant estimates include the useful life of capital assets, accrued
severance, tates for amortization and impairment of assets.

Estimates are based on the best information available at the time of preparation of the financial
statements and are reviewed annually to reflect new information as it becomes available.
Measurement uncertainty exists in these financial statements. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.

Levies
The Board charges levies to the producer based on volume of chicken marketed in

Newfoundland and Labrador. Revenue is recognized when the chicken is produced/marketed
and collectability is reasonably assured.
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Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

Grant revenue

Revenue from grants is recognized as deferred revenue when amounts have been received but
not all eligibility criteria have been met.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances with banks, and shott term
investments with maturities of three months or less. Bank borrowings ate considered to be
financing activities.

Investment

Non-redeemable guaranteed investment certificates are classified as investments. Interest related
to these investments is accrued as earned. The carrying value of this investment approximates its
fair value.

Non-financial assets

Non-financial assets ate not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the
provision of services. They have useful lives generally extending beyond the current year and are
not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. The change in non-financial assets
during the year, together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the change in net
financial assets for the yeat.

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided annually at rates calculated
to write off the assets over their estimated useful life as follows, except in the year of acquisition
when one half of the rate is used.

Furniture and equipment 20%, declining balance
Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment upon the occurrence of events or changes in
circumstances indicating that the value of the assets may not be recoverable, as measured by
compatring their net book value to the estimated undiscounted cash flows generated by their use.
Impaired assets are recorded at fair value, determined principally using discounted future cash flows
expected from their use and eventual disposition.
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Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

3. Summaty of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
Accrued severance pay

Severance pay will be awarded at the rate of one week of salaty per year of service to 2 maximum
of 20 weeks and is calculated based upon curtrent salary levels. The amount is payable when the
employee ceases employment with the Board.

Financial instruments

The Board considers any contract creating a financial asset, liability or equity instrument as a
financial instrument, except in certain limited circumstances. The Board accounts for the
following as financial insttruments:

cash and cash equivalents;
teceivables;

investments; and

payables and accruals.

A financial asset or liability is recognized when the Board becomes party to contractual
provisions of the instrument.

The Board initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value adjusted by, in
the case of a financial instrument that will not be measured subsequently at fair value, the
amount of transaction costs directly attributable to the instrument.

The Board subsequently measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at cost or amortized
cost, except for derivatives and equity securities quoted in an active market, which are
subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in annual surplus.

Financial assets measured at cost include cash and cash equivalents and receivables.
Financial assets measured at fair value include the investment.
Financial liabilities measured at cost include payables and accruals.

The Board removes financial liabilities, or a portion of, when the obligation is discharged,
cancelled or expites.

Financial assets measured at cost are tested for impairment when there are indicators of
impairment. Previously recognized impairment losses are reversed to the extent of the
improvement provided the asset is not carried at an amount, at the date of the reversal, greater
than the amount that would have been the carrying amount had no impairment loss been
recognized previously. The amounts of any write-downs or reversals are recognized in net annual

surplus.
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Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

4, Operating Agreement

The Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador has entered into an Agteement with the
other provincial boards known as the Operating Agteement. This Agreement provides for levy

assessment should a province over produce its 2llocation from CFC.

As part of this agreement, the Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador has filed a letter
of credit to CFC in respect of any possible over marketing levies assessed. The letter of credit as
at December 31, 2014 was $28,658 (2013 - $28,658).

5. Receivables 2014 2013
Levies $ 17,390 § 21,217
Travel advances 5,944 2415

$ 23334 $ 23632

6. Tangible capital assets 2014 2013

Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization ____ Value ____ Valuc

Furniture and equipment $ 47,177 § 33295 § 13,882 § 5,369

7. Commitments

The Board has a commitment under an operating lease for a photocopier. Payment for the next
year is as follows:

2015 - $1,859
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Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

8. Financial insttuments

The Board’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, investment
and payables and accruals. The book value of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables
and accruals approximate fair value due to their short term maturity date. The investment
includes a non-redecmable guaranteed investment certificate and interest in accrued as eatned,
therefore the carrying value of this investment approximate its fair value.

Risks and concentrations

The Board is exposed to various dsks through its financial instruments. The following analysis
provides a measure of the Board’s risk exposure and concentrations at December 31, 2014.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the
other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The Board’s main credit risk relates to its
receivables of $23,334 (2013 - $23,632). The Boatd only reccives levies, which are legislated by
the Province, from one producer and in the opinion of management the credit risk exposure to
the Board is low.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilittes. The Board is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of its payables and
accruals in the amount of $29,838 (2013 - $23,409). The Board reduces its exposure to liquidity
risk by ensuring that it documents when authorized payments become due. In the opinion of
management the liquidity risk exposure to the Board is low and not material.

9. Line of credit

The organization has a line of credit with 2 limit of $25,000, bearing an interest rate of prime plus
2%. As at December 31, 2014, the balance owing on the line of credit is nil (2013 — nil).
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Chicken Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador

Schedule of Expenses
December 31 2014 2013
Actual Actual
Administration
Depreciation $ 1283 §$ 943
Federation of Agriculture 12,000 12,200
Honorariums 12,000 12,000
Insurance 1,619 1,639
Interest and bank chatges 998 1,451
Office and postage 6,142 3,922
Per diems 17,525 14,350
Professional fees 17,492 15,252
Rent 3,003 3,003
Telephone 5,375 4,846
Travel and meetings 6,179 5,018
Wages and benefits __ 28,762 27,861
$ 112378 §$ 102486
Regulation
Levy — CEC $ 95,714 § 83,367
Office and postage 979 1,263
Travel and meetings 5,716 3,926
Wages and benefits 29,045 28,592
$ 131454 § 117148
Promotion
Office and postage $ 45 § 573
Promotion 7,905 7,202
Travel and meetings 2,095 1,680
Wages and benefits 13,202 12,997
Facilitation
Office and postage $ 593 § 764
Travel and meetings 2,799 2,440
Wages and benefits 17,603 17.330
$ 20,995 § 20,534
Total expenses $ 288474 § 262,620
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College of the North Atlantic
Financial Statements
March 31, 2015
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of College of the North Atlantic as at March 31, 2015 and the results of its operations,
changes in net debt, and its cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2015 in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

St. John’s, Canada

June 24, 2015 Chartered Accountants

Audit « Tax * Advisory
Grant Thornton LLP. A Canadian Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd
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Revenue (Schedule 2)
Grants and reimbursements
Subsidy
Tuition
Classroom/video rental
Interest
Fees
Apprenticeship
Bookstore
Corporate
Daycare
Equipment and materials
Food services
International
Parking
Residence
Special projects
Qatar project
Other

Total revenue

Expenditures (Schedules 3 to 15)
Facilities
Administration
Instructional
Student services
Information technology
Resale
Apprenticeship
Continuing education
Contracts
International
Special projects
Qatar project

Total expenditure

Annual Surplus (Deficit) before adjustments:

Less adjustments for undernoted items:
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Accrued post-employment benefits
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued annual leave

Total adjustment for above noted items

Annual Surplus (Deficit)

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year

Accumulated surplus, end of year

College of the North Atlantic

Statement of Operations
Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 Budget

(Note 14) 2015 2014
$ 66,969,965 68,333,197 $ 63,214,706
17,200,000 17,071,932 20,543,046
12,975,805 11,813,183 12,282,662
15,000 15,000 15,000
200,000 304,553 281,304
650,271 704,372 695,832
4,451,809 5,982,803 5,637,926
2,722,500 2,681,782 2,719,547
2,178,380 4,727,513 3,127,881
487,445 502,947 514,956
1,829,538 1,666,597 1,610,863
1,220,900 1,156,088 1,210,258
1,060,976 783,480 1,205,215
7,750 4,167 4,800
339,700 334,804 337,060
4,904,263 3,723,046 4,009,343
10,082,431 9,730,670 10,252,412
384,033 266,882 653,952
127,680,766 129,803,016 128,316,763
4,934,803 5,192,080 4,988,239
17,819,956 16,579,484 16,203,946
71,088,529 64,910,389 68,711,488
11,225,891 10,756,922 10,100,084
7,698,776 6,817,913 5,512,634
5,137,437 5,403,337 5,153,639
4,444,217 4,598,272 4,385,707
695,743 690,707 724,425
4,599,258 5,134,403 4,697,004
615,071 595,761 593,438
3,183,238 2,830,012 3,274,245
2,339,430 1,813,575 1,675,457
133,782,349 125,322,855 126,020,306
(6,101,583) 4,480,161 2,296,457
7,139,482 6,951,623 7,256,519
600,000 576,070 (163,570)
300,000 133,718 203,001
300,000 (120,690) (1,111,884)
8,339,482 7,540,721 6,184,066
(14,441,065) (3,060,560) (3,887,609)
11,117,103 11,117,103 15,004,712
$ (3,323,962) 8,056,543 $ 11,117,103

See accompanying notes.
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College of the North Atlantic

Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets (Debt)
Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 Budget 2015 2014
(Note 14) Total Total

$  (14,441,065) $  (3,060,560) $  (3,887,609)

Annual surplus (deficit)

Changes in tangible capital assets
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (8,511,451) (4,390,644) (6,006,311)

Write-downs on tangible capital assets - - 23,800

Loss on sale of tangible capital assets - - 41,361

Amortization of tangible capital assets 7,139,482 6,951,623 7,256,519
Increase in net book value of tangible capital assets (1,371,969) 2,560,979 1,315,369
Changes in other non-financial assets

Acquisition of prepaid expenses (net of usage) - 125,026 (202,977)

Acquisition of inventory of supplies (net of usage) - (22) (11,598)
Increase (Decrease) in other non-financial assets - 125,004 (214,575)
Increase in net financial assets (debt) (15,813,034) (374,577) (2,786,815)
Net financial assets (debt) at beginning of year (18,151,285) (18,151,285) (15,364,470)
Net financial assets (debt) at end of year $ (33,964,319) $  (18,525,862) $ (18,151,285)

See accompanying notes.
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College of the North Atlantic

Statement of Cash Flow
Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 2014
Operating
Annual surplus (deficit) $ (3,060,560) (3,887,609)
Add (deduct) non-cash items:
Amortization of capital assets 6,951,623 7,256,519
Accrued post-employment benefits - increase (decrease) 547,895 (119,488)
Accrued compensated absences - increase (decrease) 133,718 203,001
4,572,676 3,452,423
Changes in:
Receivables 5,554,861 7,322,270
Inventory (138,369) (257,576)
Prepaid expenses 125,026 (202,977)
Deferred contributions - operating 278,734 (358,625)
Payables and accruals (1,094,669) (1,628,167)
Due to Qatar campus (1,377,866) 125,294
Net cash provided by operating transactions 7,920,393 8,452,642
Capital
Acquisitions of tangible capital assets (4,390,644) (6,006,311)
Write-downs on tangible capital assets - 23,800
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets - 41,361
Net cash applied to capital transactions (4,390,644) (5,941,150)
Net cash provided (applied) 3,529,749 2,511,492
Cash, beginning of year 19,218,361 16,706,869
Cash, ending of year $ 22,748,110 19,218,361

See accompanying notes.
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College of the North Atlantic

Notes to Financial Statements
For the twelve months ending March 31, 2015

Nature of operations

The College of the North Atlantic (the College) operates under the authority of the College Act, 1996, Province

of Newfoundland and Labrador In accordance with Section 6 of the College Act, 1996, the College is a statutory crown
corporation and as such is not subject to either Federal or Provincial income taxes and is exempt from Municipal

taxes The College is Newfoundland and Labrador's public college The College is committed to providing

accessible, responsive, quality learning opportunities which prepare people to become self-sufficient contributors

to social and economic development both in a provincial and global context

Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the College have been prepared within the framework of Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants and reflect the following significant accounting policies:

(a) Revenue recognition

Certain amounts are received pursuant to legislation, regulation or agreement and may only be used in the
conduct of certain programs or in the delivery of specific services and transactions ~ These amounts are
recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the related expenses are incurred, services are performed or when
stipulations are met Federal and provincial revenues for operating and capital purposes are recognized in the
period in which all eligibility criteria or stipulations have been met When revenue is received without eligibility
criteria or stipulations, it is recognized when the transfer from the applicable Government is authorized

Tuition fees and contract training revenues are recognized as income to the extent that the related courses
and services are provided within the fiscal year of the college Ancillary revenues including parking,
bookstore, residence and other sundry revenues are recognized when products are delivered or services
are provided to the student or client, the sales price is fixed and determinable, and collection is reasonably
assured

Management fees for operating and administering a College in the State of Qatar are recognized as earned

(b) Inventories for resale

Inventory which consists mainly of books and food supplies is recorded at the lower of cost or net
realizable value The amount of any write-downs of inventories to net realizable value and all losses of
inventories are recognized as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurred For the year
ended March 31, 2015, the write-down of inventory was $107,596 (2014 - $81,982)

(©) Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets recorded prior to the April 1, 1997 amalgamation of the former Colleges
are recorded at either cost, nominal, or approximate fair value Tangible capital assets acquired

after April 1, 1997 are recorded at cost

Amortization is recorded on a straight line basis using the following estimated useful lives:

Artwork No amortization
Capital improvements 10 years

ERP - PeopleSoft 10 years
Computer and peripherals 3 years
Furnishings 5 years
Instructional equipment 5 years

Other electronic equipment 5 years
Software 3 years
Vehicles 5 years
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Tangible capital assets (cont'd)

One half year's amortization is taken in the year of acquisition No amortization is recorded for assets
under development

The value of donated artwork has not been recorded in these financial statements
An accurate valuation of donated artwork has not been obtained at March 31, 2015

Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of contribution Repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to expense Betterments that extend the estimated life of an asset

are capitalized When a capital asset no longer contributes to the College's ability to provide

service, and the value of future economic benefits associated with the capital asset is less than the net
book value, the carrying value of the capital asset is reduced to reflect the decline in the asset's value

The land and buildings being used by the College, with the exception of some rental property, are the
properties of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador Expenditures for repairs and maintenance
of these buildings, paid by the Province, are not recorded in the financial statements of the College

Post-employment benefits and compensated absences

The College provides post-employment benefits and compensated absences to certain employment
groups These benefits include severance and non-vesting sick leave The College has
adopted the following policies with respect to accounting for these employee benefits:

(i)  Upon termination, retirement or death, the organization provides their employees, with at least
nine years of service with severance benefits equal to one week of pay per year of services up
to a maximum of 20 weeks An actuarially determined accrued liability for severance has been
recorded in the statements This liability has been determined using management's best estimate
of employee retention, salary escalation, long term inflation and discount rates

(ii) The College provides their employees with sick leave benefits that accumulate but do not vest
The benefits provided to employees vary based upon classification within the various negotiated
agreements An actuarially determined accrued liability has been recorded on the statements for
non-vesting sick leave benefits The cost of non-vesting sick leave benefits are actuarially
determined using management's best estimate of salary escalation, accumulated sick days at
retirement, long term inflation rates and discount rates

Vacation pay liability

The College recognizes vacation pay as an expense on the accrual basis

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Canadian dollars at the date of the transaction

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the Statement of Financial
Position date Exchange gains or losses arising from the translations are included in the Statement of Operations

in the amount of a $11,568 gain (2014 - $14,632 gain)
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Financial instruments

The College classifies its financial instruments as either fair value or amortized cost The College's accounting
policy for each category is as follows:

Fair value
This category includes cash and trust accounts and are classified as held for trading

Transaction costs related to financial instruments in the fair value category are expensed as incurred

Amortized cost

This category includes accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities They are
initially recognized at cost and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate, less any impairment losses on financial assets

Transaction costs related to financial instruments in the amortized cost category are added to the
carrying value of the instrument

Write-downs on financial assets in the amortized cost category are recognized when the amount of
a loss is known with sufficient precision, and there is no realistic prospect of recovery Financial
assets are then written down to the net recoverable value with the write downs being recognized

in the statement of operations

There were no embedded derivatives in any contracts that require special accounting treatment

Pensions

College staff are subject to either the Public Service Pension Plan (PSPP), or the Government Money Purchase
Pension Plan (GMPP)

The primary plan, PSPP, is a multi-employer plan and a defined benefit pension plan Staff contributions are
matched by the College and then remitted to the province of Newfoundland and Labrador Pooled Pension
Fund from which pensions will be paid to employees when they retire  The costs of the multi-employer plan
plan are the College's contributions to the plan in the period PSPP members must have at least 5 years of
pensionable service to obtain a pension benefit Normal retirement age under the Plan is 65 however early
retirement options are available Members of the PPSP are required to make contributions toward the funding
of their pension benefits as follows:

(i) 10 75% of earnings up to the Year's Basic Exemption, the portion of earnings upon which no CPP contributions
are required;
(i) 8 95% of earnings in excess of the Year's Basic Exemption up to and including the
Year's Maximum Pensionable Earnings ("YMPE"); and
(iii) 11 85% of earnings in excess of the YMPE.

Pensions paid under the PSPP are indexed annually Indexing is applied at the rate of 60% of the increase

in the Consumer Price Index (CPI), with the increase in the CPI capped at 2% Indexing applies to benefits
of pensioners who have attained age 65 prior to October 1 of each year

The lifetime pension benefit is determined as 1 4% of the best six year average salary

(up to the three year average YMPE) multiplied by the years of pensionable service, plus 2% of the best six
year average salary (in excess of the average YMPE) multiplied by the years of pensionable service

Staff shall participate in the GMPP only if they are ineligible for the PSPP Payments are made to a private investment
firm from which pensions will be paid to employees when they retire  The GMPP is a defined contribution plan

The annual contributions for pensions are recognized as an expenditure in the accounts on a current basis

During the year 2015 the College contributed $6,289,908 to the PSPP and $727,546 to the GMPP In 2014
the College contributed $6,408,248 to the PSPP and $791,703 to the GMPP
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(i) Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards, requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reporting amounts of assets and liabilities, and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the
revenues and expenses during the period Items requiring the use of significant estimates include the useful life of
tangible capital assets, accrued severance, accrued sick leave, impairment of assets and allowance for doubtful accounts

Estimates are based on the best information available at the time of preparation of the financial statements and are
reviewed annually to reflect new information as it becomes available Measurement uncertainty exists in these
financial statements Actual results could differ from these estimates

[0} Inventories held for use

Inventories held for use include fuel and supplies for the heavy equipment program, and are recorded at the lower
of historical cost and replacement cost

3 Receivables

2015 2014

Government of Newfoundland $ 4,829,402 $ 6,013,131
LMDA Subsidy 6,941,981 10,409,813
Students 998,349 843,705
Government agencies and other 2,090,883 3,113,776
14,860,615 20,380,425

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 331,142 296,091
$ 14,529,473 $ 20,084,334

4 Trust funds on deposit

Trust accounts represent donations and related interest restricted for scholarships, awards and other specified
purposes Changes in the trust account balance are as follows:

2015 2014
Opening balance $ 3,468,390 $ 3,343,087
Net deposits and payments 1,975,777 53,051
Interest 80,100 72,252
Closing balance $ 5524267 $ 3,468,390
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Accounts payables & accrued liabilities

2015 2014
Trade liabilities $ 2,164,860 $ 3,667,476
Accrued wages and benefits 5,455,047 4,976,569
End of service compensation 35,621 44,697
Other 1,469,728 1,160,382
$ 9,125,256 $ 9,849,124

Post-employment benefits and compensated absences

The actuarial valuation date for sick leave accrual was March 31, 2012 and has been extrapolated for March 31,
2015 The actuarial valuation date for severance pay accrual was March 31, 2013 and has been extrapolated for
March 31, 2015 The assumptions are based on future events The economic assumptions used in the valuation are
the College's best estimates of expected rates as follows:

2015 2014

Wages and salary escalation 2.75% 4 00%
Discount rate 2.90% 390%
The sick leave accrual as at March 31 are as follows:
Accrued sick pay benefit obligation

beginning of year $ 11,190,004 $ 11,394,351
Current period benefit cost 1,208,847 1,208,060
Benefit payments (1,528,647) (1,461,467)
Interest on the accrued benefit

sick leave obligations 430,174 405,635
Actuarial gains /losses 256,110 (356,575)
Accrued sick pay benefit obligation

end of year 11,556,488 11,190,004
Unamortized actuarial experience loss 447,361 214,595
Accrued benefit liability, end of year $ 11,109,127 $ 10,975,409

2015 2014

The severance pay accrual as at March 31 are as follows:
Accrued severance benefit obligation

beginning of year $ 15,511,178 $ 15,820,544
Current period benefit cost 1,242,986 1,226,444
Benefit payments (1,389,377) (2,000,716)
Interest on the accrued benefit

severance obligation 602,081 555,603
Actuarial (gains) / losses 1,048,985 (90,697)
Accrued severance benefit obligation

end of year 17,015,853 15,511,178
Unamortized actuarial experience loss 1,982,918 1,026,138
Accrued benefit liability, end of year $ 15,032,935 $ 14,485,040
Total post-employment benefits
and compensated absences

end of year $ 26,142,062 $ 25,460,449
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Comprehensive Agreement with the State of Qatar

The College has a comprehensive agreement with the State of Qatar to establish, operate and administer a College of

Applied Arts and Technology in Doha, Qatar for a period, September 30, 2001 to August 31, 2012 It was extended

to August 31, 2013, and subsequently further extended to August 31, 2016 The agreement is funded by the State of Qatar For

its services, the College is paid an annual Management Fee of 10% of base salaries The College receives quarterly advances to cover

cash flow requirements

Due to Qatar

2015 2014
Cash on Deposit $ 10,767,248 $ 11,917,499
Payables (accruals) (1,349,501) (1,121,886)
Net Liability $ 9,417,747 $ 10,795,613
Results of Operations

2015 2014
Gross Proceeds $ 9,730,670 $ 10,252,412
Management Costs (1,813,575) (1,675,457)
Net Proceeds $ 7,917,095  $ 8,576,955

Deferred contributions - operating

Deferred contributions represent unspent externally restricted funding that has been received and relates to a subsequent
year Changes in the contributions deferred to future periods are as follows:

2015 2014
Balance, beginning of year $ 4,281,030 $ 4,639,655
Less amounts recognized as revenue in the year (23,048,623) (22,573,024)
Add amounts received during the year 23,327,357 22,214,399
Balance, end of year $ 4,559,764 $ 4,281,030
Deferred contributions -operating are comprised of:
2015 2014

Residence and program fees $ 93,139 $ 91,727
Tuition 1,139,232 1,093,873
Contract training and special projects 3,327,393 3,095,430

$ 4,559,764  $ 4,281,030
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Commitments
Lease Commitment

The College leases some equipment and facilities under long-term operating leases Lease payments for the next
four years, committed under operating leases extending beyond one year, are as follows:

2015-2016 $ 1,432,781
2016-2017 662,818
2017-2018 268,645
2018-2019 18,655

Contingent liabilities

(a) The College has received notices of claim for damages No provision has been made for these claims because
management does not expect the College to incur any material liability, or because an estimate of loss, if any,
is not determinable at this time

(b) A compliance audit on compensation and billings of the Comprehensive Agreement with the State of Qatar as
required per section 4 6 is currently in progress, therefore, the results are unknown at this time The College
is currently not aware of any material findings or outcomes of this compliance audit

Financial instruments risk management

Classification
The following table provides cost and fair value information of financial instruments by category

2015
Fair Value Amortized Cost Total

Cash $ 22,748,110 $ -3 22,748,110
Trust funds on deposit 5,524,267 - 5,524,267
Accounts receivable 14,529,473 14,529,473
$ 28,272,377 $ 14,529,473 $ 42,801,850

Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities - 9,125,256 9,125,256
Vacation pay accrual - 8,256,953 8,256,953
Due to Qatar Campus - 9,417,747 9,417,747
Trust funds payable - 5,524,267 5,524,267
$ - $ 32,324,223 $ 32,324,223

Eair value hierarchy
The College uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the measurement subsequent to initial

recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degrees to which the fair value is observable:

a) Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quote prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities using the last bid price;

b) Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable from the asset or liability, either directly (i e as prices) or indirectly (i e derived from
prices) and;

c) Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Cash and cash equivalents and trust funds on deposit are classified in the level 1 hierarchy
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Financial instruments risk management (cont'd)

Risk management

a)

b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the College if a debtor fails to make payments of interest and principal
when due The College is exposed to this risk relating to its cash and accounts receivable The College holds

its cash accounts with federally regulated chartered banks who are insured by the Canadian Deposit Insurance
Corporation In the event of a default, the College's cash accounts are insured up to $300,000 (2014 - $300,000)

Accounts receivable from federal and provincial governments pose minimal credit risk Credit risk from
accounts receivable due from students is mitigated by financial approval processes before a student is
enrolled Miscellaneous receivables from various other corporate entities are monitored on a regular basis

The College measures its exposure to credit risk based on how long the amounts have been outstanding An
impairment allowance is set up based on the College's historical experience regarding collections The amounts
outstanding at year end were as follows:

Total Current 30-60 days > 61 days
Government receivables $ 12,115,875 $ 4,603,760 $ 7,086,738 $ 425,377
Student receivables 998,349 603,984 47,046 347,319
Other receivables 1,746,391 1,155,029 194,802 396,560
Gross receivables 14,860,615 6,362,773 7,328,586 1,169,256
Less: impairment allowances (331,142) - - (331,142)
Net receivables $ 14,529,473 $ 6,362,773 $ 7,328,586 $ 838,114

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or policies, procedures
and methods used to measure the risk
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result
of market factors Market factors include three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk, equity risk

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or policies, procedures
and methods used to measure the risk

(i) Currency risk
Currency risk relates to the College operating in different currencies and converting non-Canadian

earnings at different points in time when adverse changes in foreign currency rates occur
During the year the College had the following foreign currency transactions:

2015 2014
Receipts
US dollar (USD) $ 260,618 $ 372,167
Payment
US dollar (USD) 1,159,936 831,614
Qatari riyal (QR) - 527,575
Euros (EUR) 185,609 93,360

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or policies,
procedures and methods used to measure the risk
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Financial instruments risk management (cont'd)

i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the potential for financial loss caused by fluctuations in fair value or future cash
flows of financial instruments because of changes in market interest rates

Management believes that the interest rate risk of the College is not material

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or policies,
procedures and methods used to measure the risk

i) Equity risk

Equity risk is the uncertainty associated with the valuation of assets arising from changes in equity
markets

Management believes that the equity risk of the College is not material

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or policies,
procedures and methods used to measure the risk

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the College will not be able to meet all cash outflow obligations as they come due
The College mitigates this risk by monitoring cash activities and expected outflows through extensive budgeting
and maintaining investments that may be converted to cash in the nearest term if unexpected cash outflows arise
The following table sets out the contractual maturities (representing undiscounted contractual cash-flows of
financial liabilities):

2015
6 Months to 1
Within 6 Months year > 1 year
Accounts payable
and accrued liabilities $ 7,630,759 $ 1,294,497 $ 200,000
$ 7,630,759 $ 1,294,497 $ 200,000

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or policies,
procedures and methods used to measure the risk

13 Comparative figures

Certain of the 2014 comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial presentation
adopted in 2015

14 Budget

The budget amounts included in these financial statements are the amounts approved by The College's board
for the current fiscal year The budget would include all known service and program changes and enhancements for
the coming year Additional changes to services and programs that are initiated during the year would be funded

through budget adjustments and have been adjusted in the opening budget accordingly
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15 Related party transactions

The College had the following transactions with the government and other government controlled organizations:

2015 2014
Grants from the province $ 92,256,272 $ 90,523,652
Transfer from Child, Youth & Family Services - 250,525
Transfer from Dept of Business 265,658 294,957
Transfer from Dept of Justice 13,860 214,900
Transfer from Dept of Education 121,179 -
Transfer from Nalcor 107,987 -
Transfer from Research Development Council 165,952 202,534
Transfer from NL Hydro - 120,068
Transfer from Memorial University - 127,274
Transfer to Memorial University 533,125 223,704
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Tangible Capital Assets
March 31, 2015

Schedule 1

Capital Computer and Instructional  Other electronic
Artwork improvements peripherals Furnishings equipment equipment Software ERP - Peoplesoft Vehicles Total
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Cost
At March 31, 2014 5,500 28,994,321 6,305,450 721,185 43,483,018 913,328 658,744 6,779,292 9,066,551 96,927,389

Additions - 1,373,540 394,479 13,521 1,628,445 - 6,276 - 974,383 4,390,644

Disposals - - 400,300 14,622 485,675 15,923 73,796 - 34,320 1,024,636
At March 31, 2015 5,500 30,367,861 6,299,629 720,084 44,625,788 897,405 591,224 6,779,292 10,006,614 100,293,397
Accumulated Amortization
At March 31, 2014 - 13,287,818 5,953,595 683,032 37,392,631 783,073 632,281 3,744,330 6,914,998 69,391,758

Amortization - 2,515,832 283,289 19,215 2,673,939 45,515 12,614 451,128 950,091 6,951,623

Disposals - - 400,300 14,622 485,675 15,923 73,796 - 34,320 1,024,636
At March 31, 2015 - 15,803,650 5,836,584 687,625 39,580,895 812,665 571,099 4,195,458 7,830,769 75,318,745
Net Book Value:
At March 31, 2014 5,500 15,706,503 351,855 38,153 6,090,387 130,255 26,463 3,034,962 2,151,553 27,535,631
At March 31, 2015 5,500 14,564,211 463,045 32,459 5,044,893 84,740 20,125 2,583,834 2,175,845 24,974,652
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Provincial Government Grants
Grant-in-aid
Provincial capital grant
Other grants

Facilities
Classroom/video rental
Gain on disposal of capital assets
Parking
Other

Administration
Interest
Other

Instructional
Tuition
Equipment and materials
Subsidy
Daycare
Other

Student services
Application fee
Registration fee
Other

Resale
Bookstore
Food services
Residence
Other

Apprenticeship
Apprenticeship

College of the North Atlantic

Schedule 2

Revenue
Year Ended March 31, 2015
2015 Budget
(Note 14) 2015 2014
$ 62,343,800 63,977,627 59,066,364
4,026,165 3,543,170 3,548,342
600,000 812,400 600,000
66,969,965 68,333,197 63,214,706
15,000 15,000 15,000
27,000 46,540 39,603
7,750 4,167 4,800
- 6,542 -
49,750 72,249 59,403
200,000 304,553 281,304
29,382 48,107 66,152
229,382 352,660 347,456
9,417,732 8,860,778 8,766,433
1,829,538 1,666,597 1,610,863
17,200,000 17,071,932 20,543,046
487,445 502,947 514,956
241,645 85,330 464,570
29,176,360 28,187,584 31,899,868
278,099 309,680 320,670
372,172 394,692 375,162
86,006 70,209 60,031
736,277 774,581 755,863
2,722,500 2,681,782 2,719,547
1,220,900 1,156,088 1,210,258
339,700 334,804 337,060
- 1,187 839
4,283,100 4,173,861 4,267,704
4,451,809 5,982,803 5,637,926
4,451,809 5,982,803 5,637,926
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College of the North Atlantic

Revenue
Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 Budget
(Note 14) 2015 2014
Continuing education
Tuition 845,089 848,823 1,025,749
Other - 8,967 22,757
845,089 857,790 1,048,506
Contracts
Tuition 2,712,984 2,103,582 2,490,480
Corporate 2,178,380 4,727,513 3,127,881
4,891,364 6,831,095 5,618,361
International
International 1,060,976 783,480 1,205,215
1,060,976 783,480 1,205,215
Special projects
Special projects 4,904,263 3,723,046 4,009,343
4,904,263 3,723,046 4,009,343
Qatar Project
Management fee 9,882,431 9,315,911 10,148,688
Other 200,000 414,759 103,724
10,082,431 9,730,670 10,252,412
$ 127,680,766 $ 129,803,016 $ 128,316,763
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Salaries and benefits
Professional development
Professional fees

Travel

Insurance
Photocopying/printing
Office related supplies
General advertising
Freight and customs
Telephone

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance
Vehicle operations
Equipment rentals
Facilities rentals
Protective clothing
Assets - loss

Computer supplies
Contracted services
Student related

Minor equipment and tools
Minor computer equipment
Materials and supplies

College of the North Atlantic
Summary of Facilities Expenditures

Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 Budget

Schedule 3

(Note 14) 2015 2014
$ 1,411,366  $ 1,602,078 $ 1,535,791
1,714 - -
6,600 4,090 1,499
11,424 16,171 10,809
325,000 202,247 265,719
350 341 3,374
2,750 940 13,858
- 280 -
2,100 10 42
4,970 6,572 5,059
1,602,100 1,555,529 1,671,547
1,015,255 1,281,907 955,245
176,509 152,311 149,660
11,600 4,767 7,348
169,718 162,769 169,718
12,400 14,889 11,791
- - 65,161
500 40,701 151
68,000 64,726 71,229
- 75 884
3,778 33,868 6,690
2,000 2,431 -
106,669 45,378 42,664
$ 4934803 $ 5,192,080 $ 4,988,239
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Summary of Administration Expenditures
Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 Budget

Schedule 4

(Note 14) 2015 2014

Salaries and benefits $ 13,057,416 $ 12,920,130 $ 12,812,454
Professional development 139,753 92,491 43,479
Employee recognition and wellness 33,920 26,878 24,872
Professional fees 1,076,943 666,062 702,144
Travel 473,815 402,699 378,941
Recruitment and relocation 136,341 111,026 63,828
Insurance 500 944 1,681
Bank charges 182,000 221,744 186,122
Photocopying/printing 213,867 177,305 166,435
Office related supplies 429,852 376,348 378,090
Membership fees 126,850 83,821 48,084
General advertising 277,165 100,802 95,775
Doubtful receivables 65,000 92,270 78,230
Freight and customs 124,093 78,545 82,337
Telephone 693,228 639,966 663,080
Utilities 5,700 6,196 5,596
Repairs and maintenance 80,670 109,124 78,007
Vehicle operations 276 2,273 1,318
Equipment rentals 32,299 2,544 9,251
Facilities rentals 37,488 37,000 35,088
Protective clothing 8,250 7,351 6,339
Food cost - - 104
Computer supplies 83,366 66,188 45,523
Contracted Services 500 7,072 726
Educational materials 13,500 3,675 4,190
Student related 600 8,204 3,544
Minor equipment and tools 78,506 37,520 40,474
Minor computer equipment 80,383 70,773 62,677
Materials and supplies 367,675 230,533 185,557

$ 17,819,956 $ 16,579,484 $ 16,203,946
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Salaries and benefits
Professional development
Employee recognition and wellness
Professional fees

Travel

Recruitment and relocation
Insurance
Photocopying/printing
Office related supplies
Membership fees

General advertising
Freight and customs
Telephone

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance
Vehicle operations
Equipment rentals
Facilities rentals
Protective clothing

Food cost

Laundry and drycleaning
Textbooks and supplies
Computer supplies
Contracted services
Educational materials
Daycare operations
Student related

Minor equipment and tools
Minor computer equipment
Materials and supplies

College of the North Atlantic
Summary of Instructional Expenditures

Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 Budget

Schedule 5

(Note 14) 2015 2014
$ 62,137,206 $ 58,397,419 63,874,091
315,369 159,004 130,972
- 50 415
244,541 285,916 140,466
452,989 398,579 456,296
20,000 26,892 68,806
1,500 - -
169,240 246,745 185,396
57,299 43,972 42,204
27,433 16,505 13,367
40,861 45,662 37,112
54,766 11,202 15,212
18,516 14,442 20,305
6,880 5,604 7,811
850,218 1,182,054 195,870
595,554 480,235 357,314
47,651 28,759 45,879
51,892 27,778 63,326
41,022 25,546 25,252
153,257 141,254 134,851
5,825 4,958 4,187
100 - -
171,814 198,118 158,254
100,601 93,751 82,287
96,573 78,032 132,303
109,110 89,718 72,493
125,895 127,522 253,881
522,386 512,243 346,354
150,513 373,740 198,655
4,518,518 1,894,599 1,647,629
$ 71,088,529 $ 64,910,389 68,711,488
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Schedule 6

College of the North Atlantic

Summary of Student Services Expenditures
Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 Budget

(Note 14) 2015 2014

Salaries and benefits 9,243,074 $ 8,847,619 $ 9,128,447
Professional development 27,283 18,456 27,788
Professional fees 94,000 403,277 7,172
Travel 129,386 107,709 90,788
Insurance 16,400 7,500 10,500
Photocopying/printing 225,521 125,680 91,229
Office related supplies 67,064 50,510 57,383
Membership fees 3,850 6,450 3,470
General advertising 797,919 489,945 277,763
Freight and customs 18,390 4,262 4,828
Telephone 1,650 4,783 4,431
Utilities - - 613
Repairs and maintenance 750 31,167 17,834
Equipment rentals - 346 1,140
Facilities rentals 1,075 514 152
Food cost - 34 154
Laundry and drycleaning 2,788 2,604 2,001
Computer supplies 9,396 53,605 12,291
Contracted services 112,875 201,122 428
Educational materials 251,264 213,503 169,363
Student related 77,971 66,540 70,037
Minor equipment and tools 27,256 25,934 25,086
Minor computer equipment 22,380 37,293 19,442
Materials and supplies 95,599 58,069 77,744

11,225,891 $ 10,756,922 $ 10,100,084
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Summary of Information Technology Expenditures
Year Ended March 31, 2015

Salaries and benefits
Professional development
Professional fees

Travel
Photocopying/printing
Office related supplies
Membership fees

Freight and customs
Telephone

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance
Vehicle operations
Facilities Rentals
Protective clothing
Computer supplies
Contracted services

Minor equipment and tools
Minor computer equipment
Materials and supplies

College of the North Atlantic

2015 Budget

Schedule 7

(Note 14) 2015 2014
$ 4,744,852 $ 4,544,375 $ 3,905,545
26,741 1,106 -
80,565 - 14,748
197,341 24,032 27,505
1,850 806 -
14,950 4,421 8,437
- - 886
2,455 576 330
11,730 11,764 10,038
- 240 -
1,800 954 29,493
- - 239
52,632 - 52,632
600 184 259
2,287,752 1,531,398 1,398,965
; 13,744 -
22,844 15,652 2,942
202,974 654,662 41,643
49,690 13,999 18,972
$ 7698776 $ 6,817,913 $ 5,512,634
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Salaries and benefits
Professional development
Employee recognition and wellness
Travel

Recruitment and relocation
Photocopying/printing
Office related supplies
General advertising
Freight and customs
Telephone

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance
Protective clothing

Food cost

Laundry and drycleaning
Textbooks and supplies
Computer supplies
Contracted services
Student related

Minor equipment and tools
Minor computer equipment
Materials and supplies

College of the North Atlantic
Summary of Resale Expenditures

Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 Budget

Schedule 8

(Note 14) 2015 2014
$ 1,769,045 $ 1,990,801 $ 1,865,795
- 349 -
- - 96
7,229 7,515 9,087
- 1,542 -
9,050 5,719 2,230
16,750 12,797 16,308
1,900 2,077 1,075
138,925 148,582 140,459
1,100 1,697 1,579
16,265 17,686 18,510
40,702 29,695 23,829
17,400 13,182 15,589
721,659 803,934 792,353
17,500 14,390 16,546
2,239,400 2,174,857 2,194,914
13,812 53,648 13,673
71,400 65,245 531
900 2,776 881
7,525 17,304 8,004
2,000 12,996 4,023
44,875 26,545 26,357
$ 5,137,437 $ 5,403,337 $ 5,153,639
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Salaries and benefits
Professional development
Professional fees

Travel
Photocopying/printing
Office related supplies
Membership fees

General advertising
Freight and customs
Telephone

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance
Vehicle operations
Equipment rentals
Protective clothing

Food cost

Laundry and drycleaning
Computer supplies
Contracted services
Educational materials
Student related

Minor equipment and tools
Minor computer equipment
Materials and supplies

College of the North Atlantic

Summary of Apprenticeship Expenditures
Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 Budget

Schedule 9

(Note 14) 2015 2014
3,616,991 $ 3,543,822 $ 3,399,043
781 - -
3,559 200 1,678
1,529 5,265 23,192
5,374 6,433 4,306
450 715 1,058
150 632 603
763 99 214
8,571 1,438 1,449
- - 33
- 11 -
6,780 22,022 14,293
3,928 817 520
250 105 253
1,600 1,017 2,349
15,619 12,299 22,318
3,186 706 1,136
18,528 12,879 11,731
- - 548
23,195 21,932 13,086
399,689 621,168 580,616
48,138 70,393 50,203
8,153 3,969 8,968
276,983 271,450 248,110
4,444,217 $ 4,598,272 $ 4,385,707
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College of the North Atlantic
Summary of Continuing Education Expenditures

Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 Budget

Schedule 10

(Note 14) 2015 2014

Salaries and benefits $ 493,593 $ 493,504 487,559
Professional fees 2,000 67 1,055
Travel 1,000 12,242 13,021
Photocopying/printing 3,703 16,039 8,318
Office related supplies - 3,795 2,679
General advertising 7,733 286 1,973
Freight and customs 1,241 1,200 1,187
Utilities - - 1,142
Equipment rentals - 164 262
Facilities rentals 3,610 9,362 3,605
Food cost - - 126
Contracted services 132,340 121,202 158,649
Educational materials 3,164 884 470
Student related 29,000 23,852 28,766
Minor computer equipment 1,959 - -
Materials and supplies 16,400 8,110 15,613

$ 695,743 $ 690,707 724,425
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Salaries and benefits
Professional development
Professional fees

Travel

Recruitment and relocation
Photocopying/printing
Office related supplies
Membership fees

General advertising
Freight and customs
Telephone

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance
Vehicle operations
Equipment rentals
Facilities rentals
Protective clothing

Food cost

Laundry and drycleaning
Computer supplies
Contracted services
Educational materials
Student related

Minor equipment and tools
Minor computer equipment
Materials and supplies

College of the North Atlantic

Summary of Contract Expenditures
Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 Budget

Schedule 11

(Note 14) 2015 2014
$ 3,582,893 $ 3,722,723 $ 3,580,321
- 6,196 951
- 460 8,055
106,500 126,912 83,817
3,000 - -
25,250 14,532 17,340
11,000 7,385 2,116
4,311 721 310
6,000 24,675 11,762
2,000 5,649 5,627
6,060 2,971 2,886
- 1,225 -
8,000 1,494 4,708
15,897 2,086 9,436
30,000 82,188 71,927
20,000 6,573 5,040
10,000 4,024 5,056
27,500 27,222 24,259
1,338 1,344 1,091
12,000 2,176 10,059
273,983 598,262 416,520
8,500 3,129 5,662
224,112 133,401 181,904
23,820 6,300 3,964
38,061 5,029 3,455
159,033 347,726 240,738
$ 4,599,258 $ 5,134,403 $ 4,697,004
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Salaries and benefits
Professional fees
Travel

Insurance
Photocopying/printing
Office related supplies
Membership fees
General advertising
Freight and customs
Telephone

Facilities rentals
Computer supplies
Contracted services
Educational Materials
Student related

Minor computer equipment
Materials and supplies

College of the North Atlantic

Summary of International Expenditures

Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 Budget

Schedule 12

(Note 14) 2015 2014
$ 345,689 378,806 355,138
80,000 70,019 110,174
98,400 107,031 90,279
- - 249
556 70 40
1,287 36 231
1,580 1,428 1,619
3,218 167 1,010
2,000 2,332 1,367
2,200 2,803 1,679
- - 310
- - 115
71,400 19,793 20,735
2,000 669 3,528
3,000 2,188 4,426
- 3,024 -
3,741 7,395 2,538
$ 615,071 595,761 593,438
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Salaries and benefits
Professional development
Professional fees

Travel

Insurance
Photocopying/printing
Office related supplies
Membership fees

General advertising
Freight and customs
Telephone

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance
Vehicle operations
Equipment rentals
Facilities rentals
Protective clothing

Food cost

Computer supplies
Contracted services
Educational materials
Daycare operations
Student related

Minor equipment and tools
Minor computer equipment
Materials and supplies

College of the North Atlantic

Summary of Special Projects Expenditures
Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 Budget

Schedule 13

(Note 14) 2015 2014
$ 1,416,839 1,433,827 $ 1,830,253
41,000 18,208 22,204
185,230 53,379 59,788
133,074 98,691 87,578
- 1,458 1,042
2,870 3,955 4,909
8,600 1,274 2,258
1,500 2,769 2,044
44,748 25,358 11,640
4,242 4,465 1,018
1,719 1,947 3,497
10,081 9,915 8,831
21,181 90,453 141,248
56,452 14,139 15,587
] 4,167 3,509
21,490 15,410 14,583
- 997 440
- 132 428
36,205 28,164 41,148
34,651 68,368 209,017
222,127 224,640 2,587
2,619 - -
324,589 309,537 303,673
160,978 140,414 207,857
5,872 96,833 119,199
447,171 181,512 179,907
$ 3,183,238 $ 2,830,012 $ 3,274,245
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Salaries and benefits
Professional development
Professional fees

Travel
Photocopying/printing
Office related supplies
Membership fees

General advertising
Freight and customs
Telephone

Facilities rentals
Computer supplies

Minor equipment and tools
Minor computer equipment
Materials and supplies

College of the North Atlantic

Summary of Qatar Project Expenditures

Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 Budget

Schedule 14

(Note 14) 2015 2014
$ 1,291,770 1,183,791 1,012,921
2,200 - -
690,475 415,628 439,178
174,000 116,938 95,292
4,100 1,408 1,928
9,150 4,586 8,901
4,000 3,977 3,221
82,585 51,909 49,025
3,500 2,141 2,910
25,750 4,860 29,652
20,200 20,191 25,384
3,100 452 1,033
2,400 1,305 316
4,600 1,600 2,823
21,600 4,789 2,873
$ 2,339,430 $ 1,813,575 1,675,457
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Salaries and benefits
Professional development
Employee recognition and wellness
Professional fees

Travel

Recruitment and relocation
Insurance

Bank charges
Photocopying/printing
Office related supplies
Membership fees

General advertising
Doubtful receivables
Freight and customs
Telephone

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance
Vehicle operations
Equipment rentals
Facilities rentals
Protective clothing

Assets - loss

Food cost

Laundry and drycleaning
Textbooks and supplies
Computer supplies
Contracted services
Educational materials
Daycare operations
Student related

Minor equipment and tools
Minor computer equipment
Materials and supplies

College of the North Atlantic

Summary of Expenditures
Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 Budget

Schedule 15

(Note 14) 2015 2014
$ 103,110,734 $ 99,058,895 $ 103,787,358
555,341 295,900 225,394
33,920 26,928 25,383
2,463,913 1,899,098 1,485,957
1,786,687 1,423,784 1,367,505
159,341 139,460 132,634
343,400 212,149 279,101
182,000 221,744 186,122
661,731 599,033 485,505
619,152 506,779 533,523
169,674 116,303 73,604
1,262,892 741,260 487,349
65,000 92,270 78,230
362,283 260,402 256,766
766,923 691,805 742,239
1,641,026 1,596,406 1,714,050
2,025,356 2,748,870 1,460,527
848,616 651,861 534,074
121,800 123,040 139,569
378,105 279,597 369,838
91,272 68,090 67,075
- - 65,161
918,035 984,875 974,593
30,637 24,002 24,961
2,239,500 2,174,857 2,194,914
2,636,473 1,987,329 1,692,943
865,750 1,253,285 960,670
620,323 546,464 331,189
111,729 89,718 72,493
1,185,756 1,295,263 1,428,612
898,131 860,933 693,290
518,895 1,262,350 460,885
6,107,954 3,090,105 2,688,702
$ 133,782,349 $  125322,855 $ 126,020,306
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR
NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014
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MNSOR CONMBS COPY

PLEAGE S108 400 DETURN,

Cardner Coombs Chartered Accountants
Winsor Coombs
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39A Lemarchamt Rd.
Gardner Goombs i
R A1C 2G9
Winsor Coombs T 709.753.9283
I: 709.753 0707
Chartered Accountants geitgardnercoombs.ca

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Conseil scolaire francophone provincial de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

We have audited the accompanying non-consolidated financial statements of Conseil scolaire francophone
provincial de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador, which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2014 and
the non-consolidated statements of operations, and accumulated surplus, change in net debt and cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Non-consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these non-consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these non-consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and p'an and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the non-consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the non-
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the non-consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the non-consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the non-consolidated statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the non-consclidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Conseil scolaire francophone provincial de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador as at June 30, 2014, and the results of

its operations, the change in its net debt and its cash flaws for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian
Public Sector Accounting Standards.

St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador G N ch-»* I QO_&L,

Qctober 24, 2014 Chartered Accountants
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR
NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
JUNE 30, 2014

Budget Actual Actual
2014 2014 2013

Revenue {Schedule 1)

Provincial Government Grants $ 7,041,044 $ 7,111,206 $ 7,824,504

Grants - Official Languages in Education Projects 1,030,913 1,024,252 1,067,717

Ancillary Services 147,200 146,830 145,050

Miscellanecus 1,800 13.514 10.945
Total revenue 8,220,957 8,295,802 9,048,216
Expenditures

Administration (Schedule 2) 546,194 547,371 523,526

Instruction (Schedule 3) 4,856,000 5,165,851 4,855,917

Operations and Maintenance (Schedule 4) 1,132,750 1,352,804 1,930,777

Pupil Transpartation (Schedule 5) 505,000 548,689 509,302

Ancillary Services & Miscellaneous {Schedule 6) 233,600 252,407 249,864

Pupil Services - Official Languages in Education

Projects {Schedule 8) 815,615 759,039 843,583
Community Programs - Official Languages in
Education Projects (Schedule 9) 181.798 178,465 181.798

Total expenditure 8,270,957 8.804.626 9,094 767
Excess Expenditures over Revenue (50,000) (508,824) (46,551)
Accumulated Surplus, Beginning of Year 8,121,832 8,121,832 8,168,383

Accumulated Surplus, End of Year (Note 11) $ 8,071,832 $ 7,613,008 $___B8121832

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Cardner Coombs Chartered Accountants
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR
NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT

Excess of expenses over revenue
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Net change in prepaid expenses
Change in net debt

Net debt, beginning of year

Net assets {debt), end of year

JUNE 30, 2014

Budget Actual Actual
2014 2014 2013
$ (50,000) $ (508,824) $ (46,551)
- (1587,623) (432,288)
412,800 451,639 432,207
- 4,082 {3,789)
362,800 (210,726) (50,421)
(820,011) (820.011) (769.590}
3 (457.211) $___(1.030.737) $ (820.011)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Gardner Coombs
Winsor Coombs
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR
NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Cash from (used for)

2014 2013
Operating Transactions
Excess of expenditures over revenue $ (508,824) 5 (46,551)
ltems not affecting cash
Amortization 451,639 432,207
Accounts receivable 168,384 (173,861)
HST receivable {(4,183) (719)
Prepaid expenses 4,083 (3,788)
Due to Government of Newfoundland and Labrador (50,627) 58,711
Accounts payable and accruals (15,020) (31,221)
Repayable deposits 141 421
Summer pay liability (174,759) 208,755
Accrued severance pay 80,188 69,439
Accrued sick leave 36,489 36,717
Other employee future benefits 33,548 2,409
Deferred revenue 15,960 8.842
37.019 561,361
Capital asset transactions
Government purchase - modular classrocoms B {374,541)
Additions to capital assets (157.623) (57.747)
157,623 432,288
Investing activities
Short term invesiments 100,000 -
Increase (decrease) in cash (20,604) 129,073
Cash (bank indebtedness}, beginning of year 99,396 (29.677)
Cash (bank indebtedness), end of year $ 78792 5 99,396

See accompanying notes ta the financial statements

Cardner Coombs Chartered Accountants
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

1 Nature of Operations

The Conseil scolaire francophone provincial de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador (CSFP or “the Board") is the sole
public Francophone school beard in Newfoundland and Labrador. According to Article 23 of the Canadian
Charter of Rights and Freedoms, the CSFP provides French-first-language education to the children of
eligible right-helders. The Board services the entire province of Newfoundland and Labrador and it
possesses the same authority as the English public school board of the province, but with an extra mandate
to promote the French language and culture.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles for the public sector which are represented by standards issued by the
Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA)

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted by the Board is as follows:

a) These financial statements are prepared on a non-consolidated basis. These financial statements
do not include school based financial activities which would consist of revenues, expenses and net
assets controlled by school administrations.

b) The Board's main source of funding is derived from Government of Newfoundland and Labrador,
Department of Education (“the Department’). The Department provides funding for operations,
transportation, capital expenditures and teacher salaries and severance pay. Funding is included in
revenue on the accrual basis and when the related expenditures have been incurred with the
exception of funding for the severance pay, sick leave and executive paid leave. In these three
cases, funding is recorded when the severance is paid to employees {see Note 12), when sick
leave is taken (Note 7) or when paid leave is taken by executives (see Note 13). Funding
designated for specific purposes, for which criteria has not been met, is deferred and included in
revenue when the related expenditures have been incurred.

c) Capital asset additions are recorded at full cost and are amortized over their useful lives
d}) Capital assets are amortized using the straight line method based on the following number of years:
School Buildings 40 years
Fumiture 10 years
Equipment 10 years
Computers 4 years
e) The School Board has acquired, in certain cases, land for its buildings without cost In other cases,

the Board obtained authorization to use the land without ownership, as long as the properties are
used for educational purposes. Finally, in cases where the land is Board property and value
determinations were not possible, fair market values were not recorded.

Cardner Coombs Chartered Accountants
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

f) The Government of Newfoundland and Labrador processes the payrolls and remits the source
deductions directly to the appropriate agencies for all principals, teachers, student assistants, board
management and program coordinators. The amounts recorded in the financial statements
represent gross salaries and employee benefits as reported by the Depariment for the year.

g) All permanent employees of the Board are covered by pension plans administered by the
Government of Newfoundland and Labrador. Contributions to these plans are required from both
the employee and the Board. Post retirement obligations to employees are the responsibility of the
Government of Newfoundiand and Labrador. For pensions, employer contributions are recognized
in the accounts on a current basis.

h) Employees are entitled to severance benefits as stipulated in their conditions of employment. The
right to be paid severance pay vests with employees with nine years of centinual service with the
CSFP or another public sector employer. Severance is payable when the employee ceases
employment with the CSFP and the public sector. The severance benefit obligation has been
actuarially determined using assumptions based an management's best estimates of future salary
and wage changes, employee age, years of service, the probability of voluntary departure due to
resignation or retirement, the discount rate and other factors. Discount rates are based on the
Province's long-term borrowing rate. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized over time, per the
actuarial calculation, through the non-consolidated statement of operations.

i) Employees of the CSFP are entitled to sick pay benefits which accumulate but do not vest. In
accordance with Public Sector Accounting for post-employment benefits and compensated
balances, the CSFP recognizes the liability in the period in which the employee renders service.
The obligation is actuarially determined using assumptions based on management's best estimates
of the probability of use of accrued sick leave, future salary and wage changes, employee age, the
probability of departure, retirement age, the discount rate and other factors. Discount rates are
based on the Province's long-term borrowing rate. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized over
time, per the actuarial calculation, through the non-consolidated statement of operations.

i) In preparing the financial statements for the Conseil scolaire francophone provincial de Terre-
Neuve-et-Labrador, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Examples of significant estimates include:

. the liability for Employee Future Benefits
. providing for amortization of tangible capital assets
. the estimated useful lives of assets
Gardner Coombs Chartered Accountants
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

3. Financial Instruments
The Board's financial instruments consist of cash, short term investments, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and employee benefits payable. It is management's opinion that the Board is not exposed to
significant interest rate, currency or credit risk arising from these financial instruments.
The carrying value of the Board's financial instruments approximate fair values.

4. Summer Pay Liability
The Board records a vacation (summer) pay liability for teachers in the District. This liability relates to
teacher's salaries earned during the school year but not fully paid to teachers until subsequent to June 30.
Accordingly, the Board has recorded teachers' vacation pay receivable of $501,489 in Accounts Receivable
(2013 - $676,248)

5. Insurance Subsidy

The cost of insuring school properties is incurred by the Provincial Government and no amount has been
recorded in these financial statements to reflect this cost.

6. Repayable Deposits
The School Board collects performance bonds from suppliers for the provision of muiti-year heating,

ventilation and air conditioning maintenance contracts as well as for multi-year snow clearing contracts.
These deposits earn interest at market rates. The balance as at June 30, 2014 is payable as follows:

2014 $ 2,780
2015 6,000
2016 1.500
Total: 3 10.280
Cardner Coombs o Chartered Accountants

Winsor Coombs



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Employee Future Benefits - Accrued Sick Leave

Accrued benefit liability, beginning of year

Benefits expense

Current service cost
Interest expense
Amortization of loss in period

Benefits paid

Total accrued benefit liability, end of year

Unamortized actuarial experience loss (gain)

Total accrued benefit obligation

Accrued benefit liability according to employee groups

Teachers

Board employees
Student assistants

Total accrued benefit liability, end of year

2014 2013

$ 433079 S 396,362
60,174 60,756

17,591 14,681

772 2,005
(42,048) (40,725)
469,568 433,079

13649 7754

483217 440,833
412,999 379,073
40,094 38,549

16,475 15,457

$ 469568  $___ 433,079

The significant actuarial assumptions used in measuring the accrued sick leave and benefits expenses are as

follows
2014 2013 2012

Discount rate - benefit cost (%) 3.70 3.91 3.40
Rate of compensation increase

Teachers - less than 10 yrs service 7.25%

Teachers - more than 10 yrs service 4.00%

Student assistants 4.00%

Board employees 4.00%

Gardner Coombs
Winsor Coombs
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Accounts Receivable

Provincial government

Provincial government - Summer pay - teachers
Provincial government - Transportation

Federal government

Rent
Interest

Travel advances and miscellaneous
Provincial government construction granis

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Trade payables
Accrued liabilities

Accrued salaries and benefits payable

Expenses by Object

Salary

Employee benefits
Supplies and services
Contract services and fees

Training
Rentals
Amortization
Interest

2014 2013
$ 3136 & 73,405
501,489 676,248
58,674 .
11,521 32,663
54,906 7,463
536 963
300 4,875
—— 28055 31,384
$ 658617  § 827.001
2014 2013
$ 26,025 $ 40,122
22,000 32,617
9,694 -
$ 57719 72.7
2014 2013
$ 5401500 § 5,290,332
1,010,246 909,026
1,550,607 2,065,526
237,958 266,891
90,857 80,794
61,422 49,575
451,640 432,205
387 418
$___ 8804626  $__ 9004767

Gardner Coombs
Winsor Coombs
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Breakdown of Accumulated Surplus
Year end composition

Restricted reserve - Cenire des Grands-Vents (Note 14)
Net investment in capital assets

Unfunded accrued sick leave (Note 7)

Unfunded accrued employee severance pay (Note 12)
Unfunded paid leave - executive (Note 13)

Operating accumulated surplus

Total accumulated surplus

Employee Future Benefits - Accrued Severance Pay

Accrued benefit liability, beginning of year
Benefits expense
Current service cost
Interest expense
Amortization of loss in period
Benefits paid

Accrued benefit liability, end of year
Unamortized actuarial loss (gain)

Accrued benefit obligation, end of year

Accrued benefit liability according to employee groups
Teachers
Board employees
Student assistants

Total accrued benefit liability, end of year

2014 2013
$ 61,863 S 63,000
8,633,674 8,921,867
(469,568) (433,079)
(545,906) (439,633)
(80,785) (53,913)
13,730 63.590
$__7613008  S__ 8121832
_2014 2013

$ 521220 § 451,781
91,271 98,656

21,906 17,037

1,169 4,082

(34,158) (50,336)
601,408 521,220
23,487 10.468
624,895 531,688
499,428 400,066
95,743 116,783

6,237 4,371
S_____601.408 $__521.220

The significant actuarial assumptions used in measuring the accrued sick leave and benefits expenses are

as follows:
2014 2012
iscount rate - benefit cost (%) 3.70 3.40
Rate of compensation increase

Teachers - less than 10 yrs service 7.25%

Teachers - more than 10 yrs service 4.00%

Student assistants 4.00%

Board employees 4.00%

Gardner Coombs
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15.

CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Employee Future Benefits - Other

Paid leave for executive staff and vacation pay benefits payable for Board office administration staff, school
secretaries and janitorial staff are recorded in accordance with the benefit rates applicable to these groups.

Other employee future benefits is comprised of the following:

_2014 2013
Executive staff paid leave $ 80,785 $ 53,913
Employee vacation pay 29.591 22915

$ 110,376 $ 76.828

Reserve

In accordance with leases with the tenants of the Centre scolaire et communitaire des Grand-Vents in St.
John's, the CSFP maintains a reserve constituted of funds that management has designated as restricted
for the future purchase of computer equipment and major renovations to this building.

Comparative Figures

Some of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.

Gardner Coombs
Winsor Coombs
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR

SCHEDULE 1 - REVENUES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Revenues

Grants - Official Languages in Education
Regular projects
Official language monitor

Provincial government grants
Regular operating grants
Acquisition of capital assets - buildings and land
Major renovations to buildings
Special grants
Communication tech (Powerschaol)
Other
Salaries and benefits
Director and Assistant Director
Regular teachers
Substitute teachers
Student assistants
Senior Education Officer
Pupil transportation
Contracted

Ancillary Services

Revenues from rental of residences

Revenues from rental of schools and facilities -
Grand-Vents

Other rental - ARCO - West Coast

Miscellaneous

Interest on investments
Recoveries of expenditures
Other - sundry

Total revenues

Budget Actual Actual
2014 2014 2013
$ 997 413 $ 967,413 5 1,027,354
33,500 56,839 40,363 _
1,030,913 1,024 252 1,067,717
1,542,894 1,510,776 1,622,206
410,000 - 374,541
- 89,057 661,707
20,000 12,792 10,918
11,000 249,971 226,575
279,650 273,063 242,010
3,915,000 3,086,721 3,814,237
150,000 192,238 206,510
110,000 139,750 99,227
120,000 116,058 98,006
482,500 540,780 468,567
7,041,044 111 7.824.504
9,700 10,350 6,351
112,500 111,480 113,699
__ 25000 25,000 25,000
147.200 146,830 145.050
1,300 1,398 1,286
- 12,116 8,453
500 - 1,206
1.800 13.514 10,94
$___8220957 $ 8.295,802 $__ 9048216

Gardner Coombs
Winsor Coombs
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL

DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR

SCHEDULE 2 - ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Budget Actual Actual
2014 2014 2013
Salaries and benefits
Director and Assistant Director $ 279,650 300,851 $ 245744
Board office personnel 77,950 75,442 98,243
Office supplies 5,000 2,676 3,868
Replacement furniture and equipment 5,000 3,441 3,389
Postage 5,000 4,035 3,796
Telephone/internet 17,000 13,328 15,568
Office equipment rentals and repairs 10,000 9,888 10,138
Bank charges 4,000 3,626 3,891
Office rental 5,000 - -
Repairs and maintenance - office buildings 3,000 2,551 2,761
Travel 17,500 19,691 14,431
Board meeting expenses 40,000 26,790 31,034
Professional fees 28,500 48,212 28,651
Advertising - recruitment 12,500 1,967 17,543
Membership dues 18,750 11,177 18,818
Municipal service fees 1,500 - 996
Relocation expenses - - 7,863
Miscellaneous 544 100 246
Amortization 12,800 15,015 14,614
Training 2,500 3,831 1,832
Assurance - 750 -
Total administrative expenditures $ 546,194 547,371 $ $23.526

Cardner Coombs Chartered Accountants
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR
SCHEDULE 3 - INSTRUCTIONAL EXPENDITURES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Budget Actual Actual
2014 2014 2013
Instructional salaries (gross)
Teachers' salaries
Regular $ 3,300,000 $ 3,368,845 $ 3,226,326
Substitutes 150,000 185,070 186,012
Senior Education Officer 120,000 116,447 98,006
Board pay 4,500 492 -
Employee bengfits - general 540,000 576,106 546,320
Employee benefits - sick leave and severance - 142 672 86,511
School secretaries - salaries and benefits 177,000 176,352 195,379
Payroll tax 75,000 80,409 75,936
Other - salary and benefits - program coordinators 140,000 123,909 118,559
Other - salary and benefits - student assistants 110,000 109,513 88,306
4.616,500 4.879.815 4.621.355
Instructional materials
General supplies 21,500 21,913 17,989
Teaching aids 27.750 39.868 38,387
49,250 61,781 56,376
Instructional furniture and equipment
Replacement 26,500 18,720 27,473
Rentals and repairs 7.750 6,932 7,720
34,250 25,652 35183
Instructional staff travel
Program co-coordinators 5,000 - -
Teachers' travel 16,500 20,257 20,707
In-service and conferences 2.500 - 1,437
24000 20,257 22144
Other instructional costs
French monitor program 37,500 62,054 44,037
Inclusion - support services 10,000 35,039 6,412
Secretaries - training 7,000 4,078 1,920
Secretaries - travel 2,500 1,386 1,045
Secretaries - equipment 4,000 3,065 -
Kinderstart 1.000 593 1,500
PowerSchool 20,000 12,829 8,489
Art workshop - 1.978 641
82,000 121.022 __ 64044
Amortization 50,000 57.324 56,805
Total instruction expenditures $___4.856,000 $___5.165851 $ 4855917
Gardner Coombs Chartered Accountants
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR
SCHEDULE 4 - OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES (SCHOOLS)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Salaries - janitorial

Salaries - maintenance

Electricity

Municipal service fees/garbage removal
Telephone

Vehicle operating and travel

Janitorial supplies

Janitorial equipment

Minar repairs and maintenance - buildings
Major repairs and maintenance - buildings
Repairs and maintenance - equipment
Contracted services - janitorial

Snow clearing

Other - training

Other - security systems

Amortization

Total aperations and maintenance

Budget Actual Actual

2014 2014 2013
$ 245,000 3 261,854 $ 302,388
79,250 91,769 85,244
150,000 163,353 163,968
17,000 20,997 20,087
26,000 23,101 25131
24,000 23,230 19,133
19,000 17,740 15,743
2,500 647 2,898
55,000 156,164 167,356
- 89,057 661,707
81,500 36,811 11,007

1,500 . -
80,000 93,631 88,772

4,500 - S
2,500 1,853 1,987
345,000 372,597 355 356
) 1,132.750 8 1,352,804 3 1,930,777

Cardner Coombs
Winsor Coombs

228

Chartered Accountants



CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR
SCHEDULE 5 - PUPIL TRANSPORTATION EXPENDITURES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Budget Actual Actual
2014 2014 2013

Contracted services

Regular Transportation $ 500,000 5 541,233 $ 503,313

Extracurricular Busing 5,000 7.456 5.989
Pupil transportation expenditures $ 505,000 $ 548689 $ 509,302
Gardner Coombs Chartered Accountants
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL

DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR
SCHEDULE 6 - ANCILLARY SERVICES AND MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Budget Actual Actual
2014 2014 2013

Ancillary Service Expenditures

Operaticn of teachers’ residences 3 48,600 $ 49,710 $ 41,324

Other - Community Centre operations 180,000 195,893 194,353

Amortization 5.000 _6.704 5430

Total ancillary services 233.600 252,407 241,107
Miscellaneous Expenditures

Wordpress - - 5,000

Special project - Claquer des mots - - 3,757

Total miscellaneous expenses - - 8,757
Total ancillary services and misc. expenses $ 233.600 $ 252,407 $ 249,864
Cardner Coombs Chartered Accountants
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR
SCHEDULE 7 - DETAILS OF CAPITAL ASSETS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Cost Additions Cost Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Amortization Value Value
2013 2014 2014 2014 2014 2013
Land and Sites
Land and Sites $__ 125000 $ - $_ 125000 $% - $__ 125000 $__125.000
Buildings
Schools 13,819,876 . 13,819,876 5,632,735 8,187,141 8,517,999
Administration - - s - - -
13,819,876 - 13,819,876 5632735 8,187,141 8,517,999
Furniture and Equipment
Schoaols 672,770 17,268 690,038 526,741 163,297 203,352
Administration 118,956 - 118,956 143,145 5,811 11,170
Other - Centre des
Grands-Vents 54 304 12,732 67.036 42 100 24 936 18,908
846.030 30,000 76.0 681,986 194 044 233,430
Computers
Schools 413,289 114,898 528,187 419,533 108,654 35,495
Administration 241,281 12,725 254.006 235171 18,835 15.765
654,570 127,623 782,193 654,704 127,489 51,260
Total Capital Assets $15445476 § 167,623 $15,603.099 $ 6969425 $ 8633674 $_8.927683

Cardner Coombs
Winsor Coombs
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR
SCHEDULE 8 - PUPIL SERVICES - OFFICIAL LANGUAGES IN EDUCATION PROJECTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Budget Actual Actual

2014 2014 2013
Language recovery 3 240,000 $ 247,819 3 237,979
School programs coordination 120,000 106,528 77,629
Student support services 110,000 105,416 117,244
Art and cultural programming 56,115 46,766 99,548
Principal and teacher training 57,000 60,300 60,493
Promotion and communications services 46,000 50,356 50,768
Federal project administration 45,000 50,244 49,071
Technology support services 47,500 47,500 47,240
Teacher recruitment and retention 29,000 24,260 37,372
French professional services 30,000 14,225 31,072
Educational resource centre 5,000 5,625 9,847
School board governance - - 25,320
Classroom technology 30,000 - -

Total pupil services -

Official Languages in Education Projects $ 815615 3 759,039 3 843,583

Gardner Coombs Chartered Accountants
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR
SCHEDULE 9 - COMMUNITY PROGRAMS - OFFICIAL LANGUAGES IN
EDUCATION PROJECTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Budget Actual Actual

2014 2014 2013
Preschool program $ 75,356 3 71,386 $ 72,719
After school programs 63,660 62,463 63,629
Family literacy - Port-au-Port peninsula 30,688 30,338 30,906
Saturday activity camp 12,094 14,277 14,544

Total community programs -
Official Languages in Education Projects $ 181,798 3 178,469 $ 181,798

Gardner Coombs Chartered Accountants
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CONSEIL SCOLAIRE FRANCOPHONE PROVINCIAL
DE TERRE-NEUVE-ET-LABRADOR
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

2014 2013
1. Prepaid Expenses
Worker's compensation commission 3 5,571 s 8.260
Prepaid meeting expenses 350 1,844
Rental - damage deposit 4150 4,050
Total prepaid expenses % 10.071 $ 14,154

Cardner Coombs
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r P.O.Box 29024
St. John's, NL AlA 5B5
i CA CBY P: 709.699.1135

E: brian@briantscammell.ca

BRIAN I, SCA

SSURANCE ALUATION 5; ADVISORY

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Directors of Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation NL

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation NL, which
comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2014 and the statements of income and fund balance and cash flow
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that | comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Credit Union

Deposit Guarantee Corporation NL as at December 31, 2014 and its financial performance and its cash flow for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

St. John's, NL
March 31, 2015 CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANT
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION NL
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2014

2014 2013
ASSETS
Cash 41,781 52,809
Marketable securities (Market value $7,100,110; 2013 -
$6,450,110) (Note 4) 7,100,110 6,450,110
Accounts receivable 500 614
Interest receivable 80,044 24,390
Harmonized sales tax recoverable 20,144 28,421
Prepaid expenses 442 441
Property, plant and equipment (Note 5) 12,494 11,864
7,255,515 6,568,649
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 545,815 530,825
FUND BALANCE 6,709,700 6,037,824
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 7,255,515 6,568,649

ON BEHALF OF TH%/)BOARD .
7 bl )
M/ a&émg // C?/)Mm’m-/ Director

A P
a2 bog, P e é’%\ Director
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION NL
Statement of Income and Fund Balance
Year Ended December 31, 2014

2014 2013
REVENUE
Assessments $ 1,555,732 $ 1,481,306
Bonding insurance 277,197 276,968
Interest 121,058 111,212
Other 800 1,150
1,954,787 1,870,636
EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 530,587 527,933
Insurance 224,707 224,010
Training 48,067 30,990
Rental 44,460 44,460
Meetings and conventions 38,867 31,880
Travel 27,554 38,824
Data access costs 13,630 13,228
Telephone 12,752 11,714
Office 12,610 11,469
Professional fees 11,661 10,793
Directors fees 9,725 7,830
Advertising and promotion 4,368 76,743
Amortization 3,526 3,391
982,514 1,033,265
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 972,273 837,371
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
Loss on disposal of assets (397) -
Assistance to credit unions (300,000) (300,000)
(300,397) (300,000)
NET INCOME 671,876 537,371
RETAINED EARNINGS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,037,824 5,500,453
RETAINED EARNINGS - END OF YEAR $ 6,709,700 $ 6,037,824
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION NL
Statement of Cash Flow
Year Ended December 31, 2014

2014 2013
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 671,876 $ 537,371
ltems not affecting cash:
Amortization of property, plant and equipment 3,526 3,391
Loss on disposal of assets 397 -
Interest revenue (121,058) (111,212)
554,741 429,550
Changes in non-cash working capital:
Accounts receivable 114 248
Interest received 65,404 154,439
Accounts payable 14,990 (158,001)
Prepaid expenses (1) (51)
Harmonized sales tax payable 8,277 3,729
88,784 364
Cash flow from operating activities 643,525 429,914
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4,670) (2,589)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 117 -
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 6,000,000 1,079,770
Purchase of marketable securities (6,650,000) (1,520,000)
Cash flow used by investing activities (654,553) (442,819)
DECREASE IN CASH FLOW (11,028) (12,905)
Cash - beginning of year 52,809 65,714
CASH - END OF YEAR $ 41,781 3 52,809
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION NL
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2014

1. REPORTING ENTITY

The Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation (the "Corporation") is established as a corporation
without share capital under the provisions of Section 133 of the Credit Union Act, 2009

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). The financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2014 were authorized for issue by the Corporation's Board of Directors
on March 31, 2015.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars which is the Corporation's functional
currency. They are prepared under the historical cost convention except for cash and cash
equivalents which are classified as available-for-sale.

Use of significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates, and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, and disclosures of contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the date of
these financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from estimates made in these financial statements.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS have a significant effect on these
financial statements. Outlined below are areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity,
or areas where assumptions are significant to the Corporation's financial statements:

a) Provisions

The amount recognized as accounts payable and accrued liabilities is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the related liability, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Management believes the
estimates used in preparing these financial statements are reasonable, Actual results in the future
may differ materially from those reported.

Assistance to credit unions, which is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, is
management's best estimate of the consideration required to settle the related liability, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

(continues)
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION NL
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2014

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(b) Economic lives of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and equipment based on
historical experience of the actual lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions, and reviews these estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Application of new and revised standards

In the current year, the Corporation applied the following new and amended IFRS issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") that are mandatorily effective for the year ended
December 31, 2014.

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The Corporation has applied the amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets for the first time in the current year. The amendments to IAS 36 remove the
requirement to disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit ("CGU") to which goodwill
or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had been allocated when there has been no
impairment or reversal of impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce
additional disclosure requirements applicable when the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is
measured at fair value less costs of disposal. These new disclosures include the fair value hierarchy,
key assumptions and valuation techniques used which are in line with the disclosure required by
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements.

The adoption of the new standard had no impact on the operations or reporting of the Corporation.
New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new standards, interpretations, amendments and improvements to the existing standards
have been issued by the IASB but are not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2014, and
have not been applied in preparing these financial statements:

(a) Financial instruments

In November 2009 and October 2010, the IASB issued IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments ("IFRS 9"),
Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. IFRS 9 will replace IAS
39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement ("IAS 39") in its entirety. IFRS 9 uses a
single approach to determine whether a financial asset or liability is measured at amortized cost or
fair value, replacing the multiple rules in IAS 39.

In November 2013, the IASB announced the completion of a package of three amendments to the
accounting requirements for financial statements set outin IFRS 9. The amendments are as follows:

o bring into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will allow entities to better
reflect their risk management activities in the financial statements;
o allow the changes to address the so-called 'own credit' issue that were already included in

IFRS 9 to be applied in isolation without the need to change any other accounting for financial
instruments; and

. remove the January 1, 2015 mandatory effective date of IFRS 9, to provide sufficient time for
preparers of financial statements to make the transition to the new requirements.

The Corporation is assessing the potential impact of these new amendments and standards.

{continues)
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION NL
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2014

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(b) Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation

The amendments to IAS 16 prohibit entities from using a revenue-based depreciation method for
property, plant and equipment.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.
Currently, the Corporation uses the straight-line and declining balance methods for depreciation of its
property, plant and equipment. Management of the Corporation believe that these methods are the
most appropriate to reflect the consumption of economic benefits inherent in the respective assets
and accordingly, management of the Corporation does not anticipate that the application of this
amendment to IAS 16 will have a material impact on the Corporation's financial statements.

(c) Revenue for Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use
in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.

Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognizes revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when “control" of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific

scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

IFRS 15 is applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, with earlier application
permitted. Management of the Corporation is assessing the potential impact of this new standard.
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION NL
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2014

3. OTHER SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash

Cash consists of balances with banks.
Financial instruments

Classification

A financial instrument is a contract that establishes a financial asset for one party and a financial
liability or equity instrument for the other party. All financial instruments have been classified either
based on the type of instrument or the Corporation's intention regarding the instrument, as described
below:

Held for Trading

Financial assets classified as held for trading are typically acquired for resale prior to maturity or
designated as held for trading.They are measured at fair value on the balance sheet date. Fair
value fluctuations including interest earned, interest accrued, gains and losses realized on
disposal and unrealized gains and losses are included in investment income. Cash and cash
equivalents have been classified as held-for-trading.

Financial liabilities designated as held for trading are those non-derivative financial liabilities that
the Corporation elects to designate on initial recognition as instruments that it will measure at fair
value through other interest expense.These are accounted for in the same manner as held for
trading assets.The Corporation has not designated any non-derivative financial liabilities as held
for trading.

Held to Maturity

Held to maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and a fixed maturity, other than loans and receivables, that an entity has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. These assets are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. The Corporation has classified its investments as held to maturity.

Available for Sale

Available for sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available for sale, or that are not classified as loans and receivables, held for trading, or held to
maturity. Except as mentioned below, available for sale financial assets are carried at fair value
with unrealized gains and losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income until
realized when the cumulative gain or loss is transferred to other income. Available for sale
financial assets that do not have quoted market prices in an active market are recorded at cost.
Interest on interest bearing available for sale financial assets is calculated using the effective
interest method. No financial assets have been classified as available for sale except for cash and
cash equivalents.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Amortized cost is a reasonable estimate of the fair value of these instruments.

(continues)
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION NL
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2014

3.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other Liabilities

Other liabilities, such as bank indebtedness and accounts payable and accrued liabilities, are
recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest method and include all financial liabilities
other than derivative instruments. Amortized cost is a reasonable estimate of the fair value of
these instruments

Transaction Costs
Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.
Fair Values

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount of consideration that would be agreed upon in
an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable willing parties who are under no compulsion to
act. Fair values are determined by reference to quoted bid or asking prices in an active market. In the
absence of an open market, the Corporation determines fair values based on internal or external
valuation models such as discounted cash flow analysis or using observable market-based inputs.

Effective Interest Method

The Corporation uses the effective interest method to recognize interest income or expense,
premiums or discounts earned or incurred for financial instruments.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Property, plant and
equipment are amortized over their estimated useful lives at the following rates and methods:

Computer equipment 30% declining balance method
Furniture and fixtures 20% declining balance method
Signage 20% declining balance method

The Corporation regularly reviews its property, plant and equipment to eliminate obsolete items.

Property, plant and equipment acquired during the year but not placed into use are not amortized until
they are placed into use.

Severance pay

Severance pay, which is included with accounts payable and accrued liabilities, is accrued for all
employees for whom the right to such compensation is vested.

Revenue recognition

The Corporation recognizes assessment revenue based on a percentage of insured deposits of
individual credit unions operating within the Province of Newfoundland & Labrador. Interest revenue
is recognized based on the investment interest collected and accrued during the year, and bonding
revenue is recognized based on a percentage of individual credit unions' assets plus a $60,000 fee
that is allocated to the Newfoundland and Labrador credit unions based on a pre-determined formula.

(continues)
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION NL
Notes to Financial Statements
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3. OTHER SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Assistance to credit unions
Assistance to credit unions is recorded only when it can be reasonably determined by the Corporation
that such a payment will be required and when the Board of Directors has assessed the
reasonableness of such a charge and authorized the assistance as a commitment of the Fund. The
determination of the assistance requires the exercise of judgement because the precise amount,
method and timing of such assistance is dependent on future events. The amount of actual
assistance paid and possible future assistance is disclosed in the financial statements.
Pension costs
Employees of the Corporation other than the Chief Executive Officer are included in the Public
Service Pension Plan of the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador. Contributions to the plans
are required from both the employees and the Corporation. The annual contributions for pension are
recognized in the accounts on a current basis. Contributions to this plan totalled $25,579 (2013-
$23,992).
The Corporation also contributed to a private registered retirement savings plan for the Chief
Executive Officer based on a percentage of his annual salary. Contributions to this plan totalled
$8,461 (2013 - $7,966)
Future income taxes
The liability method of tax allocation is used in accounting for income taxes. Under this method,
future tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial reporting
and tax basis of assets and liabilities, and measured using the substantially enacted tax rates and
laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.
4. MARKETABLE SECURITIES
2014 2013

Concentra Financial term deposit, 1.60%, maturing April 28,

2015 $ 1,100,000 $ -
Concentra Financial term deposit, 1.76%, matured April 9,

2014 - 5,000,000
Bank of Montreal term deposit, 1.76%, maturing April 10,

2015. 6,000,000 -
Concentra Financial term deposit, 1.67%, matured April 28,

2014 - 1,450,000
Newfoundland and Labrador Credit Union share 100 100
Concentra share 10 10

$ 7,100,110 $ 6,450,110
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION NL
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2014

5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2014
Computers Signage Furniture and Total
Fixtures
$ $ $ $
Cost
Balance, beginning of year 78,873 1,547 35,047 115,467
Additions 3,497 - 1,173 4,670
Disposals 515 - - 515
Balance, end of year 81,855 1,547 36,220 119,622
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance, beginning of year 73,787 433 29,383 103,603
Amortization expense 2,052 223 1,250 3,525
75,839 656 30,633 107,128
Net book value 6,016 891 5,587 12,494
2013
Computers Signage Furniture and Total
Fixtures
$ $ $ $
Cost
Balance, beginning of year 77,084 1,547 34,247 112,878
Additions 1,789 - 800 2,589
Disposals - - - -
Balance, end of year 78,873 1,547 35,047 115,467
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance, beginning of year 71,980 155 28,067 100,212
Amortization expense 1,797 278 1,316 3,391
Balance, end of year 73,787 433 29,383 103,603
Net book value 5,086 1,114 5,664 11,864
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6. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Corporation's objectives with respect to capital management are to safeguard the entity's ability
to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to operate as a deposit insurance provider for
the Newfoundland & Labrador credit unions, including the provision of stabilization funds as needed.

The Corporation defines its capital as the balance in the Deposit Guarantee Fund Balance; the
changes in this balance for 2014 are presented in the Statement of Income and Fund Balance.

7. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Corporation's financial instruments are comprised of cash, investments, receivables and
accounts payable.

Cash is reported at fair value on the balance sheet. Receivables and accounts payable are reported
at amortized cost which approximates fair value due to their short term nature. Investments are
reported at amortized cost using the effective interest method which approximates their fair value.

8. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Corporation is exposed to the following risks as a result of holding financial instruments: credit
risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The following is a description of those risks and how the
Corporation manages the exposure to them,

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a financial loss will occur due to the failure of a counterparty to discharge its
contractual commitment or obligation to the Corporation. Credit risk may arise principally through its
investments included in the Corporation's asset portfolio.

The Corporation manages this risk by making investments in accordance with the investment policy
established by the Board of Directors which permits the Corporation to invest in high quality, liquid
short-term investments. Equity investments are not permitted.

Market Risk

Market risk arises from changes in interest rates on investments in its portfolio that affect the
Corporation's net interest income. The Corporation's goal is to maximize its return on these portfolios,
without taking unreasonable risk and retaining a high degree of liquidity.

The Corporation manages this risk by investing in securities that are not susceptible to significant
changes in rates of return to the Corporation caused by changes in market values of the investments.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of having insufficient financial resources to meet the Corporation's funding
requirements.

The Corporation's liquidity policies and practices include the measurement and forecast of cash flows
and maintenance of a pool of high quality liquid assets.

9. COMMITMENTS

The Corporation has entered into a lease agreement for office space which expires December 31,
2016. The amount of the annual rent payable is $44,460 plus HST.
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10. INCOME TAXES
Credit union assessments and assistance are excluded from the calculation of taxable income.
The undepreciated capital cost for income tax purposes of the Corporation's depreciable assets
exceeds the net book value by $131,197.
The Corporation has the following non-capital losses available, listed by year of expiry, which can be
used to reduce future years' taxable income. The potential income tax benefits associated with these
items have not been recognized in the financial statements
2015 $ 362,558
2026 350,333
2027 255,907
2028 387,654
2029 434,292
2030 575,432
2031 654,705
2032 658,896
2033 631,274
2034 565,881
$ 4,876,932
11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Corporation's compensation, including the employers' portion of benefits, to key management
personnel in 2014, which are defined by IAS 24, Related Party Disclosures, as those persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Corporation,
including directors and management was $241,669 (2013 - $226,609).
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BUSSEY PORTER HETU

CERTIFIED GENERAL ACCOUNTANTS
Network member of

Porter Hetu Enternational

Professional Services Group

INDEPENDANT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Dairy Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dairy Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador which
comprise of the statement of financial position as at July 31, 2014 and the statement of operations and changes in
net assets and cash flow for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements:

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards excluding the PS 4200 series, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit invloves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Dairy

Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador as at July 31, 2014 and its financial performance and its cash flow for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards excluding the PS 4200 series.

g uss@f@#r # et

Bussey Porter Hétu
Cemﬁed General Accountants

Conception Bay South, Newfoundland
October 14, 2014

66 Indian Pond Estales
CBS,NL AIX 6P7
Professional Strength, Personal Service, Practical Solutions Phone: 709-747-3615 Fax: 709-240-1317
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Dairy Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the year ended July 31, 2014

Budget 2014 2013
Revenue
Market share quota (Note 5) - $13,172,883 §$14,310,725
Dairy Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador Board
levies 1,069,720 1,064,813 976,046
New entrants levy 155,000 150,885 149,529
Top up program 18,000 17,539 17,539
Government funding - special projects (Note 6) - 765,294 319,112
Special project income (Note 7) - 42,834 37,697
Other income - 15 1.950
1.242.720 15214263 15.812.598
Direct expenditures -
Market share quota (Note 5) - 13,172,883 14,310,725
Special project costs (Note 8) B 812,585 336,159
Fluid Milk Dairy Farmers of Canada promotion levy 200,000 208,887 64,813
Dairy Farmers of Canada ice cream promotion fund 50.000 52,463 48.248
250.000 14.246.818  14.759.945
992,720 967,445 1,052,653
Operating expenditures (page 9) 962,065 913.820 935.957
Excess of revenue over expenditures 30,655 53,625 116,696
Interest - - 2.624
Excess of revenue over expenditures 30.655 § 53.625 §  119.320
Net sssets, beginning of year $ 639,031 § 519,711
Excess of revenue over expenditures 53,625 119.320
Net assets, end of year $§ 692656 $ 639.031
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Dairy Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at July 31, 2014
2014 2013
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents § 567386 § 83967
Accounts receivable 2,357,073 2,647,315
HST Receivable 4,552 8,632
Prepaid expenses and deposits 23 831 10,100
2,952,842 2,750,014
Capital assets (Note 2) 4,102 4,640
$ 2956944 §2,754,654
LIABILITIES
Current
Payables and accruals $2.227,.358 $2.059,098
Accrued severance pay 32,828 51.885
2,260,186 2,110,983
NET ASSETS
Net assels 692,656 639,031

Investment in capital assets (Note 4)

4,102 4,640

696,758 643,671

$2956,944 $2,754,654

t— )

The accompanying notes form an integral par: of these financial suaiemerus.
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Dairy Farmers of Newfoundiand and Labrador
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended July 31, 2014

2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 53625 § 119,320
Items not requiring an outlay of cash:
Capital expenditures 955 670

54,580 119,990
Changes in non-cash working capital:

Deferred income

Receivables 294,322 122,736
Prepaid expenses (13,731) 8,139
Payables and accruals 168,260 (587,159)
Accrued severance pay (19,057) 11,303

(8.599)
484.374 (333.590)

Cash flows used in investing activities

Purchase of property. plant, and equipment (953) {670)

(955) {670)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 483,419 (334,260)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 83.967 418.227
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 567386 % 83967

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial siatements.
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Dairy Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended July 31, 2014

Dairy Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador principal activities are the collection of levies to provide
services to the dairy farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador and the buying and reselling of industrial
milk. The Board is a not-for-profit organization and is exempt from paying income tax under Section 149
of the Canadian Income Tax Act. They are a Commodity Board under the Natural Products Marketing
Act.

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB). The adoption
of these standards was effective January 1, 2012. Significant accounting policies adopted are outlined
below.,

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures during the
year. Significant areas of estimation include assumptions used in estimating amortization of tangible
capital assets, provisions for accrued liabilities, and in performing actuarial valuations of employee
future benefits. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Revenue recognition

Market share quota revenue including industrial milk, pooling charges, transportation and promotion
levy is recognized when milk is shipped out of province to dairies in New Brunswick and Nova Scotia.

Board levies are recognized on a monthly basis as earned from each of the dairy farmers.

Government funding for specific projects are recognized as the related expenses are incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and balances with banks. Bank borrowings are
considered to be financing activities.
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Dairy Farmers of Newfoundiland and Labrador
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended July 31, 2014

Capital assets

As non-financial assets, tangible capital assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are
held for use in the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and
are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are directly attributable to
acquisition, construction, development, or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual value, of the
tangible capital assets is amortized over their estimated useful lives on a declining balance basis.

Estimated useful lives and amortization methods are reviewed at the end of each year and adjusted on
a prospective basis, if necessary. The rates for significant classes of tangible capital assets are
indicated in note 2.

Severance pay

Severance pay is accounted for on a accrual basis and is calculated based upon years of service and
current salary levels, The right to receive severance pay vests with employees with five or ten years
(depending on contract) of continual service, and accordingly no provision has been made in the
accounts for employees with less than five years of continual service. The amount is payable when the
employee ceases employment with the Board.

. Capital assets

Accumulated Net Book Value
Rate Cost Amortization 2014 2013
Computer equipment 45% 3 10,830 § 9,887 § 944 $ 1,766
Furniture and equipment 20% 40,173 37.015 3.158 2.873

$ 51.003 § 46,902 § 4,102 § 4.640

. Bank indebtedness

The Board has an approved line of credit of $600,000 with the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce
at an interest rate of prime. As security the Board has provided a general security agreement providing
a first charge on all assets. At July 31, 2014, there was a balance of $nil (2013 - $nil) outstanding on
the line of credit.
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Dairy Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended July 31, 2014

4. Investment in capital assets

2014 2013

Balance, beginning of year
Capital expenditures
Depreciation

$ 4,640 § 5,966
955 670
(1.493) (1.996)

$ 41028 4640

5. Market share quota

Revenue
Industrial milk
Canadian Dairy Commissions pooling charges
Transportation
Dairy Farmers of Canada promotion levy

2014 2013

$10,572,656 $ 11,290,495
1,227,652 1,622,791
1,240,449 1,246,610

132,126 150.829

$13.172.883_$ 14.310.725

Direct expenditures
Industrial milk
Canadian Dairy Commissions pooling charges
Transportation
Dairy Farmers of Canada promoticn levy

$10,572,656 $ 11,290,495
1,227,652 1,622,791
1,240,449 1,246,610

132,126 150,829

$13.172,883 $14.310.725

6. Government funding - special projects

The Board received Government funding for the following projects:

2014 2013

Land Development Initiative

§ 750,000 § 286416

Government funding - 13,678
Profit profiler 15,294 13,745
Nutrient Management Planning - 5.273

$ 765294 $ 319.112
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Dairy Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended July 31, 2014

7. Special project income

2014 2013
DFC Annual Policy Conference - § 37697
Agritechnia $ 42834 -

$ 42834 §  37.697

8. Special project costs

2014 2013

Land Development Initiative § 750,088 § 286416
DFC Annual Policy Conference 2012 - 10,348
Cost of Production Update - 3,633
Agritechnia 44,504 -

Profit profiler 17,993 16,170
Nutrient Management Planning - 5,273
Atlantic John's Disease Initiative - 14319

1=

812585 $ 336.159

9. Commitments

The Board has commitments for the lease of office space and equipment for the next two years as
follows: 2015 - $24,639; and 2016 -$24,639.

Dairy Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador entered into an agreement with Government of Canada
for a research project for research in processing of cool climate silage maise. The project researched
the effects on chemical composition, voluntary intake, digestibility, rumen degradation and milk yield.

10. Contingency

For employment contracts prior to June 8, 2009 the board has a potential liability to pay approximately
$118,023 10 one employee for sick leave for 510.50 days if necessary

Effective June 8, 2009 employees are eligible to accumulate sick leave until retirement or termination

to a maximum of 90 days. Unused sick leave is not eligible for payment on retirement or termination,
nor can it be used as vacation.

257



Dairy Farmers of Newfoundland and Labrador
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended July 31, 2014

11.Capital management

The capital structure of the Board consists of investment in capital assets, and net assets. The primary

objective of the Boards' capital management is to provide adequate funding to ensure efficient delivery
of its services and activities to dairy farmers.

[nvestment in capital assets represents the amount of net assets that are not available for other purposes
because they have been invested.

Net assets are funds available for future operations and are preserved so that the Board can have
financial flexibility should opportunities arise in the future.

For the year end July 31, 2014, the Board has complied with all imposed capital restrictions.

12.Comparative figures

Comparative figures may have been restated to reflect the financial statement presentation adopted for
2014,
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Dairy Farmers of Newfoundiand and Labrador

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES
For the year ended July 31, 2014

Advertising

Board annual and semi-annual meetings
Capital expenditures

Conference and meetings

CDC audit fees

CQM initiatve payment

DFC membership and Balance Co.
Donations,dues and subscriptions
Equipment leasing

Eric Williams Memorial Scholarship
Federation of Agriculture
Insurance

Interest and bank charges

Milk testing

Miscellaneous

National cost of production study
Office supplies, postage and phone
Per diems and honorarium
Professional fees

Research

Repairs and maintenance

School Milk Foundation

Rent and utilities

Travel

Wages and benefits

Budget 2014 2013
$ 20,000 % 6,046 § 8,560
20,000 28,184 16,074
2,000 955 670
25,000 24,754 19,154
10,000 9,500 10,000
3,500 3,250 4,400
24,000 16,029
20,000 1,800 20,759
3,300 3,230 2,873
2,000 2,000
22,500 22,500 22,500
2,000 1,958 1,825
2,000 2,389 871
5,000 4,688 5,831
1,000 4,894 1,735
2,037
18,000 15,603 16,263
35,000 30,360 33,905
20,000 30,082 14,265
10,000 10,000 10,000
2,100 2,058 2,029
339,665 339,665 339,665
18,000 19,651 17,179

65,000 50,344 70,526
292,000 281,843 316,873

$ 962.065 3 913.820 $§ 935957

The accompanying rotes form an integral part of these financial statentents
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Independent Auditor’s Report (cont.)

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Director of Support Enforcement as at March 31, 2015, and its receipts and disbursements for the year then
ended in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 1 to these financial statements.

Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Use

Without modifying my opinion, I draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements, which describes the
basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared solely for the information of the Director of
Support Enforcement and the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador to meet their information needs
under Section 9 of the Support Orders Enforcement Act, 2006. As a result, the financial statements may not be
suitable for any other purpose. My report is intended solely for the use of the Director of Support Enforcement
and the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador and should not be used by anyone other than the specified
users.

TERRY PADDON, CPA, CA
Auditor General

June 12, 2015
St. John’s, Newfoundland and Labrador
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Eastern Regional Health Authority
March 31, 2015
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Eastern Regional
Health Authority [the “Authority”] as at and for the year ended March 31, 2015
have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are
management’s responsibility. Management is also responsible for all the notes to
the consolidated financial statements and schedules.

In discharging its responsibilities for the integrity and fairness of the consolidated
financial statements, management developed and maintains systems of internal
control to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are properly authorized
and recorded, proper records are maintained, assets are safeguarded, and the
Authority complies with applicable laws and regulations.

The Board of Trustees [the “Board”] is responsible for ensuring that management
fulfils its responsibilities for financial reporting and is ultimately responsible for
reviewing and approving the financial statements. The Board carries out this
responsibility principally through its Finance Committee [the “Committee”]. The
Committee meets with management and the external auditors to review any
significant accounting and auditing matters, to discuss the results of audit
examinations, and to review the financial statements and the external auditors’
report. The Committee reports its findings to the Board for consideration when
approving the financial statements.

The external auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, conducts an independent examination
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and expresses
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2015.

Gebfge Butt, CPA,CA Chris O’Grady, CPA,CGA
Vice President, Corporate Services Director of Financial Services
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of the
Eastern Regional Health Authority

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the
Eastern Regional Health Authority, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the consolidated statements of
operations and accumulated deficit, changes in net debt and cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Eastern Regional Health Authority as at
March 31, 2015 and the results of its operations, changes in its net debt and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector

accounting standards.
&wﬁ ¥ %w; LLp
St. John’s, Canada

June 25, 2015 Chartered Professional Accountants




Eastern Regional Health Authority

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at March 31
[in thousands of dollars]

2015 2014
$ $
Financial assets
Cash 20,734 -
Accounts receivable [note 3] 19,642 24,940
Due from government/other government entities /note 4] 87,081 107,910
Capital replacement reserve fund [nore 12] 719 704
Sinking fund investment /note 11] 16,447 14,969
144,623 148,523
Liabilities
Bank indebtedness — 2,771
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities /note 7] 119,855 107,087
Due to government/other government entities /nore 8] 11,217 25,788
Employee future benefits
Accrued sick leave [note 18] 59,304 59,654
Accrued severance pay [note 17] 110,852 110,841
Accrued vacation pay 49,938 47,779
Deferred contributions /note 9]
Deferred capital grants 83,732 80,190
Deferred operating contributions 16,323 20,883
Capital replacement reserve fund [note 12] 719 704
Long-term debt [note 10] 138,826 140,304
590,766 596,001
Net debt (446,143) (447,478)
Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets /note 5] 350,461 346,326
Supplies inventory 15,312 15,537
Prepaid expenses 4,805 4,916
370,578 366,779
Accumulated deficit (75,565) (80,699)

Contingencies [note 15]
Contractual obligations /note 16]
Operating facility [note 6]

See accompanying notes
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Eastern Regional Health Authority

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN NET DEBT
Year ended March 31
[in thousands of dollars]
Budget 2015 2014
$ $ $
[note 21]

Annual surplus (deficit) - 5,134 (4,350)
Changes in tangible capital assets
Acquisition of tangible capital assets — (38,903) (27,879)
Amortization of tangible capital assets — 34,768 43,334
(Increase) decrease in net book value of

tangible capital assets — (4,135) 15,455
Changes in other non-financial assets
Net decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses - 111 (823)
Net decrease (increase) in supplies inventory - 225 (140)
Decrease (increase) in other

non-financial assets — 336 (963)
Decrease in net debt e 1,335 10,142
Net debt — beginning of year - (447,478) (456,903)
Public Health Laboratory transfer — — (717)
Net debt — end of year — (446,143) (447,478)

See accompanying notes
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Eastern Regional Health Authority

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended March 31
[in thousands of dollars]

Operating transactions

Annual surplus (deficit)

Adjustments for:
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Capital grants
Increase (decrease) in accrued severance pay
Decrease in accrued sick leave

Net change in non-cash assets and liabilities related
to operations /note 13]

Cash provided by (used in) operating transactions

Capital transactions

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Tangible capital asset contributions
Cash used in capital transactions

Investing transactions
Sinking fund payments
Cash used in investing transactions

Financing transactions

Decrease in bank indebtedness
Repayment of long-term debt

Cash used in financing transactions

Net increase (decrease) in cash during the year

(Bank indebtedness) cash, beginning of year
Cash (bank indebtedness), end of year

Supplementary disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paid

See accompanying notes
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2015 2014
$ $

5,134 (4,350)
34,768 43,334
(38,903) (27,879)
1 (3,576)
(350) (3,783)
25,801 (16,422)
26,461 (12,676)
(38,903) (27,879)
38,903 27,879
(1,478) (1,463)
(T,478) (1,463)
(1,478) (2,528)
(1,478) (2,528)
23,505 (16,667)
(2,771) 13,896
20,734 2,770
9,271 9,348




Eastern Regional Health Authority

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015
[All amounts are in Canadian dollars, except amounts disclosed in tables, which are presented in
thousands of Canadian dollars]

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Eastern Regional Health Authority [“Eastern Health” or the “Authority™] is responsible for
the governance of health services in the Eastern Region of the Province of Newfoundland and
Labrador [the “Province”].

The mandate of Eastern Health spans the full health continuum, including primary and secondary
level health and community services for the Eastern Region [Avalon, Bonavista and Burin
Peninsulas, west to Port Blandford], as well as tertiary and other provincial programs/services for
the entire Province. The Authority also has a mandate to work to improve the overall health of the
population through its focus on public health as well as on health promotion and prevention
initiatives. Services are both community and institutional based. In addition to the provision of
comprehensive health care services, Eastern Health also provides education and research in
partnership with all stakeholders.

Effective April 1, 2013, the operations of the Public Health Laboratory [“PHL”] were transferred
to Eastern Health. PHL was not a separate legal entity; it was a component of the provincial
government of the Province. Prior to April 1, 2013, separate financial statements of PHL were
prepared. From April 1, 2013 onwards, the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses associated
with the operations and activities of PHL have been recorded by Eastern Health.

Eastern Health is a registered charity and, while registered, is exempt from income taxes.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards [“PSAS”] established by the Public Sector Accounting Standards
Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

Basis of presentation

These consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the
reporting entity, which is composed of all organizations that are controlled by Eastern Health.
These organizations are listed under basis of consolidation. Trusts administered by Eastern Health
are not included in the consolidated statement of financial position /note 14].

The Authority has also prepared separate non-consolidated financial statements for the operations
of the operating fund of Eastern Health.
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Eastern Regional Health Authority

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015
[All amounts are in Canadian dollars, except amounts disclosed in tables, which are presented in
thousands of Canadian dollars]

Principles of consolidation

The Authority controls the General Hospital Hostel Association [“GHHA™], Northwest Rotary
[“NWR”] — Janeway Hostel Corporation, Lions Manor Inc., TCRHB Housing Complex Inc.
[“TCRHB”], Blue Crest Cottages and Golden Heights Manor Cottages [“GHMC”] [together with
Eastern Health, collectively referred to herein as “Eastern Health” or the “Authority”]. These
entities were established to provide accommodations for family members of patients and housing
to senior citizens. These entities are consolidated in the consolidated financial statements. All
inter-entity assets and liabilities and expenses and revenues have been eliminated.

Revenue recognition

Provincial plan revenue without eligibility criteria and stipulations restricting its use are
recognized as revenue when the government transfers are authorized.

Government transfers with stipulations restricting their use are recognized as revenue when the
transfer is authorized and the eligibility criteria are met by the Authority, except when and to the
extent the transfer gives rise to an obligation that constitutes a liability. When the transfer gives
rise to an obligation that constitutes a liability, the transfer is recognized in revenue when the
liability is settled.

Medical Care Plan [“MCP”], inpatient, outpatient and residential revenues are recognized in the
period services are provided.

The Authority is funded by the Department of Health and Community Services [the
“Department”] for the total of its operating costs, after deduction of specified revenue and
expenses, to the extent of the approved budget. The final amount to be received by the Authority
for a particular fiscal year will not be determined until the Department has completed its review of
the Authority’s consolidated financial statements. Adjustments resulting from the Department’s
review and final position statement will be considered by the Authority and reflected in the period
of assessment, There were no changes from the previous year.

Other revenue includes dietary revenue, shared salaries and services, and rebates and salary
recoveries from Workplace, Health, Safety and Compensation Commission of Newfoundland and
Labrador [the “Commission”]. Rebates and salary recovery amounts are recorded once the
amounts to be recorded are known and confirmed by the Commission.

Expenses

Expenses are recorded on the accrual basis as they are incurred and measurable based on receipt of
goods or services and an obligation to pay.
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Fastern Regional Health Authority

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015
[All amounts are in Canadian dollars, except amounts disclosed in tables, which are presented in
thousands of Canadian dollars]

Asset classification

Assets are classified as either financial or non-financial. Financial assets are assets that could be
used to discharge existing liabilities or finance future operations and are not to be consumed in the
normal course of operations. Non-financial assets are acquired, constructed or developed assets
that do not provide resources to discharge existing liabilities but are employed to deliver
healthcare services, may be consumed in normal operations and are not for resale.

Cash

Cash includes cash on hand and balances with banks that fluctuate from positive to negative.

Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and replacement cost, determined on a first-in, first-out
basis.

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital asscts are recorded at historical cost. Certain tangible capital assets, including
buildings utilized by the Authority, are not reflected in these consolidated financial statements as
legal title is held by the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador [the “Government”]. The
Government does not charge the Authority any amounts for the use of such assets. Certain
additions and improvements made to such tangible capital assets are paid for by the Authority and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements of the Authority.

Contributed tangible capital assets represent assets that are donated or contributed to the Authority
by third parties. Revenue is recognized in the year the assets are contributed and have been
recognized at fair value as at the date of contribution.

Amortization is calculated on a straight-line or declining balance basis at the rates set out below.

It is expected that these rates will charge operations with the total cost of the assets less estimated
salvage value over the useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Land improvements 10 years
Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equipment 5 —7 years
Equipment under capital leases 7 — 10 years

Gains and losses on disposal of individual assets are recognized in operations in the period of
disposal.

Construction in progress is not amortized until the project is substantially complete at which time
the project costs are transferred to the appropriate asset class and amortized accordingly.
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Eastern Regional Health Authority

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015
[All amounts are in Canadian dollars, except amounts dlsclosed in tables, which are presented in
thousands of Canadian dollars]

Impairment of long-lived assets

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer contribute to
the Authority’s ability to provide goods and services, or when the value of future economic
benefits associated with the tangible capital assets is less than their net book value. The net write-
downs are accounted for as expenses in the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated
deficit throughout.

Capital and operating leases

A lease that transfers substantially all of the benefits and risks associated with ownership of
property is accounted for as a capital lease. At the inception of a capital lease, an asset and an
obligation are recorded at an amount equal to the lesser of the present value of the minimum lease
payments and the asset’s fair value. Assets acquired under capital leases are amortized on the same
basis as other similar capital assets. All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and the
payments are expensed as incurred.

Employee future benefits

Accrued severance

Employees are entitled to severance benefits as stipulated in their conditions of employment. The
right to be paid severance pay vests with employees with nine years of continual service with
Eastern Health or another public sector employer. Severance is payable when the employee ceases
employment with Eastern Health or the public sector employer, upon retirement, resignation or
termination without cause. The severance benefit obligation has been actuarially determined using
assumptions based on management’s best estimates of future salary and wage changes, employee
age, years of service, the probability of voluntary departure due to resignation or retirement, the
discount rate and other factors. Discount rates are based on the Province’s long-term borrowing
rate. Actuarial gains and losses are deferred and amortized over the average remaining service life
of employees, which is 14 years.

Accrued sick leave

Employees of Eastern Health are entitled to sick leave benefits that accumulate but do not vest.
Eastern Health recognizes the liability in the period in which the employee renders service. The
obligation is actuarially determined using assumptions based on management’s best estimates of
the probability of use of accrued sick leave, future salary and wage changes, employee age, the
probability of departure, retirement age, the discount rate and other factors. Discount rates are
based on the Province’s long-term borrowing rate. Actuarial gains and losses are deferred and
amortized over the average remaining service life of employees, which is 14 years.

Accrued vacation pay

Vacation pay is accrued for all employees as entitlement is earned.
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Eastern Regional Health Authority

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015
[All amounts are in Canadian dollars, except amounts disclosed in tables, which are presented in
thousands of Canadian dollars]

Pension costs

Employees are members of the Public Service Pension Plan or the Government Money Purchase
Plan [the “Plans”] administered by the Government. The Plans, which are defined benefit plans,
are considered multi-employer plans. Contributions to the Plans are required from both the
employees and Eastern Health. The annual contributions for pensions are recognized as an
expense as incurred and amounted to $43,319,353 for the year ended March 31, 2015 [2014 —
$38,848,645].

Sinking funds

Sinking funds established for the partial retirement of Eastern Health’s sinking fund debenture are
held and administered in trust by the Government.

Contributed services

Volunteers contribute a significant amount of their time each year assisting Eastern Health in
carrying out its service delivery activities. Due to the difficulty in determining fair value,
contributed services are not recognized in these consolidated financial statements.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are classified in one of the following categories: [i] fair value or [ii] cost or
amortized cost. The Authority determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial
recognition.

Senior unsecured debentures and other long-term debt are initially recorded at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Transaction
costs related to the issuance of long-term debt are capitalized and amortized over the term of the
instrument.

Cash and bank indebtedness are classified at fair value. Other financial instruments, including
accounts receivable, sinking fund investment, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, due to/from
Government/other government entities and long-term debt are initially recorded at their fair value
and are subsequently measured at amortized cost, net of any provisions for impairment.

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with PSAS requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the consolidated
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Areas requiring the use of management estimates include the assumptions used in the
valuation of employee future benefits. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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Eastern Regional Health Authority

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015
[All amounts are in Canadian dollars, except amounts disclosed in tables, which are presented in
thousands of Canadian dollars]

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consist of the following;:

2015

Past due
1-30 31-60 61-90  Over 90
Total Current days days days days

$ $ $ $ 3 3

Services to patients, residents

and clients 14,892 1,166 3,471 2,669 808 6,778
Other 7,694 748 i — — 6,946
Gross receivables 22,586 1,914 3,471 2,669 808 13,724
Less: impairment allowance 2,944 — — — — 2,944
Net accounts receivable 19,642 1,914 3,471 2,669 808 10,780

2014
Past due

1-30 31-60 61-90  Over 90
Total Current days days days days

$ $ $ $ $ $
Services to patients, residents
and clients 16,523 926 3,065 3,139 1,692 7,701
Other 11,858 4,340 — o — 7,518
Gross receivables 28,381 5,266 3,065 3,139 1,692 15,219
Less: impairment allowance 3,441 — — S e 3,441
Net accounts receivable 24,940 5,266 3,065 3,139 1,692 11,778

4. DUE FROM GOVERNMENT/OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

2015 2014

$ $
Government of Newfoundland and Labrador 80,061 105,249
Other government entities 7,020 2,661
87,081 107,910

Outstanding balances at the yearend are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash. For
the year ended March 31, 2015, the Authority has not recorded any impairment of receivables
relating to the above amounts [2014 — nil].
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Eastern Regional Health Authority

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015
[All amounts are in Canadian dollars, except amounts disclosed in tables, which are presented in
thousands of Canadian dollars]

5. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Equipment
Land and land Buildings and under capital Construction
improvements improvements  Equipment leases in progress Total
s s $ $ $ M)
2015
Cost
Opening balance 3,204 396,737 482,188 15445 39,389 936,963
Additions
(transfers) 155 32,898 32,873 — (27,023) 38,903
Closing balance 3,359 429,635 515,061 15,445 12,366 975,866
Accumulated
amortization
Opening balance 575 180,848 393,769 15,445 — 590,637
Additions 8 10,524 24,236 — — 34,768
Closing balance 583 191,372 418,005 15,445 — 625,405
Net book value 2,776 238,263 97,056 — 12,366 350,461
Equipment
Land and land  Buildings and under capital Construction
improvements improvements  Equipment leases in progress Total
$ $ $
2014
Cost
Opening balance 3,204 377,723 460,286 15,445 49317 905,975
Opening PHL — — 3,109 — — 3,109
Additions
(transfers) - 19,014 18,793 — (9,928) 27,879
Closing balance 3,204 396,737 482,188 15,445 39,389 936,963
Accumulated
amortization

Opening balance 568 160,650 368,030 15,445 — 544,693
Opening PHL — — 2,610 — — 2,610
Additions 7 20,198 23,129 — — 43,334
Closing balance 575 180.848 393,769 15,445 — 590.637
Net book value 2,629 215,889 88419 — 39,389 346,326

During fiscal 2014, certain building and equipment in the amount of $9,995,000 were no longer in
productive use due to conditions indicating that future economic benefits associated with the
underlying assets were less than the net book value. The write-down was included in amortization
expense.

283



Eastern Regional Health Authority

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015
[All amounts are in Canadian dollars, except amounts disclosed in tables, which are presented in
thousands of Canadian dollars]

6. OPERATING FACILITY

The Authority has access to lines of credit totalling $64,000,000 in the form of revolving demand
loans and/or bank overdrafts at its financial institution, which was unused as at March 31, 2015
[unused at 2014 — $64,000,000]. The Authority’s ability to borrow has been approved by the
Province’s Minister of Health and Community Services.

7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2015 2014
$ $
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 76,361 66,773
Salaries and wages payable 41,494 38,089
Employee/employer remittances 2,000 2,225
119,855 107,087
8. DUE TO GOVERNMENT/OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES
2015 2014
$ $
Federal government 2,625 11,826
Government of Newfoundland and Labrador 5,935 7914
Other government entities 2,657 6,048
11,217 25,788
9. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS
2015 2014
$ $
Deferred capital grants [a]
Balance at beginning of year 80,190 65,984
Receipts during the year 42,445 42,085
Recognized in revenue during the year (38,903) (27,879)
Balance at end of year 83,732 80,190
Deferred operating revenue |bj
Balance at beginning of year 20,883 12,910
Receipts during the year 1,268,435 1,252,090
Recognized in revenue during the year (1,272,995) (1,244,117)
Balance at end of year 16,323 20,883
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Eastern Regional Health Authority

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015
[All amounts are in Canadian dollars, except amounts disclosed in tables, which are presented in
thousands of Canadian dollars]

[a] Deferred capital grants represent transfers from Government and other government entities
received with associated stipulations relating to the purchase of capital assets, resulting in a
liability. These grants will be recognized as revenue when the related assets are acquired or
constructed and the liability is settled.

[b] Deferred operating revenue represents externally restricted Government transfers with
associated stipulations relating to specific projects or programs, resulting in a liability. These
transfers will be recognized as revenue in the period in which the resources are used for the
purpose specified.

10. LONG-TERM DEBT

2015 2014
$ $

Sinking fund debenture, Series HCCI, 6.9%, to mature on
June 15, 2040, interest payable semi-annually on June 15 and
December 15 [the “Debenture™]. 130,000 130,000

Royal Bank of Canada (Central Kitchen), 6.06% loan
matured in May 2014, payable in monthly instalments of
$101,670. — 208

Newfoundland and Labrador Housing Corporation
[“NLHC”] (Placentia Hecalth Centre), 2.75% mortgage,
maturing in December 2020, repayable in blended monthly
instalments of $18,216, secured by land and building with a
net book value of $2,536,678. 1,162 1,346

Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce loan, unsecured,
bearing interest at prime lending rate less 0.625 basis points,
maturing in August 2016, repayable in monthly instalments
of $21,200 plus interest. 358 612

NLHC (Inter Faith Citizens Home), 10% mortgage, maturing
in December 2028, repayable in blended monthly instalments
of $8,955, secured by land and building with a net book
value of $866,447. 815 841

NLHC (Access House) 2.40% mortgage, maturing in July
2020, repayable in blended monthly instalments of $1,022,
secured by property with a net book value of $50,477. 61 72

NLHC (GHHA) 1.67% first mortgage on land, building and
equipment, with a net book value of $1,218,955, maturing in
April 1, 2017, amortized to April 1, 2019, payable in blended
monthly instalments of $12,304. 582 720
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Eastern Regional Health Authority

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015

[All amounts are in Canadian dollars, except amounts disclosed in tables, which are presented in

thousands of Canadian dollars]

2015

2014

Royal Bank of Canada, 3.58% promissory note on land,
building and equipment with a net book value of $1,218,955,
maturing on June 1, 2016, amortized to May 24, 2021,
payable in blended monthly instalments of $7,447. 438

NLHC (NWR) 1.67% first mortgage on land and building,
with a net book value of $468,014, with an assignment of
rents and leases, maturing on June 1, 2018, amortized to
April 1, 2018, payable in blended monthly instalments of
$7,472. 269

NLHC (Lions Manor) 1.67% first mortgage on land and
building phase one, with a net book value of $978,156,
maturing in April 2017, amortized to October 2023,
repayable in blended monthly instalments of $6,077. 583

NLHC (Lions Manor) 1.67% first mortgage on land and
building phase two, with a net book value of $978,156,
maturing in April 2017, amortized to December 2026,
repayable in blended monthly instalments of $2,941. 376
NLHC (TCRHB) 1.67% first mortgage on land and building,
with a net book value of $276,650 maturing in April 2017,
amortized to December 2027, repayable in blended monthly
instalments of $2,008. 277
NLHC (Golden Heights Cottages) 2.61% first mortgage on
land and building with a net book value of $244,463, chattel
mortgage on equipment and an assignment of rents, maturing
and amortized to July 1, 2019, repayable in blended monthly
instalments of $5,397. 270
NLHC (Blue Crest) 1.64% first mortgage on land and
building, with a net book value of $479,801, maturing on
December 1, 2016, amortized to December 1, 2021,
repayable in blended monthly instalments of $3,743. 287
NLHC (Blue Crest) 2.26% first mortgage on land and
building with a net book value of $479,801, maturing on
August 1, 2016, amortized to May 1, 2021, repayable in
blended monthly instalments of $3,165. 218

510

354

645

405

296

328

327

251
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015

[All amounts are in Canadian dollars, except amounts disclosed in tables, which are presented in

thousands of Canadian dollars]

Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation [“CMHC”],
(Blue Crest Cottages), 8.0% mortgage, maturing in
November 2025, repayable in blended monthly instalments
of $7,777, secured by land and buildings with a net book
value of $2,805,738.

CMHC (Golden Heights Manor Seniors Home), 10.5%
mortgage, maturing in August 2027, repayable in blended
monthly instalments of $7,549, maturing in August 2027.
CMHC (Golden Heights Manor Seniors Home), 1.12%
mortgage, maturing in June 2023, repayable in blended
monthly instalments of $19,246.

Future principal repayments to maturity are as follows:

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter

11. SINKING FUND

2015

2014

674

636

1,820

712

660

2,017

138,826

140,304

$

1,309
1,187
1,112
1,061

905

133,252

138,826

A sinking fund investment, established for the partial retirement of the Debenture [note 10], is
held in trust by the Government. The balance as at March 31, 2015 included interest earned in the

amount of $5,981,612 [2014 — $5,251,000].

The semi-annual interest payments on the Debenture are $4,485,000. The annual principal
payment to the sinking fund investment until the maturity of the debenture on June 15, 2040 is

$747,500.

The semi-annual interest payments and mandatory annual sinking fund payments on the

Debenture are guaranteed by the Government.
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[All amounts are in Canadian dollars, except amounts disclosed in tables, which are presented in
thousands of Canadian dollars]

12. AGREEMENT WITH NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR
HOUSING CORPORATION
Effective June 2, 1997, Newfoundland and Labrador Housing Corporation [“NLHC”] assumed

responsibility for agreements previously administered by Canada Mortgage and Housing
Corporation.

With respect to the NLHC mortgages disclosed in note 10, the Authority has entered into an
agreement for mortgage interest subsidization with NLHC. Under the agreement, the Authority is
also required to fund $14,850 annually for capital replacement with the funds, including accrued
interest, to be deposited in either Government of Canada Bonds or a separate savings account.

13. NET CHANGE IN NON-CASH ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RELATED TO OPERATIONS

2015 2014
$ $

Accounts receivable 5,298 6,871
Supplies inventory 225 (140)
Prepaid expenses 111 (823)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 12,768 982
Accrued vacation pay 2,159 320
Deferred operating contributions (4,560) 7,973
Deferred capital grants 3,542 14,206
Due from/to government/other government entities 6,258 (45,694)
Public Health Laboratory cash flow change — (117)
25,801 (16,422)

14. TRUST FUNDS

Trusts administered by the Authority have not been included in the consolidated financial
statements as they are excluded from the Government reporting entity. As at March 31, 2015, the
balance of funds held in trust for residents of long-term care facilities was $4,220,965 [2014 —
$4,285,180]. These trust funds consist 0of a monthly comfort allowance provided to residents who
qualify for subsidization of their boarding and lodging fees.

15. CONTINGENCIES

A number of legal claims have been filed against the Authority. An estimate of loss, if any,
relative to these matters is not determinable at this time and no provision has been recorded in the
accounts for these matters. In the view of management, the Authority’s insurance program
adequately addresses the risk of loss in these matters.
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16. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The Authority has entered into a number of multiple year operating leases, contracts for the
delivery of services and the purchase of assets. These contractual obligations will become
liabilities in the future when the terms of the contracts are met. The table below relates to the
unperformed portion of the contracts:

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter
$ $ $ $ $ $
Future operating lease
payments 13,290 11,942 10,878 10,047 8,664 56,714
Managed print services 2,635 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 —
Vehicles 322 181 127 66 — —
16,247 14,123 13,005 12,113 10,664 56,714

17. ACCRUED SEVERANCE PAY

The Authority provides a severance payment to employees, as stipulated in their conditions of
employment, upon retirement, resignation or termination without cause. In 2015, cash payments to
retirees for the Authority’s unfunded employee future benefits amounted to approximately
$8,608,000 {2014 — $7,775,000]. The last actuarial valuation for both the accrued severance pay
and accrued sick leave was performed effective March 31, 2012, and an extrapolation of that
valuation has been performed to March 31, 2015.

The accrued benefit liability and benefits expense of the severance pay are outlined below:

2015 2014
$ $
Accrued benefit liability, beginning of year 110,841 113,947
Public Health Lab — 470
Benefits expense

Current service cost 7,362 7,700
Interest cost 4,298 4,118
Amortization of actuarial losses and other (3,041) (7,619)
119,460 118,616
Benefits paid (8,608) (7,775)
Accrued benefit liability, end of year 110,852 110,841
Current year benefit cost 7,362 7,701
Amortization of actuarial loss during the year 435 1,021
Benefits interest expense 4,298 4,118
Total expense recognized for the year 12,095 12,840
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015
[All amounts are in Canadian dollars, except amounts disclosed in tables, which are presented in
thousands of Canadian dollars]

The significant actuarial assumptions used in measuring the accrued severance pay benefit
expense and liability are as follows:

Discount rate — benefit 2.90% as at March 31, 2015
liability 3.90% as at March 31, 2014
Discount rate — benefit 3.90% in fiscal 2015
expense 3.60% in fiscal 2014
Rate of compensation 2% for 2014, 3% for 2015, and 3.25% thereafter plus 0.75% for
increase promotions and merit as at March 31, 2015

2% for 2014, 3% for 2015, and 3.25% thereafter plus 0.75for
promotions and merit as at March 31, 2014

18. ACCRUED SICK LEAVE

The Authority provides sick leave to employees as the obligation arises and accrues a liability
based on anticipation of sick days accumulating for future use. In 2015, cash payments to
employees for the Authority’s unfunded sick leave benefits amounted to approximately
$8,480,000 [2014 — $8,153,000]. The last actuarial valuations for both the accrued severance pay
and accrued sick leave were performed effective March 31, 2012, and an extrapolation of that
valuation has been performed to March 31, 2015.

The accrued benefit liability and benefit expense of the sick leave are outlined below:

2015 2014
$ $
Accrued benefit liability, beginning of year 59,654 63,307
Public Health Lab — 130
Benefits expense

Current service cost 6,117 6,277
Interest cost 2,280 2,250
Amortization of actuarial losses and other (267) (4,157)
67,784 67,807
Benefits paid (8,480) (8,153)
Accrued benefit liability, end of year 59,304 59,654
Current year benefits cost 6,117 6,277
Amortization of actuarial loss during the year 98 417
Benefits interest expense 2,280 2,250
Total expense recognized for the year 8,495 8,944
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March 31, 2015
[All amounts are in Canadian dollars, except amounts disclosed in tables, which are presented in
thousands of Canadian dollars]

Significant actuarial assumptions used in measuring the accrued sick leave benefit expense and
liability are as follows:

Discount rate — benefit 2.90% as at March 31, 2015
liability 3.90% as at March 31, 2014
Discount rate — benefit 3.90% in fiscal 2015
expense 3.60% in fiscal 2014
Rate of compensation 2% for 2014, 3% for 2015, and 3.25% thereafter plus 0.75% for
increase promotions and merit as at March 31, 2015

2% for 2014, 3% for 2015, and 3.25% thereafter plus 0.75% for
promotions and merit as at March 31, 2014

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Authority’s related party transactions occur between the Government and other government
entities. Other government entities are those who report financial information to the
Province. Transactions between the Authority and related parties are conducted as arm’s length
transactions.

Transfers from the Government are funding payments made to the Authority for both operating
and capital expenditures. Transfers from other related government entities are payments made to
the Authority from the Medical Care Plan and Workplace Health and Safety Compensation
Commission. Transfers to other related government entities are payments made by the Authority
to long term care facilities, Central Regional Health Authority, Labrador Regional Health
Authority and Western Regional Health Authority. Transactions are settled at prevailing markets
prices under normal trade terms.

The Authority had the following transactions with the Government and other government entities:

2015 2014

$ $
Transfer from the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador 1,275,763 1,215,089
Transfers from other government entities 86,722 87,819
Transfers to other government entities (107,995) (96,852)
1,254,490 1,206,056
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk

The Authority is exposed to a number of risks as a result of the financial instruments on its
consolidated statement of financial position that can affect its operating performance. These risks
include credit risk and liquidity risk. The Authority’s Board of Trustees has overall responsibility
for the oversight of these risks and reviews the Authority’s policies on an ongoing basis to ensure
that these risks are appropriately managed. The Authority is not exposed to interest rate risk as the
majority of its long-term debt obligations are at fixed rates of interest. The source of risk exposure
and how each is managed is outlined below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfil its payment
obligation. The Authority’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts receivable. Eastern
Health has a collection policy and monitoring processes intended to mitigate potential credit
losses. Management believes that the credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is not material.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Authority will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
become due. The Authority has an authorized credit facility [the “Facility”] of $64,000,000. As at
March 31, 2015, the Authority had $64,000,000 in funds available on the Facility [2014 —
$64,000,000]. To the extent that the Authority does not believe it has sufficient liquidity to meet
current obligations, consideration will be given to obtaining additional funds through third-party
funding or from the Province, assuming these can be obtained.

Interest rate risk

The Authority is exposed to interest rate risk with respect to its long-term debt because the fair
value of the debt will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. A change in the interest rate
on the long-term debt would have no impact on the financial statements since debt has a fixed rate
of interest and is measured at amortized cost.

21. BUDGET

The Authority prepares an initial budget for a fiscal period that is approved by the Board of
Trustees and the Government [the “Original Budget”]. The Original Budget may change
significantly throughout the year as it is updated to reflect the impact of all known service and
program changes approved by the Government. Additional changes to services and programs that
are initiated throughout the year would be funded through amendments to the Original Budget and
an updated budget is prepared by the Authority. The updated budget amounts are reflected in the
budget amounts as presented in the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated deficit

[the “Budget”].
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In addition to the impact of such service and program changes, the Original Budget and Budget
prepared by the Authority do not include a budget for the operations of the cottages and hostels, as
such amounts are not considered by the Authority to significantly impact decisions or the
allocation of resources. Further, the Original Budget and Budget do not include amounts relating
to certain non-cash and other items including tangible capital asset amortization, the recognition of
provincial capital grants and other capital contributions, adjustments required to the accrued
benefit obligations associated with severance and sick leave, and adjustments to accrued vacation
pay as such amounts not are required by Government to be included in the Original Budget or the
Budget. The Authority also does not prepare a full budget in respect of changes in net debt as the
Authority does not include an amount for tangible capital asset amortization or the acquisition of
tangible capital assets in the Original Budget or the Budget.

The following presents a reconciliation between the Original Budget and the final Budget as
presented in the Consolidation statement of operations and accumulated deficit for the year ended
March 31, 2015:

Revenue  Expenditures Annual surplus
$

$ $

Original Budget 1,286,736 1,286,736 —
Adjustments during the year for service and

program changes, net 83,116 83,116 —
Revised Original Budget 1,369,852 1,369,852 —
Stabilization fund approved by Government 18,021 18,021 —
Final Budget 1,387,873 1,387,873 —
22. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified from statements previously presented to
conform to the presentation adopted for the current year.
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23. EXPENSES BY OBJECT

This disclosure supports the functional display of expenses provided in the consolidated statement
of operations by offering a different perspective of the expenses for the year. The following
presents expenses by object, which outlines the major types of expenses incurred by the Authority
during the year.

2015 2014
$ $

Salaries 730,851 706,042
Supplies — other 261,938 234,587
Direct client costs 134,643 128,808
Employee benefits 121,567 106,296
Supplies — medical and surgical 59,019 62,826
Drugs 50,655 49,438
Amortization of tangible capital assets 34,768 42,556
Maintenance 20,977 22,317
Interest on long-term debt 9,276 9,354
Cottages and hostels operations 2,101 1,859
Total expenses 1,425,795 1,364,083
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Eastern School District
Non-Consolidated - Statement of Financial Position

As at August 31, 2013

August 31, 2013

June 30, 2013

$ 171,340,590

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash (Note 3) $ 18,866,111 $ 18,915,643
Short-term investments (Note 4) 926,133 921,814
Accounts receivable (Note 5) 200,628 201,303
Due from government entities (Note 6) 3,462,050 2,485,276
Restricted cash 4,839,992 4,912,061
Teachers' vacation pay receivable (Note 10) 39,687,741
28,294 914 67,023,838
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 9) 5,735,888 7,595,930
Long-term debt (Schedule 8 and 8A) 1,844,094 1,919,112
Obligation under capital lease (Note 12) 268,520 286,217
Accrued vacation pay (Note 10) 2,219,640 42,260,405
Employee future benefits
Accrued sick pay (Note 11) 55,265,609 65,320,477
Accrued severance pay (Note 11) 72,655,451 71,475,989
Other employee benefits 182,581 198,840
Deferred revenue (Note 17) 9,496,514 5,926,800
147,668,297 184,983,770
NET DEBT (119,373,383) _ (117,959,932)
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Prepaid expenses (Note 7) 338,123 344,256
Tangible capital assets (Schedule 7) 290,375,850 285,900,665
290,713,973 286,244,921
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
Accumulated surplus - restricted (Note 19) 1,370,659 1,370,659
Accumulated surplus - unrestricted 169,969,931 166,914,330

$ 168,284,989

Commitments (Note 13)
Contingent Liabilities (Note 16)

On Behalf of the Board:

J._ ca ot
» { Chairperson Treasurer
See accompanying notes to financial statements. B

S

297 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
MANAGEMENT CONSULTANT



Eastern School District
Non-Consolidated - Statement of Operations

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

Year Ended
Budget August 2013 June 2013
(Note 20)
Revenue
Provincial government grants (Schedule1) $ 10,183,058 $ 14,564,166 $ 422,132,807
Ancillary services (Schedule 1) 15,282 123,705 320,015
Miscellaneous (Schedule 1) 12,500 60,592 338,977
Capital transfers from government 5,819,757 35,307,107
10,210,840 20,568,220 458,098,906
Expenditures
Administration (Schedule 2) 1,480,776 1,163,691 7,931,335
Instruction (Schedule 3) 2,790,656 9,399,558 352,948,610
Operations and maintenance (Schedule 4) 5,231,695 4,121,908 36,963,917
Pupil transportation (Schedule 5) 696,959 323,579 23,950,239
Miscellaneous (Schedule 6) 85,810 112,104
Amortization of capital assets (Schedule 7) 2,273,687 15,282,129
Interest (Schedule 8A) 10,754 2,440 35,072
Special grant expense ) 141,946 1,866,192
$ 10,210.840 17,512,619 439,089,598
Annual surplus from operations 3,055,601 19,009,308
Transfer to restricted surplus
Annual surplus from operations - unrestricted $ 3,055,601 $ 19,009,308
$ 166,914,330 $ 147,905,022

Accumulated surplus - unrestricted, beginning of period

Annual surplus from operations - unrestricted

3,055,601

19,009,308

Accumulated surplus - unrestricted, end of period $ 169,969,931 $166,914,330

Accumulated surplus - restricted, beginning of period $ 1,370,659 $ 1,370,659
Annual surplus from operations - restricted

Accumulated surplus - restricted, end of period $ 1,370,659 $ 1,370,659

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Eastern School District

Non-Consolidated - Statement of Changes in Net Debt

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

Annual surplus from operations

Changes in tangible capital assets
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Gain on disposal of vehicle
Amortization of tangible capital assets

Increase in net book value of tangible capital assets

Changes in other non-financial assets
New change in prepaid expenses - increase/decrease

Increase in net debt
Net debt, beginning of period
Net debt, end of period

August 31, 2013

Year Ended
June 30, 2013

$ 3,055,601 $ 19,009,308
(6,748,872) (36,392,725)
11,122

2,273,687 15,282,129
(4,475,185) (21,099.474)
6,133 (20,067)
(1,413,451) (2.110,233)
(117.959,932) (115,849,699)
$(119.373,383)  $ (117.959,932)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Eastern School District
Non-Consolidated - Statement of Cash Flows

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Excess of revenue over expenditures
ltems not affecting cash:

Amortization of capital assets

Gain on disposal of vehicle

Accrued vacation pay

Accrued sick pay

Accrued severance pay

Other employee benefits liability
Increase in short-term investments
Decrease accounts receivable

Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditures - net

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from obligation under capital lease
Repayment of obligation under capital lease
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayment of long-term debt

Change in cash resources

Cash, beginning of period
Cash, end of period

Consist of:
Cash
Cash - restricted

Supplementary disclosure of cash flow information:

Interest paid
Interest paid - bussing loans

August 31, 2013

Year Ended
June 30, 2013

$ 3,055,601 $ 19,009,308
2,273,687 15,282,129
11,122
(40,040,765) 164,158
(54,868) (227,862)
1,179,462 3,778,311
(16,259) (67,122)
(4,319) (34,632)
38,611,642 3,470,464
6,133 (20,067)
1,709,672 672,938
6,719,986 42,038,747
(6.748,872) (36,392,725)
82,750
(17,697) (774,445)
457,044
(75,018) (477,869)
(92,715) (712,520)
(121,601) 4,933,502
23,827,704 18,894,202
$ 23,706,103 $ 23.827.704
$ 18,866,111 $ 18,915,643
4,839,992 4,912,061
$ 23,706,103 $ 23,827,704
$ 2,440 $ 35,072
10,178 64,746
$ 12,618 $ 99,818

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

300

B
SA

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
MANAGEMENT CONSULTANT

(



Eastern School District
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

Nature of Operations

The Eastern School District {the "District"] is responsible for the operations and maintenance of all schools in the
Eastern portion of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador. The District was formed August 31, 2004 after the
Government of Newfoundland and Labrador [the "Province"] dissolved four previous boards known as Vista School
District, Burin School District, Avalon West School District, and Avalon East School District.

1. Significant Accounting Policies

Except for the fact that these statements are non-consolidated, these non-consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, which for purposes of the District's
financial statements are represented by accounting recommendations of the Public Sector Accounting Board
["PSAB'] of CPA Canada, supplemented by other CPA Canada accounting standards or pronouncements.

These non-consolidated financial statements have, in management's opinion, been properly prepared within
reasonable limits of materiality and within the framework of accounting policies summarized below:

Basis of Presentation

These non-consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenditures of the District.
These non-consolidated financial statements have not been consolidated with those of other organizations
controlled by the District.

The District currently exercises control over corporations known as the Eastern Education Foundation Inc. and
Newfoundiand International Student Exchange Program Inc ["NISEP"].

The net assets of the Eastern Education Foundation Inc. as at December 31, 2012 were $259,328 in accordance
with the financial statements compiled by the corporation. The net assets of the NISEP as at August 31, 2013 are
recorded in Note 9 of these non-consolidated financial statements. Net funds generated from this corporation are to
be used for specific purposes and will be recognized as revenue in the District's financial statements when
approved by the NISEP Management Committee. The NISEP Board has received a directive from the Province to

wind up operations.

These non-consolidated financial statements do not include school based financial activities which would consist of
revenues, expenses and net assets controlled by school administration.

Revenue

The District's main source of funding is derived from the Government of Newfoundiand and Labrador, Department
of Education [the "Department']. The Department provides funding for operations, transportation, capital
expenditures and teacher salaries and severance pay. Funding is included in revenue on the accrual basis and
when the related expenditures have been incurred with the exception of funding for the teacher severance pay
which is recorded when the severance is paid to employees. Funding designated for specific purposes, for which
criteria has not been met, is deferred and included in revenue when all eligibility criteria have been met.

Restricted Surplus

The District received funding from the Province and external sources which has been restricted for specific
purposes in the future. Restricted funds have been recorded as revenue and transferred to restricted surplus for

the designated purpose.
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Eastern School District
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

1. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets assumed by the District on August 31, 2004, as a result of legislation passed pursuant to
the Schools Act, 1997 and the Education Act, were recorded based on the carrying values shown on the audited
financial statements of the predecessor entities.

Tangible capital assets are amortized using the straightline basis over their estimated useful lives, using the
following rates:

Buildings 25-60 years
Furniture and equipment 10 years
Service vehicles 5 years
Buses 12 years
Miscellaneous 5 years

Consistent with government policy, the District capitalizes items purchased during the year that are in the excess of
$15,000.

Teachers® and Student Assistants' Payroll

The Government of Newfoundland and Labrador processes the payrolls and remits the source deductions directly
to the appropriate agencies. The amounts recorded in the financial statements represent gross salaries and
employee benefits as reported by the Department for the year.

Pension Costs

All permanent employees of the District are covered by pension plans administered by the Province. Contributions
to these plans are required from both the employee and the District. Post retirement obligations to employees are
the responsibility of the Province and, as such, the employer contributions for pensions are recognized in the

accounts on a current basis.

Employee Future Benefits

The District's employee future benefits included accrued severance, accrued sick leave and other employee
benefits.

(i) accrued severance

Consistent with government policy, the District has in effect severance pay policies whereby certain employees are
entitled to a severance payment upon leaving employment with the District. Under these policies, an employee who
has nine (9) or more years of continuous service in the employment of the District or other public sector employer
is entitled to be paid severance on resignation, retirement, termination by reasons of disability, expiry of recall
rights or, in the event of death, to the employee's estate. The severance benefit obligation has been actuarially
determined using assumptions based on management's best estimate of future salary changes and other factors.

Discount rates are based on the Provinces' long-term borrowing rate.

Pursuant fo a directive issued by the Department during fiscal 1998, the District recorded a severance pay liability
for teachers in the District. The Schools Act, 1997 specifies that salaries and other compensation for teachers are
the responsibility of the Department. The District received written approval from the Minister of Education for the
deficit arising from the Department's requirement to record accrued teachers' severance. For employees other than
teachers, the District has set aside specific funds to assist with the severance liability in a separate bank account

for this purpose.
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Eastern School District
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

(ii) accrued sick leave

The District provides certain employees with sick leave benefits that accumulate but do not vest. The benefits
provided to employees vary based upon classification within the various negotiated agreements. An actuarially
determined accrued liability has been recorded on the statements for non-vesting sick leave benefits. The cost of
non-vesting sick leave benefits are actuarially determined using management's best estimate of salary escalation,
accumulated sick days at retirement, long term inflation rates and discount rates.

(iii) other employee benefits

The District has recorded the obligation to pay certain employees at the termination of their employment for unused
sick leave accumulated prior to January 1, 1985. As these benefits no longer accumulate or vest as of 1985 they
are outside of the scope of PS 3255, Post-employment benefits, compensated absences and termination benefits,

and are not actuarially determined at the end of each period.

Use of Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenditures during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment upon the occurrence of events or changes in circumstances
indicating that the value of the assets may not be recoverable.

2. Bond Coverage

At balance sheet date, the Insurance Division of Treasury Board carried fidelity bond coverage covering District
employees in the amount of $300,000 per occurrence.

3. Cash
August 31, 2013 June 30, 2013
112 Current bank account $ 18,828,946 $ 18,869,680
114 Teachers' payroll bank account 35,313 43,556
117 Other 1,852 2,407

$ 18,866,111 $ 18,915,643

4. Short Term Investments
August 31, 2013 June 30, 2013

$ 787,257 $ 787,090
138,876 134,724

$ 926,133 $ 921,814

121 Term deposits - restricted
122 Marketable securities

Term deposits relate to funds specifically allocated for educational purposes within the Province of Newfoundland
and Labrador. These amounts are not intended for general operations of the District.
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Eastern School District
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

5. Accounts Receivable

August 31, 2013

June 30, 2013

138 Interest $ 24,186 $ 22,189
139 Miscellaneous, travel advances and other 176,442 179,114
$ 200,628 3 201,303

6. Due from Government

August 31, 2013

June 30, 2013

231 Government of Newfoundland and Labrador $ 3,013,092 $ 2,006,354
232 Federal Government 448,958 478,922
$ 3,462,050 $ 2485276

7. Prepaid Expenses

August 31, 2013

June 30, 2013

141 Insurance $ 5,115 $ 15,688
142 Municipal service fees 158,913 238,359
144 Other 75,174 90,209
145 Rent 98,921

$ 338,123 3 344 256

8. Bank Indebtedness

The District had an authorized operating demand loan of $4,000,000, bearing interest at Royal Bank prime less
0.65% which was unused as at August 31, 2013 and June 30, 2013. In accordance with the Schools Act, 1997, the

operating demand loan was supported by a letter of approval to borrow provided by the Minister of Education.

9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

August 31, 2013

June 30, 2013

21 111 Trade payables $ 3,431,285 $ 4,198,898
112 Accrued liabilities 395,901 594,096
114 Wages 325,084 1,051,762
115 Payroll deductions 19,783 187,506
118 Other

Eastern School District Trust Fund 641,106 640,939
Scholarship funds 119,621 119,621
N.I.S.E.P. due to a related corporation 803,108 803,108

$ 5,735,888 3 7,595,930
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Eastern School District
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

10. Accrued Vacation Pay

11.

Pursuant to a directive issued by the Department during the fiscal year 2006, the District recorded the vacation pay
liability for teachers in the District. The liability relates to teachers' salaries earned during the school year but not
fully paid to teachers until subsequent to June 30. Accordingly, the District has recorded teachers' vacation pay

receivable of $Nil as at August 31, 2013, (June 30, 2013 - $ 39,587,741 )
' June 30, 2013

August 31, 2013

Vacation pay - teachers $ 39,587,741
Vacation pay - executive staff $ 562,206 466,536
Vacation pay - board employees 1,657,434 2,206,128
Total Accrued Vacation Pay $ 2219640 $ 42260405

Employee Future Benefits

The actuarial valuation date for sick leave and severance accrual was June 30, 2012 and has been extrapolated for
August 31, 2013 and June 30, 2013. PS 3255 implies that benefit obligations that are not funded in advance should
be valued using a rate referencing government's cost of borrowing. As the Sick Leave and Severance are not
funded in advance, the discount rate selected by Management is equal to the Provincial long term borrowing rate.
This rate was 4.15% as at August 31, 2013 and 3.91% as at June 30, 2013.

ACCRUED SEVERANCE

Severance Pay (Teachers)

Accrued benefit liability, beginning of period
Benefits Expense

Benefits Paid

Accrued benefit liability (Teachers), end of period
Severance Pay (Board Employees)
Accrued benefit liability, beginning of period

Benefits Expense
Benefits Paid

Accrued benefit liability (Board Employees), end of period

Total accrued severance pay liability, end of period
Unamortized portion of actuarial loss

Total accrued severance obligation

June 30, 2013

August 31, 2013

$ 66,418,559 $ 62,685,128
1,303,018 7,842,375
(98,573) (4,108,946)

67,623,004 66,418,559

5,057,430 5,012,550
94,564 570,540
(119,547) (525,660)
5,032,447 5,057,430
72,655,451 71,475,989
248 052 1,665,041
72,903,503 $ 73,141,030
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Eastern School District
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation from June 30, 2012 to June 30, 2013

Board Employees Teachers Total
Accrued benefit liability as at June 30, 2012 $ 5,303,718 $ 67,548,927 $ 72,852,645
Current period benefit cost 363,847 5,153,179 5,517,026
Benefits payments/contributions (5625,660) (4,108,946) (4,634,606)
Interest on the accrued benefit obligation 177,576 2,314,416 2,491,992
Actuarial (gains)/losses (169,581) (2,916,446) (3,086,027)

Accrued benefit obligation as at June 30,2013 $ 5,149,900 $ 67,991,130 $ 73,141,030

Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation from June 30, 2013 to August 31, 2013

Board Employees Teachers Total
Accrued benefit liability as at June 2013 $ 5,149,900 $ 67,991,130 $ 73,141,030
Current period benefit cost 59,175 832,543 891,718
Benefits payments/contributions (119,547) (98,573) (218,120)
Interest on the accrued benefit obligation 33,363 445 467 478,830
Actuarial (gains)/losses (82,670) (1,307,285) (1,389,955)

Accrued benefit obligation as at August 2013 $ 5040221 $ 67,863,282 $ 72,903,503

ACCRUED SICK LEAVE August 31, 2013 June 30, 2013

Sick Leave (Teachers)

Accrued benefit liability, beginning of period $ 52,798,114 $ 53,032,844
1,021,120 6,016,979

Benefit Expense

Benefits Paid (1,075,815) (6,251,709)
Accrued benefit liability (Teachers), end of period 52,743,419 52,798,114
Sick Leave (Board Employees)

Accrued benefits liability, beginning of period 2,522,363 2,515,495
Benefit Expense 66,731 395,655
Benefits Paid (66,904) (388,787)
Accrued benefit liability (Board Employees), end of period 2,522,190 2,522,363
Total accrued sick leave liability, end of period 55,265,609 55,320,477
Unamortized portion of actuarial loss 333,324 1,050,590

Total accrued sick leave obligation $ 55,598,933 $ 56,371,067

Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation from June 30, 2012 to June 30, 2013

Board Employees Teachers Total
Accrued benefit liability as at June 30, 2012 $ 2,630,856 $ 55,751,537 $ 58,382,393
Current period benefit cost 296,243 3,950,841 4,247,084
Benefits payments/contributions (388,787) (6,251,709) (6,640,496)
Interest on the accrued benefit obligation 87,876 1,856,438 1,944,314
Actuarial (gains)/losses (66,210) (1,496,018) (1,562,228)

Accrued benefit obligation as at June 30,2013 $ 2,559,978 $ 53,811,088 $ 56,371,067
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Eastern School District
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation from June 30, 2013 to August, 2013

Board Employees Teachers ' Total
Accrued beneéfit liability as at June 30, 2013 $ 2,559,978 $ 53,811,089 $ 56,371,067
Current period benefit cost 49,286 656,102 705,388
Benefits payments/contributions (66,904) (1,075,815) (1,142,719)
Interest on the accrued benefit obligation 16,625 49,302 365,927
Actuarial (gains)/losses (29,812) (670,918) (700,730)

Accrued benefit obligation as at August 31,2013 § 2,529,173 $ 53,069,760 $ 55,598,933

12. Obligation Under Capital Leases

13.

14.

15.

The District has entered into capital leases with the Royal Bank of Canada for various copiers and laptops. The
principal balance outstanding as at August 31, 2013 was $268,520 with a purchase option of $1. Interest has been
imputed at various rates for these leases. Total interest paid on these leases for the two month period was $1,790

(June 30, 2013 - $15,651).

Future minimum payments under these capital leases is as follows for the year ending in:

2014 $ 83,880
2015 76,267
2016 76,719

2017 48,637

Total future minimum lease payments 285,503
16,983

Less: amount representing interest 16983

$ 268,520

Lease Commitments

The District has entered a new three year premises lease effective June 1, 2013 for the following annual amounts,
before HST: year 1 - $1,044,207, year 2 - $1,044,207 and year 3 - $1,044,207.

Furthermore, the District is committed under the terms of various operating leases to make payments in the next
four years approximately as follows:

2014 $76,532
2015 $69,587
2016 $69,587
2017 $47,532

Financial Instruments

The District's financial instruments consist of cash, short-term investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
employee benefits payable and long term obligations. It is management's opinion that the District is not exposed to
significant interest rate risk, currency or credit risks arising from these financial statements.

The carrying value of the Districts financial instruments, with the exception of long-term receivables, approximate
fair values due to the short-term maturity and normal credit terms of those instruments. The long-term receivables

balance does not approximate fair value as it is non-interest bearing.

Insurance Subsidy

The cost of insuring school properties is incurred by the Provincial Government and no amount has been recorded
in these accounts to reflect this cost.
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Eastern School District
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

16.

17.

18.

19.

Contingent Liabilities

Site restoration and remediation costs associated with school properties under the District are charged to
operations as incurred. Estimated future site restoration and remediation costs have not been accrued in these
financial statements since the obligation, if any, is presently not determinable. Such costs are normally funded by

the Province.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents funding designated for specific purposes for which the revenue recognition criteria
has not been met. The funding is deferred and included in revenue when all eligibility criteria have been met.

Changes in the funding deferred to future periods are as follows:

Auqust 31, 2013

June 30, 2013

Balance, beginning of period $ 5,926,800 $ 6,107,302
L.ess amounts recognized as revenue in the period (149,663) (2,522,497)
Add amounts received during the period 3,719,377 2,341,995
Balance, end of period $ 9496514 $ 5926,800

Deferred revenue is comprised of the following:
August 31, 2013

June 30, 2013

Operations and maintenance $ 2571924 $ 1,174,676
Instruction 5,541,968 3,943,805
Administration 1,074,671 808,319
Pupil transportation 307,951

$ 9496514 $ 5,926,800

Accumulated Surplus

The District has an annual surplus of $3,055,601 for the 2 months ending August 31, 2013, which consist of the

following:

August 31, 2013

June 30, 2013

Annual surplus from operations - unrestricted $ 3,055,601 $ 19,009,308
Add: expenditures not funded through operating grant
Amortization 2,273,687 15,282,129
Change in employee future benefits accrual 991,928 3,550,448
Less: non expenditure items funded through operating grant
Principal payments on long-term debt and leases (92,715) (1,252,314)
Tangible capital asset additions (392,198) (545,824)
Less: capital transfers from government (5,819,757) (35,307,107)
Adjusted annual surplus from operations $ 16,546 $ 736,640

Restricted Surplus

In previous years, the Board of Trustees approved transfers totaling $1,370,659 to restricted equity for specified

capital purposes.
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Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

20. Budget

21.

The unaudited budget data presented in these non-consolidated financial statements is based upon the Board
approved budget for the two months ended August 2013. Capitalization of assets, amortization and accrued
severance and sick leave are not reflected in the budgeted amounts. The chart below adjusts the approved budget

to reflect the same basis of accounting.

Original budgeted revenues $ 10,210,840
Add: capital transfers from government 5,819,757
Revised budgeted revenues 16,030,597
Original budgeted expenditures 10,210,840
Add: amortization of tangible capital assets 2,273,687
Add: change in employee future benefits accrual 991,928
Revised budgeted expenditures 13,476,455
Original annual surplus (deficit)
Revised annual surplus (deficit) $ 2554142

Subsequent Events

Subsequent to August 31, 2013, the Eastern School District was amalgamated with the Western, Nova Central and
Labrador School Districts to form the Newfoundland and Labrador English School District. Effective September 1,

2013, the four Districts were combined and now operate as one school district.
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Eastern School District
Schedule 1
Current Revenues

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

Year Ended
Budget August 31, 2013 June 30, 2013
32 010 Provincial government grants
011 Regular operating grants $ 9,039,400 $ 5,860,086 $ 57,023,559
016 Special grants 142,575 1,859,707
017 Directors, Assistant Directors and Senior
Education Officers salaries and benefits 548,175 401,771 3,474,292
02.1 Teachers salaries and benefits 7,415,231 325,685,680
023 Student assistants salaries and benefits 47,994 9,170,793
031 Board owned pupil transportation 595,483 286,616 3,507,068
032 Contracted pupil transportation 17,167,579
033 Special needs pupil transportation 3,141,016
035 Maintenance grants 409,893 1,103,113
10,183,058 14,564,166 422 132,807
34 010 Ancillary Services
012 Revenues from bus charters 1,339 28,124
021 Revenues from rental of schools and facilities 15,282 28,532 141,469
034 Summer and night school fees 93,834 150,422
15,282 123,705 __ 320015
35 010 Miscellaneous
011 Interest on investments and bank 12,500 55,955 309,453
092 Sundry revenue 4,637 29,524
12,500 60,592 338977
Total Current Revenues $ 10,210,840 $ 14748,463 $ 422791,799
310

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
MANAGEMENT CONSULIANT

2



Eastern School District
Schedule 2
Administration Expenditures

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

Year Ended
Budget August 31, 2013 June 30, 2013
51 011 Directors, Assistant Directors and Senior

Education Officers salaries and benefits $ 548,175 $ 497,441 $ 3,506,045

012 Board office personnel salaries and benefits 469,120 319,398 2,622,322
013 Office supplies 19,667 17,105 79,882
014 Replacement furniture and equipment 15,683 29,817
015 Postage 10,833 19,859 32,367
016 Telephone 24,167 18,567 114,499
017 Office equipment rentals and repairs 2,667 853 10,012
018 Bank charges 284 1,892
019 Electricity 14,167 9,343 85,873
023 Repairs and maintenance 1,167 5,005
024 Travel 13,092 7,216 38,040
025 Board meeting expenses 23,333 14,261 178,122
027 Professional fees 100,000 68,375 257,372
028 Advertising and public relations 11,667 2,761 29,660
029 Membership dues (recovery) 21,667 (13,816) 111,911
031 Municipal service fees 1,417 4,286
032 Rental of office space 200,496 200,761 808,533
034 Professional development and meetings 3,558 1,283 15,697
Total Administration Expenditures $ 1480776 $ 1,163,691 $ 7931335
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Eastern School District
Schedule 3
Instruction Expenditures

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

52 010 Instructional Salaries

011 Regular Teachers

012 Substitute Teachers

013 Salaries and benefits - board employees
015 Employee benefits - teachers

016 Salaries and benefits - school secretaries
Salaries and benefits - IT staff

Salaries and benefits - program assistants
Salaries and benefits - student assistants
Change in employee future benefits accrual

52 040 Instructional Materials

041 General supplies
043 Other

52 060 Instructional Furniture and Equipment

061 Replacement

52 080 Instructional Staff Travel

080 IT travel

081 Program co-coordinators
082 Teachers' travel

083 Inservice and conferences

52 090 Other Instructional Costs

091 Postage and stationary

Total Instruction Expenditures

Year Ended
Budget August 31, 2013 June 30, 2013
$ 6,108,982 $ 266,694,273
186,150 14,071,846
$ 138,745 107,659 679,514
1,021,675 44,912,689
139,613 48,763 5,615,583
266,757 233,928 1,442,842
787 55,321
47,994 9,170,793
991,928 3,650,448
545115 8,747,866 346,093,309
2,149,072 619,445 5,897,265
2,102 95,802
2,149,072 621,547 5,993,067
7,167 278 41,555
7,644 10,113 71,126
31,441 14,117 476,369
35,620
38,000 5,637 196,369
77,085 29.867 779,484
12,217 41,195
2,790,656 9,399,558 352,948,610
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Eastern School District
Schedule 5
Pupil Transportation Expenditures

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

Year Ended
Budget August 31, 2013 June 30, 2013
54 010 Operation and Maintenance of Board
Owned Fleet
011 Salaries and benefits - administration $ 25,319 $ 21,275 $ 151,923
012 Salaries and benefits - drivers and mechanics 313,148 125,983 1,818,879
013 Payroll tax 1,840 32,060
014 Debt repayment- interest 12,333 10,178 64,746
015 Principal payments on bus loans 48,400
017 Gas and oil 88,333 16,169 458,171
018 Licenses 4,867 2,000 29,636
019 Insurance 5,817 6,374 38,253
021 Repairs and Maintenance - Fleet 48,300 66,896 289,502
022 Building 3,667 5,243 30,235
023 Tires and Tubes 10,932 10,155 58,261
024 Heat and Light 3,167 2,497 18,695
025 Municipal Service 217 ,
026 Snow Clearing 3,783 18,305
027 Office Supplies 1,700 4,054 6,841
029 Travel 2,000 1,323 10,035
031 Professional Fees 667
032 Miscellaneous 15,833 8,801 99,103
033 Telephone 7,000 6,239 46,782
595,483 289,127 3,171,427
54 040 Contracted Services
041 Regular transportation 17,079,813
042 Handicapped 3,141,016
047 Salaries 46,143 17,328 233,558
048 Travel 2,000 2,459 8,306
049 Non funded misc 4,982 150,000
050 Non funded equipment and expenses 45,000 4,192 127,252
051 Professional fees 8,333 5,491 38,867
Total Pupil Transportation Expenditures $ 696,959 $ 323,579 M
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Eastern School District
Schedule 6
Miscellaneous Expenses

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

55 032 Summer school and night school fees

57 011 Bad debt expense (recovery)

Total Miscellaneous Expenditures

Year Ended
August 31, 2013 June 30, 2013

$ 104,398 $ 150,421
(18,588) (38,317)
$ 85,810 $ 112,104
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Eastern School District
Schedule 7
Capital Assets

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

Cost Accumulated NBV NBV
August 31, Amortization August 31, June 30,
2013 2013 2013 2013
12 210 Land and Sites $ 10,125,077 $ 10,125,077 $ 10,125,077
12 220 Buildings
221 Schools 451,797,384 $ 178,425,543 273,371,841 269,342,548
222 Administration 5,620,567 2,331,256 3,289,311 3,299,674
223 Residential 10,000 1,633 8,367 8,400
225 Other 452,854 425114 27,740 28,261
457,880,805 _ 181,183,546 _ 276,697,259 _ 272,678,883
12 230 Furniture and Equip.
231 Schools 32,339,469 31,294,161 1,045,308 1,095,062
232 Administration 3,215,370 3,175,119 40,251
233 Residential 850 850
235 Other 27.648 27,648
35,583,337 34,497,778 1,085,559 1,095,062
12 240 Vehicles
241 Service vehicles 1,143,789 851,229 292 560 310,076
12 250 Pupil Transportation
252 Building 152,886 29,792 123,094 123,270
253 Buses 5,134,680 3,103,594 2,031,086 1,546,920
254 Service vehicles 59,383 59,383
5,346,949 3,192,769 2,154,180 1,670,190
12 260 Misc. Capital Assets
Computers 894 464 894,464
Tools 18,162 18,162
Water lines 29,151 7.936 21,215 21,377
941,777 920,562 21,215 21,377
Total Capital Assets $ 511,021,734 $ 220645884 $ 290,375.850 $ 285,900,665
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Eastern School District
Schedule 7A

Details of Capital Assets - Additions and Disposals

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

12 210 Land and Sites

12 220 Buildings
221 Schools
222 Administration
223 Residential
225 Other

12 230 Furniture and Equip.
231 Schools
232 Administration
233 Residential
235 Other

12 240 Vehicles
241 Service vehicles

12 250 Pupil Transportation
252 Building
253 Buses
254 Service vehicles

12 260 Misc. Capital Assets
Computers
Tools
Energy retrofit
Water lines

Total Capital Assets

Cost Cost
June 30, Additions Disposals August 31,
2013 2013 2013 2013
$ 10,125,077 $ 10,125,077
447,684,234 6,170,316 $ 2,057,166 451,797,384
5,620,567 5,620,567
10,000 10,000
452 854 452 854
453,767,655 6,170,316 2,057,166 457,880,805
32,339,469 32,339,469
3,173,731 41,639 3,215,370
850 850
27,648 27,648
35,541,698 41,639 35,583,337
1,143,789 1,143,789
152,886 152,886
5,727,879 536,917 1,130,116 5,134,680
59,383 59,383
5,940,148 536,917 1,130,116 5,346,949
894,464 894,464
18,162 18,162
5,834,303 5,834,303
29,151 29,151
6,776,080 5,834,303 941,777
$ 513294447 § 6748872 $  9.021,585 $ 511,021,734
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Eastern School District
Schedule 7B
Details of Capital Assets - Amortization

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

Accumulated Amortization Change in Accumulated
Amortization Amortization ondisposals Amortization Amortization
June 2013 2013 2013 2013 Augqust 2013
12 210 Land and Sites
12 220 Buildings
221 Schools $ 178,341686 $ 2,141,023 $ 2,057,166 $ 83,857 $ 178,425,543
222 Administration 2,320,893 10,363 10,363 2,331,256
223 Residential 1,600 33 33 1,633
225 Other 424,593 521 521 425114
181,088,772 2,151,940 2,057,166 94,774 181,183,546
12 230 Furniture and Equip.
231 Schools 31,244,407 49,754 49,754 31,294,161
232 Administration 3,173,731 1,388 1,388 3,175,119
233 Residential 850 850
235 Other 27,648 27,648
34,446,636 51,142 51,142 34497778
12 240 Vehicles
241 Service vehicles 833,713 17,516 17,516 851,229
12 250 Pupil Transportation
252 Building 29,616 176 176 29,792
253 Buses 4,180,959 52,751 1,130,116 (1,077,365) 3,103,594
254 Service vehicles 59,383 59,383
4,269,958 52,927 1,130,116 (1,077,189) 3,192,769
12 260 Misc. Capital Assets
Computers 894,464 894,464
Tools 18,162 18,162
Energy retrofit 5,834,303 5,834,303 (5,834,303)
Water lines 7,774 162 162 7,936
6,754,703 162 5,834,303 (5,834,141) 920,562
Total Capital Assets $ 227393782 $§ 2273687 $ 9021585 § (6,747.898) $ 220,645,884
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Eastern School District
Schedule 8
Long-Term Debt

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

August 31, 2013 June 30, 2013

211 Bank Loans

BMO unsecured loan, bearing interest at prime + 2.0%, repayable in
monthly installments of $9,443 plus interest, maturing September 2014.  $ 113,319 $ 132,205

221 Pupil Transportation Vehicle Bank Loans

BMO unsecured loan, bearing interest at prime + 2%, repayable in

blended monthly installments of $5,744, maturing July 2013. 6,311

BMO unsecured loan, bearing interest at prime + 2%, repayable in

blended monthly installments of $1,095, maturing May 2014. 10,951 13,141

BMO unsecured loan, bearing interest at prime + 2%, repayable in

monthly installments of $1,679 plus interest, maturing September 2014. 23,608 26,867

BMO unsecured loan, bearing interest at prime + 2%, repayable in

monthly installments of $3,910 plus interest, maturing June 2015. 86,029 93,850

BMO unsecured loan, bearing interest at 4.55%, repayable in blended

monthly instaliments of $4,393, maturing September 2015. 195,130 202,396

BMO unsecured loan, bearing interest at prime + 2%, repayable in

monthly installments of $4,336 plus interest, maturing May 2016. 143,086 161,758

RBC unsecured loan, bearing interest at 5.046%, repayable in

blended monthly installments of $4,320, maturing October 2018. 235,171 241,792

BMO unsecured loan, bearing interest at 3.59%, repayable in blended

monthly installments of $2,256, maturing September 2022. 209,580 212,823

RBC unsecured loan, bearing interest at 2.6%, repayable in blended

monthly instaliments of $3,759, maturing September 2023. 399,659 404,905

RBC unsecured loan, bearing interest at 3.02%, repayable in blended

monthly installments of $3,788, maturing September 2024. 427,661 433,064
Total Pupil Transportation Vehicle Bank Loans 1,730,775 1,786,907
Total Long-Term Debt $ 1844094 $ 1919112
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Eastern School District
Schedule 8A

Details of Long-Term Debt and Interest Expense

For the two months ended August 31, 2013

Long-Term Debt

Description

Equipment
Transportation

Total Loans

Annual principal payments

Annual principal payments to maturity are as follows:

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
Thereatfter

Interest Expense

Equipment
Energy management - capital lease

Total expense

Loans
Balance Obtained Principal Balance
Beginning During Repayment End of
of Year Year for Year Year
$ 132,205 $ $ 18,886 $ 113,319
1,786,907 56,132 1,730,775
$ 1919112 § $ 75018 $ 1,844,094
$ 518,385
$ 374,367
$ 307,700
$ 241,648
$ 160,149
$ 603,076

Auqust 31, 2013 June 30, 2013

$ 1,790 $ 15,650
650 19,422
$ 2,440 $ 35,072

Note: Interest expense related to bank loans for pupil transportation vehicles of $10,178 (June 30, 2013 - $64,746) is
included with Pupil Transportation Expenditures on schedule 5.
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Grant Thornton

Independent auditor’s report

Grant Thoriton LLP
Suile 300

15 Intemational Place
St John's, NL

AlA L4

T+1 7097788800
F+1 7097227892
www.GrantThomton.ca

To the Board of Directors of
Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2014, and the statements of
operations, change in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatoty information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is tesponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards fot not-fot-profit organizations, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
ate free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. Except as
explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and petform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves petforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedutes selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of matetial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circamstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Audit - Tax » Advisory
Grant Thornton LLP. A Canadlan Membet of Grant Thomton trtarmationat Lid
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GrantThornton

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Basis for qualified opinion

In common with many charitable otganizations, the Foundation derives its revenues from donations
and othet fundraising activitics, the completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit
verification. Accordingly, our verification of these tevenues was limited to the amount recorded in the
records of the Foundation. Therefore, we wete not able to determine whether any adjustments might
be necessaty to fundraising tevenue, excess of revenues over expenditures, and cash flows from
operations for the year ended Match 31, 2014, and current assets and net assets as at March 31, 2014.

Qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for qualified opinion
paragraph, the financial statements present faiely, in all material respects, the financial position of
Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Tnc. as at March 31, 2014, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations. '

?Wm 7%

St. John’s, Canada

September 25, 2014 Chartered accountants

Pudi« Tax« Advisory
Grand Thornton LEP. A Canadian Member of Grant Thomton Interssational Lud
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Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

Statement of Operations

Year Ended March 31
Operating  Restricted Operating  Restricted
Fund Fund Total Fuad Fund Total
2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013
Revenue
Annual giving $ 589,315 § 123,234 $ 712549 § 604,965 140,633 § 745,598
Mzjor gifts 255,300 2,630,592 2,885,892 119,500 1,352,309 1,471,809
Planned giving - 80,109 80,109 216,438 1,261,500 1,477,938
Special events 693,747 - 693,747 1,074,422 - 1,074,422
Hospital Home Lottery 3,112,840 - 3,112,840 - - -
Interest 54,435 10,687 65,122 38,277 6,017 44,294
4,705,637 2,844,622 7,550,259 2,053,602 2,760,459 4,814,061
Expenditures
Salaries and benefits 732,886 - 732,886 659,597 - 659,597
Annual giving 184,325 2,864 187,189 180,068 2,040 182,108
Major. gifits 6,382 - 6,382 24,057 - 24,057
Planned giving 376 - 376 - - -
Special events 168,472 - 168,472 194,002 - 194,002
Hospital Home Lottery 2,209,041 - 2,209,041 245,605 - 245,605
Administration 184,038 - 184,038 242,977 - 242,977
Communications 60,996 - 060,996 53,392 - 53,392
Amottization 10,188 - 10,188 8.876 - 8.876
3,556,704 2,864 3,559,568 1,608,574 2.040 1,610,614
Excess of revenue
over expenditures
befotre undernoted
item 1,148,933 2,841,758 3,990,691 445,028 2,758,419 3,203,447
Grants
Grants to Hastern
Health 184,593 3,011,581 3,196,174 40,039 2,854,764 2,894 803
Excess of revenue
over expenditures
{expenditures over
revenuc) $ 964,340 $ (169,823) $ 794,517 § 404,989 (96,345) $ 308,644

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

324



Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended March 31 2014

2013

Operating Resiricted

Fund Fund Total

Total

Net assets, beginning of year  $ 1,742,585 $ 1,163,578 $ 2,906,163

Excess of revenue ovet
expenditures (expenditures

¥ 2,597,519

over revenue) 964,340 (169,823) 794,517 308,644
Fund transfer (Note 8) (486,209) 486,209 - =
Net assets, end of year $ 2,220,716 $ 1,479,964 $ 3,700,680 § 2,906,163

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

Statement of Financial Position

Match 31, 2014

Operating  Restricted Operating  Restricted
Fund Fund Totatl Fund Fund Total
2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013
Assets
Curtent
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 3,293,179 $ 1,738,276 $ 5,031,455 2,738,642 § 1,217,120 § 3,955,762
Receivables 270,275 3,096 273,371 269,563 3,792 273,355
Prepaids 12,040 - 12,040 5,558 - 5,558
Other assets (Note 4) 180,518 - 180,518 271,899 - 271,899
3,756,012 1,741,372 5,497,384 3,285,662 1,220,912 4,506,574
Equipment (Note 5) 24.748 - 24,748 31.350 - 31,350
$ 3,780,760 $ 1,741,372 $ 5,522,132 3317012 § 1,220,912 § 4,537,924
Liabilities
Current
Payables and accruals § 204,592 $ 123 $ 204,715 238,046 § 23989 § 262,035
Deferred revenue 1,079,095 - 1,079,095 1,218,327 - 1,218,327
Due to Eastern Regional
Health Authority 201,804 261,285 463,089 48,947 33,345 82,292
Accrued severance and
vacation pay 74,553 - 74,553 09,107 - 69,107
1,560,044 261,408 1,821,452 1,574,427 57,334 1,631,761
Net Assets
Restricted net assets - 1,479,964 1,479,964 1,163,578 1,163,578
Untrestricted net assets 2,220,716 - 2,220,716 1,742,585 - 1,742 585
2,220,716 1.479.964 3,700,680 1,742,585 1,163,578 2.906.163
$ 3,780,760 $ 1,741,372 $ 5,522,132 $ 3,317,012 § 1,220912 $ 4,537,924

Commitment (Note 7)

Qn behalf of the Board

M« %XQM /“\T*
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Aj See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended March 31 2014 2013
Operating Restricted
Fund Fund Total Total
Increase (dectease) in cash and cash equivalents
Operating
Excess of revenue over
expenditures (expenditures
over tevenue) $ 964,340 $ (169,823) $ 794517 § 308,644
Amottization 10,188 - 10,188 8,876
974,528 (169,823) 804,705 317,520
Changes in non-cash operating
working capital (Note 6) 69,804 204,770 274,574 982,043
1,044,332 34,947 1,079,279 1,299,563
Investing
Purchase of equipment (3,586) - (3,586) (9,526)
Financing
Transfer of funds between
operating and testricted
funds (486,209) 486,209 - -
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents 554,537 521,156 1,075,693 1,290,037
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 2,738,642 1,217,120 3,955,762 2,665,725
End of yeat $ 3,203,179 $ 1,738,276 § 5,031,455 § 3,955,762

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

327



Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

Notes to the financial statements
Match 31, 2014

1. Nature of operations

The Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Tnc. (the “Foundation”) raises funds to mect the
financial needs of the Eastern Regional Health Authority for capital projects, equipment,
programs and reseatch directly related to the health and welfare of the people of Newfoundland
and Labtador, while promoting public awareness of these needs.

The Houndation is a registered charity and is exempt from income tax.

2. Summaty of significant accounting policies

Basis of presentation

These financial statements include all assets, liabilities, revenue and expenditures of the
Foundation. The Foundation has prepared these financial statements in accordance with
Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-Profit Organizations (ASNPO).

Joint venture

The Foundation patticipates in a joint fundraising event conducted jointly with another
organization wherein the Foundation has eatered intc an agreement that provides for specified
petcentage interest in the fundraising activities. 'The Foundation accounts for its intcrest in the
joint venture using the proportionate consolidation method.

Fund accounting
The Foundation employs fund accounting, classifying financial statement items in either the
operating ot restricted fund.

The operating fund provides funds to help suppott the St. Clare’s Mercy Hospital, General
Hospital - Health Sciences Centre, Dr. L.A. Miller Centre, Waterford Hospital and the Dr.
Walter Templeman Center.

The restricted fund consists of donations which ate gestricted by the donots to specific purposes
and which are recorded to teflect their designation.

Revenue eatned and expenses incurred in support of a fundraising event are recorded in the
opetating fund in accordance with the Foundation’s revenue recognition policies. Once an event
has been completed, 75% of the net tesults of the event are transferred to the restricted fund,
while 25% of the funds remain in the operating fund.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances with banks and shott term deposits
with original maturities of three months or less.

Equipment

Equipment is recorded at cost and amortized on a straight line basis over five years.
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Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2014

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

Other assets

Costs directy related to the development of the Hospital Home Lottery ate presented as other
asscts when the Foundation can reliably demoanstrate that there is a future economic benefit
associated with these costs. These costs will be expensed when the lottery is held in the next
fiscal yeat. Costs such as advertising and promotion are expensed immediately.

Deferred revenue

Revenue received during the year related to ticket sales or sponsotships for events taking place
subsequent to year end have been deferred and will be recognized when the event takes place,

Acctued vacation pay
Vacation pay is accrued for all employees as entitlement to these payments is earned.
Defetred compensation

Deferred compensation pay is accounted for on an acctual basis and is calculated based upon
years of service and curtent salary levels. Deferred compensation is only recorded in the accounts
for employees who have a vested right to receive such a payment. No provision for deferred
compensation is recorded in the accounts for any employec who has less than nine years of
service. Deferred compensation is payable when the employee ceases employment with the
Foundation.

Revenue recognition

The Foundation follows the restricted fund method whereby externally restricted contributions
are recognized as revenue in the fund corresponding to the purpose for which they were
contributed whean received or receivable and when collectability is reasonably assured.

Untestticted conttibutions, excluding donations, are recognized as tevenue when received or
receivable and when collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenue from donations, including pledges, and other fundraising activities is recognized in the
accounts of the Foundation in the year in which it is received.

Revenue from the joint venture fundraising event is recognized when collected plus an estimated
accrual based on subsequent receipts.

Revenue and expenses for the Hospital Home Lottety in the prior year are recorded on a gross
basis as the Foundation acted as the principal in the transactions.

Based upon the terms and conditions of the Lottery agreements, the Foundation assumed the
risks associated with the Lottery. As the Lottery was not completed during the current year,
revenue received as of year end has been deferred.
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Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2014

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

Due to the uncertainty surrounding the collectability of sponsotships, the Foundation recognizes
them when they are received, unless collectability is reasonably assured, in which case a
receivable is set up.

Duec to the uncertainty surtounding collectability of pledges, the Foundation recognizes only
those pledges for which amounts have been received at the date of the completion of financial
statements.

Donated materials and segvices

Donated matertal and services are recorded in the financial statements when the fair value of
these items can be reasonably estimated. The Foundation has recognized $43,634 (2013 -
$67,801) as donated materials and setvices during the year. These included ptizes for vatious
events.

Pension costs

Employees of the Foundation ate included in the Public Service Pension Plan and the
Government Money Purchase Plan administered by the Government of Newfoundland and
Labradot. Conh:ibutions to tl]C Plans arc thuil’cd ﬁ'orn both t]lc- cmployccs and ﬂ]c Foundzttion.
The annual contributions for pensions are recognized as an expenditure in the accounts on a
curtent basis. The total pension expense for the Foundation for the year was $35,546 (2013 -
$34,090).

PFinancial instruments

Initial measurement

The Foundation's financial instruments are measured at fair value when issued or acquired. For
financial instruments subsequently measured at cost or amortized cost, fair value is adjusted by

the amount of the related financing fees and transaction costs. Transaction costs and financing

fees relating to financial instruments that are measured subsequently at fair value are recognized
in operations in the year in which they are incurred.

Subsequent nreasurement

At each reporting date, the Foundation measutses its financial assets and liabilities at cost ot
amortized cost (less impairment in the case of financial assets). The Foundation uses the
effective interest rate method to amortize any premiums, discounts, transaction fees and
financing fees to the statement of operations. The financial instruments measured at amostized
cost are cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables and acctuals and amounts due to
Eastern Regional Health Authotity.

For financial asscts measured at cost or amortized cost, the Foundation regulatly assesses
whether thete are any indications of impairment. If there is an indication of impairment, and the
Foundation determines that there is a significant adverse change in the expected timing or
amount of future cash flows from the financial asset, it recognizes an impairment loss in the
statement of operations. Any reversals of previously recognized impairment losses are recognized
in operations in the year the reversal occurs.
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Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

Notes to the financial statements
Match 31, 2014

3. Risk management

'The Foundation’s policy for managing significant tisks includes policies, procedures, and
oversight designed to reduce the risks identified to an appropuiate threshold. The Board of
Directors is provided with timely and relevant reports on the management of significant risks.
Significant risks managed by the Foundation include liquidity and credir risks.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity tisk is the risk that the Foundation will be unable to meet its contractual obligations
and financial liabilities. 'The Foundation manages liquidity risk by monitoring its cash flows and
ensuting that it has sufficient cash available to meet its obligations and liabilities.

Credit risk

Credit tisk is the sisk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfill its payment
obligations. 'The Foundation’s ctedit risk is attsibutable to receivables. Management believes
that the credit risk concentration with tespect to financial instruments included in receivables is
remote.

4. Other assets

Priot to Match 31, 2014, the Foundation committed to cartying out the spring 2014 Hospital
Home Lottery {the "Home Lottery"), which was held in May 2014. As at March 31, 2014,
revenue of $1,072,095 (2013 - §1,200,227) received during the year associated with the 2014
Home Lottery has been deferred and recorded on the Statement of Financial Position. Costs of
$180,518 (2013 - $271,899) incusred duting the year ended March 31, 2014 have been included in
other assets on the Statement of Financial Position and will be expensed when the lottery is held.
Advertising and promotional costs of $177,261 (2013 - 245,605) incurred duting the year have
been recognized under the Hospital Home Lottery expense on the Statement of Operations. The
revenue and remaining expenses of the 2014 Home Lottery will be recorded in the financial
statements for the year ending March 31, 2015.

5. Equipment 2014 2013
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost  Ameortization Value Value

Furniture and equipment $ 46,435 § 25396 § 21,039 % 27,787
Computer equipment 29,340 25,631 3,709 3.563

$ 75775  § 51,027 § 24,7148 § 31,350
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Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2014

6. Supplemental cash flow information 2014 2013
Operating Restticted
Fund Fund Total Total
Change in non-cash
operating working capital

Receivables (712) 696 (16) $ (17,399
Prepaids (6,482) - (6,482) 7,718
Other assets 91,381 - 91,381 (271,899)
Payables and accruals (33,454) (23,866) (57,320) 44,398
Deferred revenue (139,232) - (139,232) 1,201,427
Due to Fastern Regional

Health Authority 152,857 227,940 380,797 1,329
Accrued vacation pay 5,446 - 5,446 16,469

$ 69,804 § 204,770

$ 274,574 § 982043

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

Balance with bank — Hospital Home Lottery

Balance with bank — Bust-a-Move (Foundation’s 50% pottion)
Balance with bank and cash on hand

Balance with bank (restricted)

$ 1,019,423 § 946,929

102,017 157,023
2,171,738 1,634,690
1,738,276 1,217,120

$ 5,031,454 § 3955762

7. Commitment

The Foundation is committed to minimum annual payments in the next two years under a lease

agrecment for office space as follows:

2015 § 51,129
2016 § 34,086
8. Fund Transfer

Funds are transferred from the operating fund to the restricted fund to ensure proper
segregation of funds related to specific Boatd-approved initiatives and programs. For the year
ended March 31, 2014, $486,209 (2013 - $996,710) was transfetred from the operating fund to

the restricted fund.
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Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2014

9. Joint venture

During the year, the Foundation participated in the Bust-a-Move event which was a joint venture
with Dr. . Bliss Murphy Cancer Cate Foundation Newfoundland and Labrador Inc. Both
organizations had a 50% interest in the fundraising event. Accordingly, the Foundation includes
its share of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses in the financial statements. The following is a
summary of the financial position and opexsating results of the Bust-a-Move event as at March 31,
2014, and the Foundation’s proportionate share.

2014 2013
2614 Proportionate 2013  Proportionate
Total Share Total Share
Assets

Cash $ 204,033 $ 102,017 §$ 314046 $ 157,023
Receivables 27,745 13,872 82,607 41,303
Prepaid - - . .
231,778 115,889 396,653 198,326

Liabilities
Accounts payables 35,562 17,781 211,725 105,862
Net assets 196,216 98,108 184,928 92,464

$ 23,778 $ 115889 § 396,653 § 1983206
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Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

Notes to the financial statements

March 31, 2014
9. Joint venture (cont’d.)
2014 2013
2014  Propottionate 2013 Proportionate
Total Share Total Share
Revenue
Patticipants pledges 226,191 113,096 239,450 119,725
Sponsorships 95,060 47,500 100,000 50,000
Other 2,797 1,398 7,094 3,547
323,988 161,994 346,544 173272
Expenses
Advestising and promotion 37,706 18,853 46,184 23,092
Bank account fees 19,517 9,758 15,877 7,939
Cateting 1,283 642 1,079 539
Cominittee suppott - - 1,500 750
Contract services 1,500 750 - -
Entertainment 32,566 16,283 26,455 13,228
License 10,000 5,000 10,000 5,000
Miscellaneous 5,196 2,598 5,323 2,661
Office supplies 298 149 316 158
Printing 1,000 500 3,509 1,755
Prizes 100 50 1,125 562
Professional fees 2,500 1,250 3210 1,605
Salaty 10,000 5,000 45,000 22,500
Audio visual 18,562 9,281 - -
Venue tentals 83,472 4,236 8,551 4.275
148,700 74,350 168,129 84,064
Excess of revenue
over expenditures $ 175,288 $ 87,644 178,415 b 89,208
Net assets, beginning of year $ 184,928 $ 92,464 150,513 75,256
Disbursements 164,000 82,000 144,000 72,000
20,928 10,464 6,513 3,256
Excess of revenue
over expenses 175,288 87,644 178415 89,208
Net assets, end of year $ 196,216 § 93,108 184,928 92,464
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Grant Thornton

Independent auditot’s report

Grant Thornton LLP
Suite 300

15 Intemetional Place
St John's, NL
AACLE

T +1 709778 8800
F+1 7097227892
www. GrantThomton.ca

To the Boatd of Ditectors of
Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.,
which comptise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the statements of
operations, change in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from matesial misstatement, whether due to ftaud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to exptess an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. Except as
explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian genetally
accepted auditing standatds. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and petform the audit to obtain teasonable assurance about whethes the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves petforming procedutes to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
errot. In making those tisk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in ordet to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of exptessing an opinion on the effectivencss
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Augit« Tox « Advisory
Gramt Thoenten LLP. A Canadisn Member of Grast Thomiten Entednational Ltd
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¥ GrantThornton

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Basis for qualified opinion

In common with many charitable and not-fot-profit organizations, the Foundation derives revenue
from donations and fundraising activities, the completeness of which is not susceptible to
satisfactoty audit vetification. Accordingly, verification of these revenues was limited to the
amounts recorded in the records of the Foundation. Therefore, we were not able to determine
whether any adjustments might be necessary to revenue, excess of revenue over expenditures, and
cash flows from operations for the yeats ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, assets as at March 31,
2015 and 2014, and nct asscts as at April 1, 2014 and 2013 and Match 31, 2015 and 2014. Our audit
opinion on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2014 was modified accordingly
because of the possible effects of this limitation in scope.

Qualified opinion

In our apinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for qualified opinion
paragtaph, the financial statements present fairly, in all matetial tespects, the financial position of
Health Cate Foundation of St. John’s Tnc. as at March 31, 2015, and the tesulis of its operations
and its cash flows fot the yeat then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations.

§;..¢—7Zm (P

St. John’s, Canada

September 24, 2015 Chartesred accountants

Audit + Tax « Advisory
Grart Thomias LLP. ACanadiar Member of G:an Ttombon intmational Lid
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Health Cate Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

Statement of Operations

Year Ended March 31
Operating  Restricted Operating  Restricted
Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Total
2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
Revenue
Annual giving $ 378,042 $ 175,285 $ 553,327 589,315 $§ 123234 § 712,549
Major gifts 255,875 2,928,449 3,184,324 255,300 2,630,592 2,885,892
Planned giving - 138,606 138,606 - 80,109 80,109
Special events 756,709 - 756,709 693,747 - 693,747
Hospital Home Lottery 3,154,500 - 3,154,500 3,112,840 - 3,112,840
Interest 51,491 40,226 91,717 54,435 10,687 65,122
4,596,617 3.282.566 7,879,183 4,705,637 2,844 622 7,550,259
Expenditutes
Salaries and benefits 656,382 - 656,382 732,886 ~ 732,886
Annual giving 122,436 2,529 124,965 184,325 2,864 187,189
Major gifts 22,091 - 22,091 6,382 - 6,382
Planned giving 2,557 - 2,557 376 - 376
Special events 216,235 - 216,235 168,472 - 168,472
Hospital Home Lottery 2,351,354 - 2,351,354 2,209,041 - 2,209,041
Administration 205,939 - 205,939 184,038 - 184,038
Communications 83,719 - 83,719 60,996 - 60,996
Amortization 11,008 - 11,008 10,188 - 10,188
3,671,721 2,529 3,674,250 3,556,704 2.864 3,559,568
Excess of revenue
over expenditures
before undernoted .
item 924,896 3,280,037 4,204,933 1,148,933 2,841,758 3,990,691
Grants
Grants to Eastern
Health 50,000 __ 3,682,924 3,732,924 184,593 3,011,581 3,196,174
Bxcess of revenue
over expenditures
(expenditutes over
revenuc) $ 874,896 $ (402,887) $ 472,009 § 964,340 $§ (169,823) § 794,517

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended March 31 2015 2014
Opetating Restricted
Fund Fund Total Total

Net assets, beginning of year  $ 2,220,716  § 1,479,964  $ 3,700,680 § 2,906,163
Excess of revenue aver

expenditures {expenditures

over revenue) 874,896 (402,887) 472,009 794,517
Fund transfer (Note 8) (571,323) 571,323 - -
Net assets, end of year $ 2,524,289 § 1,648,400 $ 4,172,689 § 3,700,680

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.
Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2015

Operating  Restricted Operating ~ Restricted
Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Total
2015 2015 _ 2015 2014 2014 2014
Assets
Cutrent
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 3,385,565 $ 1,890,075 $ 5,275,640 § 3,293,179 § 1,738276 § 5,031,455
Receivables 199,901 14,446 214,347 270,275 3,096 273,371
Prepaids 21,274 - 21,274 12,040 - 12,040
Other assets (Note 4) 140,287 - 140,287 180,518 - 180,518
3,747,027 1,904,521 5,651,548 3,756,012 1,741,372 5,497,384
Equipment (Note 5) 18,316 - 18316 24,748 24,748
$ 3,765,343 $ 1,904,521 $ 5,669,864 $ 3,780,760 § 1,741,372 § 5,522,132
Liahilities
Cutrent
Payables and accruals $ 122,053 $ 2121 $ 124174 § 204592 § 123 § 204,715
Defetted tevenue 971,640 - 971,640 1,079,095 - 1,079,095
Due to Eastern Regional
Health Authority 57,199 254,000 311,199 201,804 261,285 463,089
Accrued severance and
vacation pay 90,162 - 96,162 74,553 - 74,553
1,241,054 256,121 1,497,175 1,560,044 261,408 1,821,452
Net Assets ‘
Restricted net assets - 1,648,400 1,648,400 - 1,479,964 1,479,904
Untrestricted net assets . 2,524,289 - 2,524,289 2,220,716 - 2,220,716
2,524,289 1,648,400 4,172,689 2,220,716 1,479,964 3,700,680

$ 3,765,343

$ 1,904,521 $ 5,669,864 $ 3,780,760 $ 1741372 $ 5522,132

Commitment (Note 7)

TN

e [
Director ;

Director

On behalf of the Boajé,_,.q\&
,N;\; VAN
i
}

See accompanying notes to @t{ancial statements.
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Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Bnded March 31 2015 2014

Operating Restricted
Fund Fund Total Total

Increase (dectease) in cash and cash equivalents

Operating
Excess of revenue ovet
expenditures (expenditutes

over revenue) $ 874896 $ (402,887) $ 472,009 § 794,517
Amottization 11,008 - 11,008 10,188
885,904 (402,887) 483,017 804,705
Changes in non-cash operating
working capital (Note 6) (217,619) {16,637) (234,256) 274,574
668,285 (419,524) 248,761 1,079,279
Investing
Purchase of equipment (4,576) - {4,576) (3,586}
Financing

Transfer of funds between
operating and restricted

funds (571,323) 571,323 - -
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents 92,386 151,799 244,185 1,075,693

Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of yeat 3,293,479 1,738,276 5,031,455 3,955 762
End of yeat $ 3,385,565 $ 1,890,075 $ 5275640 § 5031455

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2015

1 Nature of operations

'T'he Health Care Foundation of St. John's Inc. (the “Foundation”) raises funds to meet the
financial needs of the Eastern Regional Health Authority for capital projects, equipment,
programs and research directly telated to the health and welfate of the peaple of Newfoundland
and Labradot, while promoting public awateness of these needs.

The Foundation is a registered charity and is exempt from income tax.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of presentation

"I'hese financial statements include all assets, liabilities, revenue and expenditutes of the
Foundation. The Foundation has prepared these financial statements in accordance with
Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-Profit Organizations (ASNPO).

Joint venture

"The Foundation participates in a joint fundraising event conducted jointly with another
organization wherein the Foundation has entered into an agreement that provides for specified
percentage interest in the fundraising activities. The Foundation accounts for its interest in the
joint venture using the proportionate consolidation method.

Fund accounting
The Foundation employs fund accounting, classifying financial statement items in either the

operating or restricted fund.

The operating fund provides funds to help support the St. Clate’s Mercy Hospital, General
Hospital - Health Sciences Centre, Dr. L.A. Miller Centre, Waterford Hospital and the Dr.
Walter Templeman Centre.

The restricted fund consists of donations which are restricted by the donots for specific
pusposes and which are tecorded to reflect their designation.

Revenue earned and expenses incurred in support of a special event are recorded in the operating
fund in accordance with the Foundation’s tevenue recognition policies. Once an event has been
completed, 75% of the net results of the event ate transferred to the restricted fund, while 25%
of the funds remain in the opetating fund.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances with banks and short term deposits
with otiginal matutitics of three months or less.

Equipment

Equipment is recorded at cost and amortized on a straight line basis over fve years.
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Health Catre Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2015

2. Summaty of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

Other assets

Costs directly related to the development of the Hospital Home Lottety are presented as other
assets when the Foundation can teliably demonstrate that there is a futute economic benefit
associated with these costs. These costs will be expensed when the lottery is held in the next
fiscal yeat. Costs such as advertising and promotion are expensed immediately.

Deferted revenue

Revenue received duting the year related to ticket sales or sponsorships for events taking place
subsequent to year end have been defested and will be recognized when the event takes place.

Severance and vacation pay
Severance and vacation pay is accrued for employees as entitlement to these payments is carned.
Deferred compensation

Defetred compensation pay is accounted for on an accrual basis and is calculated based upon
yeats of setvice and cugrent salary levels. Deferred compensation is only recorded in the accounts
for employees who have a vested tight to receive such a payment. No provision for deferred
compensaton is recorded in the accounts for any employee who has less than nine years of
setvice. Deferted compensation is payable when the employee ceases employment with the
Foundation.

Revenue recognition

The Foundation follows the testricted fund method whereby externally restticted contributions
are recognized as tevenue in the fund corresponding to the putpose for which they wete
contributed when received ot teceivable and when collectability is reasonably assured.

Untestricted contributions, excluding donations, are recognized as revenue when received ot
receivable and when collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenue from donations, including pledges, and other fundraising activities is recognized in the
accounts of the Foundation in the year in which it is received.

Revenue from the joint venture fundraising event is recognized when collected plus an estimated
accrual based on subsequent receipts.

Revenue and expenses for the Hospital Home Lottety in the ptiot yeat ate tecorded on a gross
basis as the Foundation acted as the principal in the transactions.

Based upon the terms and conditions of the Lottexy agreements, the Foundation assumed the
tisks associated with the Lottery. As the Lottety was not completed during the current year,
revenue teceived as of year end has been deferred.
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Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc.

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2015

2. Summaty of significant accounting policies (cont’d.}

Due to the uncettainty suttounding the collectability of sponsorships, the Foundation recognizes
them when they are received, unless collectability is reasonably assured, in which case a
receivable is recorded.

Due to the uncertainty surrounding collectability of pledges, the Foundation recognizes only
those pledges for which amounts have been teceived at the date of the completion of financial
statements.

Donated materials and services

Donated material and setvices are recorded in the financial statements when the fair value of
these items can be reasonably estimated. The Foundation has recognized $68,626 (2014 -
$43,634) as donated matetials and services during the year. These included prizes for vatious
events.

Pension costs

Employees of the Foundation ate included in the Public Service Pension Plan and the
Government Money Purchase Plan administered by the Government of Newfoundland and
Labradot. Contributons to the plans are required from both the employees and the Foundation.
The annual contributions for pensions are recognized as an expenditute in the accounts on a
current basis. ‘The total pension expense for the Foundation for the year was $38,275 (2014 -
$35,546).

Financial instroments

Luitial measurement

The Foundation's financial instraments are measured at fair value when issued or acquired. For
financial instruments subsequently measused at cost or amottized cost, faie value is adjusted by

the amount of the related financing fees and transaction costs. Transaction costs and financing

fees relating to financial instruments that ate measuted subsequently at fair value ate recognized
in operations in the yeat in which they are incurred.

Subsequent measurement

At each reporting date, the Foundation measures its financial assets and liabilities at cost ot
amostized cost (less impaitment in the case of financial assets). The Foundation uses the
effective intetest rate method to amottize any premiums, discounts, transaction fees and
financing fees to the statement of operations. The financial instruments measured at amostized
cost are cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables and accruals and amounts due to
Eastern Regional Health Authority.

For financial assets measured at cost or amortized cost, the Foundation regularly assesses
whether there are any indications of impairment. If there is an indication of impairment, and the
Foundation detetmines that therc is a significant adverse change in the expected timing or
amount of futute cash flows from the financial asset, it recognizes an impairment loss in the
statement of opetations. Any reversals of previously recognized impairment Josses are recognized
in operations in the vear the teversal occuts.
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3. Risk management

The Foundation’s policy for managing significant risks includes policies, procedures, and
ovessight designed to reduce the risks identified to an apptropriate threshold. The Boatrd of
Directots is provided with timely and relevant reports on the management of significant risks.
Significant tisks managed by the Foundation include liquidity and credit risks.

Liguidity visk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Foundation will be unable to meet its contractual obligations
and financial liabilities. 'The Foundation manages liquidity risk by monitoring its cash flows and
ensuring that it has sufficient cash available to meet its obligations and liabilities.

Credif risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a countexparty’s inability to fulfill its payment
obligations. The Foundation’s credit risk is attributable to receivables. Management believes
that the credit risk concentration with respect to financial instruments included in receivables is
remote.

4, Qther assets

Prior (o March 31, 2015, the Foundation committed to carrying out the spring 2015 Hospital
Home Lottery (the "Home Lottery"), which was held in May 2015. As at March 31, 2015,
revenue of $942,140 (2014 - $1,072,095) received during the year associated with the 2015 Home
Lottety has been deferred and recorded on the Statement of [financial Position. Costs of
$140,287 (2014 - $180,518) incurred during the year ended March 31, 2015 have been inchuded in
other assets on the Statement of Financial Position and will be expensed when the lottery is held.
Advettising and promotional costs of $112,878 (2014 -- 177,261) incurred during the year have
been recognized undet the Hospital Home Lottery expense on the Statement of Operations. The
revenue and remaining expenses of the 2015 IHome Lottery will be recorded in the financial
statements for the yeat ending Maich 31, 2016.

5. Equipment 2015 2014

Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost  Amortization Value Value

Futniture and equipment $ 48,847 ) 35102  §$ 13,745 § 21,039
Computer equipment 31.504 26,933 4,571 3,709

$ 80,351 § 62,035 % 18,316  $ 24,748
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6. Supplemental cash flow information 2015 2014
Operating Restricted
Fund Fund Total Total
" Change in non-cash
operating working capital
Receivables 70,374  §  (11,350) 8 59,024 § (16)
Prepaids (9,234) - (9,234) (6,482)
Other assets 40,231 - 40,231 91,381
Payables and accruals (82,539) 1,998 (80,541) (57,320)
Deferred tevenue (107,455) - (107,455) (139,232)
Due to Eastern Regional
Health Authority (144,605) (7,285) (151,890) 380,797
Accrued vacation pay 15,609 - 15,609 5,446
@17,619) §  (16637) § (234256) §$ 274,574

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following;

Balance with bank — Hospital Home Lottery

Balance with bank — Bust-a-Move (Foundation’s 50% portion)

Balance with bank and cash on hand

Balance with bank (testticted)

$ 889,845
8,971
2,486,749
1,890,075

$ 5,275,640

$ 1,019,423
102,017
2,171,738
1,738,276

$ 5031454

7. Commitment

"I'he Foundation is committed to minimmum annual payments in the next year under a lease
agreement for office space as follows:

2016

$ 34,086

8. Fund Transfer

Funds are transferred from the operating fund to the testricted fund to ensutre proper
segregation of funds related to specific Board-approved initiatives and programs. For the year
ended March 31, 2015, §571,323 (2014 - $486,209) was transferred from the operating fund to

the restricted fund.
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9. Joint venture

In 2014 the Foundation participated in the Bust-a-Move event which was a joint venture with
Dr. H. Bliss Murphy Cancer Care Foundation Newfoundland and Labtados Inc. Both
organizations had a 50% intetest in the fundraising event. The Bust a Move event was not held
in 2015. As a result, the activity in 2015 was minimal with the exception of the disbursement of
funds to each organization of $87,000.

The Foundation includes its shate of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses in the financial
statements. The following is a summary of the financial position and operating results of the
Bust-a-Move event as at March 31, 2014 and 2015, and the Foundation’s proportionate share.

2015 2014
2015 Proportionate 2014 Proportionate
Total Share Total Shate
Assets

Cash $ 17,942 $ 8,971 § 204033 § 102,017
Receivables 2,706 1,353 27,745 13,872
Prepaid 4,343 2,172 - -
24,991 12,496 231,778 115,889

Liabilities
Accounts payables 2,500 1,250 35,562 17,781
Net assets 22.491 11.246 196.216 98,108

$ 24,991  § 12496 § 231,778 § 115889
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9. Joint venture (cont’d.)
2015 2014
2015  Propottionate 2014 Proportionate
Total Share Total Share
Revenue
Patticipants pledges $ - % - % 226,191 § 113,09
Sponsorships - - 95,000 47,500
Other 1,344 672 2,797 1,398
1,344 672 323,988 161,994
Expenses
Advertising and promotion 847 424 37,706 18,853
Bank account fees 26 13 19,517 9,758
Catering - - 1,283 642
Contract services - - 1,500 750
Eatertainment - - 32,566 16,283
License - - 10,000 5,000
Miscellaneous 196 98 5,196 2,598
Office supplies - - 298 149
Printing - - 1,000 500
Prizes - - 100 50
Piofessional fees - - 2,500 1,250
Salaty - - 10,000 5,000
Audio visual - - 18,562 9,281
Venue rentals - - 8472 4,236
1,069 535 148,700 74,350
Excess of revenue
over expenditures $ 275 $ 137 § 175,288  § 87,644
Net assets, beginning of year $ 196,216  § 98,108 § 184928 § 92,464
Disbursements 174,000 87,000 164,000 82,000
22,216 11,108 20,928 10,464
Iixcess of revenue
over expenses 275 137 175,288 87,644
Net assets, end of ycar $ 22491 3 11,245 § 196,216 § 98,108
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Independent Auditor’s Report (cont.)

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinion.

Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the

Heritage Foundation of Newfoundland and Labrador as at March 31, 2015, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

—AM

TERRY PADDON, CPA, CA
Auditor General

September 28, 2015
St. John’s, Newfoundland and Labrador
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Labrador-Grenfell
Regional Health Authority as at and for the year ended March 31, 2015 have
been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are
management’s responsibility. Management is also responsible for all the notes to
the consolidated financial statements and schedules.

In discharging its responsibilities for the integrity and fairness of the consolidated
financial statements, management developed and maintains systems of internal
control to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are properly authorized
and recorded, proper records are maintained, assets are safeguarded, and the
Authority complies with applicable laws and regulations.

The Board of Trustees [the “Board”] is responsible for ensuring that management
fulfils its responsibilities for financial reporting and is ultimately responsible for
reviewing and approving the consolidated financial statements. The Board carries
out this responsibility principally through its Audit Committee [the “Committee”].
The Committee meets with management and the external auditors to review any
significant accounting and auditing matters, to discuss the results of audit
examinations, and to review the consolidated financial statements and the external
auditors” report. The Committee reports its findings to the Board for
consideration when approving the consolidated financial statements.

The external auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, conducts an independent examination
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and expresses
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,

2015.

; /f’ ’ ‘///, j .
; / ey - ) //
4 AT R / /‘“Lm_w,_ _.

:/Rfyrf‘h&orman Tony Wake}}ém
Board Chair Chief Executive Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of the
Labrador-Grenfell Regional Health Authority

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the
Labrador-Grenfell Regional Health Authority, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the
consolidated statements of operations and accumulated surplus (deficit), changes
in net debt, and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Labrador-Grenfell Regional Health

Authority as at March 31, 2015 and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting

standards.
&u.uut ¥ ;4&07/ AL
St. John's, Canada

September 12, 2015 Chartered Professional Accountants
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Labrador — Grenfell Regional Health Authority

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at March 31

2015 2014
$ $
Financial assets
Cash 885,105 840,870
Restricted cash [note 3] 1,702,545 1,692,826
Accounts receivable [note 5] 29,906,907 20,656,204
Inventories for resale 916,436 880,020

33,410,993 24,069,920

Liabilities
Bank overdraft [note 4] 2,172,939 2,219,117
Demand credit facility /note 4] 14,970,000 —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities /note 6] 12,872,606 10,811,980
Accrued vacation pay and other accrued benefits 9,755,188 9,073,022
Employee future benefits
Accrued sick leave [note 7] 7,544,611 7,379,200
Accrued severance pay [note 7] 13,259,904 12,729,376
Deferred contributions [note 8]
Deferred operating contributions 4,022,273 4,433,766
National Child Benefit (NCB) initiatives 1,118,594 1,830,642
Deferred capital contributions 17,701,367 24,063,802
Special purpose funds 747,649 984,584
Long-term: debt [note 10] 783,301 896,670
84,948,432 74,422,159
Net debt (51,537,439) (50,352,239)

Non-financial assets

Tangible capital assets [note 9] 55,626,926 45,027,216

Prepaid expenses 3,033,522 3,017,836

Supplies inventory 1,570,617 1,464,735
60,231,065 49,509,787

Accumulated surplus (deficit) 8,693,626 (842,452)

Contractual obligations [note 11]
Contingencies [note 17]

Trustee




Labrador — Grenfell Regional Health Authority

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (DEFICIT)

Year ended March 31

Revenue

Provincial plan — operating
MCP physicians

Provincial plan — capital grant
National Child Benefit ["NCB"]
Outpatient

Inpatient

Long-term care
Transportation and works
Apartment complexes
Foundation

Other

Expenses [note 12]

Support services

Community and social services
Nursing inpatient services
Medical services

Ambulatory care services
Diagnostic and therapeutic services
Administration

Amortizat:on [notes 9 and 15]
Education

Research

Apartment complexes
Foundation

Annual surplus (deficit)

Accumulated deficit, beginning of year
Accumulated surplus (deficit), end of year

See accompanying notes

Budget 2015 2014
$ $ $
[note 14]
136,067,518 136,136,023 129,142,450
23,530,585 19,210,201 19,850,767
— 17,106,089 5,692,905
1,117,221 817,495 1,606,247
3,271,700 2,744,507 2,890,089
1,467,500 685,529 1,552,291
1,552,000 1,607,131 1,506,905
1,285,500 1,285,500 1,285,500
— 311,935 306,157
— 308,754 354,960
7,144,400 8,468,841 7,577,473
168,292,024 188,682,005 171,765,744
31,506,967 32,509,373 31,804,365
32,064,406 29,320,993 29,816,698
27,374,050 31,221,427 27,452,589
25,839,759 21,538,858 22,171,747
20,058,807 22,770,022 21,734,145
16,984,161 17,536,858 17,278,534
20,707,187 16,549,763 15,827,560
— 6,844,407 5,358,552
95,691 554,004 599,803
805,396 69,728 68,826
— 220,316 210,256
— 10,178 21,446
175,436,424 179,145,927 172,344,521
— 9,536,078 (578,777)
— (842,452) (263,675)
— 8,693,626 (842,452)
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Labrador — Grenfell Regional Health Authority

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT

For the year ended March 31

Annual surplus (deficit)

Acquisition of capital assets, net of disposals

Amortization of capital assets

Increase in net book value of tangible
capital assets

Net increase in prepaid expenses
Net decrease (increase) in supplies inventory
Decrease in non-financial assets

Increase in net debt
Net debt, beginning of year
Net debt, end of year

See accompanying notes

Budget 2015 2014
$ $ $
[note 14]

9,536,078 (578,777)

(17,444,117) (5,870,406)

6,844,407 5,358,552

— (10,599,710) (511,854)
(15,686) (325,121)

(105,882) 212,875

— (121,568) (112,246)
(1,185,200) (1,202,877)
(50,352,239)  (49,149,362)
— (51,537,439)  (50,352,239)
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Labrador — Grenfell Regional Health Authority

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended March 31

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Annual surplus (deficit)
Adjustments for
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Accrued severance pay
Accrued sick leave
Net change in non-cash assets and liabilities related
to operations [note 16]
Cash provided by operating transactions

Capital transactions
Acquisition of capital assets, net of disposals
Cash used in capital transactions

Investing transactions
Changes to restricted cash
Cash used in investing transactions

Financing transactions
Change ir: deferred contributions
Deferred capital contributions
Special purpose funds
Demand credit facility
Repayment of long-term debt
Cash provided by (used in) financing transactions

Net charge in bank indebtedness during the year
Bank indebtedness, beginning of year
Bank indebtedness, end of year

Bank indebtedness comprised of:
Cash

Bank overdraft

Bank indebtedness

See accompanying notes
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2015 2014
$ $
9,536,078 (578,777)
6,844,407 5,358,552
530,528 843,725
165,411 254,326
(7,789,436) 308,458
9,286,988 6,186,284
(17,444,117)  (5,870,406)
(17,444,117)  (5,870,406)
(9,719) (7,333)
(9,719) (7,333)
(6,362,435) 1,751,966
(236,935) 339,838
14,970,000 —
(113,369) (109,776)
8,257,261 1,982,028
90,413 2,290,573
(1,378,247)  (3,668,820)
(1,287,834)  (1,378.247)
885,105 840,870
(2,172,939)  (2,219,117)
(1,287,834) (1,378,247




Labrador — Grenfell Regional Health Authority

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31,2015

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Labrador-Grenfell Regional Health Authority [the “Authority”] manages and operates all
health facilities, services and programs on the Northern peninsula and all of Labrador in the
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador. The Authority manages and controls the operations of
the following facilities:

Labrador Health Centre, Happy Valley-Goose Bay

Harry L. Paddon Memorial Home, Happy Valley-Goose Bay
Captain William Jackman Memorial Hospital, Labrador City
Charles S. Curtis Memorial Hospital, St. Anthony

John M. Gray Centre, St. Anthony

The Authority also manages and controls the operations of all medical clinics, nursing stations,
community health centers, facilities programs and services in the geographic area.

The operations of the Authority are primarily funded by the Government of Newfoundland and
Labrador [the “Government”].

The Autherity is incorporated under the Regional Health Authorities Act of Newfoundland and
Labrador and is exempt from income taxes under the /ncome Tax Act.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting

The consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards [“PSAS”] established by the Public Sector Accounting Standards
Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

Basis of presentation

These consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the
reporting entity, which is composed of all organizations that are controlled by the Authority.
These organizations are listed under principles of consolidation. Trusts administered by the
Authority are not included in the consolidated statement of financial position [note 13].

The Authority has also prepared separate non-consolidated financial statements for the operations
of the operating fund of Labrador-Grenfell Regional Health Authority.
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Labrador — Grenfell Regional Health Authority

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015

Principles of consolidation

The Authority controls The St. Anthony Interfaith Home 12 Unit Apartment Complex, The St.
Anthony Interfaith Home 20 Unit Apartment Complex, and the Grenfell Foundation Incorporated
[together with Labrador Grenfell Health Authority, collectively referred to herein as the
“Authoritv”]. These entities are consolidated in the consolidated financial statements.

Cash, bank overdraft and restricted cash

Bank balances, including bank overdrafts with balances that fluctuate from positive to overdrawn,
are presented under cash or bank overdraft, respectively.

Restricted cash relates to amounts held for special purpose funds and endowment funds.

Asset classification

Assets are classified as either financial or non-financial. Financial assets are assets that could be
used to discharge existing liabilities or finance future operations and are not to be consumed in the
normal course of operations. Non-financial assets are acquired, constructed or developed assets
that do not provide resources to discharged existing liabilities but are employed to deliver
healthcare services, may be consumed in normal operations and are not for resale.

Employee Future Benefits

Accrued sick leave

Employees of the Authority are entitled to sick leave benefits that accumulate but do not vest. In
accordance with PSAS for post-employment benefits and compensated balances, the Authority
recognizes the liability in the period in which the employee renders service. The obligation is
actuarially determined using assumptions based on management’s best estimates of the probability
of use of accrued sick leave, future salary and wage changes, employee age, the probability of
departure, retirement age, the discount rate and other factors. Discount rates are based on the
Government’s long-term borrowing rate. Actuarial gains and losses are deferred and amortized
over the average remaining service life of employees, which is 13 years. Adjustments to the
liability arising from plan amendments are recognized immediately.
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Labrador — Grenfell Regional Health Authority

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015

Accrued severance

Employees are entitled to severance benefits as stipulated in their conditions of employment. The
right to be paid severance pay vests with employees with nine years of continual service with the
Authority or another public sector employer. Severance is payable when the employee ceases
employment with the Authority or the public sector employer. The severance benefit obligation
has been actuarially determined using assumptions based on management’s best estimates of
future salary and wage changes, employee age, years of service, the probability of voluntary
departure due to resignation or retirement, the discount rate and other factors. Discount rates are
based on the Government’s long-term borrowing rate. Actuarial gains and losses are deferred and
amortized over the average remaining service life of employees, which is 13 years. Adjustments to
the liability arising from plan amendments are recognized immediately.

Accrued vacation pay and other accrued benefits

Vacation pay and other accrued benefits are accrued for all employees as entitlement is earned.

Pension costs

The employees of the Authority are included in the Public Service Pension Plan [“PSPP”] and the
Government Money Purchase Plan administered by the Government, The Government also
provides for the continuation of certain dental and medical benefits for retirees. The Government
determines the required plan contributions annually. The annual contributions are recognized as
expense as incurred and amounted $4,567,108 for the year ended March 31, 2015 [2014 —
$4,142,273].

During the year ended March 31, 2015 changes were made to the PSPP by the plan administrators
including an increase in retirement ages, changes to post retirement indexing, and increased
contributions from both PSPP members and the Authority. These changes were effective

January 1, 2015.

The costs of insured benefits reflected in these consolidated financial statements are the
employer’s portion of the insurance premiums owed for coverage of employees during the period.

Tangible capital assets

The Authority utilizes certain land, buildings and equipment, with the title resting with the
Government and consequently these assets are not recorded as tangible capital assets. The
Government does not charge the Authority any amounts for the use of such assets. Certain
additions and improvements made to such tangible capital assets are paid for by the Authority and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements of the Authority.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31,2015

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are directly related to the
acquisition, design, construction, development, improvement or betterment of the assets. The cost,
less residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, is amortized on a declining
balance basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 5%
Equipment and vehicles 20%
Land improvements 20%

Contributed capital assets are recorded at their fair market value on the date of donation, except in
circumstances where fair value cannot be reasonably determined, which are then recognized at
nominal value. Transfers of capital assets from related parties are recorded at carrying value.

Works of art, historical treasures, intangible assets and items inherited by right of the Crown, such
as artwork displayed in the facilities, are not recognized in these consolidated financial statements.

Construction in progress is not amortized until the project is substantially complete, at which time
the project costs are transferred to the appropriate asset class and amortized accordingly.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer contribute to
the Authority’s ability to provide goods and services, or when the value of future economic
benefits associated with the tangible capital assets are less than their net book value. The net write-
downs are accounted for as expenses in the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated

surplus (deficit).

Inventories for resale

Inventories for resale include pharmaceuticals and are recorded at the lower of cost, determined on
a first-in, first-out basis, and net realizable value.

Supplies inventory

Supplies inventory include medical, surgical, general supplies, fuel oil and pharmaceuticals.

Medical surgical and general supplies are valued at the lower of cost, determined on an average
cost basis and net realizable value.

Fuel oil and pharmaceuticals are valued at the lower of cost, determined on a first-in, first-out
basis, and net realizable value.

378
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses include equipment service contracts, insurance and other miscellaneous items
that are charged to expenses over the periods expected to benefit from it.

Revenue

Provincial plan revenue without eligibility criteria and stipulations restricting their use are
recognized as revenue when the government transfers are authorized.

Government transfers with stipulations restricting their use are recognized as revenue when the
transfer is authorized and the eligibility criteria are met by the Authority, except when and to the
extent the transfer gives rise to an obligation that constitutes a liability. When the transfer gives
rise to an obligation that constitutes a liability, the transfer is recognized in revenue when the
liability is settled.

Medical Care Plan [“MCP”], inpatient, outpatient and residential revenues are recognized in the
period services are provided.

The Authority is funded by the Department of Health and Community Services [the
“Department”] for the total of its operating costs, after deduction of specified revenue and
expenses, to the extent of the approved budget. The final amount to be received by the Authority
for a particular fiscal year will not be determined until the Department has completed its review of
the Authority’s consolidated financial statements. Adjustments resulting from the Department’s
review and final position statement will be considered by the Authority and reflected in the period
of assessment. There were no changes from the previous year.

Other revenue includes, but not limited to, drug revenue, rental revenue from accommodations and
dental revenue and salary recoveries from Workplace, Health and Safety and Compensation
Commission of Newfoundland and Labrador [the “Commission”]. Rebates and salary recovery
amounts are recorded once the amounts to be recorded are known and confirmed by the

Commission.

Expenses

Expenses are reported on an accrual basis. The cost of all goods consumed and services received
during the year is expensed.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are classified in one of the following categories: [i] fair value or [ii] cost or
amortized cost. The Authority determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial

recognition.
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Labrador — Grenfell Regional Health Authority

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015

Long-term debt is initially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method. Transaction costs related to the issuance of long-term debt
are capitalized and amortized over the term of the instrument.

Cash and bank indebtedness are classified at fair value. Other financial instruments, including
accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and due to/from government/other
government entities are initially recorded at their fair value and are subsequently measured at
amortized cost, net of any provisions for impairment.

Contributed services

Volunteers contribute a significant amount of their time each year assisting the Authority in
carrying out its service delivery activities. Due to the difficulty in determining fair value,
contributed services are not recognized in these consolidated financial statements.

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities as at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts
of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Areas requiring the use of management
estimates include the assumptions used in the valuation of employee future benefits. Actual results
could differ from these estimates.

3. RESTRICTED CASH

2015 2014
$ $
Deferred contributions — special purpose funds 802,102 794,331
Endowment fund 778,231 778,231
Restricted cash held by Newfoundland and Labrador
Housing Corporation for replacement reserve 122,212 120,264
1,702,545 1,692,826

4. BANK INDEBTEDNESS
Bank indebtedness represents the bank overdraft position and use of the available credit facility. The
Authority was in a bank overdraft position of $2,172,939 as at March 2015 [2014 — $2,219,117].

The Authority has a demand credit facility [the “facility”] with a Canadian chartered bank for a
maximum amount of $20,000,000, bearing interest at the bank’s prime rate plus 0.25%. The relevant
prime rate was 2.85% as at 31 March 2015 [2014 - 3.00%]. As at March 31, 2015 the Authority has
drawn $14,970,000 in funds from the facility [2014 — nil]. The effective interest rate for the year
ended March 31, 2015 was 3.13% [2014 — 0%].
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5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
2015 2014
$ $
Patient 3,178,837 3,196,545
Government of Newfoundland and Labrador — Department
of Child, Youth and Family Services 7,722,149 5,831,616
Government of Newfoundland and Labrador — Other 18,348,396 11,242,227
Harmonizzd sales tax receivable 1,460,879 553,403
Other 260,946 770,137
30,971,207 21,593,928
Less: provision for doubtful accounts (1,064,300) (937,724)
29,906,907 20,656,204
The aging of patient and other accounts receivable is as follows:
2015
Past due
1-30 31-60 61-90 Over 90
Total Current days days days days
$ $ $ $ $ $
Patient 3,178,837 139,258 647,574 454,232 262,756 1,675,017
Other 260,946 260,946 — — —
2014
Past due
1-30 31-60 61-90 Over 90
Total Current days days days days
$ $ $ $ $ $
Patient 3,196,545 671,775 613,665 339,741 198,116 1,373,248
Other 770,137 770,137 — — —

For the year ended March 31, 2015, the Authority has not recorded any impairment of receivables
relating to the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador [2014 — nil].
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6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2015 2014

$ $
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 8,378,058 6,947,296
Salaries and wages payable 3,808,453 3,279,004
Government remittances 591,478 484,052
Other due to government 94,617 101,628
12,872,606 10,811,980

7. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

The Authority provides their employees with at least nine years of service, upon termination,
retirement or death, with severance benefits equal to one week of pay per year of service up to a
maximum of twenty weeks. The Authority provides these benefits through an unfunded defined

benefit plan.

The Authority also provides their employees with sick leave benefits that accumulate, but do not
vest, as follows:

Maximum
utilization per
Maximum 20-year
Accumulated rate accumulation period
NLNU hired up to December 1, 2006 15 hours per 162.5 hours 1,800 hours N/A
NLNU hired after December 1, 2006 7.5 hours per 162.5 hours 1,800 hours 1,800 hours
CUPE/NAPE hired up to May 4, 2004 2 days per month N/A 480 days
CUPE/NAPE hired after May 4, 2004 1 day per month N/A 240 days
CUPE/NAPE hired up to May 4, 2004 —
12-hour shifts 15 hours per 162.5 hours N/A 3,600 hours
CUPE/NAPE hired after May 4, 2004 —
12-hour shifis 7.5 hours per 162.5 hours N/A 1,800 hours

In addition, while management employees do not accrue additional sick lcave days, they may use
accrued sick leave banked after first using two days of paid leave.

The accrued benefit obligations for post-employment benefit plans as at March 31, 2015, are based
on an actuarial valuation for accounting purposes as at March 31, 2012, and an extrapolation of
that valuation has been performed to March 31, 2015.
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The actuarial valuation is based on assumptions about future events. Significant actuarial
assumptions used in measuring the accrued severance and accrued sick leave liabilities are as

follows:

2015 2014

% %
Wages and salary escalation 4.00 4.00
Discount rate 2.90 3.90

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the measuring the accrued severance pay and accrued
sick leave expenses are as follows:

2015 2014
% %
Wages and salary escalation 4.00 4.00
Discount rate 3.90 3.60
(a) Severance and sick leave liabilities
2015 2014
Severance  Sick leave Total Total
$ $ $ $
Accrued benefit liability, beginning of
year 12,729,377 7,379,200 20,108,577 19,010,525
Total expenses during the year 1,539,778 1,231,478 2,771,256 2,907,876
Less: benefits paid (1,009,251)  (1,066,067) (2,075,318) (1,809,824)

Accrued benefit liability, end of year 13,259,904 7,544,611 20,804,515 20,108,577

(b) Severance and sick leave expenses

2015 2014
Severance  Sick leave Total Total
$ $ $ $
Current year benefit cost 979,003 928,902 1,907,905 1,977,577
Interest or: accrued benefit obligation 510,988 288,186 799,174 760,117
Amortization of loss 49,787 14,390 64,177 170,181
Employee future benefit expenses 1,539,778 1,231,478 2,771,256 2,907,875

During the year ended March 31, 2015 the assumptions for the retirement ages were changed for
both plans. The retirement ages were adjusted to agree with the PSPP retirement ages set by the

Government of Newfoundland and Labrador. These changes were effective January 1, 2015.
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8. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS

Deferred contributions are set aside for specific purposes as required either by legislation,

regulation or agreement:

Balance at Receipts

beginning during Recognized  Balance at
March 31, 2015 of year the year as revenue end of year

$ $ $ $
Deferred operating contributions 4,433,766 2,850,914 3,262,407 4,022,273
NCB initiatives 1,830,642 105,447 817,495 1,118,594
Deferred capital grants 24,063,802 10,743,654 17,106,089 17,701,367
Special purpose funds 984,584 405,155 642,090 747,649
31,312,794 14,105,170 21,828,081 23,589,883

Balance at Receipts

beginning during Recognized  Balance at
March 31, 2014 of year the year as revenue end of year

$ $ $ $

Deferred operating contributions 4,602,533 3,038,521 3,207,288 4,433,766
NCB initiatives 2,551,037 885,851 1,606,246 1,830,642
Deferred capital grants 22,311,836 7,444,871 5,692,905 24,063,802
Special purpose funds 644,746 526,344 186,506 084,584

30,110,152 11,895,587 10,692,945 31,312,794
9. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Land Construction Leasechold Equipment 2015
March 31,2015 Land improvements in progress Buildings improvement and vehicles Total
$ $ $ $ $
Cost
Opening balance 36,203 216,064 5,514,407 37,302,922 223,678 74,949,669 118,242,943
Additions —_ — 5,803,684 — - 11,667,652 17,471,336
Transfers — —  (10,134,985) — 10,134,985 —_ —_
Disposals — — (27,219)  (84,662) - — (111,881)
Closing balance 36,203 216,064 1,155,887 37,218,260 10,358,663 86,617,321 135,602,398
Accumulated
amortization

Opening balance — 172,434 — 17,647,964 113,263 55,282,066 73,215,727
Amortization — 5,066 — 1,634,707 258,896 4,945,738 6,844,407
Disposals —- — —  (84,662) — — (84,662)
Closing balance — 177,500 — 19,198,009 372,159 60,227,804 79,975,472
Net book value 36,203 38,564 1,155,887 18,020,251 9,986,504 26,389,517 55,626,926
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March 31,2014

Cost

Opening balance
Additions
Disposals
Closing balaice

Accumulated
amortization
Opening balance

Amortization
Disposals
Closing balaace
Net book value

Land Construction i Leasehold Equipment 2014
Land improvements progress Buildings improvement and vehicles Total
s $ $ $ 1) $

11,203 216,064 4,296,061 38,191,268 223,678 70,322,609 113,260,883
25,000 - 1,218,346 — — 4,627,060 5,870,406
— — —  (888,346) — — (888,346)
36,203 216,064 5,514,407 37,302,922 223,678 74,949,969 118,242 943
166,656 — 17,525,226 107,452 50,946,187 68,745,521
— 5,778 — 1,011,084 5,811 4,335,879 5,358,552
— —  (888,346) — — (888,346)
o 172,434 — 17,647,964 113,263 55,282,066 73,215,727
36,203 43,630 5,514,407 19,654,958 110415 19,667,603 45,027,216

Assets included in construction in progress are not amortized until construction of the asset is

complete.

The Authority has works of art displayed in its facilities valued at $195,714 not recognized in
these consolidated financial statements as these assets are the legal property of the Government.

10. LONG-TERM DEBT

Newfoundland and Labrador Housing Corporation 2.86%
first mortgage on land and building of 20 Unit apartment
complex, repayable $6,537 monthly, interest included, and
maturing January 2019.
Newfoundland and Labrador Housing Corporation 1.67%
first mortgage on land and building of 12 Unit apartment
complex, repayable $4,298 monthly, interest included, and
maturing October 2025.
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The aggregate amount of principal payments estimated to be required in each of the next five
financial years is as follows:

$
2016 115,134
2017 117,426
2018 119,759
2019 109,573
2020 46,523

11. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The Authority has entered into a number of multiple year operating leases and contracts for the
delivery of services. These contractual obligations will become liabilities in the future when the
terms of the contracts are met. Disclosure relates to the unperformed portion of the contracts.

Contractual obligations 2015 2016 2017
$ $ $

Future operating lease payments
— properties 418,477 156,384 1,000

Future operating lease payments
- vehicles 129,073 18,585 ——

Future operating lease payments
— equipment service contracts 82,148 748 —
Service contracts 1,399,811 810,975 350,749
2,029,509 986,692 351,749
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12. EXPENSES BY OBJECT

This disclosure supports the functional display of expenses provided in the consolidated
statements of operations and accumulated surplus (deficit) by offering a different perspective of
the expenses for the year. The following presents expenses by object, which outlines the major
types of expenses incurred by the Authority during the year:

2015 2014
$ $

Salaries and benefits 121,400,722 117,319,896
Direct client costs 11,017,754 10,785,102
Other supplies 9,813,947 10,135,186
Medical supplies 7,220,010 7,336,116
Amortization of tangible capital assets [note 9] 6,844,407 5,248,773
Patient and Staff 6,489,815 5,720,694
Equipment expenses 3,481,708 3,555,716
Grants 3,044,898 3,165,904
Referred out services 2,602,977 2,584,357
Insurance 1,234,591 1,157,826
Other 5,995,098 5,334,951

179,145,927 172,344,521

13. TRUSTS UNDER ADMINISTRATION

Trusts administered by the Authority have not been included in these consolidated financial
statements as they are excluded from the Government reporting entity. At March 31, 2015, the
balance of funds held in trust for long-term care residents was $271,263 [2014 — $283,833].
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14. BUDGET

The Authority prepares an initial budget for a fiscal period that is approved by the Board of
Trustees and Government [the “Original Budget”]. The Original Budget may change significantly
throughout the year as it is updated to reflect the impact of all known service and program changes
approved by the Government. Additional changes to services and programs that are initiated
throughout the year would be funded through amendments to the Original Budget and an updated
budget is orepared by the Authority. The updated budget shown below is the updated budget after
all amendments that have been processed. These final updated budget amounts are reflected in the
budget column as presented in the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus
(deficit) [the “Budget”].

The Original Budget and the Budget do not include amounts relating to certain non-cash and other
items including tangible capital asset amortization, the recognition of provincial capital grants and
other capital contributions. The Authority also does not prepare a full budget in respect of changes
in net debt as the Authority does not include an amount for tangible capital asset amortization or
the acquisition of tangible capital assets in the Original Budget or the Budget.

The following presents a reconciliation between the Original Budget and the Budget as presented
in the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus (deficit) for the year ended

March 31, 2015:

Revenue Expenditures Annual surplus
$ $ $
Original Budget 162,743,254 162,743,254 —
Adjustments during the year for service
and program changes, net 9,293,170 9,293,170 —
Revised Original Budget 172,036,424 172,036,424 —
Stabilization fund approved by the
Government 3,400,000 3,400,000 —
Budget 175,436,424 175,436,424 —

15. CHILD, YOUTH AND FAMILY SERVICES

On March 31, 2014, the Authority transferred five properties with a net book value of $665,436 to
the Child, Youth and Family Services [“CYFS”] Department, as outlined in their CYFS/Labrador-
Grenfell Regional Integrated Health Authority Transition Agreement. The transfer of the
properties was recognized as an amortization expense in the consolidated statement of operations

and accumulated surplus (deficit).
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16. NET CHANGES IN NON-CASH ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RELATED TO OPERATIONS

2015 2014
$ $

Accounts ~eceivable (9,250,703) 2,784,492
Supplies inventory and inventory for resale (142,298) (751)
Prepaid expenses (15,686) (325,121)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,060,626 (948,829)
Accrued vacation pay and other accrued liabilities 682,166 (312,171)
Deferred contributions — operating and NCB initiatives (1,123,541) (889,162)
(7,789,436) 308,458

17. CONTINGENCIES

A number of legal claims have been filed against the Authority. An estimate of loss, if any,
relative to these matters is not determinable at this time and no provision has been recorded in the
accounts for these matters. In the view of management, the Authority’s insurance program
adequately addresses the risk of loss in these matters.

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Authority’s related party transactions occur between the Government and other government
entities. Other government entities are those who report financial information to the Government.
Transactions between the Authority and related parties are conducted as arm’s-length transactions.

The Authority handles payments for other government entities. As a result of these transactions,
the Authority has a net asset (liability) of $7,722,149 as of March 31, 2015 [2014 - $5,831,616].

Transfers from the Government consist of funding payments made to the Authority for both
operating and capital expenditures. Transfers from other related government entities are payments
made to the Authority from the Medical Care Plan and the Department of Transportation and
Works. Transactions are settled at prevailing market prices under normal trade terms.

The Authority had the following transfers from the Government and other government controlled
entities:

2015 2014

$ $
Transfers mom the Government 154,233,963 141,408,554
Transfers from other government entities 20,495,701 21,136,267

174,729,664 157,755,369
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Transfers to other Government authorities include PSPP contributions of $4,567,108 for the year
ended March 31, 2015 [2014 - $4,142,273].

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Authority is exposed to a number of risks as a result of the financial instruments on its
consolidafed statement of financial position that can affect its operating performance. These risks
include credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Authority’s Board of Trustees has
overall responsibility for the oversight of these risks and reviews the Authority’s policies on an
ongoing tasis to ensure that these risks are appropriately managed. The source of risk exposure
and how each is managed is outlined below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfil its payment
obligation. The Authority’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts receivable. The
Authority has a collection policy and monitoring processes intended to mitigate potential credit
losses. Management believes that the credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is not material.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Authority is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk on its floating interest rate for the demand credit facility and interest rate fair

value on its fixed term long-term debt,

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Authority will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
become due. The Authority is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of its accounts payable,
accrued liabilities and demand loan. To the extent that the Authority does not believe it has

sufficient liquidity to meet current obligations, consideration will be given to obtaining additional
funds through third-party funding or from the Government, assuming these can be obtained.

20. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified from statements previously presented to
conform to the presentation adopted for the current year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of the Newfoundland and Labrador English School District

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the former Labrador School Board, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at August 31, 2013 and the statements of operations and
accumulated surplus, cash flows and changes in net debt for the period then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Mlanagement’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making these risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
former Labrador School Board as at August 31, 2013 and the results of its operations and accumulated
surplus, cash flows and changes in net debt for the period then ended in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards.

St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador W (l\é‘/\

May 16, 2014 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Suite 202 120 Stavanger Drive, St Johns NL Canada A1A 5E8
Phone: (709) 726-8324 Fax: (709) 726-4525
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Labrador School Board
Statement of Financial Position .
August 31,2013

Financial Assets
Cash (Note 4)
Short-term Investments (Note 5)
Accounts Receivable (Note 6)
Due from Government Entities (Note 6)

Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (Note 9)

Teachers' Vacation Pay (Note 7)

Long-term Debt ( Schedule 8 and 8A)

Obligation under Capital Lease

Employee Future Benefits
Teacher Severance Pay Benefits (Note 3 and Note 8)
Student assistant Severance Pay Benefits (Note 8)
Board employees Severance pay benefits (Note 8)
Accrued sick leave benefits (Note 8)
Executive Staff paid leave

Deferred Revenue

Net Surplus (Debt)
Non-Financial Assets

Restricted assets - Labrador West School Committee
Capital Assets (Schedule 7 and Note 2)

Accumulated Surplus/Deficit

Contingent Liabilities (Note 12)

On Behalf of the District:
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August 31,2013 June 30,2013
S 3,579,423 S 2,893,440
764,945 763,026
156,202 228,466
438,819 4,004,135
4,939,389 7,889,067
1,200,332 929,980
- 3,585,589
2,026,577 1,697,527
6,176,831 6,047,293
89,642 87,230
1,047,384 1,046,228
4,566,878 4,564,986
297,989 302,589
2,731,273 2,273,441
18,136,906 20,534,863
(13,197,517) (12,645,796)
- (84,884)
65,798,680 66,108,168
65,798,680 66,023,284
S 52,601,163 $ 53,377,488




Labrador School Board
Statement of Operations
Period Ended August 31,2013

30. Revenue
Provincial Government Grants (Schedule 1)
Donations (Schedule 1)
Ancillary Services (Schedule 1)
Miscellaneous (Schedule 1)

50. Expenditures
Administration (Schedule 2)
Instruction (Schedule 3)
Operations and Maintenance (Schedule 4)
Pupil Transportation (Schedule 5)
Miscellaneous (Schedule 6)
Amortization of Capital Assets (Notes 1 and 7)
Interest
Change in Sick leave accrual
Change in non-teacher severance liability
Change in Teachers' Severance Liability

Annual Surplus/Deficit
Accumulated Surplus/Deficit, Beginning of Year

Accumulated Surplus/Deficit, End of Year
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31-Aug-13 Budget 30-Jun-13
S 2,468,972 2,303,686 S 47,925,135
0 49,323
114,260 39,375 270,466
7,375 7,604 71,001
2,590,607 2,350,665 48,315,925
337,919 436,102 2,018,825
1,048,131 1,132,794 34,544,904
798,075 741,894 6,614,401
144,801 - 2,671,877
127,170 39,375 222,278
751,492 - 4,036,397
1,096 500 6,228
1,892 - 21,046
26,818 131,841
129,538 399,195
3,366,932 2,350,665 50,666,992
S (776,325) - S (2,351,067)
$ 53,377,488 S 55,728,555
$ 52,601,163 - S 53,377,488




Labrador School Board
Statement of Cash Flows
Period Ended August 31,2013

Operating Transactions

Annual Surplus/Deficit

Adjustments for:
Amortization of Capital Assets
Capital Grants Provincial and Other
(Decrease)/Increase in Severance Pay Accrual

(Decrease)/Increase in Teacher's Severance Liability

Change in sick leave accrual
Increase in Other Employee Benefits Liability
Short Term Investments
Deferred revenue
Changes in Non-Cash Assets and Liabilities

Capital Transactions

Construction and Purchase of Tangible Capital Assets
Capital Asset Contributions

Cash Provided by Capital Transactions

Financing Transactions

Proceeds from Obligation Under Capital Lease
Repayment of Obligation under Capital Lease
Proceeds from Long-Term Borrowings

Repayment of Long-Term Debt

Cash Provided by (used in) Financing Transactions

Net Increase in Cash

Cash, Beginning of the Year

Supplementary Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Interest Paid
Interest Paid - Bussing Loans
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August 31, 2013 June 30,2012

$ (776,325) $  (2,351,067)
$ 751,492 $ 4,036,397
26,818 131,841

129,538 399,195

1,892 21,046

(4,600) 47,143

1,919 2,747,036
457,832 (369,367)
210,368 (343,422)
798,934 4,318,802
(442,000) (2,615,967)
(442,000) (2,615,967)
370,000 642,090
(40,951) (205,741)
329,049 436,349
685,983 2,139,184
2,893,440 754,256
3,579,423 2,893,440

S 958 S 6,223
S 958 $ 6,223




Labrador School Board
Statement of Changes in Net Debt
Period Ended August 31,2013

60. Annual Surplus

Changes in Tangible Capital Assets

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Increase in Net Book Value of Tangible Capital Assets

Changes in Other Non-Financial Assets
Change in restricted assets
New Change in Prepaid Expenses - Increase/Decrease

Increase in Net Debt
Net Debt, Beginning of Year
Net Debt, End of Year
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August 31,2013

June 30,2013

S (776,325)

S  (2,351,067)

(442,000) (2,615,967)
751,492 4,036,397
309,492 1,420,430
(84,884) 5,844

- 19,978

(551,717) (904,815)

(12,645,801) (11,740,986)

$ (13,197,518)

S (12,645,801)




Labrador School Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Period Ended August 31,2013

1. Nature of Operations

The former Labrador School Board [“Board”] was a learning organization mandated by the Government
of Newfoundland and Labrador to organize, administer, and deliver primary, elementary and secondary
education within Labrador.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards [“PSA”]. These financial statements do not include school based financial activities which
would consist of revenues, expenses and net assets controlled by school administration. The significant
accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are summarized below:

Revenue

The former Board’s main source of funding was derived from Government of Newfoundland and
Labrador, Department of Education (“the Department”). The Department provides funding for
operations, transportation, capital expenditures and teacher salaries and severance pay. Funding was
included in revenue on the accrual basis and when the related expenditures have been incurred with the
exception of funding for the teacher severance pay which was recorded when the severance was paid to
employees (see note 2). Funding designated for specific purposes, for which criteria has not been met,
was deferred and included in revenue when the related expenditures had been incurred. Government
transfers received with associated stipulations relating to the purchase of capital assets, were
recognized as revenue when the related assets were acquired. Rental revenue was recognized when
received or receivable if the amount to be received could be reasonably estimated and collection was
reasonably assured. Interest revenue was recognized when earned.

Restricted Equity

The former Board received funding from the Province and external sources which had been restricted
for specific purposes in the future. Restricted funds had been recorded as revenue and transferred to
restricted equity for the designated purpose.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents included cash on hand and balances with banks.
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Labrador School Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Period Ended August 31,2013

2. Significant Accounting Policies (con’t
Short term investments

Short term investments included GIC’s with original terms of greater than three months which mature
within one year.

Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are stated at cost or deemed cost and amortized using the straightline basis over
their estimated useful lives, using the following rates:

Buildings (Wooden Structure) 25years
Buildings (Steel and Masonry) 40 years
Pavement 20 years
Heavy equipment and vehicles 12 years
Service vehicles 5 years
Oil tanks 5 years

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment upon the occurrence of events or changes in
circumstances indicating that the value of the assets may not be recoverable.

Accrued vacation pay
Vacation pay was accrued for all employees as entitlement is earned.
Teachers’ and Student Assistants’ Payroll

The Government of Newfoundland and Labrador processed the payrolis and remitted the source
deductions directly to the appropriate agencies. The amounts recorded in the financial statements
represent gross salaries and employee benefits as reported by the Department for the year.

Pension Costs

All permanent employees of the former Board are covered by pension plans administered by the
Government of Newfoundland Labrador. Contributions to these plans are required from both the
employee and the Board. Post retirement obligations to employees are the responsibility of the
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Labrador School Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Period Ended August 31,2013

2. Significant Accounting Policies (con’t)

Government of Newfoundland and Labrador and, as such, the employer contributions for pensions and
other retirement benefits are recognized in the accounts on a current basis.

Other Employee Severance Pay Accrual

The former Board had in effect severance pay policies whereby employees were entitled to a severance
payment upon leaving employment with the former Board. Under these policies, a permanent employee
who had nine (9) or more years of continuous service in the employ of the former School Board was
entitled to be paid severance pay upon termination. The severance benefit obligation has been
actuarially determined using assumptions based on management’s best estimate of future salary and
wage changes, employee age, years of services, the probability of voluntary departure due to
resignation or retirement, the discount rate and other factors. Discount rates are based on the
Province’s long-term borrowing rate. Actuarial gains and losses are being amortized to the liability and
related expense straight-line over the expected average remaining service life of the employee group

Severance pay for teachers is paid directly to employees by the Department of Education.

Accrued sick leave

Employees of the former Board are entitled to sick pay benefits which accumulate but do not vest. In
accordance with PSA for post-employment benefits and compensated balances, the Labrador School
Board recognized the liability in the period in which the employee rendered service. The obligation was
actuarially determined using assumptions based on management’s best estimates of the probability of
use of accrued sick leave, future salary and wage changes, employee age, the probability of departure,
retirement age, the discount rate and other factors. Discount rates are based on the Province’s long-
term borrowing rate. Actuarial gains and losses are being amortized to the liability and related expense
straight-line over the expected average remaining service life of the employee group.

Use of Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with PSA requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenditures during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Labrador School Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Period Ended August 31,2013

2. Significant Accounting Policies (con’t)

Deferred revenue

Deferred operating revenue represents externally restricted government transfers, as well as other
externally restricted contributions, with associated stipulations relating to specific projects or programs,
resulting in a liability. These transfers will be recognized as revenue in the period in which the resources

are used for the purpose specified.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are classified according to their characteristics and managements choices
and intentions related thereto for the purpose of ongoing measurements. The fair value of a financial
instrument is the estimated amount to be received or paid to terminate the instrument’s agreement at

the reporting date.

Financial assets and liabilities are generally classified and measured as follows:

Asset/liability Classification Measurement
Cash Held for trading Fair value
Short term investments Held for trading Fair value

Accounts receivable
Accounts payable

Long-term debt

loans and receivables

other liabilities

other liabilities
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Labrador School Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Period Ended August 31,2013

3. Teachers’ Severance Pay Benefits

Pursuant to a directive issued by the Department during fiscal 1998, the former Board recorded the
severance pay liability for teachers in the former Board. The Schools Act, 1997 specifies that salaries and
other compensation for teachers are the responsibility of the Department. The Department does not
recognize this liability until it has to be paid.

The net change in liability for the year ended is as follows:

August 31, 2013 June 30, 2013
Teachers' Severance Pay Benefits
Balance, beginning of the period S 6,047,293 S 5,648,098
Net increase for the period 129,538 399,195
Balance, end of the period S 6,176,831 $ 6,047,293
4. Cash
August, 2013 June 30, 2013
Cash
Cash on Hand S 1,000 S 1,000
Bank - Current 1,724,676 1,047,936
Bank - Savings 1,845,688 1,842,195
Bank - Teachers' Payroll 9,059 2,308
Bank - Non Teachers' Payroll - -
Bank - Coupon ( Debenture) - -
Bank - Other (Specify) - -
$ 3,579,423 S 2,893,440

401



Labrador School Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Period Ended August 31,2013

5. Short Term Investments

Short Term Investments
Term Deposits
Canada Savings Bonds
Other (Specify)

6. Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable

Current

Provincial Government

Transportation

Federal Government

Other School Districts

Rent

Interest

Capital

Travel Advances and Miscellaneous

DEC - Construction Grants
Local Contributions

Other School Districts
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August 31, 2013 June 30, 2013

$ 764,945 $ 763,026
S 764,945 $ 763,026

August 31, 2013 June 30,2013

S 438,819 S 4,004,134

41,177 146,844

115,025 81,621

S 595,021 $ 4,232,599




Labrador School Board

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Period Ended August 31,2013

7. Teachers’ Vacation Pay

Pursuant to a directive issued by the Department during the fiscal year 2006, the former Board recorded
the vacation pay liability for teachers with the Board. The liability relates to teachers’ salaries earned
during the school year but not fully paid to teachers until subsequent to June 30.

8. Employee Future Benefits

Future employee benefits related to severance and sick leave obligations have been calculated based on
an actuarial valuation dated March 11, 2014. The actuarial valuation of the accrued severance pay and
accrued sick leave was performed effective July 1, 2011 and an extrapolation of that valuation has been
performed to June 30, 2012, June 30, 2013 and August 31, 2013.

Severance
August 31, June 30,
2013 2013
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of period 7,329,979 7,227,392
Benefits expense
Current service
cost 99,927 622,714
Interest cost 48,036 248,420
Actuarial loss
(gain) (136,222) (303,987)
Benefits paid (17,376) (464,560)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of period 7,324,344 7,329,979

A reconciliation of the accrued benefit liability and the accrued benefit obligation is as follows:

Accrued benefit liability 7,313,858 7,180,751
Unamortized actuarial losses 10,487 149,228
Accrued benefit obligation 7,324,344 7,329,979
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Labrador School Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Period Ended August 31,2013

Sick leave

Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of period

Benefits expense
Current service
cost

Interest cost
Actuarial loss

(gain)

Benefits paid

Accrued benefit obligation, end of period

August 31, June 30,
2013 2013

4,649,673 4,781,337
65,639 396,232
30,204 159,885
(60,152) (133,874)
(95,318) (553,907)
4,590,045 4,649,673

A reconciliation of the accrued benefit liability and the accrued benefit obligation is as follows:

Accrued benefit liability
Unamortized actuarial losses

Accrued benefit obligation
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4,566,878 4,564,986
23,167 84,687
4,590,045 4,649,673




Labrador School Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Period Ended August 31,2013

The significant actuarial assumptions used in measuring the accrued severance pay and
benefits expenses are as follows:

August
2013 June 2013 2012
Discount rate 4.15% 3.91% 3.40%
Rate of compensation increase
Teaching staff first 10 years service 7.25% 7.25% 7.25%
All other staff 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

August 31,2013 June 30,2013
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Current

$ $
Accounts Payable - Trade 794,012 563,904
Accrued Liabilities 45,569 31,570
Accrued Interest Payable 5,038 5,038
Accrued Wages Payable 354,805 304,750
Payroll Deductions Payable (1,125) 22,298
Retail Sales Tax Payable 193 580
Deferred Grants Payble - -
Other (Drama Festival Payable) 1,840 1,840
1,200,332 929,980
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Labrador School Board

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Period Ended August 31,2013

10. Financial Instruments

The former Board'’s financial instruments consist of cash, short-term investments, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and long term obligations. It was management’s opinion that the Board was not
exposed to significant interest rate risk, currency or credit risks arising from these financial statements.

The carrying value of the Board’s financial instruments approximate fair values due to the short-term
maturity and normal credit terms of those instruments.

11. Insurance Subsidy

The cost of insuring school properties is incurred by the Provincial Government and no amount has been
recorded in these accounts to reflect this cost.

12, Contingent Liabilities

Site restoration and remediation costs associated with school properties under the former District are
charged to operations as incurred. Estimated future site restoration and remediation costs have not
been accrued in these financial statements since the obligation, if any, is presently not determinable.
Such costs are normally funded by the Province.

The Lavers inquiry was investigating allegations of abuse at schools formerly run by various churches in
certain parts of Labrador. The possibility or magnitude of any resulting liability arising to the former
Board is not known.

13. Subsequent Event

Subsequent to period end the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador mandated the consolidation
of the four English speaking school boards into one successor board known as the Newfoundland and
Labrador English School District.
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Labrador School Board Schedule 1
Current Revenues
Period Ended August 31,2013
31-Aug-13 30-Jun-13
Revenues
30.32. Provincial Government Grants
011 Regular Operating Grants 1,083,108 7,490,250
Maintenance operating grant 15,581 1,784,875
Capital grant 72,000 1,973,882
016 Special Grants (Details on bottorn of Schedule 1) 455,053 2,716,661
Salaries and Benefits
017 Superintendent and Assistant Superintendent 108,871 731,007
021 Teachers' Gross Salaries 505,231 28,283,905
022 Substitute Teachers' Gross Salaries 28,358 1,019,860
Student assistants 599 702,914
031 Pupil Transportation - District Owned 200,171 2,902,057
032 Pupil Transportation - Contracted - -
033 Pupil Transportation - Handicapped - 21,960
Capital loans - pupil transportation - -
Other - 297,764
2,468,972 47,925,135
30.33. Donations
012 Cash Receipts
013 Non Cash Receipts
014 Restricted Use - 49,323
- 49,323
30.34. Ancillary Services
011 Revenues from Rental of Residences 114,260 270,466
021 Revenues from Rental of Schools and Facilities (net)
031 Cafeterias
032 Other (Specify)
114,260 270,466
30.35. Miscellaneous
011 Interest on Investments 7,375 71,001
012 Bus Charters
021 Recoveries of Expenditures
031 Revenues from Other School Districts
051 Insurance Proceeds
061 Bilingual Education Revenue
071 Operating Revenue from Native Peoples Grant
081 Miscellaneous Federal Grants
092 Textbooks
092 Sundry
7,375 71,001
Total Current Revenues S 2,590,607 $ 48,315,925
Special Grants
Fiscal Finance Agreement S 419,949 5 2,487,826
Adult basic education 22,988 59,277
French Immersion - 20,711
Francophone - 67,270
School District Election Grant
Alternate Text
Textbook Credit Allocation
Aboriginal Education Initiatives 12,116 81,576
S 455,053 S 2,716,660
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Labrador School Board
Instruction Expenditures
Period Ended August 31,2013

50.52.

50.52.

50.52,

50.52.

50.52.

010 Instructional Salaries (Gross)
011 Teachers' Salaries - Regular
012 Teachers' Salaries - Substitute
013 Teachers' Salaries - District Paid
014 Augmentation Payments
015 Employee Benefits
016 School Secretaries - Salaries & Benefits
017 Payroll Tax
Teachers' Salaries - Student assistants
018 Other instructional salaries and benefits

040 Instructional Materials
041 General Supplies
042 Library Resource Materials
043 Teaching Aids
Other instructional materials
Other Aboriginal Peoples Programs
044 Textbooks

060 Instructional Furniture and Equipment
061 Replacement
062 Rentals and Repairs

080 Instructional Staff Travel

081 Program Co-ordinators
Travel - IT technicians

082 Teachers' Travel

083 In-service and Conferences

090 Other Instructional Costs
091 Postage and Stationery
Other - Aborignal Peoples Programs
Other - Health and Community living
092 Miscellaneous

Total Instruction Expenditures
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Schedule 3

August 31, 2013 June 30, 2013
18,565 24,862,115
24,782 891,236
(2,303) 79,899
490,192 3,558,666
14,044 716,799
- 33,364
538 705,968
182,297 1,368,889
728,115 32,216,936
69,292 478,190
490 7,440
35,736 105,345
8,164 117,659
152,888 761,653
266,570 1,470,287
26,060 75,540
809 105,402
26,869 180,942
290 87,784
1,085 30,658
- 6,412
12,896 334,887
14,271 459,741
190 5,635
12,116 195,593
- 15,770
12,306 216,998

S 1,048,131

S 34,544,904




Labrador School Board
Operations and Maintenance Expenditures - School
Period Ended August 31,2013

50.53.

011 Salaries and Benefits - Janitorial
012 Salaries and Benefits - Maintenance
013 Payroll Tax
014 Electricity
015 Fuel
016 Municipal Service Fee
017 Telephone
018 Vehicle Operating and Travel
019 Janitorial Supplies
021 Janitorial Equipment
022 Repairs and Maintenance - Buildings
023 Repairs and Maintenance - Equipment
024 Contracted Services - Janitorial
025 Snow Clearing
026 Rentals
027 Other (Specify)
Total Operations and Maintenance
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Schedule 4

2013 2012
137,406 S 1,336,629
222,763 1,087,357
39,732 245,716
33,887 378,437
- 471,204
12,727 78,083
28,976 172,627
8,539 56,289
153,025 201,604
- 39,433
120,653 1,805,870
752 13,807
25,708 19,752
- 284,037
13,907 423,557
798,075 S 6,614,401




Labrador School Board
Pupil Transportation Expenditure
Period Ended August 31,2013

50.54. 010 Operation and Maintenance of District Owned Fleet
011 Salaries and Benefits - Administration
012 Salaries and Benefits - Drivers and Mechanics

013 Payroll Tax

014 Debt Repayment - Interest
015 Debt Repayment - Principal

016 Bank Charges
017 Gas and Oil
018 Licenses

019 Insurance

021 Repairs and Maintenance - Fleet
022 Repairs and Maintenance - Building

023 Tires and Tubes
024 Heat and Light

025 Municipal Service

026 Snow Clearing
027 Office Supplies
028 Rent

029 Travel

031 Professional Fees

032 Miscellaneous
033 Telephone
034 Vehicle Leases

50.54. 040 Contracted Services
041 Regular Transportation

042 Handicapped

Pupil Transportation Expenditures

Schedule 5

31-Aug-13 30-Jun-13
62,213 1,744,235
820 28,088
8,064 46,599
6,234 340,007
13,887 12,744
- 21,316
12,750 205,460
- 8,820
10,297 23,846
837 14,559
990 6,091
- 27,838
- 9,187
18,741 74,966
3,224 30,961
. 2,000
- 4,204
2,988 17,991
141,045 2,618,911
- 2,160
3,756 50,806
3,756 52,966
S 144,801 S 2,671,877
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Labrador School Board Schedule 6
Ancillary Services and Miscellaneous Expenses
Period Ended August 31,2013
Ancillary Services
The District owns and operates the following ancillary services:
August 31, 2013 June 30, 2013
50.55. Ancillary Services
011 Operation of Teachers' Residences S 127,170 S 222,278
031 Cafeterias - -
032 Other (Specify) - -
S 127,170 S 222,278
Miscellaneous Expenses (Specify)
The District has incurred the following miscellaneous expenses:
2013 2012
50.57. 011 Miscellaneous Expenses (Specify) S - ) -
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Labrador School Board
Capital Assets
Period Ended August 31,2013

10.12.

10.12.

10.12.

10.12.

10.12.

10.12.

210 Land and Sites
211 Land and Sites

220 Buildings

221 Schools

222 Administration
223 Residential
224 Recreational
225 Other (Specify)

230 Furniture and Equipment
231 Schools

232 Administration

233 Residential

234 Recreation

235 Other (Oil Tanks)

240 Vehicles
241 Service Vehicles

250 Pupil Transportation
251 Land

252 Building

253 Vehicles - Buses

254 Vehicles - Service
255 Equipment

256 Other (Specify)

260 Misc. Capital Assets
261 Other (Pavement)

Total Capital Assets

Schedule 7
Cost Accumulated NBV NBV
August 31,2013 Amortization 2013 August 31, 2013 June 30,2013
S 209,033 S - S 209,033 $ 197,033
138,413,411 (79,493,907) 58,919,504 59,556,875
2,723,522 (2,723,522) - -
8,820,129 (4,903,283) 3,916,846 3,914,537
149,957,062 (87,120,712) 62,836,350 63,471,412
557,812 (382,103) 175,709 185,990
557,812 (382,103) 175,709 185,990
318,939 (270,152) 48,787 51,604
732,941 (732,941) - -
3,245,111 (1,135,100) 2,110,011 1,777,869
3,978,052 (1,868,041) 2,110,011 1,777,869
466,995 (48,205) 418,790 424,260

$ 155,487,893

$  (89,689,213)

$ 65,798,680

$ 66,108,168
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Labrador School Board

Details of Capital Assets - Additions and Disposals

Period Ended August 31,2013

10.12.

10.12.

10.12.

10.12.

10.12.

10.12.

210 Land and Sites
211 Land and Sites

220 Buildings

221 Schools

222 Administration
223 Residential
224 Recreational
225 Other (Specify)

230 Furniture and Equipment
231 Schools

232 Administration

233 Residential

234 Recreation

235 Other (Oil Tanks)

240 Vehicles
241 Service Vehicles

250 Pupil Transportation
251 Land

252 Building

253 Vehicles - Buses

254 Vehicles - Service
255 Equipment

256 Other (Specify)

260 Misc. Capital Assets
261 Other (Pavement)

Total Capital Assets

Schedule 7A
Balance Balance

June 30,2013 Additions Disposals August 31,2013
S 197,033 S 12,000 S - S 209,033
138,413,411 - - 138,413,411
2,723,522 - - 2,723,522
8,760,129 60,000 - 8,820,129
149,897,062 60,000 - 149,957,062
557,812 - - 557,812
557,812 - - 557,812
318,939 - - 318,939
732,941 - - 732,941
3,190,285 370,000 315,178 3,245,107
3,923,226 370,000 315,178 3,978,048
466,995 - - 466,995
$ 155,361,066 S 442,000 $ 315,178 S 155,487,888
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Labrador School Board
Details of Capital Assets - Amortization
Period Ended August 31,2013

10.12.

10.12.

10.12.

10.12.

10.12,

10.12.

210 Land and Sites
211 Land and Sites

220 Buildings

221 Schools

222 Administration
223 Residential
224 Recreational
225 Other (Specify)

230 Furniture and Equipment
231 Schools

232 Administration

233 Residential

234 Recreation

235 Other (Oil Tanks)

240 Vehicles
241 Service Vehicles

250 Pupil Transportation
251 Land

252 Building

253 Vehicles - Buses

254 Vehicles - Service
255 Equipment

256 Other (Specify)

260 Misc. Capital Assets
261 Other (Pavement)

Total Capital Assets

Schedule 78

Accumulated Amortization Amortization on Change in Accumulated
Amortization 2013 2013 Disposals 2013 Amortization 2013 Amortization 2012
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
78,856,536 637,371 - 637,371 79,493,907
2,723,522 - - - 2,723,522
4,845,592 57,691 - 57,691 4,903,283
86,425,650 695,062 - 695,062 87,120,712
371,822 10,281 - 10,281 382,103
371,822 10,281 - 10,281 382,103
267,335 2,817 - 2,817 270,152
732,941 - - - 732,941
1,412,416 37,862 (315,178) (277,316) 1,135,100
2,145,357 37,862 (315,178) (277,316) 1,868,041
42,735 5,470 - 5,470 48,205
$ 89,252,899 S 751,492 $ (315,178) S 436,314 $ 89,689,213
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Labrador School Board
Details of Long Term Debt
Period Ended August 31,2013

Bank loans, mortgage and debentures, approved

by the District and the Government of Newfoundland

and Labrador

20.21.

20.21.

210 Loans Other than Pupll Transportation

monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,

monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,

monthly,
monthly,

monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,

monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,
monthly,

Ref #
211 Bank Loans
Repayable $
Repayable $
Repayable $
Repayable $
Repayable $
Repayable $
Total 211
212 Mortgages
Repayable $
Repayable $
Repayable $
Repayable $
Repayable $
Repayable $
Total 212
213 Debentures
Repayable $
Repayable $
Total 213
214 Other (Please Specify)
Subtotal
215 Less Current Maturities
Total Loans Other Than Pupil Transportation
220 Loans - Pupil Transportation
Ref #
221 Vehicle Bank Loans
Repayable $ 2,172
Repayable $ 581
Repayable $ 1,696
Repayable $ 2,924
Repayable $ 2,523
Repayable § 4,687
Repayable $ 4,459
Repayable $2,569
Repayable $
Repayable $
Repayable $
Repayable $
Repayable $
Total 221
222 land, Buildings and Equipment Bank Loans
Repayable $
Repayable $
Repayable $
Repayable $
Repayable $
Total 222
Subtotal
223 Less Current Maturities
Total Loans- Pupll Transportation
Total Long Term Debt

August 31, 2013

Schedule 8

June 30,2013

maturing
maturing
maturing
maturing
maturing
maturing

maturing
maturing
maturing
maturing
maturing
maturing

maturing
maturing

maturing May 21, 2013 S -

maturing January 19, 2013 5,808
maturing September 4, 2013 42,396
maturing April 14, 2016 175,384
maturing August 21, 2015 277,591
maturing August 16, 2016 562,356
maturing August 31, 2016 593,041
maturing August 16, 2025 370,000
maturing
maturing
maturing
maturing
maturing

s -
6,971
45,788
181,232
285,160
576,417
601,959

2,026,577

1,697,527

maturing
maturing
maturing
maturing
maturing

2,026,577

1,697,527

2,026,577

1,697,527

$ 2,026,577

$ 1,697,527
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Labrador School Board
Summary of Long Term Debt
Period Ended August 31,2013

Description Ref. # Rate

Loans Obtained
During Year

Balance Beginning
of Year

Principal Repayment

for Year

Schedule 8A

Balance End
of Year

A) School Construction

BJEquipment

C) Service Vehides

D) Other

various

E) Pupil Transportation Scotlabank

Total Loans

1,697,528 370,000

40,951

2,026,577

$ 1,697,528 $ 370,000

40,951

$

2,026,577
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Labrador School Board
Schedule of Current Maturities
Period Ended August 31,2013

Description

Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Schedule 88

Year 5

A) School Construction $

B)Equipment

C) Service Vehicles

D) Other

E) Pupil Transportation

232,104

1,000,104

516,853

30,828

30,828

Total s

232,104

$

1,000,104

$

516,853

$

30,828

30,828
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION

Financial Statements
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at April 30, 2015

2015 2014
Restated (Note 6)
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and bank $ 3,000 S 3,000
Inventories 26,139 37,136
Accounts receivable {Note 2) 240,728 44,569
$ 269,867 $ 84,705
LIABILITIES
Bank Indebtedness (Note 4) 1,236,761 1,599,71%
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 5) 658,272 190,099
Current Portion of long term debt {Note 9) 300,000 -
Deferred revenue {Note 2) 22,315 21,500
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,217,348 1,811,314
Long term debt {(Note 9) - 300,000
Obligations under capital lease (Note 8) 170,672 235,786
LONG TERM LIABILITIES 170,672 535,786
2,388,020 2,347,100
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS { DEBT) $ (2,118,153) $  (2,262,395)
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Tangible capital assets (Schedule 1) $ 16,395,935 S 13,435,602
Prepaid expenses (Note 3} 19,911 28,223
16,415,846 13,463,825
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS S 14,297,693 S 11,201,430

Approved on behalf of Board:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended April 30, 2015

REVENUES

Lift Operations {Schedule 2)
Repair Shop (Schedule 3}

Rental (Schedule 4)

Food and Beverages (Schedule 5)
Ski School (Schedule 6)
Marketing (Schedule 7)

Marbie Villa (Schedule 8)
Government Transfers (Note 7)
Wage Subsidy Grant

Total revenues

EXPENSES

Administration

Bad Debts

Board and Committee Meetings
Communications
Directors Fees

Donations

Interest and Bank Charges
Interest on Capital Leases
Labour

Miscellaneous
Professional Fees

Travel and Conference

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets
Total expenses

OPERATING DEFICIT

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)

Insurance Proceeds

Government Grants
Gain (loss) on Disposal of Assets

ANNUAL SURPLUS

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, BEGINNING OF YEAR, as restated

(Note 6)
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, END OF YEAR

2015 2014
Actual Actual
Restated (Note 6)
$ (396,535) $ (319,219)
30,511 33,499
137,278 136,088
152,652 133,515
29,452 13,841
(54,799) (47,003)
221,893 148,851
840,000 840,000
- 1,440
960,452 941,012
24,341 36,396
931 -
- 1,045
6,350 16,323
7,325 4,255
9,401 9,439
34,834 51,980
11,937 15,511
208,631 219,304
2,047 5,709
12,906 16,397
11,655 9,187
330,358 385,546
1,364,368 1,290,652
1,694,726 1,676,198
(734,274) (735,186}
1,200,000 s
3,160,872 .
{530,335) 4,620
,830, 4,620
3,096,263 (730,566)
11,201,430 11,931,996
14,297,693 11,201,430

The accompanylng notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS (NET DEBT)
Year ended April 30, 2015

ANNUAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT)

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets
Decrease (Increase) in deferred revenue
Decrease (Increase) in prepaids

CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS (NET DEBT),
BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS (NET DEBT),
END OF YEAR

2015 2014
Restated (Note 6)
$ 3,096,263 S (735,186)
(4,845,775) (582,001)
1,364,368 1,290,650
530,335 -
- 17,400
- 840,000
(949) 27,739
(2,952,021) 1,593,788
144,242 858,602
(2,262,395) (3,120,997)
$ (2,118,153) S (2,262,395)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
Year Ended April 30, 2015

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Annual surplus
Iltems not affecting cash
Amortization of tangible assets
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Changes in non-cash items
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Deferred charges

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES

Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets
Cash Flow from Capital Activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds (repayment) of Bank Indebtedness
Proceeds from Obligations Under Capital Lease
Repayment of Obligations Under Capital Leases
Cash Flow from (used by) Financing Activities
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH FLOW

CASH AND BANK, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND BANK, END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements

2015

2014
Restated (Note 6)

$ 3,096,263

$ (735,186)

1,364,368 1,290,650
530,335 ]
{(196,159) 32,206
468,173 {168,741)

816 (28,165)
(949) 18,769

10,998 (1,383)

- (27,780)

5,273,845 380,370
(4,845,775) (582,001)
- 17,400

(4,845,775) (564,601)
(362,954) 204,220
- 47,939

(65,116) (67,928)
(428,070) 184,231
3,000 3,000
9 3,000 S 3,000




MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
Year Ended April 30, 2015

1. Significant Accounting Policies

a) Description of Operations

The Organization is an "Other Government Organization” (0GO) incorporated under the Corporations Act
of Newfoundland and Labrador. Its affairs are managed by a Board of Directors appointed by the
Lieutenant Governor in Council. The Corporation is a not-for-profit organization under the Income Tax

Act and accordingly is exempt from income taxes, provided certain requirements of the Income Tax Act
are met.

b) Management's Responsibility for the Financiat Statements
The financial statements of the Other Government Organization are the responsibility of management.
c) Basis of Accounting

These financial statements have been prepared using Canadian public sector accounting standards.
d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand.

e) inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on the first-in first-
out basis

f) Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Cost includes all costs

Area Improvements 30 years
Buildings 15-40 years
Computer Equipment 3 years
Equipment under Capital Lease 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Lifts 30 years
Rental Equipment 3 years
Signs 5 years
Vehicles 3-20 years
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
Year Ended April 30, 2015

g) Government Transfers

Government transfers are recognized as revenue in the financial statements when the transfer is
authorized and any eligible criteria are met, except to the extent that transfer stipulations give rise to an
obligation that meets the definition of a liability. Transfers are recognized as deferred revenue when
transfer stipulations give rise to a liability. Transfer revenue is recognized in the statement of operations
as the stipulation liabilities are settled.

h) Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sales is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
completed and there are no significant obligations remaining, the sales price is fixed and determinable,

persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists and collectabitity is reasonably assured. This usually occurs
at the time the services are provided.

i) Leased Assets

Leases entered into that transfer substantially all the benefits and risks associated with ownership are
recorded as the acquisition of a tangible capital asset and the incurrence of an obligation. The asset is
amortized in a manner consistent with tangible capital assets owned by the Organization, and the
obligation, including interest thereon, is liquidated over the term of the lease. All other leases are
accounted for as operating leases and the rental costs are expensed as incurred.

j) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses

during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from management's best estimates as additional
information becomes available in the future.

k) Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. Al financial instruments are
reported at cost and are tested for impairment when changes in circumstances indicate the asset could
be impaired. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issue of financial instruments are expensed for
those items remeasured at fair value at each balance sheet date and charged to the financial instrument
for those measured at amortized cost.
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
Year Ended April 30, 2015

5.

1) Non-financial Assets

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for the use in pravision

of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not intended for sale in the
normal course of operations.

Accounts Receivable

2015 2014
Trade S 34,046 $§ 44,569
HST Receivable 206,682 S -
240,728 44,569
Deferred revenue (22,315) (21,500)
The deferred revenue account records any deposits on events for the upcoming year
Prepaid Expenses
2015 2014
Lease of Assets $ 1,651 § 1,651
Computer Support 4,848 3,738
Automation 4,150 4,311
Uniforms 9,262 18,523

$ 19,911 § 28,223

Bank Indebtedness

The line of credit is authorized in the amount of $2,087,000 and bears interest at the bank’s prime rate.
It is secured by a Provincial Government guarantee and letter of indemnity and overdraft agreement
signed by the Board of Directors

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

2015 2014
Trade $ 635,119 § 183,158
HST Payable - (8,287)
Payroll Deductions Payable 23,153 15,228

$ 658,272 $ 190,099
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
Year Ended April 30, 2015

6'

Prior Period Adjustment

PS 3410 - 'Government Transfers' became applicable to Other Government Organizations for fiscal periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2012. As a result, Marble Mountain Development Carporation should have
adopted PS 3410 for the April 30, 2013 fiscal year. Consequently, a prior period adjustment has been
made to accumulated surplus and comparative amounts have been restated to correct an overstatement
of deferred government assistance and deferred grant as all eligibility requirements and stipulations of
the government transfers have been met. The financial statement amounts that are presented for
comparative purposes have been restated as follows:

2014 2014
Previously Decrease Restated
Deferred government assistance 5,986,287 (5,986,287) -
Government transfers revenue 390,000 450,000 840,000
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets (930,650) (360,002) (1,290,652)
Deferred grant. 840,000 (840,000) -
Accumulated Surplus, Beginning of Year 5,195,706 6,736,290 11,931,996
Government Transfers
2015 2014
Provincial Administrative Operating Grant S 390,000 S 390,000
Capital Grants 450,000 450,000
Provincial Marketing Grants 175,000 150,000

$ 1,015,000 $§ 990,000

Obligations under Capital Lease

2015 2014
National Leasing bearing interest at 5.65% per annum, repayable in
monthly blended payments of $4,960. The iease matures on November
1, 2016 and is secured by a charge over specific equipment. 145,675 195,426
National Leasing bearing interest at 6.5% per annum, repayable in
monthly blended payments of $1461. The lease matures on November
1, 2016 and is secured by a charge over specific equipment. 24,997 40,360
S 170,672 § 235,786
Amounts payable within one year (69,027) (65,113)

S 101,644 S 170,673
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
Year Ended April 30, 2015

8. Obligations under Capital Lease (Continued)

Principal payments required over the next two years are as follows:

2016 69,027
2017 101,644
9. Long Term Debt
2015 2014
Department of Innovation, Rural Development and Trade $300,000 $300,000
Current portion of long term debt 300,000 -
Long term debt S - 300,000
10. Patrol Operating Expenses
2015 2014
Labour $ 75,372 5§ 74,339
Supplies 15,416 8,162
Telephone 557 714
Radio Rental 2,200 1,240
Sundry 1,920 3,734

$ 95,465 § 88,189

440



Marble Mountain Development Corporation

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS {(Scheduie 1)
Year Ended April 30, 2015
Tolals
Equipment
Area Computer Under Capital Furniture and Rental
Improvements Bulidings Equipment Lease Fixtures Liftts Equipment Signs Vehicles 2015 2014

Cost
Opening costs $ 10757200 $ 10611966 $ 119006 § 657057 § 826662 $5401572 § 129353 § 96,782 8072735 §36672333  § 36,133,620
Additions during the year - 108,981 47,328 . - 4,371,972 15,747 - 301,747 4,845,775 562,001
Disposals and wiite downs - - - - - {1,628,817) - (1.628,817) {43,288)
Closing casis 10,757,200 10,720,847 166,334 657,057 826,662 B,144,727 145,100 96,782 8,374,482 39,889,291 36,672,333
Accumulated Amortization
Opening accum'd amortization 7,188,198 4,654,028 64,051 340910 807,693 3,360,773 114,493 96,782 6,509,603 23,236,731 21,985,846
Amortization 358,574 266,661 47,557 75,099 4215 193,554 8,569 400,878 1,355,107 1,281,391
Disposals and wiite downs - - - {1,096,482) {1,098,482) (30,506)
Closing accum'd amonization 7,546,772 4,920,689 111,608 415,009 811,908 2.455.845 123,062 96,782 7,010,681 23,493,356 23,236,731
Net Book Value of
Tangible Capita) Assets $§ 3210428 $ 5800258 § 54726 § 201048 § 14,754 §56880882 § 22038 § - $1,363801 § 16395935  § 13,435,602

E — =

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Lift Operations {Schedule 2)
Year Ended April 30, 2015
2015 2014
Revenue
Lift Ticket Revenue $ 487,615 S 589,112
Season Pass Revenue 501,418 611,371
Children Center Revenue 8,387 9,319
Miscellaneous Revenue 87,277 62,865
1,084,697 1,272,667
Expenditures
Children's centre 14,393 11,523
Communications 16,777 7,684
Management contract 86,800 100,800
Equipment rental 12,582 1,462
Heating and electricity 128,769 160,150
Insurance 92,489 94,769
interest and bank charges 41,259 52,727
Labour 460,986 450,703
Lift repairs 31,097 98,279
Maintenance
Building 40,624 47,172
Slopes 69,904 29,148
Miscellaneous 30,417 20,985
Municipal fees 24,000 40,000
Security 540 299
Patrol expenses (Note 10) 95,465 88,189
Snowclearing 33,360 29,400
Snowmaking
Electricity 70,312 97,541
Labour 30,715 30,865
Equipment maintenance 53,339 34,919
Supplies 26,851 32,394
Vehicle operating
Repairs 62,709 78,609
Fuel 50,505 79,733
Uniforms 7,338 4,535
1,481,232 1,591,886
Income from operations S (396,535) S (319,219)

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financlal statamants.
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Repair Shop (Schedule 3)
Year Ended April 30, 2015.

2015 2014
Revenue $ 50,593 S 54,015
Expenditures
Labour 19,312 19,104
Supplies 770 1,412
20,082 20,516
Income from operations S 30,511 S 33,499

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Rental {Schedule 4)
Year Ended April 30, 2015
2015 2014

Revenue $ 187,350 S 187,039
Expenditures

Communications 235 231

Labour 48,607 49,162

Supplies 1,230 1,558

50,072 50,951

Income from operations S 137,278 S 136,088

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Food and Beverages (Schedule 5)
Year Ended April 30, 2015

2015 2014
Revenue S 782,454 S 678,114
Cost of sales 314,681 262,807
Gross profit 467,773 415,307

Expenditures

Communications 1,353 1,343
Entertainment 6,741 4,475
Interest and bank charges 3,633 -
Labour 243,196 227,151
Licenses and fees 920 800
Miscellaneous 18,140 8,644
Repairs and maintenance 14,122 13,849
Security 4,985 3,082
Supplies 21,078 20,021
Utilities 953 2,427
315,121 281,792
Income from operations S 152,652 S 133,515

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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Ski School (Schedtule 6)
Year Ended April 30, 2015

2015 2014

Revenue S 138,203 S 137,510
Expenditures

Communications 566 1,004
Krunchers Club 4,831 3,007
Labour 99,316 113,011
Miscellaneous 1,030 3,056
Supplies 1,862 897
Training 1,004 2,694
Uniforms 142 -
108,751 123,669
Income from operations by 29,452 S 13,841




MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Marketing
Year Ended April 30, 2015

Revenue
Sponsarships
Marketing Revenue - Advertising
Marketing Grant (Note 7)

Expenditures
Advertising
Internet
Partnership Contributions
Print
Digital Media
Communications
Labour
Marketing agency
Membership fees
Office and postage
Ski shows and familiarization tours
Supplies
Travel and meetings
Uniforms

Income from operations

(Schedule 7)

2015 2014

$ 39,400 $ 38,477
22,619 $ 25,558

175,000 150,000
237,019 214,035
1,297 2,049
3,717 3,374

. n

3,381 3,457
92,058 78,009
169,733 155,000
3,142 4,173
4,138 .
5,021 =
7,369 10,176
894 2,876
1,068 1,713
291,818 261,038

$ (54,799) S (47,003)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financlal statements.



MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Marble Villa (Schedule 8)
Year Ended April 30, 2015

2015 2014
Revenue S 409,132 S 326,445
Expenditures
Cable television 5,769 5,540
Communications 8,487 6,159
Heat and light 38,835 41,209
Labour 77,164 62,936
Insurance 5,606 5,097
Interest and bank charges 10,530 10,902
Laundry - 510
Marketing 3,035 3,550
Miscellaneous 1,470 742
Repairs and maintenance 20,670 24,203
Supplies 15,673 16,746
187,239 177,594
Income from operations S 221,893 S 148,851

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Board of Regents of
Memorial University of Newfoundland

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Memorial University
of Newfoundland which comprise the consolidated statement of financia position as at
March 31, 2015 and the consolidated statements of operations, remeasurement gains, changes in
net deficiency and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evauating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evauating the overal presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al materia respects, the
financial position of Memorial University of Newfoundland as at March 31, 2015 and the

results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards.

é\aat *’?«ug LLp

St. John's, Canada
July 9, 2015 Chartered Professional Accountants
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Memorial University of Newfoundland

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

As at March 31
[thousands of dollars]

ASSETS

Current

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash [note 4]
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable

Other current assets

Total current assets

Portfolio investments [note 6]
Assets under construction /note 8]
Tangible capital assets [note 7]
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current

Bank indebtedness [note 5]

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities /note 4]
Deferred revenue

Deferred contributions - external grants and donations [note 10]
Current portion of long term debt [note 11]
Total current liabilities

Long term debt [note 11]

Derivative liability [note 5]

Post-employment benefits [note 12]

Deferred capital contributions /note 9]

Total liabilities

NET DEFICIENCY

Net assets restricted for endowment purposes
Net assets related to remeasurement gains
Unrestricted net deficiency

Total net deficiency

Total liabilities and net deficiency

See accompanying notes
Contingencies [note 13]

On behalf of the Board:

Chair of the goard of Regents
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Statement 1

2015 2014
12,613 19,511
3,678 7,426
133,978 132,171
64,684 64,871
6,889 7,400
221,842 231,379
118,522 107,684
55,487 141,954
340,512 241,375
736,363 722,392
11,341 12,533
51,371 63,235
35,882 37,347
96,085 97,498
249 517
194,928 211,130
206 312
1,725 1,643
185,959 171,817
376,198 362,473
759,016 747,375
84,756 74,018
6,083 7,255

(113,492) (106,256)

(22,653) (24,983)
736,363 722,392
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M emorial University of Newfoundland Statement 2

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Y ear ended March 31
[thousands of dollars]

2015 2014

REVENUE
Government grants 440,879 444,274
Other income 67,912 61,489
Student fees 63,558 62,469
Amortization of deferred capital contributions [note 9] 36,427 25,561
Sales and services 13,953 13,612
I nvestment income 8,867 7,701

631,596 615,106
EXPENSES
Sdlaries and employee benefits 422,323 412,558
Amortization of tangible capital assets 34,163 25,789
Materials and supplies 33,164 37,061
Repairs and maintenance 28,359 32,486
Scholarships, bursaries and awards 28,353 26,567
Utilities 27,369 28,218
Externally contracted service 18,734 16,720
Travel and hosting 16,969 16,733
Professional fees 14,516 11,786
Post-employment benefits [ note 12] 14,142 13,475
Other operating expenses 12,835 17,243
Equipment rentals 3,937 4,096
Interest expense 532 587
External cost recoveries (20,788) (19,132)

634,608 624,187
Excess of expenses over revenue (3,012 (9,081)

See accompanying notes
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M emorial University of Newfoundland Statement 3
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
REM EASUREM ENT GAINS

Y ear ended March 31
[thousands of dollars]

2015 2014

Accumulated remeasurement gains
at beginning of year 7,255 1,916
Unrealized gains (losses) attributable to:

Portfolio investments 1,172 6,427

Derivative liability [ note 5] (82) 534
Realized losses reclassified to consolidated statement of operations:

Portfolio investments (2,262) (1,622)
Accumulated remeasurement gains
at end of year 6,083 7,255

See accompanying notes
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M emorial University of Newfoundland

Asat March 31
[thousands of dollars]

Balance, beginning of year

Change in remeasurement gains
for the current year

Excess of revenue over expense
(expense over revenue)

Endowment contributions
Balance, end of year

See accompanying notes

Statement 4
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN NET DEFICIENCY
Net Assets Net Assets
Restricted for Related to Unrestricted
Endowment Remeasurement Net
Purposes Gains Deficiency 2015 2014
74,018 7,255 (106,256) (24,983) (22,758)
(1,172) (1,172) 5,339
4,224 (7,236) (3,012 (9,081)
6,514 6,514 1,517
84,756 6,083 (113,492) (22,653) (24,983)
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M emorial University of Newfoundland

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended March 31
[thousands of dollars]

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Excess of expenses over revenue

Items not affecting cash:
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Amortization of deferred capital contributions
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets

Increase in post-employment benefits, net

Change in non-cash working capital

Cash (used in) provided by operating activities

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES

Purchase of tangible capital assets

Net change in assets under construction (purchases less transfers)
Contributions received for capital purposes

Cash provided by capital activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Increase in short-term investments, net
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash, net
Increase in portfolio investments, net
Cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Decrease in bank indebtedness, net

Endowment contributions

Decrease in long-term debt, net

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
during the year

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See accompanying notes
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Statement 5

2015 2014
(3,012) (9,081)
34,163 25,789

(36,427) (25,561)
2,223 48
14,142 13,475
(14,046) 22,795
(2,957) 27,465

(135,523) (76,194)
86,467 18,096
50,152 60,386

1,096 2,288
(1,807) (21,742)
3,748 (670)
(11,926) (1,146)
(9,985) (23,558)
(1,192) (1,215)
6,514 1,517
(374) (514)
4,948 (212)
(6,898) 5,983
19,511 13,528
12,613 19,511




Memorial University of Newfoundland
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015

1. AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

Memorial University of Newfoundland [the “University”’] is a corporation operating under the authority of the
Memorial University Act. The University is an inclusive community dedicated to innovation and excellence in
teaching and learning, research, scholarship, creative activity, service and public engagement. It isacomprehensive
research university offering a full range of undergraduate, graduate and continuing studies programs. The academic
governance of the University is vested in the Senate. The University is a government not-for-profit organization
[GNPO], governed by a Board of Regents, the majority of whom are appointed by the Government of
Newfoundland and Labrador. The University is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act [Canada] and,
accordingly, is exempt from income taxes, provided certain requirements of the Income Tax Act [ Canada] are met.

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the University have been prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards for GNPO'’s, including the 4200 series of standards, as issued by the
Public Sector Accounting Board [PSAB].

Reporting entity

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the University and the
following not-for-profit organizations, which are controlled by the University:

C-CORE

Campus Childcare Inc.

The Canadian Centre for Fisheries Innovation

Genesis Group Inc.

Memorial University Recreation Complex

Western Sports and Entertainment Inc. (ceased operations August 31, 2014)

All intercompany assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses have been eliminated.

Use of estimates

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liahilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year at the date of the consolidated financial statements. Actual
results could differ from these estimates. Estimates are reviewed periodically, and as adjustments become
necessary, they are reported in the earnings of the period during which they became known. Areas of key estimation
include actuarial assumptions for post-employment benefits, allowance for doubtful accounts, amortization rates and
cost of assets under construction.

457



Memorial University of Newfoundland
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015

Revenuerecognition

Revenues from contracts, sales and other ancillary services [parking, residence, sundry sales, etc.] are recognized
when the goods or services are provided and collection is reasonably assured.

Student fees are recognized as revenue when courses or seminars are held.

Investment income (loss) recorded in the statement of operations consists of interest, dividends, income distributions
from pooled funds and realized gains and losses, net of related fees. Unrealized gains and losses are recorded in the
statement of remeasurement gains, except to the extent they relate to deferred contributions and to endowments, in
which case they are added to the respective balance.

The University follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions, which include donations and
government grants, as follows:

Contributions are recorded in the accounts when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be
reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when initially recorded in the accounts.

Contributions externally restricted for purposes other than endowment are initially deferred and recognized as
revenue in the year during which the related expenses are incurred.

Restricted contributions for the purchase of capital assets are deferred and amortized to operations on the same
basis asthe related asset.

Endowment contributions are recognized as direct increases in the net assets in the year during which they are
received.

Restricted investment income [interest, dividends, realized gains and losses] is recognized in the year in which
the related expenses are incurred.

Restricted investment income [interest, dividends, realized gains and losses] that must be maintained as an
endowment is recorded as a direct increase/decrease to net assets.

Endowments

Endowments consist of internally and externally restricted donations received by the University. The endowment
principal is required to be maintained intact, with the investment income generated used for the purposes established
by the donors. The University ensures, as part of its fiduciary responsibilities, that all funds received with a
restricted purpose are expended for the purpose for which they were provided. The University has established a
policy with the objective of protecting the real value of the endowments. The amount of income made available for
spending is prescribed annually and an amount is added to endowment net assets for capital preservation every three
years.
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Expense recognition

Expenses are recorded on the accrual basis as they are incurred and measureable based on receipt of goods or
services and obligation to pay.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on deposit, investments in money-market funds and short-term investments

with original termsto maturity of 90 days or less. Cash and cash equivalents held by external investment managers
for investing rather than liquidity purposes are classified as investments.

Tangible capital assets

Purchased tangible capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed tangible capital assets are recorded at fair value
at the date of acquisition. Repairs and maintenance expenditures are charged to operations asincurred. Betterments
which meet certain criteria are capitalized.

The University’s permanent art collection is expensed when purchased and the value of donated art is not
recognized in these consolidated financial statements.

The University’slibrary collection is capitalized and recorded at cost.

Assets under construction are recorded as such in the consolidated statement of financial position until the asset is
ready for productive use, at which timeit istransferred to tangible capital assets and amortized.

Assets under capital lease are recorded as tangible capital assets and amortized on the same basis as the underlying
asset.

Tangible capital assets are amortized over their useful lives using the following methods and rates. Half a year's
amortization istaken in the year of acquisition and no amortization is taken in the year of disposal.

Asset Rate Method
Buildings 8% Declining balance
Furniture and equipment 20% Declining balance
Computers 30% Declining balance
Software 20% Declining balance
Vehicles and vessels 30% Declining balance
Library collection 10 years Straight line

Impairment of long-lived assets

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate they no longer contribute to the University’s
ability to provide goods and services, or when the value of the future economic benefits associated with the tangible
capital assets is less than their net book value. The net write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the
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consolidated statement of operations. Any associated unamortized deferred capital contributions related to the
derecognized assetsis recognized in income.

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are trandated into Canadian dollars at the
exchange rate in effect at year end. Operating revenue and expenses are trandated at exchange rates prevailing on
the transaction dates. Realized gains or losses arising from these translations are included in the statement of
operations. Unrealized gains or losses are included in the statement of remeasurement gains, except to the extent
they relate to deferred contributions, in which case they are added to the balance.

Post-employment benefits
Pension plan

The employees of the University participate in a defined benefit pension plan [the Plan] administered under the
Memorial University Pensions Act with any deficiencies being funded by the Province of Newfoundland and
Labrador. Payments to the Plan consist of contributions from employees together with matching amounts from the
University plus any additional amounts required to be paid by an employer as prescribed in the Pension Benefits Act
(1997) [PBA]. In addition to its matching contributions, the University made a special payment of $20.3 million to
the Plan during the year. This payment was made against the going concern unfunded liability, not attributable to
indexing, that was identified in the December 31, 2012 valuation of the Plan. Subsequent to March 31, 2015, the
balance of the special payment required for 2014/15, $2.3 million, was paid.

With respect to a solvency deficiency, the PBA requires that an employer contribute an amount sufficient to
liquidate the deficiency within five years of the solvency valuation date. The University is exempt from the solvency
funding requirements of the PBA until December 31, 2015. The University’s contributions to the pension plan are
recorded as an expense in the consolidated statement of operations. The assets and obligations of the plan are not
recorded in these consolidated financial statements.

An actuaria valuation of the Plan was performed for funding purposes as at December 31, 2012. Annual accounting
valuations have also been performed as at December 31, 2013 and 2014 and the results have been extrapolated to
March 31, 2014 and 2015 for financial statement reporting.

The extrapolation revealed that the going concern unfunded liability is $202.6 million at March 31, 2015 based on
current Plan provisions and PBA requirements. Under the PBA, a going concern unfunded liability must be funded
over a period of not more than 15 years while a solvency deficiency must be funded over a maximum five-year
period. A portion of the going concern unfunded liability relates to the past service cost of indexing, introduced
under the Plan, effective July 1, 2004. A funding arrangement was implemented coinciding with the introduction of
indexing to liquidate this unfunded liability over a period of 40 years. At March 31, 2015, approximately 29.25
years are remaining in the amortization schedule. The indexing liability is amortized on a declining balance basis
along with recognition that if the indexing contributions (i.e., an additional 0.6% of payroll being made by both the
University and employees) exceed the originally scheduled amortization payment, that 15 years worth of these
excess contributions can be accounted for when determining the University’ s special payments.
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The University is required to make specia payments to fund the going concern unfunded liability revealed in the
December 31, 2012 actuarial valuation. As at December 31, 2012 the going concern unfunded liability was $292.7
million. The portion of the going concern unfunded liability (after accounting for the indexing liability) to be
amortized was $220.0 million and the required amortization payment for fiscal 2015/2016 is $23.5 million (or 7.2%
of pensionable payroll) (2014/2015 - $22.6 million). University special payments will continue at this level (i.e,
7.2% of pensionable payroll) until the next actuarial valuation for funding purposes, which is due no later than
December 31, 2015 (i.e., within three years of the December 31, 2012 actuaria valuation). Subsequent to March 31,
2015, the University requested a regulatory exemption under the PBA that would allow a one-year deferral of the
2015/2016 specia payment.

Other post-employment benefits

In addition to the University’s pension plan, the University aso has defined benefit plans for other post-
employment benefits. These benefits are actuarially determined using the projected benefit method prorated on
service and the administration’s best estimate of salary escalation, retirement ages of employees and escalation on
covered benefit expense outlays. Liabilities are measured using a discount rate determined by reference to the
University’s cost of borrowing. Actuarial gains and losses will be amortized over the average remaining service life
of employees.

The post-employment benefits are:

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan
Voluntary Early Retirement Income Plan
Other benefits [severance, group life insurance and health care benefits]

Financial instruments

The University classifies its financial instruments as either fair value or amortized cost. The University determines
the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition. The accounting policy for each category is as
follows:

Fair value

This category includes cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, bank indebtedness, derivatives and equity
investments quoted in an active market as well as investments in pooled funds for identical assets or liabilities using
the last bid price. The University has designated its bond portfolio that would otherwise be classified into the
amortized cost category at fair value as the University manages and reports performance of it on afair value basis.

Transaction costs related to these financial instruments are expensed as incurred.

Unrealized changes in fair value are recognized in the consolidated statement of remeasurement gains and are
reclassified to the consolidated statement of operations upon disposal or settlement.

Where a decline in fair value is determined to be other than temporary, the amount of the loss is removed from
accumulated remeasurement gains and recognized in the consolidated statement of operations. If the loss
subsequently reverses, the writedown to the consolidated statement of operations is not reversed until the investment
issold.
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Amortized cost

This category includes short term investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and
debt. They are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method, less any impairment losses.

Transaction costs related to financial instruments in the amortized cost category are capitalized and amortized over
the term of the instrument.

Short term investments consist of investments in debt securities, whether or not quoted in an active market, initially
recorded at fair value plus financing fees and transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition or
disposal. These debt securities are thereafter carried at amortized cost using the straight line amortization method.

Write-downs of financial assets in the amortized cost category are recognized when the amount of the loss is known
with sufficient precision, and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Financia assets are then written down to net
recoverable value with the write-down being recognized in the consolidated statement of operations.

Derivativefinancial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are utilized by the University in the management of interest rate exposure related to
its bank indebtedness. The University may also enter into foreign exchange forward contracts to eliminate the risk of
fluctuating foreign exchange rates on future commitments. The University does not utilize derivative financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

The University enters into interest rate swaps in order to reduce the impact of fluctuating interest rates on its floating
rate bank indebtedness. These swap agreements require the periodic exchange of payments without the exchange of
the notional principal amount on which the payments are based.

Contributed materials and services

If contributed materials meet the definition of a tangible capital asset, and fair value is determinable, the University
capitalizes and amortizes the tangible capital asset. All other contributed materials are not recognized in these
consolidated financial statements.

Volunteers, including volunteer efforts from the staff of the University, contribute an indeterminable number of
hours per year to assist the University in carrying out its service delivery activities. The cost that would otherwise
be associated with these contributed servicesis not recognized in these consolidated financial statements.

Agency obligations

The University acts as an agent which holds resources and makes disbursements on behalf of various unrelated
groups. The University has no discretion over such agency transactions. Resources received in connection with
such agency transactions are reported as liabilities and subsequent distributions are recorded as decreases in these
lighilities.
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3. MEMORIAL UNIVERSITY ACT

In accordance with the Memorial University Act, the University is normally prohibited from recording a deficit on
its consolidated financia statementsin excess of ¥4 of 1% of itstotal revenue.

During 1996, pursuant to Section 36 of the Memorial University Act, the University received approval from the
Lieutenant-Governor in Council to record a deficit of up to $5.0 million in 1996 and an additional $10.0 millionin
1997 asaresult of the recognition of the liabilities related to VERIP for faculty and staff.

During 2001, the University received approval from the Lieutenant-Governor in Council to exclude from the
definition of a deficit, pursuant to Section 36 of the Memorial University Act, any amounts resulting from the
recognition of the liabilities related to recording vacation pay entitlements, severance and other post-employment
benefits.

4. RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash consists of premiums paid to Manulife Financial on behalf of employees which are held in an
interest-bearing bank account to be used to fund future rate increases or enhancements in the long-term disability
and basic term life insurance plans. The related liability isincluded in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

5. BANK INDEBTEDNESS

Pursuant to Section 41 of the Memorial University Act, the University has received approval from the Lieutenant-
Governor in Council to borrow to finance two capital projects. The projects involved the construction of a new
residence complex for Grenfell Campus [Project 1] and the implementation of an energy performance program in
five buildings on the University’s main campus in St. John's [Project 2]. The debt has been negotiated using
bankers' acceptances [BA’s] which mature during the 2015/16 fiscal year. Management expects to refinance these
loans through BA’s for the balance of the term of the loan. Disclosure related to interest rate risk is provided in note
14.

Derivative liability

Project 1 interest rate swap transaction involves the exchange of the underlying floating rate Canadian BA for a
fixed interest rate of 4.76% expiring April 12, 2017 with a notional amount of $2.0 million. The fair value of this
interest rate swap is $0.15 million [2014 - $0.19 million].

Project 2 interest rate swap transaction involves the exchange of the underlying floating rate Canadian BA for a

fixed interest rate of 5.12% expiring October 1, 2022 with a notional amount of $9.4 million. The fair value of this
interest rate swap is $1.57 million [2014 - $1.45 million].

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT CLASSIFICATION

Financial instruments measured at fair value are classified according to a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
importance of the data used to perform each valuation. The fair value hierarchy is made up of the following levels:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities using the last bid price.
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Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data.

[thousands of dollarg] 2015 2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Tota
Cash and cash equivalents 12,613 - - 12,613 19,511
Restricted cash 3,678 - - 3,678 7,426
Investments
Publicly traded equity - CDN 32,784 - - 32,784 26,193
Publicly traded equity — USD 13,771 - - 13,771 8,463
Publicly traded equity — Global 2,536 - - 2,536 5,580
Fixed income - 69,431 - 69,431 67,448
Bank indebtedness - 11,341 - 11,341 12,533
Derivative liability - - 1,725 1,725 1,643
Total 65,382 80,772 1,725 147,879 148,797

7.  TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

[thousands of dollars] 2015 2014
Accumulated Net Book

Cost Amortization Net Book Value Value

Buildings 419,913 174,683 245,230 152,078
Furniture and equipment 148,135 89,857 58,278 52,217
Computers 29,521 21,839 7,682 7,410
Software 4,787 2,771 2,016 2,563
Vehicles and vessels 5,927 4,921 1,006 273
Library collection 155,763 129,463 26,300 26,834
Total 764,046 423,534 340,512 241,375

Amortization expense for the year is $34.2 million (2014 - $25.8 million).
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8. ASSETSUNDER CONSTRUCTION

Assets under construction represent costs incurred to date on the construction of new facilities. Assets under
construction are as follows:

[thousands of dollarg] 2015 2014
Project Description

Ocean Sciences Center Deep Water Supply 25,049 24,127
100 Signal Hill Road Property 12,412 11,229
Core Science Facility 8,318 1,054
Grenfell Campus Environmental Labs 3,791 3,731
Offshore Operations Simulator 3,691 1,244
HMDC Offshore Operations Facility 1,799 51
MV Shamook Vessel Renovation 323 -
Mount Scio Road Warehouse 82 -
Engineering High Bay Labs 13 -
Animal Care Unit Expansion 9 -
Medica School Extension - 54,085
MUN Residences - 32,388
Engineering Expansion - 6,464
C-CORE Expansion - 6,239
GC Environmental Lab Equipment - 1,015
GC Emergency Generator - 301
Training Boat and Launching System - 26
Total 55,487 141,954

9. DEFERRED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Deferred capital contributions related to tangible capital assets represent the unamortized and unspent amount of
donations and grants received for the purchase of tangible capital assets. The amortization of deferred capital
contributions is recorded as revenue in the consolidated statement of operations.

[thousands of dollarg] 2015 2014
Balance, beginning of year 362,473 327,648
Additional contributions received 50,152 60,386
Less amounts amortized to revenue (36,427) (25,561)
Balance, end of year 376,198 362,473
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10. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS-EXTERNAL GRANTSAND DONATIONS

Deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods represent unspent externally restricted grants and
donations for research and other programs.

[thousands of dollars] 2015 2014
Balance, beginning of year 97,498 89,179
Grants and donations received during the year 56,945 73,136
Less expenses incurred during the year (58,358) (64,817)
Balance, end of year 96,085 97,498

11. LONG-TERM DEBT

[thousands of dollars] 2015 2014

CMHC mortgage on Queen’s College, 5.875% interest, repayable in 50 equal,

blended payments of $29 semi-annually, maturing in June 2018, secured 182 227

Capital leases negotiated through the RBC Royal Bank, varying interest rates,

payablein equal annual installments, secured by assets under lease 273 602
455 829

Less: current portion 249 517
206 312

Annual repayments of long-term debt over the next five years are as follows:

2016 $249
2017 $124
2018 $54
2019 $28
2020 -

12. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The University has a number of post-employment benefit liabilities including employee future benefits (severance,
health and dental benefits and life insurance), Voluntary Early Retirement Income Plan (VERIP) and Supplemental
Retirement Income Plan (SRIP). The last valuation was performed on December 31, 2012 and extrapolated in each
subsequent year for accounting purposes.

Employee Futur e Benefits

The University provides group life insurance and health care benefits on a cost shared basis to retired employees,
and in certain cases, their surviving spouses. In addition, the University pays severance to certain employee groups
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upon termination, retirement or death, provided they meet certain eligibility criteria. The cost of providing these
future benefitsis unfunded. Current year payments are funded on an annual basis from operations.

The significant actuarial assumptions used in measuring these benefits include the following:

2015 2014

Discount rate:
Liability 3.40% 4.40%
Expense 4.40% 4.10%
Average rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00%

The health care inflation rate is 7% in year 1 following the valuation date, reducing 0.5% per year to 4% in year 7
and later (2015 — 6%, 2014 — 6.5%). Thereisno explicit inflation rate assumption.

Voluntary Early Retirement Income Plan (VERIP)

In February and May 1996, the University offered faculty and staff, who reached age 55 and attained a minimum of
10 years pensionable service, an opportunity to take an early retirement under the provisions of the VERIP. Subject
to eligibility criteria, the Plan provided an incentive of enhanced pension benefits of up to five years' pensionable
service and waiver of actuarial reduction, if applicable, or a lump sum early retirement payment. The early
retirement incentive is unfunded. Current year payments are funded on an annual basis from operations.

The significant actuarial assumptions used in measuring these benefits include the following:

2015 2014

Discount rate
Liability 2.60% 3.70%
Expense 3.70% 3.25%

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (SRIP)

In May 1996, the Board of Regents approved a SRIP to provide benefits to employees of the University whose
salaries exceed the Canada Revenue Agency maximum pensionable salary and whose defined benefit pension,
therefore, exceeds the maximum benefit payable from the Plan.

The significant actuarial assumptions used in measuring these benefits include the following:

2015 2014

Discount rate
Liability 3.40% 4.40%
Expense 4.40% 4.00%
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The accrued liability and expense of these post-employment benefits are outlined in the tables below:

[thousands of dollars]

Post-employment benefits
Unamortized actuarial loss
Total liability

[thousands of dollarg]

Post-employment benefits
Unamortized actuarial 10ss
Total liability

[thousands of dollarg]

Current year benefit costs

Interest on accrued benefit obligations
Benefit payments

Amortized actuarial 1osses

Total expense

[thousands of dollars]

Current year benefit costs

Interest on accrued benefit obligations
Benefit payments

Amortized actuarial losses

Total expense

2015
Employee
Future Totd
Benefits VERIP SRIP Liability
218,745 6,290 27,281 252,316
(57,490) - (8,867) (66,357)
161,255 6,290 18,414 185,959
2014
Employee
Future Total
Benefits VERIP SRIP Liability
170,908 6,080 21,601 198,589
(21,631) - (5,141) (26,772)
149,277 6,080 16,460 171,817
2015
Employee
Future Total
Benefits VERIP SRIP Expense
6,334 - 1,005 7,339
7,701 216 984 8,901
(4,257) (499) (488) (5,244)
2,200 493 453 3,146
11,978 210 1,954 14,142
2014
Employee
Future Totd
Benefits VERIP SRIP Expense
6,296 - 1,058 7,354
6,725 200 853 7,778
(3,764) (514) (436) (4,714)
2,579 - 478 3,057
11,836 (314) 1,953 13,475
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13. CONTINGENCIES
Canadian Univer sity Reciprocal Insurance Exchange (CURIE)

The University participates in a self-insurance cooperative involving a contractual agreement to share the insurance,
property and liability risks of member universities for aterm of not less than five years.

In the event the premiums are not sufficient to cover claims settlements, the member universities would be subject to
an assessment in proportion to their participation. For the year ended December 31, 2014, CURIE had a surplus of
$7.6 million and a cumulative subscribers’ equity of $74.2 million. The University’s pro-rata share is approximately
3% on an ongoing basis.

14. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSAND RISK MANAGEMENT

Market risk

The University is exposed to market risk on its investments due to future fluctuations in market prices. Thisrisk is
managed by a Statement of Investment Policy and Objectives approved by the Board of Regents which includes
investment policy provisions for an acceptable asset mix structure and quality constraints on fixed income
instruments.

(a) Currency Risk

Currency risk relates to the University operating in different currencies and converting non-Canadian
transactions at different points in time when adverse changes in foreign currency rates occur. The University
minimizes foreign currency risk to protect the value of foreign cash flows, both committed and anticipated, by
using foreign exchange contracts when market conditions are judged to be favorable. There have been no
significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or policies, procedures and methods used to
mesasure the risk.

[thousands of dollars]

2015 Foreign Currency Fair Values Impact of 1% Absolute Changein
Denominated Assets (CAD) Exchange Rates on Net Assets
US Equity 13,771 137.71
Globa Equity 2,536 25.36

(b) Interest raterisk

Interest rate risk refers to the effect on the fair value or future cash flows of a financia instrument due to
fluctuations in interest rates. The University’s exposure to interest rate risk relates to its floating interest rate
bank indebtedness which utilizes BA's and exposes the University to cash flow risk. The University has
managed this floating interest rate risk by entering into interest rate swap agreements with the RBC Royal
Bank to offset the movement in the BA rates. Any change in BA rates will be offset by a corresponding change
in the interest rate swap. The fair value of these interest rate swap agreements are recorded in the consolidated
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statement of financial position and the change in value is reflected in the consolidated statement of
remeasurement gains.

Credit risk

Credit risk istherisk of loss due to the failure of a counterparty to satisfy its obligations. The University is exposed
to credit risk with respect to accounts receivable from students, governments and other clients as well as through its
investments in fixed income and equity securities. Services are provided to a large number of students and entities,
which minimizes the concentration of credit risk. The University routinely monitors the receivable balances and
establishes an appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts based upon factors surrounding credit risk, historical
trends, and other information. The University limits its exposure to credit loss on fixed income by investing in
securities with high credit quality. To maximize the credit quality of its investments, the University performs
ongoing credit evaluations based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of issuers, historical trends and other
information. The fair value of debt securities includes consideration of the credit worthiness of the debt issuer. All
transactions executed by the University in listed equities are settled upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk
of default is considered minimal, as the delivery of those securities sold is made only when the broker has received
payment. Payment is made on purchases only when the security is received by the broker. The trade will fail to
consummate if either party failsto meet its obligation. The maximum risk of loss at March 31, 2015 islimited to the
amounts as shown on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Liquidity risk
The University is exposed to liquidity risk with respect to its contractual obligations and financial liabilities. This
risk is managed by maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalents. The University believes that cash and cash

equivalents on hand, future cash flows from government grants and student fees will be adequate to meet its
financial obligations.

15. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain figures from the prior period have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted for the current
period.
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Multi-Materials Stewardship Board

Consolidated Statement of Operations (Note 13)
Actual Budget Actual
Year Ended March 31 2015 2015 2014
Revenue
Gross revenue from deposits $ 25,223,479  § 24,507,308  § 24,364,719
By-product revenue 2,573,049 2,132,006 2,191,590
Other revenue (Note 10) 591,700 - 221,604
Income from Organics program - - 22
Income from Household Hazardous
Waste Program - 12,445 =
28,388,228 26,651,759 26,777,935
Cost of sales
Deposits refunded 8,774,749 8,631,150 8,436,039
Green School Program 709,093 814,189 751,596
Handling fees 7,302,157 7,054,672 7,151,961
Regional processing 1,321,901 1,405,541 1,509,452
Freight and transportation 4,169,634 3,963,082 3,946,078
Depot fees 372,541 378,000 381,206
Quality assurance facilities 31,375 13,500 69,968
22,681,450 22,280,134  _ 22,246,300
Annual surplus before expenses and
other activities 5,706,778 4,371,625 4,531,635
Expenses
Administrative expenses (Page 20) 3,647,243 3,566,047 2,906,304
Grant disbursements 767,708 881,000 1,100,807
— 4414951 __4447047 4007111
Annual surplus (deficit) before other activities 1,291,827 5,422 524,524
Other activities
Realized gain (loss) attributed to
foreign exchanges 21,206 - (21,108
Interest and sundry income 137,795 100,000 127,869
Note receivable grant expense — (3,186) = (1050)
155,815 100,000 105,711
Annual sutplus $ 1,447,642 3§ 24578 $ 630,235

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Multi-Materials Stewardship Board

Consolidated Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses
Year Ended March 31 2015 2014

Accumulated remeasurement gains,

beginning of year $ - $ 77,218

(77,218)

Reversal of unrealized gains attributed to foreign exchanges

Accumulated remeasurement gains, end of year $ - $ -

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

477



Multi-Materials Stewardship Board

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Accumulated Surplus

(Note 13)
Actual Budget Actual
Year Ended March 31 2015 2015 2014
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year, as
pteviously reported $10,644,323  §10,644,323 $ 9,424,153
Prior period adjustment (Note 13) 140,656 - 730,591
Accumulated sutplus, beginning of year,
as restated 10,784,979 10,644,323 10,154,744
Annual surplus 1,447,642 24,578 630,235
Accumulated surplus, end of year $12,232,621  § 10,668,901 $ 10,784,979

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets

(Note 13)

Actual Budget Actual

Year Ended March 31 2015 2015 2014
Annual surplus $ 1,447,642 § 24578 % 630,235

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capiral assets
(Increase} decrease in prepaids
Increase (decrease) in net assets

Net financial assets, beginning of year

Net financial assets, end of year

(249,535) (497,000) (398,663)
222,291 182,088 125,909
(12,765) - 18,171

1,407,633 (290,334) 375,652

9,711,342 9,711,242 9,335,690

$ 11,118,975  § 9421,008 § 9,711,342

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Multi-Materials Stewardship Board

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(Note 13)
Year Ended March 31 2015 2014
Increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Operating
Annual surplus $ 1,447,642 § 630,235
Amortization 222,291 125,909
1,669,933 756,144
Change in non-cash items (Note 8) (592,786) (39,806
Cash provided by operating transactions 1,077,147 1,396,010
Capital
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (249,535) (398,663)
Investing
(Increase) decrease in notes teceivable (8,071) 14,413
Decrease in long term investments 253,362 25011
Cash provided by investing transactions 245,291 39,424
Financing
(Decrease) increase in performance bonds payable (211,450) 16,805
Increase (decrease) in accrued severance pay 1399 (1.984)
Cash (applied to) provided by financing transactions (197,459) 14,821
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 875,444 1,051,592
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of vear 13,305,992 12,254 4

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$ 14,181,436

$ 13,305,992

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Multi-Materials Stewardship Board

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Match 31, 2015

1. Nature of operations

The Multi-Materials Stewardship Board is a statutory corporation established pursuant to The
Environmental Protection Act. This Board manages the Used Beverage Container Deposit
Refund System, the Used Tire Recycling Program and the Newfoundland and Labrador Waste
Management Trust Fund in the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador and is mandated to
suppott and promote the protection, enhancement and wise use of the environment through
waste management programs. The Board is a government ogganization and reports to the
Minister of Envitonment and Conservation.

The Board is exempt from income taxes under Section 149(1)(d) of the Canadian Income Tax
Act.

2. Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Multu-Materials Stewardship
Board and the Newfoundland and Labrador Waste Management Trast Fund.

The Multi-Materials Stewardship Board Newfoundland and Labrador Waste Management Trust
Fund is a restricted fund, managed by the Board, and its accounts have been grouped in these
financial statements for consolidation purposes. Separate audited financial statements have been
tssued for this Trust Fund, with an audit teport date of June 26, 2015.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles as recommended by the CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting Board
(PSAB) and reflect the following significant accounting policies.

Use of estimates

In preparing the Board’s financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
petiod. Items requiring the use of significant estimates include the accrual for deposits
outstanding at year end, useful life of tangible capital assets, rates of amortization and
impairment of long-lived assets, accrued stockpile costs, unearned revenue and accrued
severance pay.

Estimates are based on the best information available at the time of preparation of the financial
statements and are reviewed annually to reflect new information as it becomes available.
Measutement uncettainty exists in these financial statements. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.

481



Multi-Materials Stewardship Board

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {cont’d.)

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in Canadian dollars at exchange
rates in effect at the related transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies ate adjusted to reflect exchange rates at the year end dare. Exchange gains
and losses arising on the translation of monetary assets and liabilities are included in the
determination of incotne.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances with banks and short term deposits
with original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents also include a balance
of $45,066 and $697,922 (2014 - $3,154 and $1,006,389) in restricted cash related to the
performance bonds payable and funds received for the Provincial Waste Management Strategy
respectively.

Long term investments

Long term investments include guaranteed investment certificates with otiginal maturities greater
than one year. At March 31, 2015, $377,410 (2014 - $630,772) of these investments are restricted
to repay performance bonds at the end of the contracts if all conditions have been met by the
parties involved.

Inventories for sale

Inventories, which are comprised of aluminium beverage containers and PET beverage
containers, are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Inventory is costed based on
net realizable value using current market prices.

Non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the
provision of services. They have useful lives generally extending beyond the current vear and are
not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. The change in non-financial assets
during the vear, together with the annual deficit, provides the change in net financial assets for
the vear.

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost. Amortization is provided annually at rates calculated
to write-off the assets over their estimated lives as follows:

Used beverage equipment 30%, declining balance
Office furniture and equipment 20%, declining balance
Leasehold improvements 5 years, straight line

Computer hardware 30%, declining balance
MIDAS software 30%, declining balance
MIS software 30%, declining balance
Computer softwate 30%, declining balance
Bags and tubs 30%, declining balance
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Multi-Materials Stewardship Board

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

3. Summaty of significant accounting policies {cont’d.)

Tangible capital assets (cont’d.)

Included in the cost of computer hardware for 2014 is $298,702 and included in the cost of
MIDAS and MIS software for 2014 is $68,720 of assets not being amortized because they were
not available for use. At March 31, 2015, all tangible capital assets are available for use.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment upon the occurrence of events or changes in
circumstances indicating that the value of the assets may not be recoverable, as measured by
comparing their net book value to the estimated undiscounted cash flows generated by their use.
Impaired assets are recorded at fair value, determined principally using discounted future cash
flows expected from their use and eventual disposition.

Unearned revenue

Unearned revenue consists of deposits on containers yet to be returned for redemption and
recycling. The amount recotded by the Board as uncarned revenue consists of sixty days of
deposits received from distributors, adjusted by an estimated recovery rate of 63% (2014 - 63%).

Unearned revenue also includes funds teceived in relation to the Provincial Waste Management
Strategy related to expenditures for strategic communications development, the Green Depot
Management Information System (MIS) related to customization, installation, training, licences
and support for the system, and restricted grant contributions. The funding is recognized as
revenue as the expenditures are incurred and repayable if not fully spent on the projects.

Accrued severance pay

Severance pay is accounted for on an accrual basis and is recognized when an employee joins the
Board, and is calculated based upon yeats of service, current salary levels and assumptions with
respect to retention. Severance pay is payable when the employee ceases employment with the
Board and has achieved nine years of continual service,

Revenue recognition

Deposit revenue is recognized when remittances ate collected plus an estimated accrval based on
subsequent receipts, as well as historical data,

By-product revenue is recognized upon shipment and when all significant contractual obligations
have been satisfied and collection is reasonably assured.

Othet income is tecognized as earned.
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Multi-Materials Stewardship Board

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {cont’d.)
Expenses

The Board recognizes expenses on an accrual basis. The cost of all goods consumed and
services received during the period is expensed. Grant disbursements to third parties are
accounted for as government transfers. Grant dishursements that are financing arrangements
are recorded as expenses when they are approved by the Minister. Grant disbursements that ate
reimbutsement arrangements ate recorded as expenses when the expenditures have been
incurred by the recipient and all eligibility csiteria have been met.

Financial instruments

The Board considers any contract creating a financial asset, liability or equity instrument as a
financial instrument, except in certain limited circumstances. The Board accounts for the
following as financial instruments:

cash and cash equivalents;
receivables;

notes receivable;

long term investments;
payables and accruals;
grants payable; and
performance bonds payable.

® & ¢ & ° o 0

A financial asset ot liability is recognized when the Board becomes party to contractual
provisions of the instrument.

The Board initially measutes its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value adjusted by, in
the case of a financial instrument that will not be measured subsequently at fair value, the
amount of transaction costs directly attributable to the instrument.

The Board subsequently measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at cost or amortized
cost, except for derivatives and equity secutities quoted in an active market, which are
subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fait value are recognized in annual deficit.

Financial assets measured at fair value include cash and cash equivalents and long term
investments; financial assets measured at cost include receivables; and financial assets measured
at amortized cost include notes receivable.

Financial liabilities measured at cost include payables and accruals, grants payable and
performance bonds pavable.

The Board removes financial liabilities, ot a portion of, when the obligation is discharged,
cancelled or expires.
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Multi-Materials Stewardship Board

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
Financial instruments (cont’d.)

Financial assets measuted at cost ate tested for impairment when there ate indicators of
impaitinent. Previously recognized impairment losses are reversed to the extent of the
improvement provided the asset is not cattied at an amount, at the date of the reversal, greater
than the amount that would have been the carrying amount had no impairment loss been
recognized previously. The amounts of any write-downs or reversals are recognized in net annual
surplus.

4. Cash and cash equivalents 015 2014
Cash and cash equivalents $13,438,448  § 12,296,449
Restricted cash deposits 742,988 1,009,543

$ 14,181,436 $ 13,305,992

5. Receivables 2015 2014
Deposits $ 2,438,170 § 1,937,853
Trade and other 813,958 1,336,692

$ 3,252,128 § 3,274,545

6. Inventories for sale 2015 2014
Aluminium beverage containers $ 48,539 § 51,168
PET beverage containets 19,927 23,885

$ 68466 § 75,053

7. Stockpile costs

In June 2004, the Boatd terminated its contract under the Used Tire Recycling Program with its
previous contractor. Subsequent to this termination, the Board assumed responsibility for the
Program and implemented a contingency plan for the stotage of used tires. As of April 2010,
growth of the stockpile was halted with ongoing generation of tires being shipped to Quebec.
In February 2012, a contract commenced for the temoval of the stockpile. As at March 31,
2015, management has estimated future stockpile removal costs to be $879,130 (2014 -
$1,126,834), which has been accrued in the stockpile costs.
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Multi-Materials Stewardship Board

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Match 31, 2015

8. Supplemental cash flow information 2015 2014

Change in non-cash items

Receivables $ 22417 $ 470,610
Inventoties 6,587 (21,062)
Prepaids (12,765) 18,171
Payables and accruals 83,224 (56,008)
Grants payable 11,184 (82,396)
Accrued stockpile costs (247,704) (425,330}
Unearned revenue (433,361) 736,541

$ (592,786) § 639,866

9. Commitments

The Board 1s committed to minimum annual lease payments for property and equipment for the
next five yeats as follows: 2016 - $237,351; 2017 - $213,508; 2018 - $41,496; 2019 - $39,541; and
2020 - §$13,180.

The Boatd is also committed to grant disbursements to The Harris Centre for the next three
yeats as follows: 2016 - $115,000; 2017 - $115,000; and 2018 - $115,000.

The Boatd has entered into the following agreements:
(i) processing and transportation of beverage containers up to July, 2019,
(i) collection of used tires in Labrador West atea to Aptil, 2020;
(i) collection and transportation of used tires in the island porttion of Newfoundland
and Labrador and the Labyador Straits to February, 2018;
(iv) collection of used tires i Happy Valley-Goose Bay area to February, 2020;
(v) transportation of used tires collected in Labrador to May, 2020;
(vi) transportaton and disposal of processed glass to September, 2015; and
(vii) loading and transportation of stockpile tires to date of completion.

10. Other revenue 015 2014
Provincial Waste Management Strategy $ 362,288 § 28,500
MIS fees from depots 211,410 191,104
Waste audit 10,471 2,000
Paint program 7,531 -

$ 591,700 § 221,604
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Multi-Matertals Stewardship Board

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

1. Financial instruments

The Board’s policy for managing significant risks includes policies, procedures and oversight
designed to reduce the risks identified to an approprate threshold. The Board of Ditectors is
provided with timely and relevant reports on the management of significant risks. Significant
risks managed by the Board include liquidity, credit and market tisks.

Risks and concentrations

The Board is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments. The following analysis
provides a measute of the Board’s tisk exposure and concentrations at March 31, 2015.

Liguidity risk

LLiquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities. The Board is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of its payables and
accruals. The Board reduces its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring its cash flows and
ensuring that it has sufficient cash available to imeet its obligations and liabilities. In the opinion
of management the liquidity tisk exposute to the Boatd is low and not matetial.

There is no liquidity risk associated with the performance bonds payable as they are held in
guatanteed investment certificates with a stated interest rate.

The aging of payables and accruals, grants payable, acerued stockpile costs accrued severance
pay, is as follows:

2015 2014
0-30 days $ 1,237,522 $ 1,333,152
31-60 days 183,161 190,503
61-90 days 8,218 16,395
Over 91 days 1,552,720 1,689,327
1-5 years 141,610 69,518
> 5 years 99,754 85,763
Total $ 3,222,985 $ 3,384,658

Credrt risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss if a customer or counterparty cannot meet its contractual
obligations. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
The Board's credit risk is attributable to receivables. The accounts receivable represent a large
number of small balances owed by its customers, and no one customer or group of customers
represents a significant risk. Management reviews receivables on a case by case basis to
determine if an allowance is necessary to reflect an impairment in collectability.
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Multi-Materials Stewardship Board

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

11, Financial instruments (cont’d.)

The aging of receivables is as follows:

015 2014
0-30 days $ 2,650,601 $ 2,354,950
31-60 days 290,351 459,865
61-90 days 33,210 24,562
Over 91 days 318,347 451,682
Total $ 3,292,509 $ 3,201,059
Allowance for doubtful accounts (40,381) (16,514)
Net receivables $ 3,252,128 $ 3,274,545

The aging of notes receivable is as follows:

2015 2014
<1 year $ 18,085 $26471
1> 2 years 11,507 8,359
2> 3 yeats 7,044 2,571
> 3 vears 7,906 2,106
> 4 years 4,487 1,451
Total $ 49,029 $ 40,958

Market vick

Marker risk is the risk that the fair value of marketable securities or long-term investments will
change as a result of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
currency risk, interest rate tisk and other price risk. The Board is mainly exposed to curtency risk
and other price risk.

Orther prive risk

Other price risk 1s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial mstrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuet, or factors affecting all similar financial instraments traded in the marker.
The Boatd is exposed to other price risk through its sale of by-products.

The Boatd is exposed to concentration risk as all of its by-products are in a quoted active
market.
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Mult-Materials Stewardship Board

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2015

11, Financial instruments (cont’d.)

The table below presents a sensitivity analysis for changes in market prices of aluminium and
polyethylene terephthalate (PET) and the impact on by-product revenue:

2015 2014
Aluminium PET Aluminium PET
-0.10% $1,544,473 $ 654,295 § 1,267,122 $ 686,288
-0.05% 1,630,277 690,645 1,337,518 724,415
Market Ptice at March 31st 1,716,081 726,994 1,407,914 762,542
+0.05% 1,801,885 763,344 1,478,309 800,669
+0.10% 1,887,689 799,694 1,548,705 838,796
12. Employee future benefits

The Board participates in the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador’s Government
Money Purchase Plan (GMPP) which is a defined contribution pension plan. The plan is
mandatozy for all emplovees, with the exception of the CEO, from date of

employment. Employees contribute 5% of regular earnings and the Board matches these
contributions. Contributions made prior to Januatry 1, 1997 ate fully vested and locked-in aftet
the completion of 10 years of continuous service and has attained the age 45 or after the
completion of 5 years of plan participation. Contributions made on or after January 1, 1997 are
fully vested and locked-in after the completion of 2 years of plan patticipation. Contributions
paid and expensed by the Board during the vear totaled $56,540 (2014 - $53,569).

13. Prior petiod adjustment

During the year the Board undertook a review of its accounting policies for grant disbursements.
In prior years, the Board recorded grant disbursements upon Ministerial approval. However, in
accordance with Section 3410 Government Transfers of the CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting
Handbook, a number of these projects met the definition of reimbursements atrangements and
should only be tecorded as an expense when the expenditure has been incutted by the recipient
and all eligibility criteria met. As a result, the following financial statement items for the year
ended March 31, 2014 have been increased (decreased) as follows:

Opening accumulated surplus $ 730,59
Grant disbursements 589,935
Grants payable (140,656)
Closing accumulated surplus 140,656
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Multi-Materials Stewardship Board

Consolidated Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets

Year Ended March 31, 2015

Office MIDAS
Used Beverage  Furniture & Leasehold Computer ~ Computer and MIS Bags and
Equipment _Egquipment Improvements Hardware Software Software Tubs 2015 2014

Cost
Cost, beginning of year $ 170733 § 150,080 $ 8913 § 455,008 § 325,570 514208 § 478497 $ 2,103,049 § 1,704,386
Additions during the year - - - 144,075 = 105,460 - 249,535 398,663
Disposals during the year - - - - - - - -
Cost, end of year $ 170773 § 150,080 $ 8913 § 599083 § 325570 619,668 § 478497 $ 2,352,584 3§ 2,103,049
Accumulated Amortization
Accumulated amornzation,

beginning of year $ 138258 § 107,095 § 6,714 $ 103,492 § 256,911 80,375 § 402489 $ 1,095334 § 969425
Amottization 8,595 8,308 402 106,929 18,035 60,108 19914 222291 125,909
Reversal of accumulated

amortization relating to

disposals - B - - - - - - -
Accumulated amortization,

end of year 146,853 115,403 7116 210,421 274946 140,483 422403 1,317,625 1,095,334
Net book value of tangible

capital assets $ 23920 § 34677 § 1,797 § 388,662 $ 50,624 479,185 $ 56,094 $ 1,034,959 $ 1,007,715
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Multi-Materials Stewardship Board

Consolidated Schedule of Administrative Expenses

Year Ended March 31 2015 2014
Advertising $ 1,180 § 408
Amortization 222,29 125,909
Business development 20,478 12,954
Directors’ remuneration 9,955 17,631
Dues, licences and education 82,763 2,514
Equipment rental and support 63,283 73,703
Insurance 8,358 7,323
Interest and bank charges 5,431 6,729
Marketing and communications 673,660 520,758
Meetings and entertainment 15,261 11,783
Miscellaneous 15,218 13,379
Professional fees 96,034 134,493
Rent 150,154 140,074
Software support 100,684 12,239
Stationery and office supplies 33,242 26,211
Strategic communications development 362,287 28,500
Supplies 35,394 23,797
Telecommunications 40,844 33,475
Travel - Board and staff 86,233 88,583
Vehicle operating 19,089 25,639
Wages and benefits 1,605,404  __ 1,600,202

$ 3,647,243  § 2,906,304
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JOHN F. MORGAN

Chartered Professional Accountant
6 Lambe’s Lane
St. John’s, NL AIB 4E9
Office: (709) 576-6776
Fax: (709) 576-6777

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

1 have audited the accompanying financial statements for Municipal Assessment Agency Inc., which
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2015, and the statement of revenues, expenses and equity,
and statement of changes in financial position for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards and for such internal control as management
determines necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted
my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the presentation
of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.

Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Municipal Assessment Agency Inc. as at March 31, 2015, and its financial performance and its cash

flows for the year then ended in accordance with Public Sector Acco nting Standards.
P
;’{; e /;/ s - f/ .
e e e
//‘“ 7 o ij}

, S
___~CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANT

St. John's, Newfoundland

May 26, 2015
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BALANCE SHEET

AS AT MARCH 31, 2015
ASSETS
2015 2014

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash $1,367,237  $1,412,776
Accounts receivable (note 2) 203,558 136,288
Current portion of long term receivables - 14,349
Prepaid expenses 140,902 108.742
1,711,697 1,672,155
Severance reserve fund (note 3) 789,271 871,403
Capital assets (note 4) 1,341,821 1,439,205

$3,842,789  $3,982,763

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 196,967 $§ 2487236
Accrued vacation pay (note 5) 284,758 300,082
Deferred revenue 11,242 -
492,967 548,318
Accrued severance pay (note 5) 789,271 871,403
1,282,238 1,419,721
SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY
CAPITAL:
Authorized and issued
1 Common share 1 1
Equity from operations 2,560,550 2,563,041

2,560,551 2,563,042

$3,842,789  $3,982,763

Commitments and contingencies (note 6)

O .behalf of the board:
YoM Joett N M\ cp

e

s

s,
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

2015 2014
REVENUES:
Assessment services $5,555,463  $5,516,921
Valuation revenue 65,945 32,869
Interest revenue 23,292 23,902
Municipal training 1,880 3.360
5,646,580 5,577,052
EXPENSES:
Salaries 3,434,612 3,521,445
Benefits 649,852 655,389
Travel 341,620 334,102
Information technology 251,080 250,487
Postage and courier 160,614 153,304
Professional fees 141,319 159,802
Premises and equipment lease 92,676 90,355
Printing 57,956 60,374
Telephone 60,419 57,672
Repairs and maintenance 48,655 55,423
Office supplies 49,901 55,247
Utilities 35,670 28,740
Advertising and public relations 29,105 22,512
Insurance 21,729 20,153
Exchange gain/loss 29,834 11,915
Payroll processing 5,259 5,094
Bank charges 2,914 1,746
Meetings and events 3,387 -
5,416,602 5,483,760
Excess of revenues over expenses before the following: 229,978 93,292
Provision for severance and vacation pay (note 5) 67,620 16,862
Amortization of capital assets 168,441 197,835
Bad debt expense (recovery) (3,592) (3,108)
Excess of expenses over revenues (2,491) (118,297)
Equity from operations, beginning of year 2,563,041 2,681,338
EQUITY FROM OPERATIONS, END OF YEAR $2,560,550  $2,563,041

Commitments and contingencies (note 6)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION

2015 2014
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Excess of revenues over expenses $ (2491 $ (118297
Items not affecting cash:
Amortization of capital assets 168,441 197,835
Decrease (increase) in long-term receivable 14,349 3,800
Decrease in severance pay accrual (82,132) (54,346)
Decrease in vacation pay accrual (15,324) (10,189)

Net change in non-cash working capital balance (139.457) (95.110)
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (56.614) (76.307)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of capital assets (71,057) (75,535)
CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (71,057) (73,535)
Increase (decrease) in cash position (127,671) (149,842)
Cash position, beginning of year 2,284,179 2,434,021
CASH POSITION, END OF YEAR $2,156,508  $2,284,179
Cash is represented by:

Operating cash $1,367,237  $1,412,776

Severance reserve fund 789.271 871.403

$2,156,508  $2,284,179

Commitments and contingencies (note 6)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

General:

The Municipal Assessment Agency Inc. (the “Agency”) was incorporated April 2, 1997, under
the laws of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador to carry out assessment services for
various municipalities throughout the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador pursuant to the
Assessment Act. Prior to this date, these services were performed by the Department of
Municipal and Intergovernmental Affairs, Government of Newfoundland and Labrador (the
“Department”).

The Agency has one common share with a par value of $1.00 issued to the Minister of
Municipal and Intergovernmental Affairs, Government of Newfoundland and Labrador.

The Agency is a crown corporation and, accordingly, is exempt from income taxes under
Subsection 149(1)(d) of the Income Tax Act.

- Summary of significant accounting policies:

The financial statements of the Agency have been prepared within the framework of Public
Sector Accounting Standards which require the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported and disclosed in these statements and related notes. Any variations between
these estimates and actual amounts are not expected to materially affect reported results. The
more significant accounting policies of the Agency are as follows:

(a) Capital assets

Capital assets purchased by the Agency are recorded at cost. Amortization is recorded on a
declining balance basis over the assets estimated useful lives at the following rates:

Furniture and equipment 20%
Computer hardware and software 30%
Integrated assessment system 30%
Buildings 4%

(b) Revenue recognition

Revenue for the provision of assessment and valuation services is recognized when the services
are rendered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):

(¢) Accrued severance pay

Severance pay is accounted for on an accrued basis and is calculated based upon years of
service and current salary levels. The right to be paid severance pay vests with employees with
nine years of continued service and accrues to a maximum of twenty years and, accordingly,
no provision has been made in the accounts for employees with less than nine years of
continued service. The amount is payable when the employee ceases employment with the
Agency. The cash amount of the accrued severance pay is segregated into a severance reserve
fund.

(d) Redundancy pay

Redundancy pay is recognized as a liability when it is probable that employees will be entitled
to benefits and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

(e) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Agency has evaluated the fair values of its financial instruments based on the current
interest rate environment, related market values and current pricing of financial instruments
with comparable terms. The carrying value of its financial instruments is considered to
approximate fair value, unless otherwise indicated.

The Agency considers any contract creating a financial asset, liability or equity instrument as
a financial instrument, except in certain limited circumstances. The Agency accounts for the
following as financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Due from (to) companies under common control

Bank indebtedness

Payables and accruals

Long-term debt

A financial asset or liability is recognized when the Agency becomes party to contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets or liabilities obtained in arm’s length transactions are initially measured at their
fair value. In the case of a financial asset or liability not being subsequently measured at fair
value, the initial fair value will be adjusted for financing fees and transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its origination, acquisition, issuance or assumption.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are subsequently measured according to the following
methods:

Financial instrument Subsequent measurement
Cash and cash equivalents Amortized cost
Trade and other receivables Amortized cost
Due from (to) companies under common control Amortized cost
Bank indebtedness Amortized cost
Payables and accruals Amortized cost
Long-term debt Amortized cost

The Agency removes financial liabilities, or portion of, when the obligation is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

(f) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Some assets are exposed to foreign
exchange fluctuations. As at March 31, 2015, cash balances of $159,141 ($144,771 in 2014)
are shown in US dollars in the company’s account and converted into Canadian dollars as at
that date for financial statement purposes.

. Accounts receivable:

2015 2014

Trade receivables $ 83,127 $ 81,845
HST recoverable 118,865 49,130
Employee receivable 1.566 5,313

$ 203,558 § 136.288

. Severance reserve fund:

The Agency has internally restricted funds for the accrued severance pay liability. These funds
are to be used to pay any accrued severance and not to be used in normal business operations.
The restricted funds are held in the Agency’s operating account that bears interest.
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4. Capital assets:

2015 2014
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization _ Value Value
Computer hardware and
software § 413,506 $ 392,654 $ 20,852 $ 25942
Furniture and equipment 230,763 192,207 38,556 39,594
Integrated assessment system 1,819,697 1,510,443 309,254 368,638
Buildings 1,028,654 263,716 764,938 796,810
Land 208.221 - 208.221 208.221
$3,700.841  $2.359.020 $1.341,821  $1.439.205
5. Severance and vacation pay:
The provision for severance and vacation pay consists of the following:
Severance pay 2015 2014
Opening balance $ 871,403 $ 925,749
Severance paid out (118,064) (67.,883)
Current year expense 35.932 13,537
Closing balance § 789271 § 871.403
Vacation pay 2015 2014
Opening balance $ 300,082 § 310,271
Current year expense 31,688 3,325
Vacation paid out (47.012) (13.514)
Closing balance § 284758 $ 300,082

501



~ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

6. Commitments and Contingencies:

The Agency has a lease for office space in Corner Brook, Newfoundland and Labrador. The
term of the lease is 5 years, starting October 1, 2012 and ending on September 30, 2017, with
the option to renew for a further term of up to 5 years. The monthly rental fee is $4,174.
Future minimum lease payments total $125,220 and include the following payments over the
next 3 years: 2015 - $37,566, 2016 - $50,088, 2017 — 37,566.

The Agency has a lease for office space in Clarenville, Newfoundland and Labrador. The term
of the lease is 5 years, starting May 1, 2013 and ending on April 30, 2018. The monthly rental
fee is $450. Future minimum lease payments total $16,650 and include the following
payments over the next 4 years: 2015 - $4,050, 2016 — $5,400, 2017 - $5,400, 2018 - $1,800.

The Agency has a lease for office space in Grand Falls-Windsor, Newfoundland and Labrador.
The term of the lease is 3 years, starting February 1, 2014 and ending on January 31, 2017.
The monthly rental fee is $764. Future minimum lease payments total $16,808 and include
the following payments over the next 3 years: 2015 - $6,876, 2016 - $9,168, 2017 - $764.

The Agency has a lease for office space in Deer Lake, Newfoundland and Labrador. The term
of the lease is 3 years, starting July 1, 2012 and ending on June 30, 2015. The monthly rental
fee is $425. Future minimum lease payments total $1,275 and include the following payments
over the next year: 2015 - $1,275.

The Agency has a lease for office space in Stephenville, Newfoundland and Labrador. The
term of the lease is 3 years, starting September 1, 2013 and ending on August 31, 2016. The
monthly rental fee is $398. Future minimum lease payments total $6,766 and include the
following payments over the next 2 years: 2015 - $3,582, 2016 - $3,184.

The Agency has prepared property valuations which are subject to litigation to which the
Agency has been included as a third party defendant. These claims could be considered to be
in the normal course of the Agency’s activities. Neither the possible outcome nor the amount
of possible settlement can be foreseen. Therefore, no provision has been made in the financial
statements.
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